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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 20-F

0 REGISTRATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(b) OR 12(g) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

OR

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013
OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

OR

O SHELL COMPANY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Date of event requiring this shell company report

Commission file number 0-31106

ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD.

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Chaer)

Bermuda
(Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization)

No. 1, R&D Road 1, Hsinchu Science Park
Hsinchu, Taiwan
Republic of China

(Address of Principal Executive Offices)

Shou-Kang Chen
Chief Financial Officer
ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD.
No. 1, R&D Road 1, Hsinchu Science Park
Hsinchu, Taiwan
Republic of China
Telephone: (886) 3 563 3988
Facsimile: (886) 3 563 3998

(Name, Telephone, E-mail and/or Facsimile Number ahAddress of Company Contract Person)

Securities registered or to be registered pursuarnb Section 12(b) of the Act:

Name of Each Exchangt
Title of Each Class on Which Registered




Common Shares, par value US$0.04 € The NASDAQ Capital Marke

Securities registered or to be registered pursuarnb Section 12(g) of the Act:
None
(Title of Class)
Securities for which there is a reporting obligatio pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Act:
None
(Title of Class)

Indicate the number of outstanding shares of etfedssuer’s classes of capital or common stactfahe close of the period covered
by the annual report.

As of December 31, 2013, 29,684,530 Common Shpeesjalue US$0.04 each, were outstanding (not diegi2,093,705 Common
Shares held by our subsidiary).

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405edBéturities Act.  Yed No
X1

If this report is an annual or transition repamtjicate by check mark if the registrant is not regglito file reports pursuant to Section 13
or (15)(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 193¥.es [ No

Indicate by check mark whether the registranth@s filed all reports required to be filed by Sexti3 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 mofah$or such shorter period that the registrans wemjuired to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirementste past 90 days. Ye&l No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lhsmstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥eb site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted @auntsio Rule 405 of Regulation5¢8232.405 of this chapter) during the precedi@grbnths
(or for such shorter period that the registrant veagiired to submit and post such files). YEb No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, noa-accelerated filer. See definition of
“accelerated filer and large accelerated filerRnle 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large Accelerated Filer] Accelerated Filer[X] Non-Accelerated Filer]
Indicate by check mark which basis of accountirgrégistrant has used to prepare the financiarsitts included in this filing.
US GAAP O
International Financial Reporting Standards aseidday the International Accounting Standards Bo&xtl Other O

If this is an annual report, indicate by check mahether the registrant is a shell company (asddfin Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act). Yes O No
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT FOR PURPOSES OF THE “SAFE HARB OR” PROVISIONS OF
THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 199 5

Except for historical matters, the matters discds$sehis Annual Report on Form 20-F are forwardkimg statements that are subject to
significant risks and uncertainties. These statesare generally indicated by the use of forwaxkiog terminology such as the words

” o ” o SI T

“anticipate”, “believe”, “estimate”, “expect”, “imnd”, “may”, “plan”, “project”, “will” or other sinmlar words that express an indication of
actions or results of actions that may or are ebgubto occur in the future. These statements appeanumber of places throughout this
Annual Report on Form 20-F and include statemesganding our intentions, beliefs or current expiata concerning, among other things,
our results of operations, financial conditionylidjty, prospects, growth, strategies and the itvtessin which we operate.

By their nature, forward-looking statements involisks and uncertainties because they relate totsand depend on circumstances tha
may or may not occur in the future. Forward-lookatgtements are not guarantees of future perforenand our actual results of operations,
financial condition and liquidity, and the develogmh of the industries in which we operate may diffaterially from those made in or
suggested by the forward-looking statements coathin this Annual Report on Form 20-F. Importartdas that could cause those difference
include, but are not limited to:

. the volatility of the semiconductor industry aneé tinarket for er-user applications for semiconductor produ
. overcapacity in the semiconductor testing and absemarkets

. the increased competition from other companiescamability to retain and increase our market sf
. our ability to successfully develop new technolsgiad remain a technological leac

. our ability to maintain control over capacity expam and facility modifications

. our ability to generate growth or profitable gron

. our ability to hire and retain qualified personr

. our ability to acquire required equipment and siggaio meet customer demai

. our ability to raise debt or equity financing aguiged to meet certain existing obligatio

. the pending criminal indictment of our chairman ahdef executive officer

. our reliance on the business and financial comitifbcertain major customet

. the success of any of our future acquisitions, stwents or joint venture

. the outcome of any pending litigatic

. the outbreak of contagious disease and occurrdrearthquakes, typhoons and other natural disastensell as industrial
accidents

. the political stability of the regions to which wenduct operations; ar

. general local and global economic and financialdétons.

Forward-looking statements include, but are noitéchto, statements regarding our strategy andadytlans, future business condition
and financial results, our capital expenditure gjaur capacity expansion plans, our expansiorsptaMainland China, technological
upgrades, investment in research and developmentegfmarket demand, future regulatory or otheetgyments in our industry. Please see

“Iltem 3. Key Information—Risk Factors” for a furthdiscussion of certain factors that may causeahctsults to differ materially from those
indicated by our forward-looking statements.

This Annual Report on Form 20-F includes, referotdncorporates by reference, as applicablenfiied statements and other financial
information based on both IFRSs and ROC GAAP, aadriformation based on ROC GAAP is not compar&biaformation prepared in
accordance with IFRSs.

PART |

Item 1. Identity of Directors, Senior Management and Advises
Not applicable.

Item 2. Offer Statistics and Expected Timetable
Not applicable.
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Item 3. Key Information
Selected Financial Data

The following tables set forth our selected cortted financial data. Commencing January 1, 20E3Company prepared its
consolidated financial statement in accordance imittrnational Financial Reporting Standards (“IBR&s issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board. According to Form 2@dtruction G, the selected consolidated finand&th under IFRSs for 2012 and 2013,
under US GAAP for 2009 through 2011 and under RG@&\B for 2009 through 2012 are provided below. Tékested consolidated stateme
of financial position data as of December 31, 284& 2013 and our consolidated income statementsasidflows data for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2013 under IFRSs are ddiiesdour audited consolidated financial statemémtkided herein, and should be read in
conjunction with, and are qualified in their entyrdy reference to, these audited consolidatedfiizd statements and related notes beginning
on page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 20-F.sehaudited consolidated financial statements haea hudited by Moore Stephens. The
selected consolidated balance sheet data as ofibece1, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012 and the corgetidstatement of operations and cash
flows data for the years ended December 31, 2008),2011 and 2012 under US GAAP or ROC GAAP ar&velé from our audited
consolidated financial statements not includedihere

Year ended December 31
2012 2013 2013
NT$ NT$ uss$
(in millions, except per share data

Consolidated Income Statements Date
IFRSSs:

Revenue $ 19,220.! $ 19,361.¢ $ 649.1
Cost of revenu (16,767.9 (15,922.) (533.9)
Gross profit 2,452.¢ 3,439.! 115.2
Other operating incomr 127.¢ 442 ¢ 14.¢
Research and development exper (505.9) (564.5) (18.9)
Sales and marketing expen: (79.9 (107.%) (3.6)
Administrative and general expen (637.6) (699.7) (23.9
Other operating expens (48.7) (100.¢) (3.4)
Operating profi 1,308.¢ 2,409.¢ 80.¢
Finance cost (228.6) (183.0 (6.7)
Other no-operating income (expense), | (232.5) 289.% 9.€
Profit before tay 847.¢ 2,516.; 84.2
Income tax (178.7) (827.7) (27.7)
Profit for the yea $ 669.7 $ 1,689.0 $ 56.€
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Compat $ 629.¢ $ 1,335 $ 44.¢
Non-controlling interest: 39.¢ 353.7 11.€

$ 669.7 $ 1,689.( $ 56.€

Earnings per shar.

Basic $ 22.9z $ 45.5¢ $ 1.5¢

Diluted $ 22.2¢ $ 44.27 $ 1.4¢
Weighte-average number of shares outstand

Basic 27.t 29.2 29.c

Diluted 28.2 30.2 30.2
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Consolidated Statement of Operations Data
ROC GAAP:
Net revenue
Related partie(®)
Others
Total net revenu
Cost of revenu
Gross profit (loss
Operating expense
Research and developmg
General and administratiy
Sales and marketir
Total operating expens
Income (Loss) from operatiol
Other income (expenses), |

Income (Loss) before income tax and -controlling interest:

Income tax benefit (expens

Income (Loss) before n-controlling interest:

Net (income) loss attributable to r-controlling interest:
Net income (loss) attributable to ChipM(

Earnings (Loss) per sha®:
Basic
Diluted
Weightet-average number of shares outstand2) :
Basic
Diluted

Year ended December 31

2009 2010 2011 2012
NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$
(in millions, except per share data
$ 668.¢ $ 2,033 $  379.( $ —
11,481. 15,176.« 17,831.! 19,220.!
12,150.: 17,209. 18,210.! 19,220.!
(15,661.) (16,564.1) (16,549.) (16,638.Y
(3,511.) 645.7 1,661. 2,582.(

(375.9) (412.%) (409.¢) (492.¢)
(657.¢) (677.€) (651.¢) (625.€)
(561.7) (64.4) (66.5) (78.9)
(1,594.) (1,154.) (1,128.2) (1,196.9)
(5,105.Y (509.0) 533.t 1,385.
116.3 2,320.¢ (455.%) (464.9)
(4,988.%) 1,811.¢ 77.7 920.¢
420.7 99.2 (45.5) (131.5)
(4,568.)) 1,910.¢ 322 789.:
149.¢ (266.2) (47.9) (67.5)

$ (4,418.) $ 1,644, $  (15.9 $  721¢
$ (223.3Y $ 68.6] $ (0.57) $ 2623
$ (230.1Y $ 67.3t $ (0.57) $ 25.5(
19.¢ 24.C 26.€ 27.t

22.¢ 26.¢ 26.€ 28.c
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Year ended December 31
2009 2010 2011
NT$ NTS$ NT$
(in millions, except per share data

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data
US GAAP:

Net revenus $12,150.: $17,209. $18,210.!
Cost of revenur (15,691.() (16,634.9) (16,612.)
Gross profit (loss (3,540.) 574.¢ 1,598.

97.2 5,039.¢ 120.¢

Other operating incorr

Operating expense (1,726.9 (2,670.6) (1,307.9)
Income (Loss) from operatiol (5,170.0) 2,943.¢ 411.%
Nor-operating income (expenses), 2.2 (1,197.9) (301.9
Income (Loss) before income tax and -controlling interest: (5,167.9) 1,746.: 109.€
Net income (loss) attributable to ChipM( $ (4550.) $ 1,616. $ 46.1
Earnings (Loss) per sha(@):

Basic $ (230.00 $ 67.4f $ 1.7t

Diluted $ (236.60) $ 66.3F $ 1.71
Weightec-average number of shares outstan(?) :

Basic 19.¢ 24.C 26.€

Diluted 20.¢ 26.¢ 26.¢

(1) Related parties include Mosel Vitelic Inc.,Mosel, Siliconware Precision Industries Co. Lta.Sdiconware Precision, ProMOS Technologies IncProMOS and DenMOS
Technology Inc., or DenMOS. Commencing April 1, 20Mosel and its direct and indirect subsidiariesre longer related parties of the Company agciely, they hold less than
10% interest in ChipMOS Bermuda and are no longasiclered as having significant influence on thenfany. Commencing April 1, 2011, Siliconware Priecideld less than 10%

interest in ChipMOS Bermuda and was no longer ansdjareholder of the Compai
(2) The outstanding shares and per share informatftectehe reverse stock split of the Comp’s common stock with a ratio o-for-every-4 shares effective on January 21, 2(

4
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Position Datz
IFRSs:
Non-current asset:

Available-for-sale financial asse

Property, plant and equipme

Other norcurrent asset

Current asset:
Inventories
Accounts and notes receival
Other current asse
Cash and cash equivalel

Total asset
Equity and liabilities
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Comyp
Non-controlling interest:
Total equity
Non-current liabilities:
Bank loan—nor-current portior
Other nor-current liabilities

Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Payable to contractors and equipment supp
Other payable
Other current liabilitie:
Bank loan—current portior
Shor-term bank loan

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilitie:

As of December 31

2012 2013 2013
NT$ NT$ Us$
(in millions)

$ 11e¢ % 8¢ $ 02

12,475. 12,811.¢ 429.¢
726.2 330.4 11.1
13,213.: 13,150.! 440.¢
1,687.¢ 1,519.¢ 50.¢
4,120.: 4,114« 137.¢
914.% 450.¢ 15.1
8,863.¢ 13,372.1 448.c
15,586.: 19,457 .- 652.2

$28,799..  $32,608..  $1,093.

11,593 13,564. 454
3,995, 7,024.¢ 235.5
15,589.. 20,589.f 690.2
6,739.¢ 3,889.( 130.¢
566.2 584.i 19.€
7,306.: 4,473, 150.(
890.1 956.¢ 32.1
484.¢ 858.2 28.¢
1,669.: 1,541 51.€
265.¢ 527.1 17.€
2,227.¢ 2,874.¢ 96.4
366.5 786.7 26.4
5,904.( 7,545.( 252.¢
13,210.: 12,018, 402.¢

$28,799..  $32,608..  $1,093.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet Date
ROC GAAP:
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel
Restricted cash and cash equivalt
Financial assets at fair value through profit aveb
Investment with no active mark
Notes receivabl
Accounts receivabl
—related partie®
—third parties
Other receivable
—related partie®
—third parties
Inventories
Deferred income tax, n
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Total current asse
Long-term investment
Property, plant and equipm—net
Intangible asse—net
Other asset
Total asset
Current liabilities:
Shor-term bank loan
Current portion of lon-term loans
Convertible note
Accounts payabl
Payables to contractors and equipment supg
Other payable
Current portion of capital leases paya
Accrued expenses and other current liabili
Total current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Total equity (including nc-controlling interests

As of December 31

2009 2010 2011 2012
NT$ NT$ NT$ NTS$
(in millions)

$3,884.¢ $7,143.0 $7,357.¢ $ 9,319.(
243.¢ 546.¢ 285.1 174.%
119.C 3.C — —
100.C — — —
27.¢ 14.C 5.7 5.C
0.2 258.( — —
2,441.¢ 2,816.( 3,666.! 3,992.;
N 66.4 — —
130.1 182.( 73.2 149.¢
862.1 1,279.¢ 1,533.¢ 1,687.¢
356.4 278.7 76.€ 77.€
265.1 202.: 92.% 131.¢
8,431.. 12,790.: 13,091. 15,538.:
220.( 10.5 39.1 11.€
20,769.( 17,273.( 13,896.: 12,108.(
102.¢ 94.2 100.5 178.¢
833.2 1,147.( 1,154 912.¢
30,356.. 31,315. 28,281.. 28,749..
2,363.: 1,494. 546.¢ 366.¢
1,553.¢ 4,925.° 684.( 2,227.¢
— 65.¢ — —
738.( 690.1 1,130.¢ 890.1
201.2 790.¢ 415.¢ 484.¢
696.1 896.7 1,081.t 1,008.¢
821.2 822.( — —
525.7 990.¢ 830.¢ 767.C
6,921.f 10,697.! 4,712.: 5,775.¢
13,475.: 6,566. 8,579.¢ 6,829.:
7.3 7.7 6.C 175.¢
20,404.( 17,2714 13,297.1 12,780..
$ 9,952.. $14,043.. $14,983.. $15,969..
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As of December 31

2009 2010 2011
NT$ NT$ NTS
(in millions)
Consolidated Balance Sheet Date
US GAAP;
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel $ 3,884.4 $ 7,143.0 $ 7,357.¢
Restricted cash and cash equivalt 243.¢ 546.¢ 285.1
Financial assets at fair value through profit aveb 119.( 3.C —
Available-for-sale financial asse 100.( — —
Notes receivabl 27.¢ 14.C 5.7
Accounts receivabl
—related partie® 0.2 258.( —
—third parties 2,441.¢ 2,816.( 3,666.t
Other receivable
—related partie® — 66.4 —
—third parties 130.] 182.( 73.2
Inventories 863.1 1,280.¢ 1,534.¢
Deferred income tax, n 350.2 272. 70.4
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 265.1 202.: 92.2
Total current asse 8,426.( 12,785.. 13,086.¢
Long-term investment 220.( 10.£ 39.1
Property, plant and equipm—net 20,474.. 16,924. 13,501.(
Intangible asse—net 102.¢ 94.2 100.t
Other asset 893.: 1,221.: 1,237.¢
Total asset 30,116.- 31,035.: 27,964..
Current liabilities:
Shor-term bank loan 2,363.1 1,494.° 546.¢
Current portion of lon-term loans 1,553.¢ 4,925.° 684.(
Convertible note — 65.¢ —
Accounts payabl 738.( 690.1 1,130.¢
Payables to contractors and equipment supg 201.C 790.¢ 415.¢
Other payable 696.1 896.7 1,081t
Current portion of capital leases paya 821. 822.( —
Accrued expenses and other current liabili 525.7 990.¢ 830.¢
Total current liabilities 6,921.! 10,697.! 4,712.;
Long-term liabilities 13,475.. 6,566. 8,579.¢
Other liabilities 286.1 398.€ 383.t
Total liabilities 20,682. 17,662.! 13,675..
Total equity (including nc-controlling interests $ 9,433.¢ $13,372.( $14,288.

(1) Related parties include Mosel, Siliconware Bien, ProMOS and DenMOS. Commencing April 1, 208ibsel and its direct and indirect subsidiariesravdonger related parties of
the Company as collectively, they hold less thab Iifterest in ChipMOS Bermuda and are no longesicned as having significant influence on the Canyp Commencing April 1,
2011, Siliconware Precision held less than 10%éstein ChipMOS Bermuda and was no longer a mégareholder of the Compar

7
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Dat:
IFRSs:

Capital expenditure

Depreciation and amortizatic

Net cash generated from (used
Operating activitie:
Investing activities
Financing activitie:

Net increase in cash and cash equival

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Dat:
ROC GAAP:

Capital expenditure

Depreciation and amortizatic

Net cash provided by (used il
Operating activitie:
Investing activities
Financing activitie:
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Dat:
US GAAP:
Net cash provided by (used il
Operating activitie:
Investing activities
Financing activitie:
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis

Year ended December 31

2012 2013 2013
NT$ NT$ Uss$
(in millions)

$2,817.¢ $3,624.¢ $121.F

4,631.¢ 3,294.¢ 110.F
4,527.( 6,223.. 208.¢
(2,599.9  (3,005.0  (100.7)

(312.9) 1,305.: 43.7

$1,614.¢ $4,522.¢ $ 151.¢

Year ended December 31

2009 2010 2011 2012
NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$
(in millions)

$3,479.. $4237.¢ $2,319.0 $2,776.¢
6,524.¢ 6,281.¢ 5,677.¢ 4,631.¢
781.( 8,688.¢ 5,898.( 4,735.]
(1,042.5)  (2,454.) (3,250.) (2,594.9
(2,503.) (2,959.)  (2,464.6 (162.7)
(1.9 (16.9) 31.¢ (16.6)
$(2,767.) $3,258¢ $ 2146 $1,961.

Year ended December 31

2009 2010 2011
NT$ NT$ NTS$
(in millions)

$1,633. $8504.( $6,179.¢
(1,0425 (24542  (3,250.)
(2,503.  (2,959.5)  (2,464.()
$(1,912.9 $3,090.0 $ 464.:
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Exchange Rates

References to “US$” and “US dollars” are to Unifdtes dollars and references to “NT$"” and “NT awll are to New Taiwan dollars.
This Annual Report on Form 2B-contains translations of certain NT dollar amseunto US dollars at specified rates solely for¢bhavenienc
of the reader. Unless otherwise noted, all traimgiatfrom NT dollars to US dollars and from US dodlto NT dollars were made at the noon
buying rate in The City of New York for cable tréers in NT dollars per US dollar as certified farstoms purposes by the Federal Reserve
Bank of New York as of December 31, 2013, which Wa$29.83 to US$1.00. We make no representatiartiieaNT dollar or US dollar
amounts referred to in this Annual Report on FofsZould have been or could be converted into tlus or NT dollars, as the case may
be, at any particular rate or at all. On April 2814, the noon buying rate was NT$30.17 to US$1.00.

The following table sets out, for the years andrtfuaths indicated, information concerning the nunddeNT dollars for which one US
dollar could be exchanged based on the noon bugiegfor cable transfers in NT dollars as certifiedcustoms purposes by the Federal
Reserve Bank of New York.

NT dollars per US dollar noon buying rate

Average High Low Period-end
2009 33.0z 35.21 31.9¢ 31.9¢
2010 31.5C 32.4% 29.1¢ 29.1¢
2011 29.3¢t 30.63 28.5( 30.2
2012 29.5¢ 30.2¢ 28.9¢ 29.0¢
2013 29.6¢ 30.2( 28.9¢ 29.8:
October 29.3¢ 29.4¢ 29.3: 29.4;
Novembel 29.52 29.6¢ 29.3i 29.5¢
Decembe 29.72 30.0¢ 29.5¢ 29.8¢
2014
January 30.1¢4 30.31 29.9( 30.31
February 30.31 30.3: 30.2¢ 30.2¢
March 30.4( 30.6¢ 30.2¢ 30.4¢
April (through 18, 2014 30.17  30.2¢  29.9¢ 30.17

Sources: Federal Reserve Bank of New York.
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Risk Factors
Risks Relating to Economic Conditions and the Finatial Markets
The global credit and financial markets crisis calimaterially and adversely affect our business aregults of operations.

Disruptions in global credit and financial marketay occur that cause diminished liquidity and leditavailability of credit, reduced
consumer confidence, reduced economic growth, aser@ unemployment rates and uncertainty about etiorstability. Limited availability o
credit in financial markets may lead consumerstaminesses to postpone spending. This in turn magecour customers to cancel, decrea
delay their existing and future orders with us.dricial difficulties experienced by our customersuppliers as a result of these conditions
could lead to production delays and delays or disfa payment of accounts receivable. Continuireglit markets disruption restricts our
access to capital and limits our ability to fundedions or to refinance maturing obligations &ythecome due through additional borrowing
or other sources of financing. We are not ableréaligt the duration or extent of disruptions inliibcredit and financial markets that occurred
in and since 2009 and through 2013. These condiiiterease the difficulty of accurately forecastamgl planning our business activities. If
these conditions and uncertainties continue oreiflit and financial markets and confidence in ecoica@onditions further deteriorate, our
business and results of operations could be miyeaiad adversely affected.

Risks Relating to Our Industry

Because we depend on the highly cyclical semicondutdustry, which is characterized by significannd sometimes prolonged downtur
from time to time, our revenue and earnings maydtuate significantly, which in turn could cause thmarket price of our common share
to decline.

Because our business is, and will continue to bpeddent on the requirements of semiconductor coiepéor independent testing and
assembly services, any downturn in the highly catlsemiconductor industry may reduce demand fosewices and adversely affect our
results of operations. All of our customers openateis industry and variations in order levelsnfr our customers and in service fee rates ma
result in volatility in our revenue and earningsr fhstance, during periods of decreased demanalsiEembled semiconductors, some of our
customers may even simplify, delay or forego fiteaking of certain types of semiconductors, sudtiyasimic random access memory or
DRAM, further intensifying our difficulties. Froninie to time, the semiconductor industry has expegd significant, and sometimes
prolonged, downturns which have adversely affectatresults of operations. In 2009, the semicorauotustry, especially the assembly and
testing services for DRAM products sector, contihteeexperience the significant downturn that beigaiourth quarter of 2008, and which t
adversely affected our business. This industry domnstarted to recover from the second quart@06®, and our revenue for 2010 increased
42% from 2009 levels. Our revenue for 2011 incrd&9 from 2010 levels. Our revenue for 2012 inceda®% from 2011 levels. Our revenue
for 2013 increased 0.7 % from 2012 levels and geadra profit of NT$1,335.3 million (US$44.8 millipin 2013. We cannot give any
assurances that there will not be any downturhénftiture or that any future downturn will not affeur results of operations.

Any deterioration in the market for er-user applications for semiconductor products wouktuce demand for our services and may result
in a decrease in our earnings.

Market conditions in the semiconductor industrgkreo a large degree, those for their end-useliGgipns. Any deterioration in the
market conditions for the end-user applicationseshiconductors we test and assemble could redunardefor our services and, in turn,
materially adversely affect our financial conditiand results of operations. Our revenue is largthbutable to fees derived from testing and
assembling semiconductors for use in personal ctengLcommunications equipment, consumer electiomuiducts and display applications
significant decrease in demand for products indhmearkets could put pricing pressure on our tesimfjassembly services and negatively
affect our revenue and earnings. Weak demand f@ &@d other flapanel display products began in 2007 and has sideersely affected o
operating results in 2008, 2009, and 2010. The ld@izer market started to recover in the secondtguaf 2009 and the positive recovery
trend continued through 2013. We cannot give asyrasices that there will not be any downturn infthere or that any future downturn will
not affect our results of operations. Any significdecrease in demand for end-user applicatiossmiconductors will negatively affect our
revenue and earnings.

A decline in average selling prices for our serviceould result in a decrease in our earning

Historically, prices for our testing and assemldywgces in relation to any given semiconductor tendecline over the course of its
product and technology life cycle. See also “— A&rdase in market demand for LCD and other flat-pdisplay driver semiconductors may
adversely affect our capacity utilization rates #meteby negatively affect our profitability”. Ifevcannot reduce the cost of our testing and
assembly services, or introduce higher-marginrigstnd assembly services for new package typedfdet the decrease in average selling
prices for our services, our earnings could deereas
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A reversal or slowdown in the outsourcing trend feemiconductor testing and assembly services coettlice our profitability.

In recent years, integrated device manufacturen®s, have increasingly outsourced stages of#miconductor production process,
including testing and assembly, to independent aomgs like us to shorten production cycles. In tholdli the availability of advanced
independent semiconductor manufacturing servicesatsm enabled the growth of so-called “fablessiisenductor companies that focus
exclusively on design and marketing and outsoure# thanufacturing, testing and assembly requirésenindependent companies. A
substantial portion of our revenue is indirectiygeted from providing semiconductor assembly astirtg services to these IDMs and fables:
companies. We cannot assure you that these congpaili€ontinue to outsource their testing and agdg requirements to independent
companies like us. A reversal of, or a slowdowrthig outsourcing trend could result in reduced aednfor our services, which in turn could
reduce our profitability.

Risks Relating to Our Business

If we are unable to compete effectively in the higltompetitive semiconductor testing and assembérkets, we may lose customers and
income may decline.

The semiconductor testing and assembly marketgesyecompetitive. We face competition from a numbakiDMs with in-house testing
and assembly capabilities and other independenteaductor testing and assembly companies. Our etitops may have access to more
advanced technologies and greater financial angf oefsources than we do. Many of our competitove lshown a willingness to reduce prices
quickly and sharply in the past to maintain capagttlization in their facilities during periods oéduced demand. In addition, an increasing
number of our competitors conduct their operatioriswer cost centers in Asia such as Mainland @hirhailand, Vietham and the
Philippines. Any renewed or continued erosion @ phices or demand for our testing and assembljcgsras a result of increased competitiol
could adversely affect our profits.

We are highly dependent on the market for memorggucts. A downturn in market prices for these prazis could significantly reduce our
revenue and profit.

A significant portion of our revenue is derivedrfraesting and assembling memory semiconductorsrénenue derived from the testing
and assembly of memory semiconductors accounteabfar and 50% of our revenue in 2012 and 2013, octispdy. In the past, our service
fees for testing and assembling memory semicondsietere sharply reduced in tandem with the decrieetbes average selling price of DRA
in the semiconductor industry. The continuing oupy of DRAM products in 2008 and the weak demianithe DRAM market in the period
from 2009 to 2013 resulted in significant reducsiam the price of DRAM products, which in turn deodown the average prices for our testing
and assembly services for DRAM products in thesm@s. We cannot assure you that there will nofuioner downturns in DRAM prices in
the future.

A decrease in market demand for LCD and other -panel display driver semiconductors may adverssfgct our capacity utilization rates
and thereby negatively affect our profitability.

Our testing and assembly services for LCD and dthepanel display driver semiconductors generagsgnue of NT$4,356 million and
NT$4,781 million (US$160 million) in 2012 and 2018spectively. We invested NT$981 million and NT#84 million (US$69 million) ir
2012 and 2013, respectively, on equipment for tapder package, or TCP, chip-on-film, or COF ahgbeon-glass, or COG, technologies,
which are used in testing and assembly services@ar and other flat-panel display driver semicortdus. Most of this equipment may not be
used for technologies other than TCP, COF or CO. market demand for LCD and other ftetnel display driver semiconductors and rel.
testing and assembly services increased in 201pad to the market demand in 2012. Any significketrease in demand for these product
and our related services, however, would signifigampair our capacity utilization rates. That magult in our inability to generate sufficient
revenue to cover the significant depreciation espsrfor the equipment used in testing and assegnb@D and other flat-panel display driver
semiconductors, thereby negatively affecting owofitability. See also “— Because of our high fixeasts, if we are unable to achieve
relatively high capacity utilization rates, our gags and profitability may be adversely affected”.

Our significant amount of indebtedness and interastpense will limit our cash flow and could advelgaffect our operations.

We have a significant level of debt and interegtegrse. As of December 31, 2013, we had approxiyn&f€$3,889 million (US$130
million) and NT$3,661 million (US$123 million) outnding long-term and short-term indebtedness esgly. Our long-term indebtedness
as of December 31, 2013, represented bank loahsawiinterest rate between 1.73% and 3.1645%. Asoémber 31, 2013, NT$6,764
million (US$227 million) of our indebtedness waswsed by collateral comprised of assets owned bpl@®S TECHNOLOGIES INC., or
ChipMOS Taiwan, ThaiLin Semiconductor Corp., or ilfrmand ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Shanghai) LTD., chi@MOS Shanghai.

Our significant indebtedness poses risks to ouinless, including the risks that:

. we may have to use a substantial portion of ousalisated cash flow from operations to pay princgral interest on our debt,
thereby reducing the funds available for workingita, capital expenditures, acquisitions and otfesreral corporate purpos:
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. insufficient cash flow from operations may forcetasell assets, or seek additional capital, wiaetmay be unable to do at all or
on terms favorable to u

. our ability to sell assets or seek additional edpitay be adversely affected by security interestair assets granted to our lenders
as collateral

. our level of indebtedness may make us more vulhetateconomic or industry downturns; &
. our debt service obligations increase our vulnditEs to competitive pressures, because many otompetitors may be less
leveraged than we ar

For additional information on our indebtedness,“#een 5. Operating and Financial Review and Progpe-Liquidity and Capital
Resources”.

Our results of operations may fluctuate significdptand may cause the market price of our common #sato be volatile.
Our results of operations have varied significafriiyn period to period and may continue to varyhie future. Among the more import
factors affecting our quarterly and annual resoiltsperations are the following:

. our ability to accurately predict customer demasiywe must commit significant capital expendituneanticipation of future
orders;

. our ability to quickly adjust to unanticipated daek or shortfalls in demand and market price®tortesting and assembly servic
due to our high percentage of fixed co

. changes in prices for our testing and assemblyicss,

. volume of orders relative to our testing and assgitépacity;

. capital expenditures and production uncertaingdsting to the ro-out of new testing or assembly servic
. our ability to obtain adequate testing and assemgliipment on a timely bas

. changes in costs and availability of raw materiatgjipment and labo

. changes in our product mix; a

. earthquakes, drought and other natural disastemseh as industrial accident

Because of the factors listed above, our futurelt®sf operations or growth rates may be belowetkgectations of research analysts an
investors. If so, the market price of our commoareh, and the market value of your investment, falhy

The ongoing criminal proceeding of and adverse pieitly associated with Mr. Shih-Jye Cheng, our Chaian and Chief Executive Officer,
and Mr. Hung-Chiu Hu, our former director, could hee a material adverse effect on our business andssaour stock price to decline.

Mr. Shih-Jye Cheng, our chairman and chief exeeutiificer, was indicted by the Taipei District Reostors Office, or the prosecutor,
December 2005. Based upon information releasetddoprosecutor, the indictment alleges that Mr. Sy Cheng, as instructed by Mr. Hung-
Chiu Hu, purchased repurchase notes on Januaanéatdy 13, and January 28, 2004 from Founder AatescLimited, a British Virgin Islands
company affiliated with Mega Securities Co., Ltidrnerly known as Barits International Securities @ td.), with an aggregate principal
amount of approximately US$29 million, by usingmanate funds from ChipMOS Taiwan and ThaiLin. Theictment further alleges that
these repurchase notes were used as a cover teentigicorporate funds of Mosel, and its affiliaetities, including ChipMOS Taiwan and
ThaiLin, in violation of ROC law. In addition, thedictment alleges that Mr. Hu and others were gedan the insider trading of the securities
of Mosel in violation of ROC law, but none of therent officers at ChipMOS Taiwan or ThaiLin waslicted in this regard.

On January 5, 2006, our board established a spmmainittee to evaluate the circumstances surrogritii@ indictment of Mr. Cheng.
The special committee engaged K&L Gates LLP (fohynkirkpatrick & Lockhart Preston Gates Ellis LLB} its independent international
legal counsel, Baker & McKenzie as its independ®@C legal counsel, and Ernst & Young (formerly Diw&rnst & Young) as its financial
advisor to assist in its investigation. As of Mah 2014, the special committee was solely coredrisf Mr. Yeong-Her Wang, our
independent director.
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The special committee’s investigation focused Qrtl{g¢ probability that Mr. Shih-Jye Cheng woulddoavicted on the charges describec
in the indictment, (2) whether the indictment résdlin any pecuniary or other damage to us, (3xhérghere were any internal control
weaknesses related to the investments in repuretmss within ChipMOS Bermuda and its subsidiaaied (4) whether ChipMOS Bermuda is
required by applicable laws or the NASDAQ GlobaleSeMarket listing requirements to take any aciiooonnection with the indictment. T
special committee did not attempt to independetgbermine whether Mr. Cheng had engaged in anygdwoing in connection with the
investments in repurchase notes, irrespective ethdr such wrongdoing would lead to a convictiontt@charges under the indictment.

On June 28, 2006, the special committee issuedptsit, including its findings and recommendatiddased upon the results of its
investigation, it found that (1) Mr. Shih-Jye Chédrags declared himself not guilty of the chargesdeed in the indictment, (2) Baker &
McKenzie, after reviewing the indictment and thegacutor’s exhibits, has found that the evidenoeyeed by the prosecutor seems to be
inadequate and that there is a low probabilityhef ¢harge of irregular transactions in the indicthieing founded, (3) the financial advisor to
the special committee has found that we sufferelbs®m (not taking into account exchange rate fagtand that all monies (capital and interest
were remitted back to our subsidiaries involvedl wWé have suffered no identifiable harm to our tapian or business and (5) Mr. Cheng has
not been impaired by the indictment to perform asahairman and chief executive officer. The spemianmittee recommended that our boarc
maintain Mr. Cheng as our chairman and chief exeeuwfficer with full responsibilities and our ba@hunanimously (with Mr. Cheng having
recused himself) resolved to accept and adoptpeeia committee’s recommendation with regard to ®eng. Our board of directors also
resolved to continue the role of the special conmaifor the duration of the ongoing criminal pratiag involving Mr. Cheng to actively
monitor any developments of the criminal invesiigmand take or recommend any appropriate actidigli of such developments.

On October 1, 2007, the Taipei District Court fowid Shih-Jye Cheng not guilty, and on OctoberZ007, the prosecutor appealed the
Taipei District Court decision at the Taiwan Higbutt. The Taiwan High Court (the “High Court”) hdlar trial hearings in 2008, six trial
hearings in 2009, six trial hearings in 2010, twal thearings in 2011, four trial hearings in 2G&# five trial hearings in 2013. On
September 3, 2013, the High Court rendered a ritiy geerdict for all defendants in the matter, imding Mr. Shih-Jye Cheng. On
September 18, 2013, the Taiwan High Court Prose€su@iffice has filed a petition for appeal agaitis decision dated September 3, 2013 to
Taiwan’s Supreme Court (the “Supreme Court”). Ashef date of this Annual Report on Form 20-F, ttadter is now under Supreme Court’s
assessment and no trial hearing date has beenuetied

Theoretically, as a result of prosecutor’s apptbal,case may revert to High Court and Mr. Cheng stidiyoe convicted of one or more
charges in the indictment. In addition, new evidetiat leads to additional criminal charges andfbadverse judgment against Mr. Cheng
be produced during the ongoing criminal investigiatiand the special committee may make recommemndattd our board in respect of
Mr. Cheng'’s positions with us or our subsidiaridswever, up to the present, no new evidence omgehaas been presented or collected by th
prosecutor or the Court. Therefore, we are readpramfident that the non-guilty judgment for Mrhéng will be maintained by the Taiwan
High Court. If Mr. Cheng is convicted, or in ligbt any new developments, the special committee megmmend or our board of directors
may otherwise decide that it is in the Company'st ligterests that Mr. Cheng no longer serves inradlome of his current capacities with us o
our subsidiaries, or if Mr. Cheng resigns as altedwa final adverse judgment rendered againstlrthe court, or otherwise, the public
perception of us may be seriously harmed and wddidose some or all of the services of Mr. Chemgadidition, if Mr. Cheng is convicted &
sentenced to imprisonment, the ROC Financial Sugaryw Commission may subject ChipMOS Taiwan or Thato certain restrictions on
financing activities if Mr. Cheng continues to seas the chairman or president of ChipMOS Taiwan.@heng is very important to our
current on-going business operations and our oglstips with our customers and financing souraed car loss of his services due to any
adverse publicity from the trial or conviction offMCheng or other key personnel could materially adversely affect our business, reputatior
and prospects and therefore cause our stock pridedine.

We depend on key customers for a substantial parid our revenue and a loss of, or deterioration thie business from, or delayed paym:
by, any one of these customers could result in éased revenue and materially adversely affect oesuits of operations and financial
condition.

We depend on a small group of customers for a anbat portion of our business. In 2013, our tyeftustomers, collectively accounted
for 56% of our revenue. As part of our strategy,hage been focusing on sales to key customersghrtmngterm service agreements. We
focus on our business with smaller customers astbmers who do not place orders on a regular ba&sexpect that we will continue to
depend on a relatively limited number of custoniers significant portion of our revenue. Any adseedevelopment in our key customers’
operations, competitive position or customer basgdcmaterially reduce our revenue and adverségcabur business and profitability.

In the past, our top customers have defaulted ein payment obligations under certain long-ternviseragreements. For example,
ProMOS has defaulted in its payment obligationggdn March 2008. Between the period of Novemb&820 May 2009, we revised our
contract terms and conditions with ProMOS to inelpdovision of collateral, prepayments and pledgesafer, Work-In-Process, or WIP,
existing finished goods as lien material and setemguipment mortgage for ProMOS’ payment obligatid?roMOS has been making timely
payments since 2012. See “Item 4. Information enGbmpany—Customers” for more information.

13



Table of Contents

In January 2009, Spansion defaulted in its payrabligation to us and subsequently filed for a védum petition for reorganization unc
Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code in March®@G a result, ChipMOS Taiwan entered into a defie Transfer of Claim Agreement
sell to Citigroup Financial Products Inc. (“Citigng’) the general unsecured claim reflected in tlwpof claim against Spansion. On
October 4, 2010, ChipMOS Taiwan entered into desatint agreement with Spansion LLC for the genemakcured claim on breach of
contract and liquidated damages rights reflectatiénproof of claim, Claim No. 5, against Spandion, Spansion Technology LLC, Spansion
LLC, Spansion International Inc. and Cerium Laborigs LLC filed by ChipMOS Taiwan in the U.S. Bangtcy Court. In October 2010, the
Company received payment of NT$2,118 million urttier Transfer of Claim Agreement to Citigroup. Skert 4. Information on the
Company—Customers” for more information.

Since semiconductor companies generally rely oviceproviders with whom they have establishedti@ighips to meet their testing
and assembly needs for their applications and nestomers usually require us to pass a lengthy igndous qualification process, if we lose
any of our key customers, we may not be able tlacepghem in a timely manner. We cannot assurelyaireceivable collection difficulties
experienced by us will not occur in the futureatfy of our key customers reduces or cancels iErsmr terminates existing contractual
arrangements, and if we are unable to attract nstomers and establish new contractual arrangematht&xisting or new customers, our
revenue could be reduced and our business andse$wperations may be materially adversely affect

Because of our high fixed costs, if we are unabdeachieve relatively high capacity utilization ratgour earnings and profitability may b
adversely affected.

Our operations are characterized by a high propodf fixed costs. For memory and logic/mixed-siggemiconductor testing services,
our fixed costs represented 65% and 57% of ouf ¢o&t of revenue in 2012 and 2013, respectivaly.rremory and logic/mixed-signal
semiconductor assembly services, our fixed cogtesented 21% and 20% of our total cost of revém@€12 and 2013, respectively. For
LCD and other flat-panel display driver semicondudesting and assembly services, our fixed cegisesented 49% and 45% of our total cos
of revenue in 2012 and 2013, respectively. For bogpervices, our fixed costs represented 21% 886l df our total cost of revenue in 2012
and 2013, respectively. Our profitability depenupart not only on absolute pricing levels for earvices, but also on the utilization rates for
our testing and assembly equipment, commonly refeio as “capacity utilization rates”. Increased@ereases in our capacity utilization rates
can significantly affect our gross margins as uogts generally decrease as the fixed costs amea#dld over a larger number of units. In the
past, our capacity utilization rates have fluctdatignificantly as a result of the fluctuationgfe market demand for semiconductors. If we fai
to increase or maintain our capacity utilizatiotesa our earnings and profitability may be adveraéfected. In addition, we have entered into
various long-term assembly and testing serviceseagents with certain of our customers that mayirequs to incur significant capital
expenditures. If we are unable to achieve high ciaypatilization rates for the equipment purchapedsuant to these agreements, our gross
margins may be materially and adversely affected.

The testing and assembly process is complex andpraduction yields and customer relationships mayffer as a result of defects or
malfunctions in our testing and assembly equipmemtd the introduction of new packages.

Semiconductor testing and assembly are complexepeas that require significant technological amdgss expertise. Semiconductor
testing involves sophisticated testing equipmedt@mputer software. We develop computer softwatest our customers’ semiconductors.
We also develop conversion software programs thalble us to test semiconductors on different tyfiessters. Similar to most software
programs, these software programs are complex aydcontain programming errors or “bugs”. In addifithe testing process is subject to
human error by our employees who operate our ggstjuipment and related software. Any significagfedt in our testing or conversion
software, malfunction in our testing equipment oman error could reduce our production yields asth@je our customer relationships.

The assembly process involves a number of steph,@avhich must be completed with precision. Défecpackages primarily result
from:

. contaminants in the manufacturing environm

. human error

. equipment malfunctior

. defective raw materials; «

. defective plating service

These and other factors have, from time to timatrdouted to lower production yields. They may @airs the future, particularly as we
expand our capacity or change our processing dtepsldition, to be competitive, we must continaexpand our offering of packages. Our
production yields on new packages typically araificantly lower than our production yields on auore established packages. Our failure to
maintain high standards or acceptable productieltyi if significant and prolonged, could resultitoss of customers, increased costs of
production, delays, substantial amounts of retugaatls and related claims by customers. Furthehet@xtent our customers have set target

production yields, we may be required to compensateustomers in a pre-agreed manner. Any of theslelems could materially adversely
affect our business reputation and result in reduegenue and profitability.
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Because of the highly cyclical nature of our indugt our capital requirements are difficult to plarf we cannot obtain additional capite
when we need it, we may not be able to maintainnmrease our current growth rate and our profits Iguffer.

As our industry is highly cyclical and rapidly clgng, our capital requirements are difficult tomld o remain competitive, we may need
capital to fund the expansion of our facilitiesnssl as to fund our equipment purchases and reBeard development activities. To meet our
liquidity, capital spending and other capital needs have taken and plan to take certain measorgsrierate additional working capital and to
save cash. See “Item 5. Operating and FinancialeiReand Prospects—Liquidity and Capital Resourc@#s.cannot assure you that these
plans and measures will be implemented or will tesufficient sources of capital.

In addition, future capacity expansions or marketther developments may require additional fund@gr ability to obtain external
financing in the future depends on a number ofdfiastmany of which are beyond our control. Theyude:

. our future financial condition, results of operascand cash flow:
. general market conditions for financing activitlssemiconductor testing and assembly companiek
. economic, political and other conditions in Taivaard elsewhere

If we are unable to obtain funding in a timely manor on acceptable terms, our growth prospectpatehtial future profitability will
suffer.

Disputes over intellectual property rights could bestly, deprive us of technologies necessary fetaistay competitive, render us unable
provide some of our services and reduce our oppnities to generate revenu

Our ability to compete successfully and achievariigrowth will depend, in part, on our abilitygmtect our proprietary technologies
and to secure, on commercially acceptable terrtgatrtechnologies that we do not own. We canrssuae you that we will be able to
independently develop, or secure from any thirdypane technologies required for our testing asgkably services. Our failure to
successfully obtain these technologies may sesidwmim our competitive position and render us uaablprovide some of our services.

Our ability to compete successfully also dependsumability to operate without infringing upon theoprietary rights of others. The
semiconductor testing and assembly industry isattarized by frequent litigation regarding patemd ather intellectual property rights. We
may incur legal liabilities if we infringe upon tlitellectual property or other proprietary rigbfsothers. We are not able to ascertain what
patent applications have been filed in the UniteadeS or elsewhere, however, until they are grantedhy third party succeeds in its
intellectual property infringement claims againstan our customers, we could be required to:

. discontinue using the disputed process technolpgileieh would prevent us from offering some of ¢esting and assembly
services

. pay substantial monetary damacg
. develop no-infringing technologies, which may not be feasilue
. acquire licenses to the infringed technologiesciwmay not be available on commercially reasontstas, if at all.

Any one of these developments could impose subiatdimancial and administrative burdens on us himdier our business. We are, from
time to time, involved in litigation in respect iotellectual property rights. Any litigation, whethas plaintiff or defendant, is costly and divert:
our resources. If we fail to obtain necessary kesnon commercially reasonable terms or if lityatregardless of the outcome, relating to
patent infringement or other intellectual propertgtters occurs, our costs could be substantiadiyeased to impact our margins. Any such
litigation could also prevent us from testing asdeanbling particular products or using particidghinologies, which could reduce our
opportunities to generate revenue. For more inftionaon litigation in respect of intellectual praperights, see “Item 8. Financial
Information—Legal Proceedings”.
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If we are unable to obtain raw materials and otheecessary inputs from our suppliers in a timely ands-effective manner, our production
schedules would be delayed and we may lose custe@red growth opportunities and become less profiéal

Our operations require us to obtain sufficient ditis of raw materials at acceptable prices iimeely and cost-effective manner. We
source most of our raw materials, including crititaterials like leadframes, organic substratesxgpgold wire and molding compound for
assembly, and tapes for TCP/COF, from a limitedigrof suppliers. We purchase all of our material®gurchase order basis and have no
long-term contracts with any of our suppliers. Friomme to time, suppliers have extended lead tirmeseased the price or limited the supply of
required materials to us because of market shat&gmnsequently, we may, from time to time, expexéedifficulty in obtaining sufficient
guantities of raw materials on a timely basis.dditon, from time to time, we may reject materitdat do not meet our specifications, resul
in declines in output or yield. Although we typilyaiaintain at least two suppliers for each key raaterial, we cannot assure you that we wil
be able to obtain sufficient quantities of raw mials and other supplies of an acceptable qualityé future. It usually takes from three to six
months to switch from one supplier to another, delpgy on the complexity of the raw material. If ewe unable to obtain raw materials and
other necessary inputs in a timely and cost-effeatianner, we may need to delay our productiondatidery schedules, which may result in
the loss of business and growth opportunities audddcreduce our profitability.

If we are unable to obtain additional testing andgsembly equipment or facilities in a timely manrend at a reasonable cost, we may
unable to fulfill our customers’ orders and may beme less competitive and less profitable.

The semiconductor testing and assembly businesgpital intensive and requires significant invesitria expensive equipment
manufactured by a limited number of suppliers. Ttagket for semiconductor testing and assembly exqeit is characterized, from time to
time, by intense demand, limited supply and lonkydey cycles. Our operations and expansion playpedd on our ability to obtain equipment
from a limited number of suppliers in a timely arabt-effective manner. We have no binding supphe@gents with any of our suppliers and
we acquire our testing and assembly equipmentmmehase order basis, which exposes us to changanket conditions and other significant
risks. Semiconductor testing and assembly alsonegjus to operate sizeable facilities. If we arahle to obtain equipment or facilities in a
timely manner, we may be unable to fulfill our @msers’ orders, which could negatively impact onaficial condition and results of
operations as well as our growth prospects. Prelfjoue have committed to acquire certain waferisgrtesters and probers under our long-
term service agreement with Spansion. We termindi@dagreement and commitment on February 19,,28f69 Spansion defaulted on its
payment obligations. Currently, we do not have lamg-term service agreements that require our camarit to acquire additional testing and
assembly equipment or facilities, however we camsstire you that such commitment will not be madeeé future. See “Item 4. Information
on the Company— Customers”.

If we are unable to manage the expansion of our ogitions and resources effectively, our growth pregps may be limited and our futui
profitability may be reducec

We expect to continue to expand our operationdraeréase the number of our employees. Rapid expamsits a strain on our
managerial, technical, financial, operational atiteoresources. As a result of our expansion, ileneéd to implement additional operational
and financial controls and hire and train additiggersonnel. We cannot assure you that we willlide 0 do so effectively in the future, and
our failure to do so could jeopardize our expangilams and seriously harm our operations.

Bermuda law may be less protective of shareholdghts than laws of the United States or other jutistions.

Our corporate affairs are governed by our memonandiiassociation, our bye-laws and laws governmgarations incorporated in
Bermuda. Shareholder suits such as class actisrthg€ae terms are understood with respect to catipos incorporated in the United States)
are generally not available in Bermuda. Therefouz,shareholders may be less able under Bermudthkwthey would be under the laws of
the United States or other jurisdictions to protheir interests in connection with actions by management, members of our board of
directors or our controlling shareholder.

It may be difficult to bring and enforce suits agast us in the United State:

We are incorporated in Bermuda and a majority afditectors and most of our officers are not resid®f the United States. A
substantial portion of our assets is located oattié United States. As a result, it may be diffitar our shareholders to serve notice of a
lawsuit on us or our directors and officers wittlie United States. Because most of our assetseatet outside the United States, it may be
difficult for our shareholders to enforce in theitdd States judgments of United States courts. épplour Bermuda counsel, has advised us
that there is some uncertainty as to the enforcemeadermuda, in original actions or in actions &nforcement of judgments of United States
courts, of liabilities predicated upon United Sgafiederal securities laws.
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Investor confidence and the market price of our coman shares may be adversely impacted if we or oadlependent public registere
accounting firm is unable to conclude that our inteal control over our financial reporting is effeéte as required by Section 404 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002.

We are subject to the SEC'’s reporting obligati@mg] beginning in our Annual Report on Form 20-Ftfer year ended December 31,
2006, we have been required by the SEC, as direégt&ection 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2@02clude a report of management on
our internal control over financial reporting inrdnnual Report on Form 20-F that contains an assest by management of the effectivenes
of our internal control over financial reportinged@nning in fiscal year 2007, our independent putdgistered accounting firm has audited the
effectiveness of our internal control over finahceporting. Although our management concluded thatinternal controls are effective in this
Annual Report on Form 20-F, and our independenltipuokgistered accounting firm has rendered itsimpi that we maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financ&orting as of December 31, 2013, based on ieriset forth in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework (1992) issued by Committee of Sponsa@inganization of the Treadway Commission (COSO),management may not conclude
that our internal controls are effective in theufet Moreover, even if our management concludesatinainternal controls over our financial
reporting are effective, our independent publidstged accounting firm may disagree. If our indegent public registered accounting firm is
not satisfied with our internal controls over omaicial reporting or the level at which our cotdrare documented, designed, operated or
reviewed, or if the independent public registerecbanting firm interprets the requirements, rulesegulations differently from us, it may
decline to attest to our management’s assessmemhpissue an adverse opinion in the future. Anthese possible outcomes could result in
an adverse reaction in the financial marketplaeetdwa loss of investor confidence in the religpitif our consolidated financial statements,
which ultimately could negatively impact the markétes of our common shares.

Any environmental claims or failure to comply withny present or future environmental regulations, any new environmental regulation:
may require us to spend additional funds, may impasgnificant liability on us for present, past dature actions, and may dramatically
increase the cost of providing our services to @uistomers.

We are subject to various laws and regulationgingldo the use, storage, discharge and disposaierhical by-products of, and water
used in, our assembly and gold bumping procesd#®ugh we have not suffered material environmecims in the past, a failure or a cle
that we have failed to comply with any presentutuife regulations could result in the assessmedawfages or imposition of fines against us,
suspension of production or a cessation of ouraifmers or negative publicity. New regulations cordduire us to acquire costly equipment or
to incur other significant expenses. Any failurecum part to control the use of, or adequatelyrigsthe discharge of, hazardous substances
could subject us to future liabilities that may eratlly reduce our earnings.

Fluctuations in exchange rates could result in fagg exchange losses.

Currently, most of our revenue is denominated indéllars. Our cost of revenue and operating expermethe other hand, are incurred
in several currencies, including NT dollars, Jagangen, US dollars and Renminbi, or RMB. In additia substantial portion of our capital
expenditures, primarily for the purchase of testing assembly equipment, has been, and is expectedtinue to be, denominated in
Japanese yen with much of the remainder in US ol&e also have debt denominated in NT dollagzadese yen, US dollars and RMB.
Fluctuations in exchange rates, primarily amonguBedollar, the NT dollar and the Japanese yen afféct our costs and operating margin
NT dollar terms. In addition, these fluctuationsikcbresult in exchange losses and increased aost$ idollar terms. Despite selective hedg
and other techniques implemented by us, fluctuatiorexchange rates have affected, and may contiinaéect, our financial condition and
results of operations.

We may not be successful in our acquisitions, inveents, joint ventures and dispositions, and magittfore be unable to implement fully
our business strategy.

As part of our growth strategy, we may make actjoiss and investments in companies and businessedlish joint ventures or make
dispositions of our interests. For example, in Baby 2010, we agreed to sell 15.8% of ChipMOS Taiwautstanding shares to Siliconware
Precision and the transaction was completed inalsr2011. In April 2013, as part of ChipMOS Taiwalisting plan on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange (“TWSE"), we completed the sale of 6.9iamlor 0.8% of the total number of ChipMOS Taiwswoutstanding shares to ChipMOS
Taiwan’s underwriters and to certain others, inzigchon-US employees of ChipMOS Taiwan. From Septmto October 2013, we sold
180 million or 21.4% of the total number of ChipM@8&iwan’s outstanding shares to investors. Afterdbmpletion of the aforesaid sales, the
Company held approximately 523 million ChipMOS Taiwshares, representing 62.1% of the total numb@hipMOS Taiwan'’s outstanding
shares. On April 9, 2014, ChipMOS Bermuda furtfedd 4.3 million ChipMOS Taiwan shares as “greeneshaption to market investors. As
of the date of this Annual Report on Form 20-F,ceatinue to own approximately 522 million or 60.4%ChipMOS Taiwan'’s outstanding
shares. See “ltem 3. —Risk Relating to Our Cormo&ttucture—ChipMOS Taiwan’s ability to maintais listing and trading status on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange is dependent on factorsdrutsithe Company or ChipMOS Taiwan’s control aatisgaction of stock exchange
requirements. ChipMOS Taiwan may not be able toanrae such factors that disrupt its trading statushe main board of Taiwan Stock
Exchange or satisfy other eligibility requiremetftat may be required of it in the future.”
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In November 2012, pursuant to a Registration Stateéron Form F-3 declared effective on Septemb20%2, ThaiLin sold 2,000,000 of
our common shares under a secondary offering @eedndary Offering”). In May 2013, ThaiLin completiés sale of 380,506 of our common
shares to Tokyo Seimitsu Co., Ltd. (“Tokyo Seimijsin November 2013 and January 2014, ThaiLin $y2D0,000 and 2,093,705 of our
commons shares back to ChipMOS Bermuda, respegtiVbe success of our acquisitions, investmentst jentures and dispositions depend:
on a number of factors, including:

. our ability to identify suitable investment, acqtian, joint venture or disposition opportunitie

. our ability to reach an agreement for an acquisjtiovestment, joint venture or disposition oppaityion terms that are satisfactc
to us or at all

. the extent to which we are able to exercise cowtvel the acquired or joint venture compa

. our ability to align the economic, business or oteategic objectives and goals of the acquiredpamy with those of our
company; ant

. our ability to successfully integrate the acquioggoint venture company or business with our conyp

If we are unsuccessful in our acquisitions, invesits, joint ventures and dispositions, we may eatlile to implement fully our busine
strategy to maintain or grow our business.

We depend on key personnel, and our revenue co@drdase and our costs could increase if we losértbervices.

We depend on the continued service of our execufifieers and skilled engineering, technical anteotpersonnel. We will also be
required to hire a substantially greater numbeskidfed employees in connection with our expangtams. In particular, we depend on a
number of skilled employees in connection with bGD and other flat-panel display driver semicondudésting and assembly services, and
the competition for such employees in Taiwan anihMad China is intense. We may not be able tceeitbtain our present personnel or
attract additional qualified personnel as and whesded. Moreover, we do not carry key person imagréor any of our executive officers nor
do we have employment contracts with any of oucetiee officers or employees, and, as a resulterafrour executive officers or employees
is bound by any non-competition agreement. If vgelany of our key personnel, it could be very diiifi to find and integrate replacement
personnel, which could affect our ability to prozidur services, resulting in reduced revenue amdregs. In addition, we may need to incre
employee compensation levels in order to retaineaisting officers and employees and to attracitamfehl personnel. As of March 31, 2014,
12.5% of the workforce at our facilities are foreigorkers employed by us under work permits thatsabject to government regulations on
renewal and other terms. Consequently, if the aguis in Taiwan relating to the employment of fgneworkers were to become significantly
more restrictive or if we are otherwise unablettoaat or retain these workers at reasonable w@stnay be unable to maintain or increase our
level of services and may suffer reduced revendeeannings.

If our security measures are breached and unauthzad access is obtained to our information techngl@ystems, we may lose proprieti
data.

Our security measures may be breached as a réshitdbparty action, including computer hackenspoyees error, malfeasance or
otherwise, and result in unauthorized access t@astomers’ data or our data, including our inttlial property and other confidential
business information, or our information technoleggtems. Because the techniques used to obtainhaneed access, or to sabotage syst
change frequently, we may be unable to anticigeed techniques or to implement adequate prevenmtagasures. Any security breach could
result in disclosure of our trade secrets, confidénustomer, supplier or employee data, whichdoesult in legal liability, harm to our
reputation and otherwise harm our business.
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Risk Relating to Our Relationship with Mosel

ChipMOS Taiwan entered into certain transactionsat if determined to have constituted impermissifillancings or purchases of assets
equity of Mosel under ROC law, could result in thesignations of members of our management. As aufeour business operations could
be disrupted and the market price of our common gsmcould decline.

ROC law limits the ability of a company incorpomie Taiwan to purchase any equity interest in canigs, directly or indirectly,
holding more than 50% of its issued and outstandatmng securities or registered capital or to fdevoans or other financing to any comp:
ChipMOS Taiwan purchased NT$242 million worth of $dbshares in 2002. Lee and Li, our ROC speciahsel) has advised us that these
purchases do not violate relevant ROC law thatipitsha subsidiary from buying or taking collateirakshares of companies holding, directl
indirectly, more than 50% of its issued and outditag voting securities or registered capital, beeaMosel’'s indirect interest (calculated as th
product of (i) Mosel's percentage interest in Chi{pSIBermuda and (ii) ChipMOS Bermuda’s percentatgést in ChipMOS Taiwan) in
ChipMOS Taiwan was less than 50% and ChipMOS Bemisithcorporated outside of Taiwan. In 2005, Chip®Taiwan disposed of NT$!
million of Mosel shares, and in August 2006, ChipSlDaiwan further disposed of the remaining Mosakeh for approximately NT$30
million. ChipMOS Taiwan no longer owns any Moseasds. Lee and Li has advised that under relevai@ R@, there is no similar restriction
or limitation on a subsidiary’s disposal of its @ar's equity shares, if the previous acquisitiohsuzh shares complied with relevant ROC law.
However, we understand that there is no applicaldieial precedent and there is some doubt aswodoourt would rule if presented with the
situation.

If it were to be determined that any of the tratisas described above constituted an impermissibéacing or purchase of assets of
Mosel by ChipMOS Taiwan or an impermissible purehasMosel’s equity by ChipMOS Taiwan, then ChipM®&wan'’s then chairman and
any responsible officers would be jointly and sallgriable to ChipMOS Taiwan for any losses sufiéiby ChipMOS Taiwan and may also be
severally liable criminally for any breach of fidary duties that resulted in losses and damagésrsdfby ChipMOS Taiwan. Moreover,
certain of these transactions may not have beérllicompliance with ChipMOS Taiwag’then applicable internal procedures due to tieré
to have received an appropriate valuation opinigor po entering into such purchases. The failoreamply fully with ChipMOS Taiwan’s
then applicable internal procedures could constibmidence of a failure by the then chairman op®t®S Taiwan and responsible officers to
comply fully with their fiduciary duties, which ctiiresult in them being held criminally liable fany breach of fiduciary duties that resulte:
losses and damages to ChipMOS Taiwan. If membessirofurrent management were held to have breatieédfiduciary duties or become
criminally liable for the transactions describedwad, they may become obliged, whether under laotlogrwise, to resign from their respective
positions at ChipMOS Bermuda and our affiliatesyAgss of the services of these persons could plissur business, damage our reputation,
and cause the market price of our common shareésdiine.

Risks Relating to Countries in Which We Conduct Opeations

ROC laws and regulations limit or prohibit certaitechnology cooperation between ROC persons or &gitvith PRC persons or entitie
and our current technology transfer arrangementstiveen ChipMOS Bermuda and ChipMOS Shanghai may barfd to be in violation of
any such limitation or prohibition, which may restin a fine of between NT$50 thousand and NT$25 lioih and the termination of such
technology transfer arrangements and therefore havenaterial adverse effect on the operations of @iOS Shanghai and our financial
condition and results of operations.
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ROC laws and regulations previously prohibited tsapsfer of semiconductor testing and assemblyntgodgies to any person or entity
located in Mainland China, except for transferslming certain low-end semiconductor testing angkasbly technologies, such as
conventional wire bond assembly technology, if@iertequirements are met. The ROC Ministry of EcoiwoAffairs has the ultimate
administrative authority in interpreting such laargd regulations. In February 2010, these restristttave been relaxed, so that ROC entities
may transfer semiconductor testing and assemblhnt#ogies to any person or entity located in Maidl&€hina after they have obtained
approval from the Investment Commission of the R@i@istry of Economic Affairs, or the ICM. Under adhnology transfer agreement, datec
August 1, 2002, ChipMOS Bermuda licensed to ChipMEb@nghai certain testing and assembly-relatedhtdobies that were then controlled
by ChipMOS Bermuda, which included technologies tiare licensed to ChipMOS Bermuda by ChipMOS Taiw@hipMOS Bermuda will
continue to license such technologies to ChipMO&n8hai pursuant to a new technology transfer ageaedated October 3, 2011 with
effective date on August 1, 2012. ChipMOS Bermuda provided ChipMOS Shanghai with technical suppad consulting services under
this agreement. On April 7, 2004, ChipMOS Bermudfered into an assignment agreement with ChipMGO&drg pursuant to which
ChipMOS Taiwan transferred all of the technologiesvned as of that date to ChipMOS Bermuda, incigdhose previously licensed to
ChipMOS Bermuda. On April 12, 2007, ChipMOS Bermedéered into an assignment agreement with ChipM@®an, pursuant to which
ChipMOS Taiwan assigned and transferred fifty petrcod the title to ownership of and interest in@fthe technologies and intellectual
property it owned as of that date to ChipMOS Beranud

In the opinion of Lee and Li, our ROC special calnsur technology transfer arrangements as destabove are in compliance with
applicable ROC laws and regulations. However, sutiitl uncertainties remain regarding the integireh and application of those laws and
regulations. Accordingly, we cannot assure you R@C regulatory authorities will not take a viewntrary to the opinion of our ROC special
counsel. If ChipMOS Taiwan were determined to beidhation of applicable ROC laws and regulationserning technology cooperation w
PRC persons and entities, ChipMOS Taiwan may bgsuto a fine of between NT$50 thousand and NTi$2Bon and may be ordered by t
ICM to terminate or rectify such activity withinspecified period of time. Any termination of ourent technology transfer to ChipMOS
Shanghai could materially adversely affect our N&id China operations and our financial conditi@sults of operations or prospects, as we
as the market price of our common shares.

Our ability to direct the operations we conduct thugh our subsidiaries and affiliated companies thae do not fully own may be limited by
legal duties owed to other shareholders of such pamies.

Certain of our operations are conducted throughpaonies that we do not fully own. For example, dertairrent consolidated operations
are conducted through ChipMOS Taiwan, our 62.1%isligry as of March 31, 2014, ThaiLin, ChipMOS Taivs 47.5% owned subsidiary as
of March 31, 2014, and ChipMOS Shanghai, ThaiLursolly-owned subsidiary as of March 31, 2014. We also gonadther activities throuc
our affiliated entities. See also “—Risk RelatingQur Corporate Structure—ChipMOS Taiwan’s abildgymaintain its listing and trading
status on the Taiwan Stock Exchange is dependefaictors outside of the Company or ChipMOS Taiwawstrol and satisfaction of stock
exchange requirements. ChipMOS Taiwan may not etatbvercome such factors that disrupt its trgditatus on the main board of Taiwan
Stock Exchange or satisfy other eligibility requients that may be required of it in the future” éiteim 7. Major Shareholders and Related
Party Transactions—Related Party Transactions”.

In accordance with the various laws of the releyanmsdictions in which our subsidiaries and affiés are organized, each of our
subsidiaries and affiliates and their respectivealors owe various duties to their respectiveetiziders. As a result, the actions we wish our
subsidiaries or affiliates to take could be in diobfvith their or their directors’ legal duties e to their other shareholders. When those
conflicts arise, our ability to cause our subsidisior affiliates to take the action that we desiay be limited.

Any future outbreak of health epidemics and outbkesaof contagious diseases, including avian influenzswine flu or Severe Acut
Respiratory Syndrome, may materially affect our ogtons and business

Influenza viruses circulating in animals pose tls¢a human health. Humans can become ill wherciatewith viruses from animal
sources, such as avian influenza virus subtypesIHBIN2 and H7N9 and swine influenza virus subtypg&bll and H3N2. An outbreak of a
contagious disease such as New Influenza A or wmmamonly known as the “bird flu” and “swine flu"e8ere Acute Respiratory Syndrome
(SARS), or more recently, avian influenza with gigsubtype H7N9, for which there is inadequate tneat or no known cure or vaccine, may
potentially result in a quarantine of infected eaygles and related persons, and adversely affectpmrations at one or more of our facilitie:
the operations of our customers or suppliers. Waabpredict the impact that any further futureboeék of the aforementioned influenza
viruses or other diseases could have on our bissares results of operations.
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We face substantial political risk associated widbing business in Taiwan, particularly due to redethomestic political events and the
strained relations between the Republic of Chinadathe Peopl’s Republic of China, that could negatively affecur business and the
market price of our common shares.

Our principal executive offices and most of outitesand assembly facilities are located in Taiwasa result, our business, financial
condition and results of operations and the mgrkee of our common shares may be affected by admimgROC governmental policies, as
well as social instability and diplomatic and sbdevelopments in or affecting Taiwan which aredr&y our control. For example, the ROC
has a unique international political status. Th&€RRvernment regards Taiwan as a renegade proaimteoes not recognize the legitimacy of
the ROC as an independent country. Although sicgifi economic and cultural relations have beertipeki strengthened in recent years
between the ROC and the PRC, relations have oéten btrained. In March 2005, the PRC governmerdteddhe “Anti-Secession Law”
codifying its policy of retaining the right to usdlitary force to gain control over Taiwan, partiatly under what it considers as highly
provocative circumstances, such as a declaratioimdefppendence by Taiwan or the refusal by the RD&:tept the PRC’s stated “One China”
policy. On March 18, 2014, students and certaiica@voups have initiated the Sunflower Student Mogat as a protest movement in the
Legislative Yuan and, later, also the Executive rYyahthe Republic of China (Taiwan). The activigtstested the passing of the Cross-Strait
Service Trade Agreement (“CSSTA”") by the rulingtgd€uomintang (“KMT") at the legislature withoutdause-by-clause review. The
protesters perceive the passage of CSSTA failetetet the required formal procedures and that tiifecedion of CSSTA with China would
hurt Taiwan’s economy and leave it vulnerable, agnothers, to political pressure from Beijing, whihee supporters view the trade pact would
allow the two sides to conduct business operatiooie freely in each othex’'services market. The Sunflower Student Movemerkstthe firs
time that legislature has been occupied by citizerise history of Taiwan. On April 10, 2014, th&-&ays occupation of the Legislative Yuan
has concluded, however several demonstrationgiireositinuing.

Past developments related to the interaction betwee ROC and the PRC have on occasion depresseadtket prices of the securities
of Taiwanese or Taiwarelated companies, including our own. We cannair@sgou any contentious situations between TaiwahGhina will
resolve in maintaining the current status quo orai@ peaceful. Relations between the ROC and the &Rl other factors affecting military,
political or economic stability in Taiwan could he& material adverse effect on our financial camdiand results of operations, as well as the
market price and the liquidity of our common shares

The business and operations of our business assesiand our own business operations are vulnerablelisruptions that may be caused by
natural disasters and other events.

We currently provide most of our testing servidestigh our facilities in the Hsinchu Industrial Pand the Hsinchu Science Park in
Taiwan and the Shanghai Qingpu Industrial Zone,ahaf our assembly services through our factitiie the Southern Taiwan Science Park
and the Shanghai Qingpu Industrial Zone. Significimmage or other impediments to these faciliteea eesult of natural disasters, industrial
strikes or industrial accidents could significaritigrease our operating costs.

Certain regions we operate in are particularly epsible to earthquakes and associated naturaltdisagor example, in late 1999,
Taiwan suffered severe earthquakes which causedisant property damages and loss of life, patéidy in the central part of Taiwan. The
earthquakes damaged production facilities and aeélieaffected the operations of many companieshagbin the semiconductor and other
industries. We experienced an aggregate of NT$Bomiln damages to our machinery and equipmentijtias, inventory and five days of
delay in production schedule as a result of theewye March 2011, Sendai of Japan registered ghazake of 9.0 Mw (moment magnitude
scale) off the coast of Japan (the “Sendai Eartkej)aThe Sendai Earthquake was recorded as megtnba earthquake to hit Japan and the
fourth most powerful earthquake in the world. Thetlequake triggered tsunami warnings and evacuatiomg Japan’s Pacific coast and in at
least 20 countries, including Taiwan and Mainlafdn@. In April 2013, an earthquake registering @nitude of approximately 6.6-7.0 Mw
with epicenter located in Lushan County, Ya’anh8&n (the “Lushan Earthquake”). ReliefWeb, parthef United Nations Office for the
Coordination of Humanitarian Affairs (OCHA) reledseformation on July 23, 2013 confirming 196 desasimd up to 2 persons missing and
14,785 injured victim reports.

In January and February 2008, certain parts of MadhChina, particularly in the southern, centrad @astern regions, experienced
reportedly the most severe winter in the countrsetent decades, which resulted in significantexidnsive damages to factories, power lines
homes, automobiles, crops and other propertieskblas, transportation and communications disrungtiand other losses in the affected area:s
In addition, in May 2008, certain semiconductor pamies with facilities in eastern Mainland Chingesenced production disruption
reportedly due to power outages caused by theréadlficertain electricity supply system in the andeere the plants are located. We cannot
assure you that our facilities in the Shanghai Qintpdustrial Zone will not be adversely affectgdfisture snowstorms, power outages,
earthquakes or other similar events.
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Natural disasters and other events like aforemeetievents cause severe property damages to tgsnsifrastructures and death and
injuries to Civilians. In Sendai Earthquake, malgctical generators were disabled, and at leasethuclear power plant reactors partially
melted down and experienced a chemical explositensively damaging surrounding buildings. We carassure you that our production
facilities, operations and market located in Taiwad Mainland China will not be adversely affectisdresult of the events that take place
overseas like the Sendai Earthquake, includingatiii emission from the damaged nuclear power plansubsequent future earthquakes tha
may take place.

The production facilities of many of our suppliecastomers and providers of complementary semiaciodmanufacturing services,
including foundries, are located in Taiwan and N China. If our customers are adversely affebiedatural disasters or other events
occurring in or affecting these geographic ardasuld result in a decline in the demand for @sting and assembly services. If our suppliers
and providers of complementary semiconductor marufeng services are affected by such events, mdyztion schedule could be halted or
delayed. As a result, a major earthquake, snowstottmer natural disaster, industrial strike, indiasticcident or other disruptive event
occurring in or affecting Taiwan or Mainland Chicauld severely disrupt our normal operation of baess and have a material adverse effect
on our financial condition and results of operagion

Any future outbreak of radiatio-related disease as a result of nuclear power plegdctors damage caused by the Sendai Earthquakg ma
materially adversely affect our operations and boisss.

The Sendai Earthquake raises tremendous conceons thie possible effects of radiation emission fitbn damaged nuclear power
plants. Japanese official authorities are workiritdp @wxperts in assessing the risk and determirtisghest courses of actions to implement to
escape harmful radiation. The potential healthot$felue to exposure to harmful radiation may beptaary or permanent harmful effects in
nature.

Multiple radioactive gases could possibly be erdittea situation where uranium attains a “meltdowstaite, which is a severe overhea
of the core of a nuclear reactor, in which the aoedts and radiation and heat are caused to esthjsewould occur if the containment system
partially or fully fails. The particles that ardeased with the gases due to the meltdown woultidspewed particles of iodine-131, strontium
90 and cesium-137. These might enter into a humgdelng swallowed, absorbed through the skin, balied. Depending on the chemical
characteristics of each of these and their pretitiledor certain body tissues, they could causeemnof such organs as bones, soft tissues ne
bones, thyroid gland, and the bone marrow (typydatiown as leukemia).

Acute or very high level radiation exposure canseaa person to become very ill or to die quickbniting radiation, which is defined as
high-energy particles or electromagnetic wavesdthatbreak chemical bonds, damage humans by disgugliular function, particularly in
tissues with rapid growth and turnover of cellsetrse, high level and/or excessive radiation exygosiay result in acute radiation syndrome
whereby harmful effects to the human body may beesced by skin burns, internal organ deterioratideeding, vomiting, bone marrow
distortion and deaths. If the radiation exposuiess intense and/or more prolonged at a lowel,|#ven the central nervous system, kidneys,
thyroid gland, and liver may be affected. Cancehé&most well known effect, and may affect virtyany significantly exposed tissue.

Certain health effects due to exposure to harnafdilation does not have adequate treatment or kieowenor vaccine, consequently, may
potentially result in a quarantine of infected eaygles and related persons, and adversely affectpmrations at one or more of our facilitie:
the operations of our customers or suppliers. Waabpredict the probability of any future outbredkadiation related diseases as a possible
result of nuclear power plants damage caused bgénelai Earthquake or the extent of the materiadime impact that this could have on our
business and results of operations.

Risks Relating to Our Corporate Structure

Our ability to receive dividends and other paymefrtam our subsidiaries may be restricted by commakcstatutory and legal restrictions,
and thereby materially adversely affect our abiltty grow, fund investments, make acquisitions, ghyidends, repay or repurchase
outstanding indebtedness and otherwise fund and doct our business.

The ability of our subsidiaries to pay dividendswake other distributions to us is restricted bgoag other things, the availability of
funds and the terms of various credit arrangememtisred into by our subsidiaries, as well as statiand other legal restrictions. In addition,
although there are currently no foreign exchangerobregulations which restrict the ability of osubsidiaries located in Taiwan to distribute
dividends to us, we cannot assure you that theaataegulations will not be changed and that thiity of our subsidiaries to distribute
dividends to us will not be restricted in the flduA Taiwan company is generally not permittedistribute dividends or to make any other
distributions to shareholders for any year in whtddid not have either earnings or retained egmif@xcluding reserves). In addition, before
distributing a dividend to shareholders followitng tend of a fiscal year, the company must recowgipast losses, pay all outstanding taxes
and set aside 10% of its annual profit (less prears’ losses and outstanding taxes) as a legaivesintil the accumulated legal reserve equal
its paid-in capital, and may set aside a specsarre.
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In addition, PRC law requires that our PRC-incogped subsidiary only distributes dividends outteforofit, if any, as determined in
accordance with PRC accounting standards and t@mnsgaUnder PRC law, it is also required to séd@sat least 10% of its after-tax profit
each year into its reserve fund until the accunedid¢gal reserve amounts to 50% of its registeapital. PRC-incorporated companies are
further required to maintain a bonus and welfarelfat percentages determined at their sole discretihe reserve fund and the bonus and
welfare fund are not distributable as dividendsrétwer, a ROC-incorporated company is only abléetdare dividends at its annual general
meeting of shareholders, which cannot occur uftra&ompletion of its annual financial stateme#sy limitation on dividend payments by
our subsidiaries could materially adversely affaat ability to grow, fund investments, make acgioss, pay dividends, repay or repurchase
outstanding indebtedness, and otherwise fund andum our business.

Baupost Group LLC/MA and He & Fang 2005 Revocabléving Trust, our two largest shareholders, may hasignificant influence ovel
our company and may cause us to take actions thaymot be, or refrain from taking actions that mde, in our best interest or the best
interest of our other shareholders.

As of March 31, 2014, Baupost Group LLC/MA ownedQB% of our common shares according to the 13G filke8aupost Group
LLC/MA on February 13, 2014. He & Fang 2005 Revdedliving Trust owned 8.7% of our common sharesating to the 13G/A filed by
He Zhengxu with SEC on January 8, 2014. These angekt shareholders, individually or collectivehrough their equity interests may have
significant influence over matters submitted to shiareholders for approval and other corporaterstisuch as:

. election of directors
. timing and manner of dividend distributior

. approval of contracts between us and these twedahareholders or their respective affiliatescivicould involve conflicts of
interest;

. open market purchase programs or other purchasag @bmmon share
. delay, defer or prevent a change in who contrgl:

. discourage bids for our shares at a premium owenthrket price; an

. adversely affect the market price of our commorresh

Moreover, because large shareholders have potgotiegr to direct or influence our corporate actjoms may be required to engage in
transactions that may not be agreeable to our stieeholders or that may not be in the best ist@feour other shareholders.

Our ability to make further investments in ChipMOBaiwan may be dependent on relevant stock excharrggsirements or other
regulatory approval requirements. If ChipMOS Taiwaa unable to receive the equity financing it regeas, its ability to grow and fund its
operations, and as a result our ability to grow andnduct our business, may be materially adverssdfgcted.

Even though trading on the Emerging Stock Boar@Gmf Tai Securities Market of ChipMOS Taiwan'’s slsanader stock code “8150”
commenced on April 19, 2013, ChipMOS Taiwan wilhtinue to depend on its shareholders, ChipMOS Bdenand Siliconware Precision,
meet its equity financing requirements prior tosemmation of its plan of listing on the TWSE. Onuary 28, 2014, the Review Committe:
the TWSE has approved the listing application op®1OS Taiwan to be listed on the TWSE and ChipMQB~an subsequently became
listed and commenced trading on the main board/@SIE on April 11, 2014. See “—ChipMOS Taiwan’s alitio maintain its listing and
trading status on the Taiwan Stock Exchange isru#grg on factors outside of the Company or ChipM@Bvan's control and satisfaction of
stock exchange requirements. ChipMOS Taiwan maypeatble to overcome such factors that disruptatting status on the main board of
Taiwan Stock Exchange or satisfy other eligibitiguirements that may be required of it in therfeifuand “Item 7. Major Shareholders and
Related Party Transactions—Related Party Trangatié\ny capital contribution by us to ChipMOS Taimwmay require the approval of the
relevant stock exchange or other ROC authorities eikample, any capital contribution by us to Chip®1Taiwan will require the approval of
the authorities of the Science Park Administratie may not be able to obtain any such approvadérfuture in a timely manner, or at all. If
ChipMOS Taiwan is unable to receive the equityriitiag it requires, its ability to grow and fund dperations, and as a result ChipMOS
Bermuda’s ability to grow and conduct our businesay be materially adversely affected.

ChipMOS Taiwan’s ability to maintain its listing ash trading status on the Taiwan Stock Exchange igpdadent on factors outside of the

Company or ChipMOS Taiwan’s control and satisfaati@f stock exchange requirements. ChipMOS Taiwanymeot be able to overcome
such factors that disrupt its trading status on theain board of Taiwan Stock Exchange or satisfy etteligibility requirements that may k
required of it in the future.
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On March 14, 2013, the Board of Directors of Chip®Bermuda approved a plan for listing ChipMOS Taiwa Taiwan’'s Emerging
Stock Board in the second quarter of 2013 anchisGhipMOS Taiwan on the TWSE in the second quaft@014. The Company
subsequently engaged underwriters to provide assistto the Company and to ChipMOS Taiwan necessagcomplish such goals. The
trading of shares of ChipMOS Taiwan on Taiwan’s Egimeg Stock Board of Gre Tai Securities Market urgteck code “8150” commenced
on April 19, 2013. On January 28, 2014, the Rev@swnmittee of the TWSE has approved the listingiappbn of ChipMOS Taiwan to be
listed on the TWSE and ChipMOS Taiwan subsequdrgtame listed and commenced trading on the mairdda WSE on April 11, 2014.

Whether requirements can be satisfied for ChipM@Bvan’s continued trading on the main board of TWiggends in part on market
conditions and other factors not within the contrbthe Company or ChipMOS Taiwan. For these reasloare can be no assurance that
ChipMOS Taiwan'’s shares will continue to be listedraded on the TWSE.

Risks Relating to Our Common Shares

Volatility in the price of our common shares maysdt in shareholder litigation that could in turne@sult in substantial costs and a diversion
of our management’s attention and resources.

The financial markets in the United States androtbantries have experienced significant price asldme fluctuations, and market
prices of technology companies have been and amntmbe extremely volatile. Volatility in the peiof our common shares may be caused b
factors outside of our control and may be unrelatedisproportionate to our results of operatidnghe past, following periods of volatility in
the market price of a public company’s securit#greholders have frequently instituted securdiass action litigation against that company.
Litigation of this kind could result in substant@sts and a diversion of our management’s atteftiml resources.

Certain provisions in our constitutive documents @i our severance agreements with our executiviécefs make the acquisition of us by
another company more difficult and costly and théoee may delay, defer or prevent a change of cohtro

Our bye-laws provide that our board of directordiigded into three classes of directors, eachsdlade re-elected only once every three
years. As a result, shareholders would not genyelallable to replace a majority of the directorsl after two annual general meetings.
addition, any extraordinary corporate transactiochsas a merger, amalgamation or consolidation,sale or transfer of all or substantially all
of our assets cannot be done without the apprd\aiareholders representing 70% of the total vatigigts of all shareholders having the right
to vote at such general meeting called to consideh extraordinary transaction. These provisiormuinconstitutive documents may increase
the difficulty faced by a party which seeks to dogeontrol of our board or to approve an extraoady transaction.

In 2007, we entered into change in control severagreements with certain executive officers purstaawhich we agreed to pay cert
severance payments if a change in control everddfised in the change in control severance agratsheccurs and the employment of such
executive officer is terminated by our company othan for cause or by such executive officer foodj reasons within two years following 1
occurrence of the change in control event. Theseeagents may increase the cost of a party seekiaffdct a change in control of our
company.

Future sales, pledge or issuance of common shargsig or our current shareholders could depress @lware price and you may suffer
dilution.

Sales of substantial amounts of shares in the puidirket, the perception that future sales maymarihe pledge of a substantial por
of our common shares could depress the prevailiagket price of our shares. As of March 31, 2014haeé approximately 30 million comm
shares issued and outstanding. As of March 31, ,28d4post Group LLC/MA, He & Fang 2005 Revocableihg Trust, and Siliconware
Precision our three largest shareholders, owne®B3235, 2,583,637, and 2,243,749 common sharesatsggly, representing in the aggregate
of approximately 27.2% of our outstanding commoarsh. See “ltem 7. Major Shareholders and Reladety Fransactions — Major
Shareholders”.
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Mosel in the past decided to sell a significantiporof our common shares in order to raise fuirdgune 2006, Mosel sold
1,739,130 common shares through its wholly-owndxsisiiary, Giant Haven, under a shelf registratitatesnent which has since expired. In
addition, in March 2007, we issued 3,043,749 comstares pursuant to a share purchase and submt@gtieement with ChipMOS Taiwan
and Siliconware Precision, and we entered intgatation rights agreement in March 2007 withc®ifiware Precision, pursuant to which we
granted to Siliconware Precision certain rightseiguire us to register these common shares fousaler the Securities Act. In July 2007,
Mosel sold 2,030,316 common shares through Giamehl#o ProMOS and Powertech Technology, and we ghemted Giant Haven, ProMOS
and Powertech Technology certain rights to requsréo register these common shares for sale uhde3dcurities Act. For a shareholder th,
not our affiliate these shares may be resold putsweRule 144 after lapse of the applicable h@dieriod. In 2008, ProMOS failed to meet its
payment obligations to ThaiLin. Subsequently in 882009, ThaiLin acquired 1,015,158 common shawea ProMOS pursuant to its
enforcement of the collateral under a Stock Plesigreement between ThaiLin and ProMOS dated Dece®h2008. Furthermore, each of
Siliconware Precision, Mosel and ThaiLin may beeablsell, in any three-month period, that numbighose ChipMOS common shares that
each of Siliconware Precision, Mosel and ThaiLimewas the case may be, up to the greater oféipencent of our outstanding common
shares or (ii) the average weekly trading volumewfcommon shares as reported on the NASDAQ daydeket during the four calendar
weeks prior to filing a notice under Rule 144(h) &my such sales pursuant to Rule 144(e) undeBd¢iearities Act. In November 2012, ThailLin
sold 2,000,000 common shares and Siliconware Poacsld 800,000 common shares pursuant to a Sacpffering. In May 2013, Thaili
completed its sale of 380,506 of our common shard®kyo Seimitsu. In November 2013 and Januaryl2Thail in sold 2,000,000 common
shares and 2,093,705 commons shares back to Chipé@8uda, respectively. After the transactions,illinadid not hold any of our comm
shares. From April 2012 to March 2014, Mosel sqb6Z,270 common shares through its wholly-ownedisiigry, Giant Haven, under Rule
144.

On September 14, 2007, ChipMOS Bermuda issued 35L0mmon shares pursuant to a share exchangadtimmswith ChipMOS
Taiwan, under which ChipMOS Bermuda exchanged onenton share for every 8.4 ChipMOS Taiwan shares dhstanding. Following the
completion of the share exchange transaction, CGiSM aiwan became our wholly-owned subsidiary. Ibrkary 2010, we agreed to sell
15.8% of ChipMOS Taiwan'’s outstanding shares tw&ilware Precision. In January 2011, the sharehaseetransaction was completed and
we owned 84.2% of ChipMOS Taiwan’s outstanding sbas of December 31, 2011. On April 16, 2013 aasqé ChipMOS Taiwan'’s listing
plan on the TWSE, we completed the sale of 6.5anilbutstanding ChipMOS Taiwan shares or 0.8% efttltal number of ChipMOS
Taiwan’s outstanding shares, at the price of NT@p®r share to ChipMOS Taiwan’s underwriters fer TWSE listing plan and to certain
others, including non-US employees of ChipMOS Taiwerom September 2, 2013 to October 3, 2013, k1D million shares or 21.4% of
the total number of ChipMOS Taiwanbutstanding shares, at the price of NT$20.0 Iperes to investors. After the completion of theedaid
sales the Company held approximately 523 millioip®IOS Taiwan shares, representing 62.1% of thé ttaber of ChipMOS Taiwan'’s
outstanding shares. On April 9, 2014, ChipMOS Betmsiold approximately 1.3 million ChipMOS Taiwarasts as “green shoe” option to
market investors. As of the date of this Annual &epn Form 20-F, we continue to own approximat&@ million ChipMOS Taiwan shares,
representing 60.4% of ChipMOS Taiwan'’s outstandingres. See “Iltem 3. Key Information—Risk FactorsskRRelating to Our Corporate
Structure— ChipMOS Taiwan’s ability to maintain liting and trading status on the Taiwan StockHaxge is dependent on factors outside
of the Company or ChipMOS Taiwantontrol and satisfaction of stock exchange requémts. ChipMOS Taiwan may not be able to overc
such factors that disrupt its trading status omtlaén board of Taiwan Stock Exchange or satisfgo#iigibility requirements that may be
required of it in the future” for additional infoltion on ChipMOS Taiwan'’s listing plan. We planigsue, from time to time, additional shares
in connection with employee compensation and tarfge possible future capital expenditures, investsner acquisitions. See “ltem 6.
Directors, Senior Management and Employees—Shatie©plan and Share Appreciation Rights Plan” fdistussion of the Share Option
Plan that we have adopted for the benefit of ablwfdirectors, officers, employees and consultaitie issuance of additional shares may hav
a dilutive effect on other shareholders and magedhe price of our common shares to decrease.

In addition, the indictment relating to Mr. Hu@hiu Hu alleges that embezzled funds were useahviestments by PacMOS Technolo¢
Holdings Limited, or PacMOS, which, as of March 3014, owned 2.5% of our outstanding common sh&®s. result, PacMOS may be
ordered by relevant authorities to dispose ofrtestments made with any embezzled funds, whichnesylt in a sale of our shares by
PacMOS. A sale of a significant number of our skdme PacMOS or our other current shareholders abejaess our share price.

The share numbers disclosed in the foregoing paphgrare adjusted for the Company’s 1-for-evergwérnse stock split effective on
January 21, 2011.
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If the trading price of our common shares declinese may face a limited public market for our commehares and reduced availability
future debt or equity financing

Companies listed on the NASDAQ Stock Market (“NASQA are subject to delisting for, among other tlinfgilure to maintain a
minimum closing bid price of US$1.00 per shareF0rconsecutive business days. We are in compliaitbethe NASDAQ Listing Rules as of
the date of this Annual Report on Form 20-F. Weenrast in compliance with the NASDAQ minimum bidg&irequirement from
September 15, 2009 until May 5, 2010, when we regghtompliance. During this time, we applied ford &NASDAQ approved, the transfer of
our listing from NASDAQ Global Select Market to NB3Q Capital Market. If the bid price of our commstock falls below US$1.00 per
share for 30 consecutive business days again ifuthee, we may be subject to delisting. If our coam shares are delisted from the NASDAQ
Capital Market, our common shares would likely &@dthe over-the-counter market, which could msddéng our common shares more
difficult. Smaller quantities of shares would liitdde bought and sold, transactions could be de|aymdl security analysts’ coverage of us may
be reduced. In addition, in the event our commareshare delisted, broker-dealers have certaifatgy burdens imposed upon them, which
may discourage broker-dealers from effecting treti@as in our common shares. These factors conlid dur common shares’ liquidity and
result in lower prices and larger spreads in tldeanid ask prices for our common shares.

Future declines in our share price could also Sxamtly impair our ability to raise additional ressary capital through equity or debt
financing, and could significantly increase owngugtilution to shareholders caused by our issuigjtg in financing or other transactions. A
general permission under the Exchange Control 8¢2land the Exchange Control Regulation 1973 (dner welevant legislations and
regulations) has been given by the Bermuda Mon&tatkority (the “BMA”) for the issue and transfef @ur common shares, notes and other
securities to and between non-residents of Bermmdaxchange control purposes, provided that oorroon shares remain listed on an
appointed stock exchange (which includes listindhenNASDAQ Capital Market). There can be no assedhat the BMA will give the same
or a similar consent in the event our common shareso longer listed on the NASDAQ Capital Maretinother appointed stock exchange.
In the absence of such a general consent, speotfisents of the BMA would be required for all issaed transfers of our shares, notes and
other securities, unless such issues and/or tranfslfié under certain exemptions as provided byBNMA.

Item 4. Information on the Company
Overview of the Company

We believe that we are one of the leading indepangi®viders of semiconductor testing and assersdlyices. Specifically, we believe
that we are one of the leading independent prosidétesting and assembly services for LCD andrdthepanel display driver semiconduct
in Taiwan and for advanced memory and logic/mixiggha products in Taiwan and Mainland China. Thptbef our engineering expertise
and the breadth of our testing and assembly teolyies enable us to provide our customers with ack@iand comprehensive testing and
assembly services. In addition, our geographicemres in Taiwan and Mainland China is attractiveustomers wishing to take advantage of
the logistical and cost efficiencies stemming froamn close proximity to foundries and producersafisumer electronic products in Taiwan
Mainland China. Our production facilities are laghin Hsinchu and Tainan, Taiwan and Shanghai, ldiathChina.

Our Structure and History

We are a holding company, incorporated in Augui020nder the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as dathr(the “Bermuda
Companies Act”), under the name “ChipMOS TECHNOLEGI(Bermuda) LTD”. Our principal place of busineskcated at No. 1, R&D
Road 1, Hsinchu Science Park, Hsinchu, Taiwan, Repaf China and our phone number is (+886) 3 3888. We provide most of our
services in Taiwan through our subsidiary, ChipMC#van, in which we hold a majority ownership irgst; and its subsidiaries and invest
We also provide services in Mainland China throGgiipMOS Shanghai, a wholly-owned subsidiary of MGINEMIND TECHNOLOGY
LIMITED, or Modern Mind, which is a wholly-owned Bsidiary of ThaiLin. As of March 31, 2014, Baup&@bup LLC/MA, owned 11.0% of
our common shares, He & Fang 2005 Revocable Livingt, owned 8.7% of our common shares, and Silieoe Precision, owned 7.5% of
our common shares and 15.8% of ChipMOS Taiwan’stantling shares.
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The following chart illustrates our corporate sture and our equity interest in each of our printgubsidiaries and affiliates as of the
date of this Annual Report on Form 20-F.

ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. i
{Bermuda)

60.4%

ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC,

(Taiwan)

47.5%

ThaiLin Semiconductor Corp,
(Tarwan)

[00.0%

MODERN MIND TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
(BVI)

[ 00.0%%

ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Shanghai) LTD.
{People’s Republic of China)

Notes:

(1) Under IFRSs 10 “Consolidated Financial Statetsieme are required to consolidate the finanaalults of any subsidiaries in which we hold a aglitg interest or voting interest in
excess of 50% or we have the power to direct osedue direction of the management and policiesyititstanding the lack of majority ownership. Wensolidated the financial rest
of ChipMOS Taiwan, ChipMOS USA Inc., or ChipMOS US¥odern Mind, its wholl-owned subsidiary, ChipMOS Shanghai and Thai

Below is a description of our principal consolidhtibsidiaries:

ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC.ChipMOS Taiwan was incorporated in Taiwan in JWQ1 as a joint venture company of Mosel and
Siliconware Precision and with the participatiorotiier investors. Its operations consist of thérigsand assembly of semiconductors as well
as gold bumping and memory module manufacturinga@égiired our interest in ChipMOS Taiwan by issudnig common shares to ChipM(
Taiwan’s shareholders in exchange for their 70.8%eholding in ChipMOS Taiwan in January 2001. bidber 2001, ChipMOS Taiwan
issued 6,911,732 common shares as employee bomugdscember 2002, we issued 132,793 common shasshange for 5,633,442
ChipMOS Taiwan common shares held by these empdoyee
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On March 27, 2007, we completed a share purchassuwyscription transaction with ChipMOS Taiwan &ilicconware Precision, under
which we and ChipMOS Taiwan purchased all of Siliware Precision’s equity interest in ChipMOS Taiwand Siliconware Precision
subscribed to 3,043,749 of our newly issued comaitres through a private placement. As of Marct28@y, we held 99.1% of the
outstanding common shares of ChipMOS Taiwan. Orniebaper 14, 2007, we completed a share exchangsatrton with ChipMOS Taiwan
pursuant to which we exchanged one common shaevéoy 8.4 ChipMOS Taiwan shares. In connectioh #ie share exchange transaction,
ChipMOS Bermuda and ChipMOS Taiwan paid in the aggte NT$53 million in cash to purchase fractigteres and shares held by
dissenting shareholders, and ChipMOS Bermuda issbg®31 new common shares. Following the compiaifcthe share exchange
transaction, ChipMOS Taiwan became our wholly-owselsidiary. In February 2010, we agreed to seB%bof ChipMOS Taiwan’s
outstanding shares to Siliconware Precision. Tlaeespurchase transaction was completed in Jan@dry. ®n April 16, 2013, as part of
ChipMOS Taiwan’s listing plan on the TWSE, we coeatpl the sale of 6.5 million outstanding ChipMO$wEa shares or 0.8% of the total
number of ChipMOS Taiwan'’s outstanding sharesheiprice of NT$15.0 per share to ChipMOS Taiwamderwriters for the TWSE listing
plan and to certain others, including non-US emgésyof ChipMOS Taiwan. From September 2, 2013 tolige 3, 2013, we sold 180 million
shares or 21.4% of the total number of ChipMOS Bai\w outstanding shares, at the price of NT$20rGpares to investors. After the
completion of the aforesaid sale, the Company apftoximately 523 million ChipMOS Taiwan share@resenting 62.1% of the total num!
of ChipMOS Taiwan’s outstanding shares. On Apri2014, ChipMOS Bermuda sold approximately 1.3 onllChipMOS Taiwan shares as
“green shoe” option to market investors. As ofdlage of this Annual Report on Form 20-F, we corgitmiown approximately 522 million
ChipMOS Taiwan shares, representing 60.4% of ChigM@iwan’s outstanding shares. See “ltem 3. Kegrination—Risk Factors—Risk
Relating to Our Corporate Structure— ChipMOS Tailwaility to maintain its listing and trading staton the Taiwan Stock Exchange is
dependent on factors outside of the Company orMBI Taiwans control and satisfaction of stock exchange requénts. ChipMOS Taiwe
may not be able to overcome such factors that glistsitrading status on the main board of Taiwtotis Exchange or satisfy other eligibility
requirements that may be required of it in thefeitdior additional information on ChipMOS Taiwanisting plan.

The share numbers disclosed in the foregoing paphgare adjusted to reflect the Company’s 1-foredereverse stock split effective
January 21, 2011.

MODERN MIND TECHNOLOGY LIMITED and ChipMOS TECHNOLGGIES (Shanghai) LTD.Modern Mind was incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands in January 2002. Modéfimd conducts its operations through ChipMOS Shanghwholly-owned subsidiary
incorporated in Mainland China in June 2002. ChigB/€hanghai is engaged in wafer testing and semimbodassembly and testing. We
acquired a 100% equity interest in Modern Mind at@mber 12, 2002, and then transferred it to JespBecember 31, 2002. In 2003, we
acquired from Jesper a convertible note in the amoftilUS$37.5 million issued by Modern Mind thatynze converted into a controlling
equity interest in Modern Mind at a conversion mftene ordinary share of Modern Mind for every U if the repayment is not made wl
due. In 2004, we restructured our control of Chipf8hanghai and our Mainland China operations. @n28j 2004, we replaced the US$:
million convertible note previously issued by Modéind in its entirety with a US$62.8 million denthnote issued by Modern Mind, with 1
difference representing a US$25 million loan thatextended to Modern Mind from the net proceedsuofluly 2004 offering of common
shares. In addition, we extended a loan in theeggggge amount of US$50 million to Modern Mind froine net proceeds of our November 200¢
convertible debt offering in exchange for demantkadssued by Modern Mind in the same aggregataian{the “MMT Notes”). The MMT
Notes were convertible at any time into common ehagpresenting, immediately after the converstmpst 100% of the then outstand
common shares of Modern Mind at a conversion rat¢S$1.00 for each common share of Modern Mind.nayt under the MMT Notes we
fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Jesper sexlred by a pledge agreement in respect of tlve eouity interest in Modern Mind and
ChipMOS Shanghai. We obtained from Jesper an io&vie option to acquire at any time the commoneshaf Modern Mind then owned by
Jesper. Under an assignment and assumption agresigiead on April 22, 2011 (the “MMT Assignment Agment”),ChipMOS agreed to si
the MMT Notes to ThailLin for a purchase price opegximately US$40 million subject to certain clagiconditions. Post completion of MMT
Assignment Agreement transaction, ThaiLin immedyatenverted the MMT Notes into common shares offetm Mind and purchased all of
the remaining common shares of Modern Mind fronpdgswith ChipMOS Shanghai becoming a wholly-owsatsidiary of ThaiLin. The
MMT Assignment Agreement was completed on Octob@031.

On July 1, 2010, ChipMOS Bermuda and ChipMOS Shangitered into an exclusive services agreemensppat to which ChipMOS
Shanghai provides services exclusively to ChipM@®@nida or customers designated by ChipMOS Bermnididder the exclusive services
agreement, ChipMOS Bermuda agrees to procure geztpiipment required to render those services ansign such equipment for the
exclusive use of ChipMOS Shanghai. The exclusiveises agreement has a term of ten years and uoilessvise terminated by either party
giving at least 30 days prior written notice to theiration of such ten-year term, will automatigaénew for another ten-year term upon its
expiry. In addition, under the exclusive servicgeeament, ChipMOS Bermuda has the discretion toitette the exclusive services agreemen
for any reason at any time by giving 30 days’ pvieitten notice to ChipMOS Shanghai.
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ThaiLin Semiconductor CorpThaiLin was incorporated in Taiwan in May 1996, amtisted on the Gre Tai Securities Market in Tai
It is engaged in the provision of semiconductotingsservices. ChipMOS Taiwan acquired a 41.8%régkin ThaiLin in December 2002.
Under applicable accounting principles, ThaiLin wagssolidated into our consolidated financial stegats in 2003 because ChipMOS Taiwan
was deemed to exert significant control over Thailhirough common directors and management.

On March 4, 2008, ChipMOS Taiwan made a loan iarmount of NT$145 million that bears interest aat® of 4.69% per annum to
Taiwan Kolin Co. Ltd., or Kolin, a major sharehalad ThaiLin, ChipMOS Taiwan'’s 42.9% owned subsigiadNT$15 million of this loan was
repaid in 2008. The loan is secured by a pledgédiy of 11 million common shares of ThaiLin. In 28, the loan has been fully repaid and
the subject pledge has been released accordinggyI&m 7. Major Shareholders and Related ParynJactions—Related Party
Transactions—ThaiLin Semiconductor Corp.”

As of March 31, 2014, ChipMOS Taiwan held a 47.5%&iiest in ThaiLin. Mr. Shih-Jye Cheng, our chainnaad chief executive officer
and the director and chairman of ChipMOS Taiwam$® a director of ThaiLin. In addition, four &fet nine directors of ThailLin are appointed
by ChipMOS Taiwan. As of March 31, 2014 ThaiLin diot hold any of our outstanding shares. See “lteiajor Shareholders and Related
Party Transactions—Related Party Transactions—Tih&kmiconductor Corp.”

Industry Background

We provide a broad range of back-end testing sesyincluding engineering testing, wafer probing final testing of memory and
logic/mixed-signal semiconductors. We also offér@ad selection of leadframe-based and organidsiesased package assembly services
for memory and logic/mixed-signal semiconductorsr @dvanced leadframe-based packages includertiafi sutline packages, or TSOPSs,
and our advanced organic substrate-based packagjede fine-pitch ball grid array packages or fpitsh BGA. In addition, we provide gold
bumping, testing and assembly services for LCDathdr flat-panel display driver semiconductors mptoying TCP, COF and COG
technologies.

Semiconductors tested and assembled by us ardrupetsonal computers, graphics applications, sisofjame consoles and personal
digital assistants, or PDAs, communications equimireuch as cellular handsets, and consumer etéctpooducts and display applications,
such as flat-panel displays. In 2013, 23.7% ofreuenue was derived from testing services for mgraad logic/mixedsignal semiconductol
32.4% from assembly services for memory and loginhsignal semiconductors, 24.7% from LCD and offe-panel display driver
semiconductor testing and assembly services ad¥dBom bumping services for semiconductors.

Semiconductor Industry Trends

Growth in the semiconductor industry is largelydn by end-user demand for consumer electroniespramications equipment and
computers, for which semiconductors are criticahponents. The worldwide semiconductor industrydxaeerienced peaks and troughs over
the last decade, with a severe downturn at theo€2600 that was followed by a modest recovenate P002. Beginning in the fourth quarter
of 2008, the semiconductor industry commenced anatbwnturn that increased in unprecedented sguatd the first quarter of 2009. The
overall semiconductor industry commenced to recénoen the downturn in the second quarter of 2009 thee positive recovery trend
continues through 2013.

Selected Key Semiconductor Markets

While a recovery trend in end-user demand for negvienproved electronic products and applicationgiooes, various sectors of the
semiconductor industry are in turn expected to fieftem a resumption in growth. These sectorsudel the memory semiconductor market,
and the LCD and other flat-panel display driver memductor market.

Memory Semiconductor Market

The potential for memory market growth is linkedatdticipated memory content increases in consufeetrenics and PC applications
(after such time as a recovery occurs in end-userathd for these) due to increasing operating systgmirements, increasing use of graphics
in gaming and other applications, continued grosfthroadband content and a transition to 64-biaRehitecture. The memory market is
dominated by two segments—DRAM and flash memoryema@l growth in the DRAM market is expected todo&en by continued growth in
both the commaodity and niche DRAM market, as welgeowth opportunities in mobile DRAM as memoryuigments significantly increase
for mobile applications. Flash memory market patdmfrowth is expected to be driven by increasirepmory requirements for cellular
handsets, digital cameras, digital audio/video, athér mobile applications.
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LCD and Other Flat-Panel Display Driver Semiconcudvarket

Flat-panel displays are used in applications ssdA@ monitors, notebook computers, television selljlar handsets and digital
cameras. The end-user demand for LCD and othep#la¢l display driver semiconductor experiencedwrdurn in 2007 and 2008. The LCD
driver market started to recover in the secondtguaf 2009 and the positive recovery trend corgththrough 2013.

Logic/Mixed-Signal Semiconductor Market

The communications market is one of the main dsiedmpotential growth in the semiconductor industrygic/mixed-signal
semiconductors, which are chips with analog fumatiity covering more than half of the chip are® largely used in the communications
market. The increasing use of digital technologgammunications equipment requires chips with lafital and analog functionality for
applications such as modems, network routers, begtccable set-top boxes and cellular handsettheAsize and cost of cellular handsets and
other communications-related devices have decreasetponents have increased in complexity. Logic#atisignal semiconductors, such as
LCD controllers and DVD controllers, are also usedonsumer electronic products.

Overview of the Semiconductor Manufacturing Process

The manufacturing of semiconductors is a complecess that requires increasingly sophisticatednerging and manufacturing
expertise. The manufacturing process may be bradidiged into the following stages:

Crrcunt Wafer --;
Front End Design * Fabricanon * ChipMOS
Wafer
Probe
Back End ChipMOS « ChipMOS —
Final Assembly
Test
Process Description
Circuit Design The design of a semiconductor is developed by ¢agint circuit patterns and interconnectic
Wafer Fabrication Wafer fabrication begins with the generation ohatomask, a photographic negative onto which autticesign

pattern is etched or transferred by an electromb@alaser beam writer. Each completed wafer castaiany
fabricated chips, each known as a -

Wafer Probe Each individual die is then electrically testedpoobed, for defects. Dies that fail this testdiszarded, or, in some
cases, salvaged using laser reg

Assembly The assembly of semiconductors serves to protedith facilitates its integration into electroeicstems and enables
the dissipation of heat. The process begins withdibing of the wafers into chips. Each die is»afti to a leadframe-
based or organic substrate-based substrate. Tleetrj@l connections are formed, in many casesdmnecting the
terminals on the die to the inner leads of the pgekusing fine metal wires. Finally, each chiprisapsulated for
protection, usually in a molded epoxy enclos!

Final Test Assembled semiconductors are tested to ensuré¢hthaievice meets performance specifications. Tgstikes place
on specialized equipment using software customiazedach application. For memory semiconductots, ghocess
also includes “burn-in” testing to screen out défecdevices by applying very high temperatures aslthges onto
the memory device
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Outsourcing Trends in Semiconductor Manufacturing

Historically, integrated device manufacturers,@Ms, designed, manufactured, tested and asseméteid@nductors primarily at their
own facilities. In recent years, there has beeerdtin the industry to outsource stages in theufsturing process to reduce the high fixed
costs resulting from the increasingly complex mantifring process. Virtually every significant stagehe manufacturing process can be
outsourced. The independent semiconductor manufagtservices market currently consists of waféritzation and probing services and
semiconductor testing and assembly services. Mdbtowvorld’s major IDMs now use some independemisonductor manufacturing
services to maintain a strategic mix of internal arternal manufacturing capacity. We believe thahy of these IDMs are significantly
reducing their investments in new semiconductdirtgsand assembly facilities.

The availability of technologically advanced indegent semiconductor manufacturing services hasemabled the growth of “fabless”
semiconductor companies that focus exclusivelyamisonductor design and marketing and outsourdefédarication, testing and assembly
requirements to independent companies.

We believe the outsourcing of semiconductor mariufaw services, and in particular of testing asgeanbly services, will increase for
many reasons, including the following:

Significant Capital Expenditure Requirememsiven by increasingly sophisticated technologregjuirements, wafer fabrication, testing
and assembly processes have become highly compbpxring substantial investment in specializedipapent and facilities and sophisticated
engineering and manufacturing expertise. In additwoduct life cycles have been shortening, magmdfthe need to continually upgrade or
replace manufacturing, testing and assembly equiptneaccommodate new products. As a result, ngestments in in-house fabrication,
testing and assembly facilities are becoming lesérdble for IDMs because of the high investmests;as well as difficulties in achieving
sufficient economies of scale and utilization ratebe competitive with the independent serviceviglers. Independent foundry, testing and
assembly companies, on the other hand, are abéaliae the benefits of specialization and achexs@omies of scale by providing services tc
a large base of customers across a wide rangedtipis. This enables them to reduce costs andeshprbduction cycles through high capa
utilization and process expertise.

Increasing Focus on Core Competenciss the costs of semiconductor manufacturing faeglitncrease, semiconductor companies are
expected to further outsource their wafer fabraratiesting and assembly requirements to focus theopurces on core competencies, such as
semiconductor design and marketing.

Time-to-Market Pressurdncreasingly short product life cycles have ametiftime-to-market pressure for semiconductor corigsan
leading them to rely increasingly on independembjganies as a key source for effective wafer fabdnatesting and assembly services.

Semiconductor Testing and Assembly Services Industr

Growth in the semiconductor testing and assembilyics industry is driven by increased outsour@hthe various stages of the
semiconductor manufacturing process by IDMs antk&sisemiconductor companies.

The Semiconductor Industry and Conditions of Outsng in Taiwan and Mainland China

Taiwan is one of the world’s leading locations dortsourced semiconductor manufacturing. The serdioctor industry in Taiwan has
developed such that the various stages of the sahictor manufacturing process have been disagigeighus allowing for specialization.
The disaggregation of the semiconductor manufawysrocess in Taiwan permits these semiconductoufaaturing service providers to
focus on particular parts of the production progcdsselop economies of scale, maintain higher dapatilization rates and remain flexible in
responding to customer needs by lowering time-toketgpressure faced by semiconductor companieseTdre several leading service
providers in Taiwan, each of which offers substrtapacity, high-quality manufacturing, leadingngsnductor wafer fabrication, test,
assembly and process technologies, and a full rahgervices. These service providers have acoems éducated labor pool and a large
number of engineers suitable for sophisticated rfzanuring industries. As a result, many of the wsrleading semiconductor companies
outsource some or all of their semiconductor mastufing needs to Taiwan’s semiconductor manufaetusiervice providers and take
advantage of the close proximity among facilitissaddition, companies located in Taiwan are vetwa in the design and manufacture of
electronic systems, which has created significacdlldemand for semiconductor devices.
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Mainland China has emerged as a similarly attradtieation for outsourced semiconductor manufaeguivainland China is an
attractive manufacturing location for electroniogucts because companies can take advantage dfedueated yet low-cost labor force, cost
savings due to tax benefits and a large domestikehal hese factors have driven increased relocationuch of the electronics industry
manufacturing and supply chain to Mainland China.idcreasing number of global electronic systemeufeacturers and contract
manufacturers are relocating or have relocatedymtamh facilities to Mainland China. We believe thizese electronic product manufacturers
and contract manufacturers will source an increpportion of their demand for semiconductors framsonductor suppliers located in
Mainland China in order to reduce production cyitfees, decrease costs, simplify supply chain loggsind meet local content requirement
line with this trend, we have in recent years exieahour operations in Mainland China.

Our Strategy

Our goal is to reinforce our position as a leaditdependent provider of semiconductor testing asgm@bly services, concentrating
principally on memory, logic/mixed-signal and LCBdaother flat-panel display driver semiconductditse principal components of our
business strategy are set forth below.

Focus on Providing Our Services to Potential Gronlegments of the Semiconductor Industry.

We intend to continue our focus on developing amyiging advanced testing and assembly servicepdtential growth segments of the
semiconductor industry, such as memory, logic/migigghal, LCD and other flgtanel display driver semiconductors and bumpingises. W«
believe that our investments in equipment and rebeand development in some of these areas allaw ofer a differentiated service from
our competition. In order to benefit from the exigelcresumption of growth in these segments, wethte continue to invest in capacity to
meet the testing and assembly requirements of #teyseemiconductor market segments.

Continue to Invest in the Research and DevelopmehAdvanced Testing and Assembly Technologies.

Critical to our business growth is the continuatioexpand our capabilities in testing and assentbpyrovide better service to our
customers. We typically focus on advanced techrniefotihat consist of greater potentials to gendrafieer margins. For example, we
conducted new product introductions and on an dnggbasis continue to expand our capabilitiesne-fpitch wafer bumping, multi-chip
package (MCP), flip chip package, and high spesiihig and assembly of fine-pitch COFs. We have misoduced low cost metal composite
bump (MCB) products based on our proprietary Ctindaechnology to service flat-panel display mared expand offerings to other
business regions. We continue to maintain clos&iwgmrelationships with local and overseas reseansfitutions and universities to keep
abreast with leading edge technologies and brodgescope of applications.

In 2014 we expect to focus our research and demedap efforts in the following areas:

. development of advanced assembly technologies i8R, MEMS and flip chip products for memory deviaad mixed signal
products;

. expand fin-pitch Au and Cu bumping technology for 300mm prdsl

. expand fin-pitch test capabilities for advanced LCD drive

. carry out ir-process improvement to improve manufacturing yielas shorten turnaround tirr
. develop new software conversion programs to inerétaes capabilities of our testers; ¢

. continue to focus on delivering environmentallefrilly assembly services by eliminating the leadlaidgen elements from the
materials.

In 2013, we spent approximately 2.9% of our revesneesearch and development. We will continu@vest our resources to recruit ¢
retain experienced research and development pezsadksof March 31, 2014, our research and deve@grream comprised 353 persons.
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Build on Our Strong Presence in Taiwan and Expandu©Operations Outside Taiwan.

We intend to build on our strong presence in keyters of semiconductor and electronics manufaajuergrow our business. Currently,
most of our operations are in Taiwan, one of theldimleading locations for outsourced semiconduatanufacturing. This presence provides
us with several advantages. Firstly, our proxintypther semiconductor companies is attractiveugiamers who wish to outsource various
stages of the semiconductor manufacturing pro&essondly, our proximity to many of our suppliersstomers and the end-users of our
customersproducts enables us to be involved in the earlyestaf the semiconductor design process, enhancebiity to quickly respond t
our customers’ changing requirements and shortensustomers’ time-to-market. Thirdly, we have @sct® an educated labor pool and a
large number of engineers who are able to worketyosith our customers and other providers of semdzictor manufacturing services.

As with our operations in Taiwan, we intend to $arly benefit from our operations in Mainland Chinle intend to invest in and expz
our operations in Mainland China, increasing ostitgy and assembly services for memory and logic#dhisignal semiconductors.

Depending on customer’'s demands, market condiiodsother relevant considerations, we may from tiontéme look into other
opportunities to expand our operations outside &aiw

Expand Our Offering of Vertically Integrated Servés.

We believe that one of our competitive strengthmuisability to provide vertically integrated sergs to our customers. Vertically
integrated services consist of the integratedrtgstissembly and direct shipment of semiconduttoesid-users designated by our customers.
Providing vertically integrated services enablesoushorten lead times for our customers. As tioyexarket and cost increasingly become
sources of competitive advantage for our custontieey, increasingly value our ability to provide tih@ith comprehensive back-end services.

Through ChipMOS Taiwan, ThaiLin and ChipMOS Sharngha are able to offer vertically integrated sees for a broad range of
products, including memory, logic/mixed-signal &r@D and other flat-panel display driver semicondust We believe that these affiliations,
which offer complementary technologies, products services as well as additional capacity, willtomne to enhance our own development
and expansion efforts into new and potential gromvéitkets. We intend to establish new alliances ieitlling companies and, if suitable
opportunities arise, engage in merger and acquiséctivities that will further expand the serviees can provide.

Focus on Increasing Sales through Long-Term Agreemie with Key Customers as well as Business with $ena&Customers.

From time to time, we strategically agree to comariortion of our testing and assembly capacityettain of our customers. We intend
to continue focus on increasing sales to key custerthrough long-term capacity agreements. Themests with which we currently have
long-term agreements include a reputable memonpmes based in the US. See “— Customers” belovaforore detailed discussion of these
long-term agreements.

Global market and economic conditions have beemasggented and challenging with tight credit cdodi and recession in most major
economies since 2008 continuing into 2013. Begimimn2008, we also resumed our focus on our busing smaller customers or customers
who do not place orders on a regular basis. Weelkhat the dual focused strategy will assisbusetbetter prepared for the current economi
volatility and ensure maximum utilization rate afr@apacity and help us to develop closer relatippsswith all types of our customers.
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Principal Products and Services
The following table presents, for the periods shomemenue by service segment as a percentage ofwemue.

Year ended December 31

2012 2013
Testing
Memory testing revent 26.3% 20.5%
Logic/mixec-signal testing revent 2.6 3.2
Total testing revenu 28.9 23.7
Assembly
Memory assembly revent 28.7 29.1
Logic/mixec-signal assembly reven 4.5 3.3
Total assembly revent 33.2 32.4
LCD and other fle-panel display driver semiconductor testing andrag$erevenue 22.7 24.7
Bumping 15.2 19.2
Total revenus 100.0% 100.0%

Memory and Logic/Mixed-Signal Semiconductors
Testing
We provide testing services for memory and logigadisignal semiconductors:

Memory.We provide testing services for a variety of memsggniconductors, such as SRAM, DRAM and flash mgmbo speed up the
time-consuming process of memory product testirgpvovide multisite testing, which can test up to 256 devices kanaously. The memo

semiconductors we test are used primarily in dgsktomputers, notebook computers and handheld carselectronic devices and wireless
communication devices.

Logic/Mixed-SignalWe conduct tests on a wide variety of logic/mixéghal semiconductors, with lead counts ranging ftbmsingle
digits to over 1024 and operating frequencies ofouGHz. The semiconductors we test include auitied codec,
networking/communications, MCU, LCD related, and Mi& used for home entertainment/media center, patsmmputer applications,
network/communication and mobile smart devices.alge test a variety of application specific inteégdacircuits, or ASICs, for applications
such as FHD/UHD LCD TV, Tablet PC, etc.

The following is a description of our pre-assemtelsting services:

Engineering TestinglVe provide engineering testing services, includiofiware program development, electrical desigrda&ibn,
reliability and failure analyses.

. Software Program Developmebtesign and test engineers develop a customizeda@tprogram and related hardware to test
semiconductors on advanced testing equipment. fouzed software program is required to test thfamnity of each particular
semiconductor to its particular function and speatfon.

. Electrical Design ValidationA prototype of the designed semiconductor is suteahito electrical tests using advanced test
equipment, customized software programs and refsedivare. These tests assess whether the prosgympieonductor complies
with a variety of different operating specificatimrincluding functionality, frequency, voltage, @nt, timing and temperature rar

. Reliability AnalysisReliability analysis is designed to assess the-teng reliability of the semiconductor and its abitity of use

for its intended applications. Reliability testintay include operatintife evaluation, during which the semiconductositbjected t
high temperature and voltage te:

. Failure Analysislf the prototype semiconductor does not performapecifications during either the electrical validator
reliability analysis process, failure analysis ésfprmed to determine the reasons for the faildgepart of this analysis, the
prototype semiconductor may be subjected to atyanifetests, including electron beam probing arettical testing
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Wafer ProbingWafer probing is the step immediately before trse=athly of semiconductors and involves visual indpeand electrice
testing of the processed wafer for defects to enthat it meets our customers’ specifications. Wpfebing employs sophisticated design and
manufacturing technologies to connect the termiofksach chip for testing. Defective chips are redrkn the surface or memorized in an
electronic file, known as a mapping file, to faeite subsequent processing.

Laser Repairingln laser repairing of memory products, specificypmi metal fuses are blown after wafer probingniatde a spare row
column of a memory cell to replace a defective mgnoell.

After assembly, we perform the following testingviees:

Burn-In TestingThis process screens out unreliable products usglgtemperature, high voltage and prolonged stessisure that
finished products will survive a long period of emsker service. This process is used only for merpovgucts.

Top Marking.By using either a laser marker or an ink markerywegk products according to our customers’ spetifinis, including the
logo, product type, date code and lot number.

Final Testing Assembled semiconductors are tested to ensuréhihdevices meet performance specifications. Testsonducted using
specialized equipment with software customizedefeh application in different temperature condgicanging from minus 45 degrees celsius
to 85 degrees celsius. One of the tests includesdsfesting to classify the parts into differerdespgrades.

Final Inspection and Packindrinal inspection involves visual or auto-inspectairihe devices to check for any bent leads, ingteu
markings or other construction defects. Packinglwes dry packing, packing-in-tube and tape antl By pack involves heating
semiconductors in a tray at 125 to 150 degreesusdisr about two hours to remove the moisture teefbe semiconductors are vacuum-seale
in an aluminum bag. Packing-in-tube involves pagkime semiconductors in anti-static tubes for slepmTape and reel pack involves
transferring semiconductors from a tray or tubeant anti-static embossed tape and rolling the ¢ape a reel for shipment to customers.

Assembly

Our assembly services generally involve the follugvsteps:

Wafer Lapping The wafers are ground to their required thickn

Die Saw Wafers are cut into individual dies, or chips, negaration for the d-attach proces:

Die Attach Each individual die is attached to the leadframerganic substratt

Wire Bondinc Using gold wires, the I/0 pads on the die are cotatkto the package inner lea

Molding The die and wires are encapsulated to provide palysupport and protectio

Marking Each individual package is marked to provide proddentification.

Dejunking anc Mold flash is removed from between the lead shasltlerough dejunking, and the dambar is cut dutfire

Trimming trimming process

Electrical Plating A solderable coating is added to the package lEadeevent oxidization and to keep solder wettabof
the package lead

Ball Mount and Each electrode pad of the substrate is first pdimtich flux, after which solder balls are mountbdated

Reflow and attached to the electrode pad of the subdimadagh a reflow over

Forming/Singulatior ~ Forming involves the proper configuration of thevide packages leads, and singulation separates the
packages from each oth

We offer a broad range of package formats desigmedovide our customers with a broad array of mbdg services. The assembly
services we offer customers are leadframe-basddipas, which include thin small outline packagesl, @rganic substrate-based packages,
including fine-pitch BGA.
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The differentiating characteristics of these paelsaigclude:

. the size of the packag

. the number of electrical connections which the pagekcan suppor

. the electrical performance and requirements optekage; an

. the heat dissipation requirements of the pack

As new applications for semiconductor devices negsimaller components, the size of packages haslatseased. In leading-edge

packages, the size of the package is reducedyttsligktly larger than the size of the individuiitself in a process known as chip scale
packaging.

As semiconductor devices increase in complexity,nthmber of electrical connections required alsoegiases. Leadframe-based products
have electrical connections from the semiconduaice to the electronic product through leadshenperimeter of the package. Organic
substratebased products have solder balls on the bottormeopackage, which create the electrical connectigtisthe product and can supg
large numbers of electrical connections.

Leadframe-Based Packagdhese are generally considered the most widely paekiage category. Each package consists of a
semiconductor chip encapsulated in a plastic mgldompound with metal leads on the perimeter. @h&gn has evolved from a design
plugging the leads into holes on the circuit baard design soldering the leads to the surfachetircuit board.

The following diagram presents the basic componeidsstandard leadframe-based package for meneomjcenductors:

Eporxy
Gold Wire Encapsulation

.r e — v N
H, r L - ] / + Lead
N A

IC Chip Tape

To address the market for miniaturization of pdea#ectronic products, we are currently develogind will continue to develop
increasingly smaller versions of leadframe-basetkages to keep pace with continually shrinking emductor device sizes. Our advanced
leadframe-based packages generally are thinnesraater, have more leads and have advanced themdadlectrical characteristics when
compared to traditional packages. As a result ofcontinual product development, we offer leadfrdmased packages with a wide range of
lead counts and sizes to satisfy our customersiireapents.
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The following table presents our principal leadfeabrased packages, including the number of leadadh package, commonly known as
lead-count, a description of each package andrttiaiser applications of each package.

Package Lead-count Description End-User Applications

Plastic Leaded Chip Carrier (PLCC) 32-44 Package with leads on four sides used ifCopiers, printers, scanners, personal
consumer electronics products in which computers, electronic games, monitors
the size of the package is not vi

Plastic Dual-in-line Package (PDIP) 16-56 Package with insertion leads on longer Electronic games, monitors, copiers,
sides used in consumer electronics printers, audio and video products,
products personal computel

Thin Small Outline Package | (TSOP ) 28-56 Designed for high volume production of Notebook computers, persor
low lead-count memory devices, computers, still and video cameras and
including flash memory, SRAM and standard connections for peripherals for
MROM computers

Thin Small Outline Package Il (TSOP II) 24-86 Designed for memory devices, includingDisk drives, recordable optical disk
flash memory, SRAM, SDRAM and drives, audio and video products,

DDR DRAM consumer electronics, communication
products

Quad Flat Package (QFP) 44-208  Flat structure with 4-sided peripheral ~ Wireless communication products,
leads designed for SRAM, graphic notebook computers, personal compu
processors, personal computer chipsetsconsumer electronics
and mixeesignal device:

Quad Flat No Lead (QFN) 8-132 Thermal enhanced quad flat no lead Wireless communication products,
package providing small footprint (chip notebook computers, PDAs, consumer
scale), light weight with good thermal  electronics
and electrical performant

Low-Profile Quad Flat Package (LQFP) 48-128  Low-profile and light weight package  Wireless communication products,
designed for ASICs, digital signal notebook computers, digital cameras,
processors, microprocessors/controllerscordless/radio frequency devices
graphics processors, gate arrays,

SSRAM, SDRAM, personal computer
chipsets and mixe-signal device:

Thin Quad Flat Package (TQFP) 44-128  Designed for lightweight portable Notebook computers, persot
electronics requiring broad performance computers, disk drives, office equipme
characteristics and mixed-signal devicesaudio and video products and wireless

communication produc

Small Outline Package (SOP) 8 Designed for low leadount memory ar Personal computers, consumer
logic semiconductors, including SRAM electronics, audio and video products,
and micrecontroller units communication produc!

Multi-Chip Package (TSOP with organic  24-86 Our patented design for memory devic Notebook computers, persot

substrate)

including SRAM, DRAM and SDRAM

computers, disk drives, audio and video
products, consumer products,
communication produc!

Organic Substrate-based Packagas.the number of leads surrounding a traditionafifeamebased package increases, the leads mt
placed closer together to reduce the size of tbkgupe. The close proximity of one lead to anotlaer areate electrical shorting problems and
requires the development of increasingly sophistitand expensive techniques to accommodate thenbigber of leads on the circuit boar
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The BGA format solves this problem by effectivelgating external terminals on the bottom of thekpge in the form of small bumps
balls. These balls are evenly distributed acrosstitire bottom surface of the package, allowirgtgr pitch between the individual terminals.
The ball grid array configuration enables high-pount devices to be manufactured less expensivigfyless delicate handling at installation.

Our organic substrate-based packages employ aficke-BGA design, which uses a plastic or tape teat@ rather than a leadframe and
places the electrical connections, or leads, omttimm of the package rather than around the meimThe fine-pitch BGA format was
developed to address the need for the smallerfiotérequired by advanced memory devices. Benefitsll grid array assembly over

leadframe-based assembly include:
. smaller size

. smaller footprint on a printed circuit boa

. better electrical signal integrity; a

. easier attachment to a printed circuit bo

The following diagram presents the basic compoparts of a fine-pitch BGA package:
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B-Stage Epoxy \\
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Triarine Substrate

Solder Ball Gold Wire
The following table presents the ball-count, degiwh and end-user applications of organic substoased packages we currently

assemble:

Package Connections  Description End-User Applications

Mini BGA 36-400 Low-cost and space-saving assembly designed for Memory, analog, flash memory, ASICs, radio
low input/output count, suitable for semiconductors frequency devices, personal digital assistantfjlae
that require a smaller package size than standard handsets, communication products, notebook
BGA computers, wireless systel

Fine-Pitch BGA 54-90 Our patented design for DRAM products that requireNotebook computers, cellular handsets, gl
high performance and chip scale package (CSP)  positioning systems, personal digital assistants,

wireless system

Very Thin Fine-Pitch BGA 48-176 Similar structure of Mini BGA package with thinner Handheld devices, notebook computers, disk drives,
and finer ball pitch that is designed for use inide wireless and mobile communication products
variety of applications requiring small size, high
reliability and low unit cos

Land Grid Array (LGA) 44-52 Thinner and lighter assembly designed essential to Disk drives, memory controllers, wireless, mobile
standard BGA without solder balls, suitable for communication products
applications that require high electrical perforice

Multi-Chip BGA 48-137 Designed for assembly of two or more memory chipdNotebook computers, digital cameras, pers:
(to increase memory density) or combinations of  digital assistants, global positioning systems; sub
memory and logic chips in one BGA pack: notebooks, board processors, wireless sys

Stacked-Chip BGA 48-137 Designed for assembly of two or more memory chipsCellular handsets, digital cameras, personal digita

or logic and memory chips in one CSP, reducing theassistants, wireless systems, notebook computers,
space required for memory chi global positioning systen

38



Table of Contents

Wafer Level CSP

T Backside coatineg
Siwafer

O O O )

Wafer-level CSP (WL CSP) is the technology of paifg an integrated circuit at wafer level. WL CSRessentially a true chip scale
package (CSP) technology, since the resulting peelsapractically of the same size as the die. VAP®as the ability to enable true
integration of wafer fab, packaging, test, and kiarat wafer level in order to streamline the maatifiring process undergone by a device stal
from silicon wafer to customer shipment.

Most other kinds of packaging does wafer dicingtfiand then puts the individual die in a plastickage and attaches the solder bumps
WL CSP involves the RDL, wafer solder bumping, whstill in the wafer, and then wafer dicing. Betselif WL CSP compare to general CSP
package assembly include:

. ultimate smaller package si:

. smaller footprint on a printed circuit boa

. very short circuit connection; ai

. cost effective packaging solution for small It

Package Connection: Description End-User Applications

WL CSP 8-30 Very small package size (identical to die size), Memory, ASICs, MEMS devices, controllers, for
suitable for the low pin count and require the $mal  mobile phone, tablet, ultra book computer product.
package size applicatio

FC CSP

compound

Soldeving joint

Flip-chip chip scale package (FC CSP) construdtitiizes the flip chip bumping (with solder bump®u pillar bump) interconnection
technology to replace the standard wirebond intareot. It allows for a smaller form factor due tiveroop reduction and area array bumping
FC CSP includes the substrate or leadframe typgisnimaking an attractive option for advanced @gplication when electrical performance
is a critical factor.

. Excellent electrical performance, very low intergent parasitics and inductance compare to wire el
. High electrical current endurance (Cu pillar burmggal for high power solutior
. Smaller package form factor by reducing the wi@ltieight and wire span compared to conventionahwind packags

Package Connections  Description End-User Applications
FC CSP 8-100 Superior electrical performance, sma Power device, RF, Logic/Analog devi
form factor. wireless or portable applicatia
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LCD and Other Flat-Panel Display Driver Semicondurs and Gold Bumping

We also offer testing and assembly services for 28D other flat-panel display driver semiconduct@/s employ TCP, COF and COG
technologies for testing and assembling LCD anerdfilat-panel display driver semiconductors. Iniéidd, we offer gold bumping services to
our customers.

Tape Carrier Package (TCP) Technology

TCPs offer a high number of inputs and outputsimmpackage profile and a smaller footprint on ¢hreuit board, without compromising
performance. Key package features include surfamentrtechnology design, fine-pitch tape format alde carrier handling. Because of their
flexibility and high number of inputs and output&Ps are primarily employed either for STN-LCD d¥TFLCD driver semiconductors.

Testing of TCP3Ne conduct full function testing of LCD and oth&tfpanel display driver semiconductors with a &icdesigned
probe handler to ensure reliable contact to thieptds on the TCP tape. We can test STN-LCD or LED-driver semiconductors with
frequencies of up to 750 MHz and at voltages upOd. The test is performed in a temperature-colgroénvironment with the device in tape
form. The assembled and tested LCD and other #atpdisplay driver semiconductors in tape formmreked between spacer tapes together
with a desiccant in an aluminum bag to avoid candacing shipment.

Assembly of TCP3.CPs use a tape-automated bonding process to daffireand tape. The printed circuit tape is shipwét a reel. The
reel is then placed onto an inner lead bonder, evtier LCD or other flat-panel display driver semidoctor is configured onto the printed
circuit tape. The resulting TCP component congiftie device interconnected to a thtager tape, which includes a polyimide carrier filam
epoxy-based adhesive layer and a metal layer. dpermetallization area of the interconnectionmiplated over a metal layer. The silicon
chip and inner lead area is encapsulated with la teimperature thermoset polymer after inner leadilng. The back face of the chip is left un-
sealed for thermal connection to the printed ctrboird.

For the limitation of inner lead pitch (>41um) withis kind of package, the volume of TCP nowadastheen trending down to ~1% of
total demand.

The following diagram presents the basic componeiésTCP:

Chip-on-Film (COF) Technology

In 2001, we commenced testing and assembly serugiag COF technology. We have developed this ety technology from our
existing TCP technology, and it has been widelyepted by our customers. The primary use of the @©#ule is to replace the liquid crystal
module, or LCM, in certain applications. LCM is migi employed in handheld electronics, such as P&#cellular handsets.

COF technology provides several additional advadagor example, COF is able to meet the size,hwaigd higher resolution
requirements in electronic products, such as fetepdisplays. This is because of its structuralgie including an adhesive-free thayer tape
that is highly flexible, bending strength and igpacity to receive finer patterning pitch.

COF package has been using for large-size andreggiution panel display nowadays, referring tottead of the last several years, the
avg. inner lead pitch of COF package went downsion2 with about 40% of market share. 22 um inned [@ch of COF package has been
released to mass production in these two years.
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The following diagram presents the basic componeinésCOF:

Gold Bump

Inne Lea‘gﬁ?:f:?‘ [T_IC Chlp_ :

'
Base Film Pl Tape

The TCP and COF processes involve the followingste

Chip Probing
Wafer Lapping

Die Saw

Inner Lead Bondini
Potting

Potting Cure
Marking

Final Testing

Inspection and Packin

Screen out the defect chips which fail to meetdinice spec

Wafers are grounded to their required thickn

Wafers are cut into individual dies, or chips, regaration for inner lead bondir

An inner lead bonder machine connects the chipagtinted circuit tape

The package is dispensed a re

The potting cure process matures the resin usedgltire potting oven with high temperatur
A laser marker is used to provide product iderdifion.

To verify device spec. within electrical testingesifassembly proces

Each individual die with tape is visually inspecteddefects. The dies are packed within a reel art
aluminum bag after completion of the inspectioncess.

Chip-on-Glass (COG) Technology

COG technology is an electronic assembly technotbgyis used increasingly in assembling LCD armoflat-panel display driver
semiconductors for communications equipment. Coatpso the traditional bonding process for TCP oiFCthe new COG technology
requires lower bonding temperature. In additior, #OG technology reduces assembly cost as it datasse tapes for interconnection betweel
the LCD panel and the printed circuit board. Théamapplication of COG products is on TEIGD display of smart phone market, it integr:
source, gate driver of TFT-LCD driver IC and Timi@gntroller IC into one chip, so the output chariaéarger than TCP or COF products.

The COG assembly technology involves the followsteps:

Chip Probing

Wafer Lapping

Die Saw

Auto Optical Inspectio
Pick and Place
Inspection and Packin

Bumping

To screen out the defect chips which fail to mbetdevice spet

Wafers are ground to their required thickn

Wafers are cut into individual dies, or chips, negaration for the pick and place proce
Process of wafer inspection is detecting defestfmarate chips at pick and place stal
Each individual die is picked and placed into gpdhay.

Each individual die in a tray is visually or auttspected for defects. The dies are packed witliaya
into an aluminum bag after completion of the insjpecprocess

We also offer bumping services to our customers.

Gold bumping technology, which can be used in TCBF and COG technologies, is a necessary interctiongechnology for LCD ar
other flat-panel display driver semiconductors. Mpsd bumping services are performed on eightvahte-inches wafers. Gold bumping
technology provides the best solution for finedpithips and is able to meet the highly efficierttdarction requirement for LCD and other flat-
panel display driver semiconductors or other cktiyas require thin packaging profiles. In additiortthe gold bumping, we also offer the
WLCSP, Cu RDL and Cu pillar service which can bpliggl for FC CSP and/or QFN package. The produmpedncludes but is not limited to

flash and power devices.
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The gold bumping fabrication process uses thin filetal deposition, photolithography and electrjating technologies. A series of
barrier and seed metal layers are deposited oeesutiace of the wafer. A layer of thick photoremigterial is spin-coated over these barrier
and seed layers. A photomask is used to patteriotiagions over each of the bond pads that wilbbbmped. UV exposure and developing
processes open the photoresist material, whicinelethe bump shape. The gold bump is then eleataxpbver the pad and the deposited
barrier metal layers. Once the plating is completseries of etching steps are used to removehibt@sist material and the metal layers that
are covering the rest of the wafer. The gold bumgtgets the underlying materials from being etcfidtk gold bumped wafers will go through
an annealing furnace to soften the gold bumpg tbdi hardness requirement of TCP, COF and COGrdsgerocesses.

Other Services
Drop Shipment

We offer drop shipment of semiconductors direatleihd-users designated by our customers. We pravajeshipment services,
including assembly in customer-approved and brahdees, to a majority of our testing and assembbitamers. Since drop shipment
eliminates the additional step of inspection bydhstomer prior to shipment to enders, quality of service is a key to successfopdhipmer
service. We believe that our ability to succesgfaitecute our full range of services, includingmshipment services, is an important factor in
maintaining existing customers as well as attrgctiew customers.

Software Development, Conversion and Optimizatia@am

We work closely with our customers to provide sgfibated software engineering services, includasg program development,
conversion and optimization, and related hardwaggh. Generally, testing requires customizedrtigstoftware and related hardware to be
developed for each particular product. Softwareftisn initially provided by the customer and themeerted by us at our facilities for use on
one or more of our testing machines and containgn@functionality depending on the specified itggtprocedures. Once a conversion test
program has been developed, we perform correlatimhtrial tests on the semiconductors.

Customer feedback on the test results enablesadjust the conversion test programs prior to d¢asting. We also typically assist our
customers in collecting and analyzing the testltesund recommend engineering solutions to imptbe& design and production process.

Customers
We believe that the following factors have beem aiil continue to be, important factors in attiagtand retaining customers:
. our advanced testing and assembly technolo
. our strong capabilities in testing and assembli@@pland other fle-panel display driver semiconducto
. our focus on hig-density memory products and logic/mi-signal communications products; &
. our reputation for high quality and reliable custs-focused service:

The number of our customers as of March 31, in @&@012, 2013 and 2014, respectively, was 85,r&D88. Our top 15 customers in
terms of revenue in 2013 were (in alphabetical Qrde

Elite Semiconductor Memory Technology Inc.
Etron Technology, Inc.

Fidelix Co., Ltd.

Himax Technologies, Inc.

ILI TECHNOLOGY CORP.

Integrated Circuit Solution Inc.

Macronix International Co., Ltd.

Micron Technology, Inc., or Micron

Novatek Microelectronics Corp., or Novatek
Orise Technology Co., Ltd.

Raydium Semiconductor Corporation
Renesas Electronics Corporation

Spansion LLC

Winbond Electronics Corporation, or Winbond
Zentel Electronics Corp.
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In 2012, our largest customer was Novatek, ourrsgdargest customer was Micron and our third-largestomer was Winbond
accounting for approximately 21%, 14% and 8% ofrewenue, respectively. In 2013, our largest customas Novatek, our second-largest
customer was Micron and our third-largest custowes Winbond accounting for approximately 20%, 15% &% of our revenue,
respectively.

The majority of our customers purchase our senticesigh purchase orders and provide us three-mmamkbinding rolling forecasts on
a monthly basis. The price for our services isdgfly agreed upon at the time when a purchase sq#aced.

In 2006 and 2007, we strategically entered intextended certain long-term agreements with sonoeiokey customers, including a
reputable memory customer based in the US, undehwire reserved capacity for the customers primpanid the customer committed to pl.
orders in the amount of the reserved capacity (whisubject in certain cases to reduction by tistamer).

Pursuant to the long-term service agreement we datered into with ProMOS in July 2007, ProMOS agdrto provide us with six
month rolling forecast on testing and assemblyisergrders to be placed to us, and ProMOS guaratitee such orders will represent no less
than certain percentage of ProMOS’ total productiolume of these products (excluding OEM produdtsjlanuary 2008, at the request of
ProMOS, we agreed to permit ProMOS to defer payrokaggregate service fees of NT$450 million tofaeby 15, 2009. The deferred sen
fees, bore an interest at a rate of 4.69% per anmas recorded as long-term accounts receivable§@scember 31, 2007, and were paid in
full by ProMOS in March and April 2008. In March@8 ProMOS failed to place orders in the amourihefreserved capacity and failed to
meet its payment obligations under the long-termise agreement. In November 2008, we enteredamvised subcontracting contract with
ProMOS by requiring ProMOS to provide wafers withadue of 80% of the subcontracting fee as colédtén May 2009, a further revised
subcontracting contract was entered into by andidsn us and ProMOS under which ProMOS provideditiswafer as pledge and Work-In-
Process, or WIP and existing finished goods asrfiaterial. Part of ProMOS’ receivables will be reexed through sales of the pledged wafer
and lien material back to ProMOS with a discountarket price, and the remaining outstanding acsorgteivables will be secured by
equipment mortgage under the same contract arrasgeEffective March 2009, we started to requespayment from ProMOS. As of
December 31, 2009, other receivables from ProMOGSuauted to NT$409 million and 100% allowance was enlagl ChipMOS Taiwan.

NT$7 million was received by April 2010. Under tamended subcontracting contract, ProMOS paid ChigM@iwan NT$200 million it

May 2010. The remaining NT$202 million was paichine monthly installments with final installmentypaent ended on March 15, 2011. As
of December 31, 2010, ChipMOS Taiwan received NB&3dlion and the related allowance of NT$409 roitliwas reversed to other non-
operating income. In March 2011, all payments Haeen received. The collection term was revisedtdd&/s upon delivery in May 2010, to
45 days upon delivery in October 2010 and to thieeoti term of advance payment prior to deliveryrfrBroMOS in June 2011.

As of December 31, 2009, other receivables fronM¥8 amounted to NT$55 million and 100% allowances weade by ThaiLin. In
June 2010, ThailLin agreed a settlement with ProNtOSe amount of NT$24 million and it was collecthating the same year. The allowance
of NT$24 million was reversed to other non-opemgiimcome. Commencing in June 2010, the collecomtwas revised to become 30 days
upon delivery. In January 2011, the collection tevas revised to 45 days after delivery and it waher revised to request advance payment:
from ProMOS in June 2011.

Pursuant to the long-term service agreement we batered into with Spansion in September 2005, Sparagreed to provide us with
six month rolling forecast on testing and assensklyice orders to be placed to us. In January 28p&nsion defaulted on its payment
obligations under the long-term service agreemedtvee subsequently terminated the long-term semagreement with Spansion on
February 19, 2009. Our service fee receivable f&gansion in connection with its default amounteNT$1,539 million. On March 1, 2009,
Spansion filed for a voluntary petition for reorgaation under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy €&lbsequent to such filing, on
March 16, 2009, ChipMOS Taiwan was elected as thehairman of the Unsecured Creditor Committeeepyesent unsecured creditors in
Spansion’s efforts to reorganize its debts undexp@¥r 11 petition. In early January 2010, ChipMGB~EN resigned as a member of the
Unsecured Creditor Committee.
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On January 25, 2010, ChipMOS Taiwan entered irdefmitive Transfer of Claim Agreement to sell td@igroup the general unsecured
claim reflected in the proof of claim against Spandnc., Spansion Technology LLC, Spansion LLCasgion International Inc. and Cerium
Laboratories LLC (collectively, “Spansion”) filed/lChipMOS Taiwan in U.S. Bankruptcy Court. The mighat is the subject of the Transfer
of Claim Agreement includes accounts receivabladsting and assembly services provided to Spamsitve amount of approximately US$
million to US$70 million (the “Undisputed Claim"ThipMOS Taiwan received the purchase price fotthdisputed Claim of NT$1,118
million in February 2010 from Citigroup. The Traesbf Claim Agreement also includes the sale oatheof contract and liquidated damages
rights against Spansion in the amount of approxétydd S$234 million (the “Damages Claim”). The puask price for the Damages Claim is
expected to be an amount that will be determinegdb@n a purchase rate of 50.2% multiplied by tréign of the Damages Claim that is
allowed by a final adjudication of the U.S. BankieypCourt. The purchase price for the Damages Cisipayable to ChipMOS Taiwan to the
extent that the Court allows this claim. In furtiiece of the Transfer of Claim Agreement, the Comzdso has entered into an agreement to
subscribe for, purchase and transfer to Citigrogipts offering shares to be issued by Spansionrdoupto the Second Amended Joint Plan of
Reorganization filed in U.S. Bankruptcy Court. Tagreement provides that Citigroup will pay to @@mpany the amount of the rights
offering shares purchase price. On October 4, 20h(pMOS Taiwan entered into a settlement agreemé@htSpansion LLC for the general
unsecured claim on breach of contract and liquitideemages rights reflected in the proof of clainaji@ No. 5, against Spansion Inc.,
Spansion Technology LLC, Spansion LLC, Spansioarh@tional Inc. and Cerium Laboratories LLC filgd@hipMOS Taiwan in the U.S.
Bankruptcy Court. In October 2010, the Companyrkasived payment of NT$2,118 million for the Traarséf Claim Agreement to Citigrou

On April 22, 2010, the Company announced that 9parid.C and ChipMOS Taiwan entered into a two-ywafer sort services
agreement, utilizing the V5400 test platform, mgkLhipMOS Taiwan Spansion’s exclusive wafer sobiceumtractor, except for any sort
equipment operated by Spansion LLC or currentlaied at Spansion Japan Limited. The wafer soricanagreement became effective upor
the effective date of Spansion’s confirmed planemirganization. The U.S. Bankruptcy Court confirnggghnsion’s Second Amended Plan of
Reorganization on April 16, 2010. The effectiveedat Spansion’s plan of reorganization is May 1.2 The wafer sort services agreement
became effective on May 10, 2010 and has since tegmwed twice for expiring in 2016.

Beginning in 2008, we also resumed a focus on aainess with smaller customers and customers whwtiplace orders on a regular
basis.

The following table sets forth, for the periodsigaded, the percentage breakdown of our reventegoezed by geographic region basec
on the jurisdiction in which each customer is hegdttpred.

Year ended December 31

2012 2013
Taiwan 71% 2%
Singapore 14 15
United State: 7 4
Japar 3 3
Korea 2 3
Hong Kong SAF 2 1
Others 1 2
Total 100% 100%

Qualification and Correlation by Customers

Our customers generally require that our facilitieslergo a stringent “qualification” process duriagich the customer evaluates our
operations, production processes and product iyalincluding engineering, delivery control atekting capabilities. The qualification
process typically takes up to eight weeks, or londepending on the requirements of the custonwartdst qualification, after we have been
qualified by a customer and before the customeéveisl semiconductors to us for testing in volumpracess known as “correlation” is
undertaken. During the correlation process, théoousr provides us with test criteria; informati@garding process flow and sample
semiconductors to be tested and either providegithsthe test program or requests that we develogvaor conversion program. In some
cases, the customer also provides us with a dgtafloesults of any testing of the semiconductat the customer may have conducted
previously. The correlation process typically takpso two weeks, but can take longer dependinthemequirements of the customer.
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Sales and Marketing

We maintain sales and marketing offices in TaivMainland China and the United States. Our saleswantteting strategy is to focus on
memory semiconductors in Taiwan, Japan, Korea laadJhited States, logic/mixed-signal semicondudiiBaiwan, Japan and the United
States, LCD and other flat-panel display driver isemductors in Japan, Taiwan, Hong Kong and Maithi@hina. As of March 31, 2014, our
sales and marketing efforts were primarily caroetiby teams of sales professionals, applicati@ineers and technicians, totaling 35 staff
members. Each of these teams focuses on specifiornars and/or geographic regions. As part of mphasis on customer service, these
teams:

. actively participate in the design process at thstamer’ facilities;

. resolve customer testing and assembly issues

. promote timely and individualized resolutions tetmmer’ issues

We conduct marketing research through our in-hauséomer service personnel and through our relsttips with our customers and
suppliers to keep abreast of market trends anda@wents. Furthermore, we do product and systemtberarking analyses to understand the
application and assembly technology evolution, aghnalysis on mobile handsets and CD-/DVD-ROMgi& In addition, we regularly
collect data from different segments of the semdemtor industry and, when possible, we work closghp our customers to design and

develop testing and assembly services for their p@ducts. These “co-development” or “sponsorspigjects can be critical when customers
seek large-scale, early market entry with a sigaift new product.

We have appointed a non-exclusive sales agentréongting our services for memory semiconductotheéUnited States, Japan and
Korea. Our sales agent helps us promote and mauketervices, maintain relations with our existamgl potential customers and communicate
with our customers on quality, specific requirenseantd delivery issues. We generally pay our sajeataa commission of 1.0% to 3.5% of our
revenue from services for memory semiconductothérlJnited States, Japan and Korea. In 2012 an8, 204 paid approximately NT$5
million and NT$9 million (US$302 thousand), respesly, in commissions to our sales agent.

Research and Development

To maintain our competitive edge for continued bass growth, we continue our focus of our investritenew technology research and
development. In 2012 and 2013, we spent approxIynBE$505 million, or 3% and NT$565 million (US$h8illion), or 3%, respectively, of
our revenue on research and development. We intesigistain these efforts.

Our research and development efforts have beersédcprimarily on new technology instruction, imgrayefficiency and production
yields of our testing and assembly services. Fiiam to time, we jointly develop new technologieshAidcal and international reseal
institutions and universities. In testing area, @mgearch and development efforts focused partiguta high speed probing, fine pitch probing
capability and wafer level burn-in technology. @uojects include:

. Grew wafer level BIST testing capabilit

. Developec®one touchdown full contact testing capability f@02nm and 300mm wafe”;
. Ramped up high frequency testing capability for LI

. Built up fine pitch testing capability for 12um bprpitch products; an

. Developing centralized server test control syst

In bumping and assembly areas, our research aredogenent efforts were directed to

. Low-cost alloy wire bonding alternatives for Cu wiretdp

. Au height reduction, as part of cost reduction @ritOum bump height COF package was releaseddduption;
. Wafel-level chip scale packaging and Cu RDL proces

. Flip-chip QFN for power IC application

. Cu pillar bumping and assemb

. MEMS packages for mobile device

. Multi-chip assembly and module of flash products for 888eMMC applications

. Stackerdie chip scale packag
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. Thin wafer lapping and dicing
. Advanced thin core/co-free substrate for thin packages; i
. Qualified thermally enhanced COF and MCB (metal posite bump) COF and released for manufactu

For new product and product enhancement work i 26ar work concentrates on three key developmegrams: WLCSP, MEMS ar
flip chip technology. In the bumping area, we coet@dl customer qualification of 300mm wafer Au bumgpprocess in 2012 and started
volume production in Q4, 2012. Development of Catipg enables the entry of WLCSP, RDL and flip cmgrket. Turnkey services of
WLCSP and flip chip QFN have been implemented fassnproduction in 2013 based on the successfultémyy developments. In 2012, we
also initiated both 200mm and 300mm Cu pillar bumgpgngineering work and, related packaging tectyietoare being developed for mixed-
signal and memory products in 2013.

In 2013, in-process engineering advancement allayveetd extend our wirebond technology to serviceM@Hroducts. To further
achieve cost reduction, alloy wire and 0.6 mil Awelsond processes were also developed. In 2014illveontinue to work on improvements
of wafer thinning and polishing operations factiitahe expansion of multi-chip NAND packages offgs. Capability of handling miniature
molded packages has been extended to 1x1 mm sizeasious improvements will also be made in promuncequipment to enhance
throughput and efficiency.

As of March 31, 2014, we employed 353 employeeaniinresearch and development activities. In additibher management and
operational personnel are also involved in reseanchdevelopment activities but are not separadelytified as research and development
professionals.

We maintain laboratory facilities capable for matisrand electrical characterizations to suppartipction and new product
development. Computer simulation is used to vadideith mechanical and electrical models in comparie measurement results.
Enhancement of Shadow Moiré and Micro Moiré equipieas carried out to support MCP and flip chipkzaye warpage and residue stress
characterization. In Advanced Packaging Lab, riggplmeasurement capability was established, aimegpending capability for material
selection and inspection to support flip chip idotion and various resin characterizations. A aealytical laboratory has been builted out in
our bumping line providing timely support to martfaing operations.

Quality Control

We believe that our reputation for high quality aatiable services have been an important factattiacting and retaining leading
international semiconductor companies as custofoeiaur testing and assembly services. We are ctteanio delivering semiconductors that
meet or exceed our customers’ specifications or &imd at a competitive cost. We maintain qualitytiend staff at each of our facilities.

As of March 31, 2014, we employed 389 personnebtorquality control activities. Our quality contsiaff typically includes engineers,
technicians and other employees who monitor testimjassembly processes in order to ensure highyqiWee employ quality control
procedures in the following critical areas:

. sales quality assurance: following market trendartiicipate custome’ future needs

. design quality assurance: when developing newngstnd assembly process

. supplier quality assurance: consulting with ourg-term suppliers

. manufacturing quality assurance: through a compr&lie monitoring program during mass productiord

. service quality assurance: quickly and effectivelyponding to custome¢ claims after completion of sal

All of our facilities have obtained ISO/TS 1694%tjty system certification. In addition, our fatiéis in Hsinchu and Tainan have been

ISO 9002 certified in September 1997 and Decem®88 lrespectively and recertified with ISO 9001 dabstantial revision since 2000.
ThaiLin and ChipMOS Shanghai also obtained ISO/E$49 quality system certification in September 2808 January 2006, respectively.

ISO/TS 16949 certification system seeks to integeaiality management standards into the operafiarcompany, and emphasizes the
supervision and measurement of process and penfaenadn ISO 9002 certification is required by maoyntries for sales of industrial
products.

46



Table of Contents

In addition to the quality management system, e ahrned the 1998 QC Group Award from The Chigeséety of Quality, which is
equivalent to the similar award from the Americacity of Quality. In 2003, ChipMOS passed SONY &@r@artner (Tier 2) certification
through its ProMOS channel, and in 2009, ChipMOtioled SONY Green Partner (Tier 1) certificatiore da its direct business relationship
with SONY. ChipMOS Shanghai also obtained SONY @reartner (Tier 2) certification through its ISSlaninel in 2008. Our laboratories
have also been awarded Chinese National Laboratmmeditation under the categories of reliabilstt electricity and temperature calibrati

Our testing and assembly operations are carriethaléan rooms where air purity, temperature amaiidity are controlled. To ensure
the stability and integrity of our operations, waintain clean rooms at our facilities that meet.Ue8eral 209E class 100, 1,000, 10,000 and
100,000 standards. A class 1,000 clean room messmacontaining less than 1,000 particles of cmitiants per cubic foot.

We have established manufacturing quality contysteams that are designed to ensure lgjghlity services to our customers and mair
reliability and high production yields at our fatids. We employ specialized equipment for manuwfiany quality and reliability control,
including:

. Joint Electron Device Engineering Council (JEDE@nsgardized temperature cycling, thermal shockmrdsure cook reliability
tests;

. high and low temperature storage life tests, teatpee humidity bias test and highly acceleratedpenature/humidity stress test
(HAST); and

. high resolution scanning acoustic tomography, sicanelectronic microscope and X-Ray microscopydioysical failure analysis,
curve tracer and se-probe station for electrical failure analys

In addition, to enhance our performance and owareh and development capabilities, we also irstalseries of high-cost equipment,
such as temperature humidity bias testers, low ¢ézatpre storage-life testers and highly accelerstiess testers. We believe that many of oul
competitors do not own this equipment.

As a result of our ongoing focus on quality, in 20Wve achieved monthly assembly yields of an aved®9.95% for our memory and
logic/mixed-signal assembly packages, 99.97% forGDF packages, 99.92% for our COG packages a®®@for our bumping products.
The assembly yield, which is the industry standardneasuring production yield, is equal to the bemof integrated circuit packages that are
shipped back to customers divided by the numbérdi¥idual integrated circuits that are attachetetadframes or organic substrate.

Raw Materials

Semiconductor testing requires minimal raw matsridlbstantially all of the raw materials usedunmemory and logic/mixed-signal
semiconductor assembly processes are interconraetials such as leadframes, organic substratebwge and molding compound. Raw
materials used in the LCD and other ftatrel display driver semiconductor testing andrabe process include carrier tape, resin, spaqas,
plastic reel, aluminum bags, and inner and outgedoCost of raw materials represented 25% and &3%ar revenue in 2012 and 2013,
respectively.

We do not maintain large inventories of leadfranmeganic substrates, gold wire or molding compoumd,generally maintain sufficient
stock of each principal raw material for approxietgione month’s production based on blanket ordatsrolling forecasts of near-term
requirements received from customers. In addisimge the commencement of economic downturn inrekeqaarter of 2008, due to the
volatility of the semiconductor market, severabaf principal suppliers have also ceased to stoekritories to be reserved to meet its
customersproduction requirements. Instead, our suppliers rexuire longer lead time for delivery of our supptders. Shortage in the sup
of materials experienced by the semiconductor itrgiave in the past resulted in price adjustmedts. principal raw material supplies have
not been impacted by the Japan earthquake andntsgatastrophe. See “ltem 3. Key Information—Risicters—Risks Relating to Our
Business—If we are unable to obtain raw materiats@her necessary inputs from our suppliers imaly and cost-effective manner, our
production schedules would be delayed and we negydastomers and growth opportunities and becossepi®fitable” for a discussion of the
risks associated with our raw materials purchasiethods. For example, with the exception of alummirnags and inner and outer boxes,
which we acquire from local sources, the raw maletised in our TCP/COF process and for modulestziggned from a limited number of
Japanese suppliers.
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Competition

The independent testing and assembly markets ayecempetitive. Our competitors include large IDMgh in-house testing and
assembly capabilities and other independent semictiar testing and assembly companies, espechaiietoffering vertically integrated
testing and assembly services, such as Advanceét@eathctor Engineering Inc., Amkor Technology, If¢hipbond Technology Corporatic
King Yuan Electronics Co., Ltd., Powertech Techggltnc., Siliconware Precision, STATS ChipPAC Lathd United Test and Assembly
Center Ltd. We believe that the principal measofeompetitiveness in the independent semiconduesiing industry are:

. engineering capability of software developme
. quality of service

. flexibility;

. capacity;

. production cycle time; an

. price.

In assembly services, we compete primarily on dmof:

. production yield

. production cycle time

. process technology, including our COF technologyLf6D and other fle-panel display driver semiconductor assembly sesy

. quality of service

. capacity;

. location; anc

. price.

IDMs that use our services continually evaluatepmrformance against their ownhieuse testing and assembly capabilities. These |

may have access to more advanced technologiesraatkgfinancial and other resources than we dob®eve, however, that we can offer
greater efficiency and lower costs while maintagnam equivalent or higher level of quality for threasons:

. firstly, we offer a broader and more complex ranfservices as compared to the IDMs, which tenid¢os their resources on
improving their fron-end operations

. secondly, we generally have lower unit costs bexzafi®ur higher utilization rates and thus enablisdo operate at a more cost-
effective structure compared to the IDMs; ¢

. finally, we offer a wider range of services in terof complexity and technolog

Intellectual Property

As of March 31, 2014, we held 419 patents in TaiwlatY patents in the United States, 226 patertseifPeople’s Republic of China and
1 patent in the United Kingdom, France and Germeasspectively, relating to various semiconductstitgy and assembly technologies. These
patents will expire at various dates through to20%8 of March 31, 2014, we also had a total op2ading patent applications in the United
States, 75 in Taiwan, 62 in the People’s Republickina, 3 in Europe, 3 in Japan, and 3 in the Répwf Korea. In addition, we have
registered “ChipMOS” and its logo and “InPack” emdemarks in Taiwan, and “ChipMOS” and its logdraslemarks in the United States, the
People’s Republic of China, Singapore, Hong Kongrdg, Japan and the European Community.

We expect to continue to file patent applicatiorere appropriate to protect our proprietary techgiels. We may need to enforce our
patents or other intellectual property rights odéfend ourselves against claimed infringemenhefrights of others through litigation, which
could result in substantial costs and a diversioouo resources. See “ltem 3. Key Information—R¥glctors—Risks Relating to Our
Business—Disputes over intellectual property rigtusld be costly, deprive us of technologies nesmgs®r us to stay competitive, render us
unable to provide some of our services and reduceportunities to generate revenue” and “lterRiBancial Information—Legal
Proceedings”.
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Government Regulations

As discussed above under “— Intellectual Propeggifernmental regulation of our intellectual prapenay materially affect our
business. The failure to protect our property sghould deprive us of our ability to stay compeétin the semiconductor industry. Our
intellectual property rights are protected by thievant patent and intellectual property agenciegseoEuropean Community, United States, the
People’s Republic of China, Singapore, Hong Kongrdg, Japan and Taiwan.

Environmental Matters

Semiconductor testing does not generate signifipalititants. The semiconductor assembly processrgtes stationary acid and alkali
and VOC pollution, principally at the plating stagkiquid waste is produced when silicon wafersgaaaind thinner and diced into chips with
the aid of diamond saws and cleaned with runnintgmand during the gold bumping process genergagisrsary acid, alkali, liquid waste and
VOC pollutions. In addition, excess material ordidemes and moldings are removed from assemblaieaductors in the trimming and
dejunking processes, respectively. We have instaifgious types of wastewater and air pollutargattnent equipments at our semiconductor
assembly and gold bumping facilities. Since 2004 have adopted certain environmentally-friendlydoiciion management systems, and hav
implemented certain measures intended to bringssembly process in compliance with the Restriatioddazardous Substances Directive
2002/95/EC issued by the European Union and ouomes's. We believe that we have adopted adequdteféactive environmental protecti
measures that are consistent with semiconductaistngpractices in Taiwan and Mainland China. Idiidn, we believe we are in compliance
in all material respects with current environmetdaals and regulations applicable to our operatams facilities.

All of our facilities in Taiwan and Mainland Chitreve been certified as meeting the ISO 14001 emwviemtal standards of the
International Organization for Standardization, afief our facilities in Taiwan have been furtleertified as meeting the OHSAS18001
standards, of the International Organization fan8ardization. Our facilities at Hsinchu Science&kP@hupei and Southern Taiwan Science
Park have won numerous awards including Green Buijldabel in 2013, health promotion awards graftgdepartment of Health of ROC in
2012, “Safety & Health Performance CertificationitJfrom Council of the Labor Affairs of ROC in 280and 2010. Our bumping facility has
won “Civil Defence Excellent Award” from Hsinchut@iin 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012. We continue tmarage our employees to attend an
participate in community environmental campaigng events to promote and build better environmdniethdly practices.

We will continue to implement programs, measurabsrafated training to reduce industrial waste, savergy and control pollution. In
2001, ChipMOS Taiwan completed a lead-free proceasrol program, which offers a lead-free method semiconductor package, a |degk
plating, a lead-free solder ball and a lead-fréialsdity method and specification. In 2005, Chipl8Ghanghai completed a similar lead-free
process control program. In 2003 and 2008, ChipM@i#an and ChipMOS Shanghai obtained Green Pateréfication from Sony
Corporation of Japan, respectively. The Green Bagrogram requires external suppliers to meet S®KbYeen Partner requirements. In 200¢
and 2013, we further obtained SGS recognition acdived the “Greenhouse Gas Verification Statemamd’“Carbon footprint Verification
Statement”, respectively. The SGS recognitionsraffiur eligibility under the Green Partner programnd more importantly our commitments
towards becoming a green, environmental friendiityerStandardizing on green, “environmentally frity” products, production facilities and
management systems, which has become an indusiny, tand to many companies, is a key criterialiecten of their service providers.

Insurance

We maintain insurance policies on our buildingsjipment and inventories. These insurance poliaercproperty damages due to all
risks, including but not limited to, fire, lightrgnand earthquakes. The maximum coverage of propetyance for ChipMOS Taiwan and
ThailLin is approximately NT$55,745 million and NT$64 million, respectively. ChipMOS Shanghai alsaimains property insurance
policies for a maximum coverage of approximately B&23 million.

Insurance coverage on facilities under construdanaintained by us and our contractors, who atigated to procure necessary
insurance policies and bear the relevant experfaghioh we are the beneficiary. We also maintasuirance on the wafers delivered to us
while these wafers are in our possession and din@mgportation from suppliers to us and from usupcustomers.

Employees
See “Item 6. Directors, Senior Management and Eygals—Employees” for certain information relatingoto employees.
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Taxation

See “ltem 5. Operating and Financial Review andpeots—Taxation” for certain information regardthg effect of PRC and ROC tax
regulations on our operations.

Facilities

We provide testing services through our four féetiin Taiwan and one facility in Shanghai, witledacility at each of the following
locations: Chupei, the Hsinchu Industrial Park, ltsinchu Science Park, the Southern Taiwan SciBack and the Shanghai Qingpu Indust
Zone. We provide assembly services through oulitfaait the Southern Taiwan Science Park and atilifipat the Shanghai Qingpu Industrial
Zone. We own the land for our Hsinchu Industrialk®asting facility and Chupei facility and poss#éss land use right to the land on which
Shanghai Qingpu Industrial Zone facility is locatedil 2052, and, we lease two parcels of landbfarHsinchu Science Park testing facility
with lease expiration in year 2017 and 2027, retspalyg, and two parcels of land for our Southerwian Science Park facility with lease
expiration in year 2017 and 2032.

The following table shows the location, primary asel size of each of our facilities, and the ppatiequipment installed at each facility,
as of March 31, 2014.

gloor Area (m

Location of Facility Primary Use Principal Equipment
Chupei, Hsinchu Testing/Gold Bumping 38,12: 7 steppers

18 sputters

279 tester:
Hsinchu Industrial Park, Taiwan Testing 27,12 97 testers

32 burr-in ovens
Hsinchu Science Park, Taiwan Testing 31,16¢ 143 testers

94 burr-in ovens
Southern Taiwan Science Park, Assembly/Testing 146,18( 781 wire bonders
Taiwan 137 inner-lead bonders

362 tester:
Shanghai Qingpu Industrial Zone, Assembly/Testing 66,817 25 testers
Mainland China 189 wire bonders

23 burr-in ovens
Equipment

Testing of Memory and Logic/Mixed-Signal Semicondaocs

Testing equipment is the most capital-intensive ponent of the memory and logic/mixed-signal semilcmtors testing business. Upon
the acquisition of new testing equipment, we instainfigure, calibrate and perform burn-in diagiotests on the equipment. We also
establish parameters for the testing equipmentbasanticipated requirements of existing and p@boustomers and considerations relating
to market trends. As of March 31, 2014, we operatetitesters for testing memory and logic/mixediaiggemiconductors. We generally seek
to purchase testers with similar functionality theg able to test a variety of different semicondigc We purchase testers from international
manufacturer, Advantest Corporation.

In general, particular semiconductors can be tassety a limited number of specially designed tsst&s part of the qualification
process, customers will specify the machines orchvtiieir semiconductors may be tested. We ofteeldpuest program conversion tools that
enable us to test semiconductors on multiple eqgeifmlatforms. This portability among testers eashils to allocate semiconductor testing
across our available testing capacity and thengipyave capacity utilization rates. If a customeyuiees the testing of a semiconductor that is
not yet fully developed, the customer consigngeissing software programs to us to test specifictions. If a customer specifies testing
equipment that is not widely applicable to othene®nductors we test, we require the customertiaigh the equipment on a consignment
basis.

We will continue to acquire additional testing quuint in the future to the extent market conditjaash generated from operations, the
availability of financing and other factors makeldésirable to do so. Some of the equipment anteckEpare parts that we require have been i
short supply in recent years. Moreover, the equignseonly available from a limited number of vemglor is manufactured in relatively limit
guantities and may have lead time from order tovdsl in excess of six months.
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Assembly of Memory and Logic/Mixed-Signal Semicondetors

The number of wire bonders at a given facilityasntnonly used as a measure of the assembly capdithg facility. Typically, wire
bonders may be used, with minor modifications i@ assembly of different products. We purchase Wwimders principally from Shinkawa
Co., Ltd. and Kulicke & Soffa Industries Inc. Asifrch 31, 2014, we operated 970 wire bondersddit@an to wire bonders, we maintain a
variety of other types of assembly equipment, aagtvafer grinders, wafer mounters, wafer sawshdielers, automated molding machines,
laser markers, solder platers, pad printers, dejimkrimmers, formers, substrate saws and leathecs

Gold Bumping, Testing and Assembly of LCD and OthefFlat-Panel Display Driver Semiconductors

We acquired TCP-related equipment from Sharp ténbegr TCP-related services. We subsequently pgegthadditional TCP-related
testers from Yokogawa Electric Corp. and Advan@stporation and assembly equipment from Shibaurehsiieonics Corp., Shinkawa Co.,
Ltd., Athlete FA Corp., Daitron Electron Corp. aGi#iM Corp. As of March 31, 2014, we operated 7 séepfand 18 sputters for gold
bumping, 137 inner-lead bonders for assembly ardt@&ters for LCD and other flat-panel display drisemiconductors. We are currently in
the process of purchasing additional testing egaipnirhe testing equipment can be used for the TCH; and COG processes, while the
inner-lead bonders are only used in the TCP and @Oéesses. The same types of wafer grinding,\@afer mount and die saw equipment is
used for the TCP, COF and COG processes. In adddiato inspection machines and manual work aré msthe COG process, which is more
labor-intensive than the TCP and COF processes.

Iltem 4A. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable.

Item 5. Operating and Financial Review and Prospect

This discussion and analysis should be read inuomtipn with our consolidated financial statemeantd related notes contained in this
Annual Report on Form 20-F.

Overview

We provide a broad range of back-end testing sesyincluding wafer probing and final testing ofmay and logic/mixed-signal
semiconductors. We also offer a broad selectideadframe-based and organic substrate-based paakagmbly services for memory and
logic/mixed-signal semiconductors. Our advancedfleane-based packages include thin small outlinkages, or TSOPs, and our advanced
organic substrate-based packages include fine-patitgrid array, or fine-pitch BGA, packages. bidéion, we provide gold bumping, testing
and assembly services for LCD and other flatel display driver semiconductors by employind®TCOF and COG technologies. In 2013,
consolidated revenue was NT$19,362 million (US$6dlflon) and our profit for the year attributable e¢quity holders of the Company was
NT$1,335 million (US$45 million)
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We are a holding company, incorporated in Bermudawgust 1, 2000. We provide most of our servitesugh our majority-owned
subsidiary, ChipMOS Taiwan, and its subsidiaried imwestees. ChipMOS Taiwan was incorporated ima&aiin July 1997 as a joint venture
company of Mosel and Siliconware Precision and withparticipation of other investors. Following ttompletion of the share exchange
transaction between ChipMOS Bermuda and ChipMO®dmion September 14, 2007, ChipMOS Taiwan becawigodly-owned subsidiary
of ChipMOS Bermuda. In February 2010, we agreesktbl5.8% of ChipMOS Taiwag’outstanding shares to Siliconware Precision.sHae
purchase transaction was completed in January Z&lpart of ChipMOS Taiwas'listing plan on the TWSE, on April 16, 2013, vaarpletec
the sale of 6.5 million outstanding ChipMOS Taivamares or 0.8% of the total number of ChipMOS Talwautstanding shares, at the price
of NT$15.0 per share to ChipMOS Taiwan’s underwsifer the TWSE listing plan and to certain othérsluding non-US employees of
ChipMOS Taiwan. Also, from September 2, 2013 tooBet 3, 2013, we completed another sale of 18@amidutstanding ChipMOS Taiwan
shares or 21.4% of the total number of ChipMOS Baiw outstanding shares, at the price of NT$20tGhpare to investors. As of March 31,
2014, we owned approximately 523 million ChipMOSwan shares, representing 62.1% of ChipMOS Taiwantstanding shares. On
April 9, 2014, ChipMOS Bermuda sold approximatel$ fillion ChipMOS Taiwan shares as “green shoefampto market investors. As of
the date of this Annual Report on Form 20-F, wetiome to own approximately 522 million or 60.4%CifiipMOS Taiwan shares. Seiéem 3.
Key Information—Risk Factors—Risk Relating to Ouwr@orate Structure—ChipMOS Taiwanability to maintain its listing and trading sts
on the Taiwan Stock Exchange is dependent on faotatiside of the Company or ChipMOS Taiwan’s cdrarl satisfaction of stock
exchange requirements. ChipMOS Taiwan may not etatbvercome such factors that disrupt its trgditatus on the main board of Taiwan
Stock Exchange or satisfy other eligibility requirents that may be required of it in the future” dolditional information on ChipMOS
Taiwan'’s listing plan. In Taiwan, we conduct tegtisperations in our facilities at the Hsinchu Scee®ark and the Hsinchu Industrial Park,
gold bumping and wafer testing in our facility diupei, and testing and assembly operations inamilitf at the Southern Taiwan Science
Park. We also conduct operations in Mainland Cktimaugh ChipMOS Shanghai, a wholly-owned subsid@rlylodern Mind. ChipMOS
Shanghai operates a testing and assembly fadilttyeaQingpu Industrial Zone in Shanghai. Throughsubsidiaries, we also have equity
interests in other companies that are engagecisdmiconductor industry. In April 2011, ChipMOSrBeda entered into the MMT
Assignment Agreement with ThaiLin to sell the MMDtds to ThaiLin for a purchase price of approxinyatés$40 million. The MMT
Assignment Agreement transaction was completedaohl@r 3, 2011 and Modern Mind then became the lydoelned subsidiary of ThailLin.
See “Item 4. Information on the Company—Our Streestand History” for more details.

The following key trends are important to underdiag our business:

Capital Intensive Nature of Our Busine&xur operations, in particular our testing operajare characterized by relatively high fixed
costs. We expect to continue to incur substangpteciation and other expenses as a result ofreurqus acquisitions of testing and assembly
equipment and facilities. Our profitability deperidgart not only on absolute pricing levels for gervices, but also on capacity utilization
rates for our testing and assembly equipment. ttigodar, increases or decreases in our capadityation rates could significantly affect our
gross margins since the unit cost of testing asdrably services generally decreases as fixed aoswllocated over a larger number of units.

The current generation of advanced testers typicatt between US$1 million and US$5 million eaghile wire bonders used in
assembly typically cost approximately US$68 thodsaach and inner-lead bonders for TCP and COF ddgewmst approximately US$360
thousand each and COG chip sorters cost approXyrlag&$220 thousand each. We begin depreciatinggquipment when it is placed into
commercial operation. There may be a time lag betwbe time when our equipment is placed into cormiaeoperation and when it achieves
high levels of utilization. In periods of depressemniconductor industry conditions, we may expegdiower than expected demand from our
customers and a sharp decline in the averageggltines of our testing and assembly services/tiegun an increase in depreciation exper
relative to revenue. In particular, the capaciiliaattion rates for our testing equipment may becsely adversely affected during a
semiconductor industry downturn as a result ofttberease in outsourcing demand from integrateccdewanufacturers, or IDMs, which
typically maintain larger in-house testing capatlitsn in-house assembly capacity.
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Highly Cyclical Nature of the Semiconductor IndystThe worldwide semiconductor industry has expeéeinpeaks and troughs over
last decade, with a severe downturn beginningerfdiarth quarter of 2000 that was followed by aokery in early 2003. The significant
decrease in market demand for semiconductors #gsrbin 2000 adversely affected our results ofatfmers for 2001 and 2002. Beginning in
the fourth quarter of 2008, the semiconductor ilgusommenced another significant downturn whichtgwed in 2009 and in 2010. Market
demand for semiconductors significantly decreasedss our industry during these periods, which exblg affected average selling prices for
our services and our results of operations for 22089 and 2010. The impact on our results of djpersiof the decrease in market demand
during these periods was partly offset by increasesir 2009 and 2010 revenue from assembly sexfaelogic/mixed-signal semiconductors
due to higher customer demand for these servic2808 and 2010. The overall outsourced assemblyestithg services for memory and
logic/mixed-signal semiconductors increased grdgwach year since 2010, continuing in 2013. Dupegods of decreased demand for
assembled semiconductors, some of our customerdareno, delay or simplify final testing of certaipes of semiconductors, such as
DRAM, which may further decrease demand and avesatii@eg prices for our services and intensify diificulties related to realizing pricing
levels, capacity utilization rates and gross madgiring these periods.

Declining Average Selling Prices of Our Testing #&s$embly ServiceShe semiconductor industry is characterized byreegd decrea:
in prices for products and services over the coafskeir product and technology life cycles. Thterof decline is particularly steep during
periods of intense competition and adverse maweditions. The average selling prices of our teséind assembly services experienced shat
declines during such periods as a result of intpnse competition from other independent testing assembly companies that attempt to
maintain high capacity utilization levels in thedésof reduced demand.

To offset the effects of decreasing average sefinges, we will continue to seek to:

. improve production efficiency and attain high capaatilization rates

. concentrate on testing of potentially h-demand, hig-growth semiconductor:

. develop new assembly technologies;

. implement new technologies and platforms to shifh potentially higher margin service

Market Conditions for the End-User Applications 8&miconductordMarket conditions in the semiconductor industryatiarge degree,
track those for their end-user applications. Antederation in the market conditions for the en@uapplications of semiconductors that we
test and assemble may reduce demand for our semik in turn, materially adversely affect ouafinial condition and results of operations.
Despite an increase in the demand for mobile/nizRAM in 2010, for DRAMs with more advanced featuseh as that of enhanced graphic
capability, increased power efficiency and incréas®bility, the average market demand for DRAM rerad low since 2010 until 2013. Our
revenue is largely attributable to fees from testind assembling semiconductors for use in pergmmaputers, consumer and portable
electronic products, display applications and comigations equipment. The markets for these prodargtsntensely competitive, and a
significant decrease in demand puts pricing pressuarour testing and assembly services and negasffects our earnings. The oversupply of
DRAM products in the second half of 2007 and thekveemand in the DRAM market in 2008 and in thst fijuarter of 2009 resulted in
significant reductions in the price of DRAM prodsicivhich in turn drove down the average sellinggsifor our testing and assembly service:
for DRAM products from the second half of 2009 aodtinue in 2013.

Change in Product MixDeclines in average selling prices since 2009 e partially offset by a change in our revenue i
particular, revenue from testing and assembly dbla®d other flat-panel display driver semicondusttumping services and 12-inch wafer
processing have increased as a percentage oftalirdeenue over the 2009 to 2013 period. We intermbntinue focusing on testing and
assembling more semiconductors that have the paltémiprovide higher margins and developing arfériafg new technologies in testing and
assembly services, in order to mitigate the effe€tdeclining average selling prices on our abil@yattain profitability.
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Recent Acquisitions

In March 2007, we completed a share purchase agtsption transaction with ChipMOS Taiwan and&itiware Precision, under
which we became a holder of 99.1% of the outstandommon shares of ChipMOS Taiwan. In April 200@,and ChipMOS Taiwan further
entered into a share exchange transaction andgnirsuwhich we agreed to exchange one common $traesery 8.4 ChipMOS Taiwan
shares outstanding. Following the completion ofshare exchange transaction in September 2007 MO pTaiwan became our wholly-
owned subsidiary. In February 2010, we agreedltd5688% of ChipMOS Taiwan’s outstanding shareSiiaconware Precision. The share
purchase transaction was completed in January Z&lpart of ChipMOS Taiwas'listing plan on the TWSE, on April 16, 2013, vaarpletec
the sale of 6.5 million outstanding ChipMOS Taivwamares or 0.8% of the total number of ChipMOS Talwautstanding shares, at the price
of NT$15.0 per share to ChipMOS Taiwan’s underwsiter the TWSE listing plan and to certain oth@sluding non-US employees of
ChipMOS Taiwan. Also, from September 2, 2013 tooBet 3, 2013, we completed another sale of 18@amidutstanding ChipMOS Taiwan
shares or 21.4% of the total number of ChipMOS Baiw outstanding shares, at the price of NT$20d¥Gspare to investors. As of March 31,
2014, we owned 62.1% of ChipMOS Taiwan'’s outstagdinares. See “Item 4. Information on the Company+®ructure and History” for
description of our earlier merger events.

Revenue

We conduct our business according to the followirain business segments: (1) testing services fanangand logic/mixed-signal
semiconductors; (2) assembly services for memodylagic/mixed-signal semiconductors; (3) LCD anldestflat-panel display driver
semiconductor testing and assembly services; grioif@ping services for memory, logic/mixed-signadla. CD and other flat-panel display
driver semiconductors. The following table setsdHpfor the periods indicated, our consolidateceraie for each segment.

Year ended December 31

2012 2013 2013
NT$ NT$ us$
(in millions)
Testing
Memory $ 5,055.0 $ 3,979.t $133.
Logic/mixec-signal 508.1 616.5 20.7
Total testing 5,563.: 4,596.. 154.1
Assembly
Memory 5,523.¢ 5,635.( 188.¢
Logic/mixec-signal 856.¢ 638.1 21.4
Total assembl 6,380.¢ 6,273. 210.c
LCD and other fle-panel display driver semiconductor testing andrasde 4,356.: 4,781.. 160.:
Bumping 2,920.¢ 3,710.¢ 124.¢
Total $19,220.! $19,361.0  $649.]

Our revenue consists primarily of service feegdsting and assembling semiconductors, and tesaldextent, fees from equipment
rentals to semiconductor manufacturers for engingdesting, less allowances for product returns. dfer testing and assembly services for
memory semiconductors, logic/mixed-signal semicanahs, testing and assembly services for LCD ahdrdiat-panel display driver
semiconductors and bumping services.

Most of our customers do not place purchase offdeiis advance and our contracts with customereigdiy do not require minimum
purchases of our products or services. Our cuswmarchase orders have varied significantly fraeniqd to period because demand for their
products is often volatile. We have strategicaiiyeeed into long-term capacity agreements with sofraur customers. Under certain of those
long-term agreements, we have agreed to resenaeitafor our customers and our customers haveeagie place orders in the amount of the
reserved capacity (which is subject in certain saseeduction by the customers). As part of owatsgy, we intend to continue entry into
additional long-term capacity agreements as weflbaess on our business with smaller customers stotners who do not place orders on a
regular basis. We believe that the dual focusedegy would assist us to be better prepared focthent economic volatility and ensure
maximum utilization rate of our capacity and hefpto develop closer relationships with all typesaf customers. Depending on customer
demands, market conditions and other considerat@semain to be focused on expansion of our t¢jpaoutside Taiwan and Mainland
China in connection with possible future long-tezapacity agreements.
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Our financial condition and results of operatioasédialso been, and are likely to continue to fectdd by price pressures on our service
fees, which tend to decline in tandem with the idénly average selling prices of the products wedes assemble over the course of their
product and technology life cycles. In order to m@in our margins, it is necessary to offset tleedmsion by continually improving our
production efficiency and maintaining high capaditijization rates. We also plan to continue toalep and implement new technologies and
expand our services into potentially higher-magggments. These efforts require significant uptfimrestment in advance of incremental
revenue, which could impact our margins.

Pricing

We price our testing fees primarily based on thet obtesting the products to our customers’ sjatibns, including the costs of the
required material and components, the depreciatipenses relating to the equipment involved andwarhead expenses, and with reference
to prevailing market prices. Accordingly, the tagtfee for a particular product would principallgmend on the time taken to perform the tests
the complexity of the product and the testing psscand the cost of the equipment used to perfoentest. For example, testing fees for
memory semiconductors are significantly higher ttrarse for other products because of the longes tequired and the need for burn-in
testing.

We price our assembly services on a per unit b&sis)g into account the complexity of the packame, costs, including the costs of the
required material and components, the depreciatipenses relating to the equipment involved andwarhead expenses, prevailing market
conditions, the order size, the strength and histéour relationship with the customer and ourazty utilization.

We price our testing and assembly services for 0D other flat-panel display driver semiconductord bumping services on the basis
of our costs, including the costs of the requireaterial and components, the depreciation expersating to the equipment involved and our
overhead expenses, and the price for comparahlessr

We offer volume discounts to all customers who pase large quantities of our services and spesiabdnts to customers who use our
vertically integrated services. On a case by casespwe also may offer special payment termsudiob longer payment cycles, to key
customers during downturns in the market so astairr business from such key customers.

Revenue Recognition

We generally recognize our revenue upon complatfdesting and assembly services. We also recognizeevenue upon shipment of
tested and assembled semiconductors to locatimigrdded by our customers, including our internatefnouse for customers using our
warehousing services. We submit invoices at the tifncompletion of service or shipment or delivand generally require all customers to
within 60 days after the last day of the month diginivhich the invoice was sent. However, for ProM@&jng 2010 the invoice settlement
cycle has been changed to 30 or 45 days upon dglimed commencing in June 2011, the collectiomteas revised to advance payment [
to delivery. Commencing April 1, 2011, since Moseho longer a related party to us, ProMOS is atstoconsidered our related party.

In January 2008, at the request of ProMOS, we dgepermit ProMOS to defer payment of aggregateice fees of NT$450 million to
February 15, 2009. The deferred service fees, integest at a rate of 4.69% per annum, were redoaddong-term accounts receivable as of
December 31, 2007, and were paid in full by ProM@Blarch and April 2008. We also experienced coitecproblems for our receivables
from ProMOS in 2008 and 2009, respectively. Thedalount of allowance for these doubtful receivald&éNT$578 million and NT$464
million were reserved as of December 31, 2008 &P 2respectively. As of December 31, 2009, otheeivables from ProMOS amounted to
NT$409 million and 100% allowance was made by Chg®/Taiwan. NT$7 million was received by April 201Mhder the amende
subcontracting contract ProMOS paid ChipMOS Tainai$200 million in May 2010. The remaining NT$202llion was paid in nine
monthly installments with the final payment madeMarch 15, 2011. As of December 31, 2010, ChipM@$van received NT$336 million
and the related allowance of NT$409 million wasersed to other non-operating income. In March 2@l jhayments were received.

As of December 31, 2009, other receivables fronM@¥8 amounted to NT$55 million and 100% allowance weade by ThaiLin. In
June 2010, ThailLin agreed a settlement with ProNMOSe amount of NT$24 million and it was collecthating the same year. The allowance
of NT$24 million was reversed to other non-opemgiimcome. See “Item 4. Information on the CompanyCustomers”.
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We also experienced collection problems for ouvises of receivables from Spansion in 2008 and 2688$pectively. The full amounts
of allowance of these doubtful receivables of NB89, million and NT$2,232 million were reserved &®ecember 31, 2008 and 2009,
respectively. On January 25, 2010, we enteredartefinitive Transfer of Claim Agreement to sellGQitigroup Financial Products Inc.
(Citigroup) the general unsecured claim reflectethe proof of claim against Spansion. The claiat thas the subject of the Transfer of Claim
Agreement included accounts receivable for testimdj assembly services provided to Spansion (thelf4pated Claim”)In February 2010, w
received from Citigroup the purchase price forthelisputed Claim of NT$1,118 million against accsureceivable of NT$2,186 million. A
loss on sale of receivables of NT$1,068 million wexsognized and the related allowance for doub#aéivables of NT$2,186 million was
reversed in 2010. See “ltem 4. Information on tleen@any — Customers”.

We have not experienced other significant collecpooblems for our services.

Related Party Revenues

In 2012 and 2013, no revenue was derived fromeaélparties. While we believe that our transactigitls related parties were entered
into on an arm’s length basis, we extended theroréble payment terms, as discussed in the precedirsggraph. See “ltem 7. Major
Shareholders and Related Party Transactions” foeimformation concerning our related party tratisas.

Geography and Currency

The majority of our revenue is generated from auslis headquartered in Taiwan, which representedafida2% of our revenue in
2012 and 2013, respectively. We also generate tevBom customers in the United States, Singagdrega, Japan and other countries. Our
service fees and revenue are generally denomimatbe currency of the jurisdiction in which ouciiities are located, for example NT dollars
for our Taiwan operations and RMB for our Mainla@kina operations. As we generate most of our rexvémmum Taiwanese customers using
our Taiwanese operations, and since most of owr labd overhead costs are denominated in NT dpllesonsider the NT dollar to be our
functional currency.

See Note 30 to our consolidated financial statesemtained in this Annual Report on Form 20-F ‘drean 11. Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosure about Market Risk — Markeésk® — Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risks” fotate information on our exchange
rate risks.

Cost of Revenue and Gross Profit

Our cost of revenue consists primarily of the fafllog: depreciation and amortization expenses, ratenal costs, and labor and
overhead expenses, which primarily include expeledatpuipments, sub-contracting fees and rentalresgee Our operations, in particular our
testing, are characterized by relatively high fixedts. We expect to continue to incur substadgateciation and other expenses as a result
our previous and future acquisitions of testing assembly equipment and facilities, including eweistment in our Mainland China
operations. As of March 31, 2014, we had 906 testet9 burn-in ovens, 970 wire bonders, 137 inaadIbonders, 7 steppers and 18 sputters
We use inner-lead bonders for the assembly of L@®Dather flat-panel display driver semiconductamg TCP or COF technology, and wire
bonders for TSOP, BGA, and some other package ddgeechnologies.

Our profitability depends in part not only on ahgelpricing levels for our services, but also on@apacity utilization rates. Our average
capacity utilization rate for testing of memory dadic/mixed-signal semiconductors was 69% in 2atd 65% in 2013. Our average capacity
utilization rate for assembly of memory and logicfed-signal semiconductors was 78% in 2012 and BO2013. Our average capacity
utilization rate for LCD and other flat-panel diapldriver semiconductor testing and assembly wés if92012 and 81% in 2013. In addition,
our average capacity utilization rate for bumpirgs\81% in 2012 and 87% in 2013.

For each period of time selected, we derived tipacisy utilization rate for our testing operatidnsdividing the total number of hours of
actual use of our facilitiegesting equipment units by the maximum number afrbohat these equipment units were capable ofjhgrd. Th
testing capacity utilization rate generally inciess correlation to increases in the total voluheur customer orders, and generally decreas
in correlation to decreases in the total volumewfcustomer orders.

For each period of time selected, we derived tipacity utilization rate for our assembly operatibysdividing the total number of units
actually produced by our assembly facilities by eximum number of units that these facilities @pable of producing. The assembly
capacity utilization rate generally increases in@ation to increases in the total volume of customer orders, and generally decreases in
correlation to decreases in the total volume ofaustomer orders.
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Our gross revenue is generally the product of dked ¥olume of our customer orders multiplied by Hverage selling price per
deliverable unit from our assembly or testing sesj as the case may be. As a result, in a pefietdeithe average selling prices do not
fluctuate significantly, increases or decreasemlincapacity utilization rates generally corref@téncreases or decreases in our gross revenue
Periods with significant increases in the averalng prices reduce the negative impact on ousgrevenue from any decreases in our
capacity utilization rates. Similarly, periods wiignificant decreases in the average selling prieduce the positive impact on our gross
revenue from any increases in our capacity utiizatates.

The Company has significant fixed costs in opegatiar assembly and testing facilities. For thisoeg decreases in our cost of goods
sold during a period generally occur at a slow&s than decreases, during the same period, inross gevenue due to lower capacity
utilization rates, lower average selling pricesboth. Also, as a result, our gross margin anditatafity generally decrease in correlation to
decreases in our capacity utilization rates, deg®@ our average selling prices, or both. Sitgilaur gross margin and profitability generally
increase in correlation to increases in our capadilization rates, increases in our averagersglfirices, or both. Due to the cyclical nature of

the semiconductor industry, customer orders mapgaaignificantly, causing fluctuation in our caipactilization rate and average selling
price.

Most of our labor and overhead costs are denondnatBIT dollars. However, we also incur costs ofereues and operating expenses
associated with testing and assembly servicesvierakother currencies, including Japanese yenddJigrs and RMB. In addition, a substan
portion of our capital expenditures, primarily fbe purchase of testing and assembly equipmenbédes, and is expected to continue to be,
denominated in Japanese yen with much of the retaaisienominated in US dollars.

The following table sets forth, for the periodsigaded, our gross profit and our gross profit mauag a percentage of revenue.

Year ended December 31

2012 2013 2013
NT$ NT$ US$
(in millions)
Gross profit:
Testing
Memory $ 5112 $ 6540 $21.9
Logic/mixec-signal 86.0 222.0 7.5
Total testing 597.2 876.0 29.4
Assembly
Memory 111.6 503.5 16.9
Logic/mixec-signal 283.5 171.8 5.7
Total assembl 395.1 675.3 22.6
LCD and other fle-panel display driver semiconductor testing andrasde 1,245.9 1,358.6 455
Bumping 214.4 529.6 17.8
Total $2,452.6  $3,439.5 $115.3
Gross profit margin:
Testing
Memory 10.1% 16.4% 16.4%
Logic/mixec-signal 16.9 36.0 36.0
Total testing 10.7 19.1 19.1
Assembly
Memory 2.0 8.9 8.9
Logic/mixec-signal 33.1 26.9 26.9
Total assembl 6.2 10.8 10.8
LCD and other fle-panel display driver semiconductor testing andrasde 28.6 28.4 28.4
Bumping 7.3 14.3 14.3
Overall 12.8% 17.8% 17.8%

Operating Expenses
Research and Development

Research and development expenses consist prinaplgrsonnel expenses, expenditures to qualifysenrices for specific customers
and other consulting fees and certification fead fmthird parties. Research and development esggare recognized as they are incurred
currently expect that research and developmentresgzewill increase in the future as we continuexaore new technologies and service
offerings. We also expect to hire additional empkesy in our research and development department.
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Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing expenses consist primarilhipping and handling expenses incurred in deligegroducts to our customers’
designated locations, advertising, corporate comcations and other marketing expenses, salary egsefor sales and marketing personnel,
sales commission, professional service fees, bhtimtevision and service support expenses.

Administrative and General

Administrative and general expenses consist ofigaland related expenses for executive, finandeaanounting, and management
information systems personnel, professional serfées, and other corporate expenses. They alsadiedtock-based compensation that is
expensed using the fair value method. See “IteBirgctors, Senior Management and Employees—Shatiei®plan and Share Appreciation
Rights Plan” for more information concerning ouashoption plan. We expect administrative and garexpenses to increase in absolute
terms as we add personnel and incur additionalresgserelated to the growth of our business andatipas.

Other Non-Operating Income (Expenses), Net

Our other non-operating income principally constdtgterest income, foreign exchange gains anceh@use space rental revenue. In
2008, our other non-operating income included @eitderest income paid by Kolin under a loan regidg to ChipMOS Taiwan that bears
interest at a rate of 4.69% per annum. NT$15 milbthis loan was repaid in 2008. The loan waginally secured by a pledge by Kolin of
11 million common shares of ThaiLin. The loan hasmfully repaid and the subject pledge has bdeagsed accordingly in 2013. Sd&h 7.
Major Shareholders and Related Party Transactiorstat®d Party Transactions—ThaiLin SemiconductopCdor more information.

In January 2010, ChipMOS Taiwan entered into anitefe Transfer of Claim Agreement to sell to Citigp Financial Products Inc.
(Citigroup) the general unsecured claim reflectethe proof of claim against Spansion. As a resfullhe agreement, ChipMOS Taiwan
received from Citigroup the purchase price forthelisputed Claim of NT$1,118 million against accsureceivable of NT$2,186 million. A
loss on sale of receivables of NT$1,068 million wexsognized and the related allowance for doub#aéivables of NT$2,186 million was
reversed in 2010. The Transfer of Claim Agreemésd encludes the sale of breach of contract anddiated damages rights against Spansion
in the amount of NT$2,118 million, which was re@sivin October 2010.

As of December 31, 2009, other receivables fronM¥8 amounted to NT$409 million and 100% allowaneswmade by ChipMOS
Taiwan. NT$7 million was received by April 2010. dlar an amended subcontracting contract, ProMOSQ@RiioMOS Taiwan NT$200
million in May 2010. The remaining NT$202 millionas subsequently received by March 2011. As of Deeerdl, 2010, ChipMOS Taiwan
received NT$336 million and the related allowant®©$409 million was reversed to other non-opeigiimcome. In March 2011, all
payments were received.

As of December 31, 2009, other receivables fronM@¥8 amounted to NT$55 million and 100% allowances weade by ThaiLin. In
June 2010, ThailLin agreed a settlement with ProNtOie amount of NT$24 million, this payment wabyfueceived in the same year. The
allowance of NT$24 million was reversed to othen+aperating income.

Our other non-operating expenses principally cardisnpairment of available-for-sale investmentsl doreign exchange losses.
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Non-controlling Interests

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of imeome that is attributable to the shareholdinguin consolidated subsidiaries that
do not own. See “Item 4. Information on the Compai@ur Structure and Historyfor information concerning our consolidated sulzsiidis. Ir
2010 and 2011, our non-controlling interests wetrdatable to the non-controlling interests ownsdSiliconware Precision in ChipMOS
Taiwan as a result of the February 2010 share pgechgreement under which we agreed to sell 15t&hipMOS Taiwan’s outstanding
shares to Siliconware Precision, and the publicagdt@ders’ interests in ThaiLin. The sale of 15.88£hipMOS Taiwan'’s outstanding shares
to Siliconware Precision was completed in Janu@d12 On April 16, 2013, we sold 6.5 million shace®9.8% of the total number of
ChipMOS Taiwan'’s outstanding shares, at the prfddT$15.0 per share to ChipMOS Taiwan’s underwsitéfuanta Securities Company
Limited and Capital Securities Corp., and to certhers, including non-US employees of ChipMOSn~Eai. From September 2, 2013 to
October 3, 2013, we sold 180 million shares or #Zilcf the total number of ChipMOS Taiwanutstanding shares, at the price of NT$20.(
shares to investors. After the completion of theedaid sales the Company held approximately 5ABmChipMOS Taiwan shares,
representing 62.1% of the total number of ChipMG@8vEn's outstanding shares. Under the MMT Assigrnmdgmeement signed on April 22,
2011, ChipMOS Bermuda agreed to sell the MMT NabeEhailin. The transaction was completed in Octd@t¥l1 and ThaiLin immediately
converted the MMT Notes into common shares of Modéind and purchased all of the remaining commaaresh of Modern Mind from
Jesper, with ChipMOS Shanghai becoming a wholly-eavsubsidiary of ThaiLin. As a result of the traat&m, the interest of ChipMOS
Bermuda in Modern Mind and also ChipMOS ShangheraeBsed to 36.1% from 100%. In 2013, our non-cdiimtgointerests were attributable
to the non-controlling interests owned by SiliconeRrecision and the public shareholders’ interies@hipMOS Taiwan and the public
shareholders’ interests in ThailLin and ChipMOS $ian As of the date of this Annual Report on F@®@AF, we own approximately
522 million ChipMOS Taiwan shares, representingt®of ChipMOS Taiwan’s outstanding shares. As oféeber 31, 2013 and March 31,
2014, we owned approximately 523 million ChipMOSwan shares, representing 62.1% of ChipMOS Taiwantstanding shares.

Profit for the Year Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company

Our profit for the year attributable to equity hetd of the Company were NT$630 million and NT$1,888ion (US$45 million) in 2012
and 2013, respectively. We believe our future teswill be dependent upon the overall economic @@t in the markets we serve, the
competitive environment in which we operate, andahility to successfully implement our strategmang other things. For additional
information on factors that will affect our futuperformance, see “Item 3. Key Information—Risk 6ast.

Results of Operations
The following table presents selected operating data percentage of revenue for the periods itedica

Year ended December 31

2012 2013
IFRSs:

Revenue 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of revenu (87.2) (82.2)
Gross profit 12.8 17.8
Other operating incom 0.7 2.2
Research and development exper (2.7) (2.9)
Sales and marketing expen: (0.4) (0.6)
Administrative and general expen: (3.3) (3.6)
Other operating expens (0.3) (0.5)
Operating profit 6.8 12.4
Finance cost (1.2) (0.9)
Other nor-operating income (expense), | (1.2) 1.5
Profit before tay 4.4 13.0
Income tax (0.9) (4.3)
Profit for the yea 3.5% 8.7%
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Compai 3.3% 6.9%
Non-controlling interest: 0.2% 1.8%
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Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared to Year EDdedmber 31, 2012

Revenue. Our revenue increased by NT$141 million, or 0.78MNT$19,362 million (US$649 million) in 2013 frohiT$19,221 million
in 2012.

Revenue from testing services for memory and lagjictd-signal semiconductors decreased by NT$96lfomjlor 17%, to NT$4,596
million (US$154 million) in 2013 from NT$5,563 mith in 2012. Revenue from testing services for mgnsemiconductors decreased by
NT$1,075 million, or 21%, to NT$3,980 million (US$3 million) in 2013 from NT$5,055 million in 2018rincipally due to the decreas
capacity utilization rate and average selling pfareDRAM products. Revenue for testing servicasldgic/mixed-signal semiconductors
increased by NT$108 million, or 21%, to NT$616 raiil (US$21 million) in 2013 from NT$508 million 2012, principally due to the higher
customer demand.

Revenue from assembly services for memory and Aoixed-signal semiconductors decreased by NT$10bmior 2%, to NT$6,274
million (US$210 million) in 2013 from NT$6,381 mith in 2012. Revenue from assembly services for orgreemiconductors increased by
NT$111 million, or 2%, to NT$5,635 million (US$188illion) in 2013 from NT$5,524 million in 2012, pniarily as a result of increas
customer demand and capacity utilization rate. Regdrom assembly services for logic/mixed-sigmahgonductors decreased by NT$218
million, or 25%, to NT$639 million (US$21 million 2013 from NT$857 million in 2012, principally duo a decreased average selling price

Revenue from LCD and other flpgnel display driver semiconductor testing andragbeservices increased by NT$425 million, or 1(
to NT$4,781 million (US$160 million) in 2013 fromT$4,356 million in 2012. This increase was printipas a result of an increase in
customer demand and capacity utilization rate fobLand other flat-panel display products in 2013.

Revenue from bumping services increased by NT$78®m or 27%, to NT$3,711 million (US$124 milligrin 2013 from NT$2,921
million in 2012. This increase was principally aeault of an increase in customer demand, aveselfjag price and the increased capacity
utilization rate for bumping services in 2013.

See “— Cost of Revenue and Gross Profit” for maferimation concerning our testing and assembly cifpatilization rates and the
impact on our revenue, gross profit and profitapfliom any increases or decreases in our capatiiigation rate.

Cost of Revenue and Gross Profit Cost of revenue decreased by NT$846 million,%r & NT$15,922 million (US$534 million) in
2013 from NT$16,768 million in 2012, primarily dtthe decrease of depreciation expenses of NT$Iy8on (US$45 million) and
partially offset by the increases in employee bi¢ebkts, inventory valuation allowance and opegteases of NT$273 million (US$9
million), NT$92 million (US$3 million) and NT$115 iftion (US$4 million), respectively.

Our gross profit increased to NT$3,440 million (U%$ million) in 2013 from NT$2,453 million in 201@ur gross margin was 17.8%
2013, compared to 12.8% in 2012.

Our gross profit margin for testing services fornoey and logic/mixed-signal semiconductors incréasel9.1% in 2013 from 10.7% in
2012, primarily due to the increased sales of highargin logic/mixed-signal semiconductors testsiegvices.

Our gross profit margin for assembly services femmry and logic/mixed-signal semiconductors incedas 10.8% in 2013 from 6.2%
in 2012, primarily due to the increased customenated and higher capacity utilization rate.

Our gross profit margin for LCD and other flat-phdisplay driver semiconductor testing and assemsblyices decreased to 28.4% in
2013 from 28.6% in 2012, primarily due to the changproduct mix.

Our gross profit margin for bumping services inseghto 14.3% in 2013 from 7.3% in 2012, primariliedo the increased average se
price and higher capacity utilization rate.

See “— Cost of Revenue and Gross Profit” for maferimation concerning our testing and assembly dpatilization rates and the
impact on our revenue, gross profit and profitiiiom any increases or decreases in our capatityation rates.

Other Operating Income . Other operating income increased by NT$314 mmillar 245%, to NT$442 million (US$15 million) in 28
from NT$128 million in 2012, primarily due to thecrease of gain on disposal of property, plantequdpment of NT$98 million (US$3
million), reversal of allowance for impairment eceivables of NT$62 million (US$2 million) and resal of accrued royalty fees of NT$140
million (US$5 million).
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Research and Development Expensefesearch and development expenses increased $9Nilillion, or 12%, to NT$564 million
(US$19 million) in 2013 from NT$505 million in 201@rimarily due to the increase of employee berefitts.

Sales and Marketing ExpensesSales and marketing expenses increased by NT8#28wor 35%, to NT$108 million (US$4 million)
in 2013 from NT$80 million in 2012, primarily due the increase of employee benefit costs, freighteapense, commissions expense and
allowance for impairment of accounts and notesivatée.

Administrative and General Expenses Administrative and general expenses increasedTt$62 million, or 10%, to NT$699 million
(US$23 million) in 2013 from NT$637 million in 20 1@rimarily due to the increase of employee berfits, depreciation expense and
professional service fees.

Other Operating Expenses Other operating expenses increased by NT$52omjlbr 106%, to NT$101 million (US$3 million) in 28
from NT$49 million in 2012, primarily due to thecirease of accrued compensation of NT$42 milliong§U8hillion) and accrued royalty of
NT$40 million (US$1 million) and partially offseylihe decrease of loss on disposal of propertyitlad equipment of NT$37 million (US!
million).

Finance Costs Finance costs decreased by NT$46 million, or 2@%inance costs of NT$183 million (US$6 millioim) 2013 from
NT$229 million in 2012. This change was primarilyedto the decrease of interest on bank loans by RTillion (US$2 million).

Other Non-Operating Income (Expenses), NetOther non-operating expenses, net, changed bR ghillion, or 224%, to other non-
operating income, net, of NT$289 million (US$10Inait) in 2013 from other non-operating expenses, ofeNT$233 million in 2012. This
change was primarily due to the decrease of foreiginange loss by NT$482 million (US$16 million).

Profit before Tax . As a result of the foregoing, profit before tagreased by 197% to NT$2,516 million (US$84 mil)iam2013 from
NT$848 million in 2012

Income Tax. We had an income tax expense of NT$827 millioB$R8 million) in 2013 compared to income tax expesfsSNT$178
million for 2012, primarily due to the increaseprbfit before tax.

Profit for the Year Attributable to Non-controlling Interests. The profits less losses of Modern Mind and ChipgB/€hanghai and of
ChipMOS Taiwan and ThaiLin attributable to non-goliing interests amounted to NT$354 million (US$h#lion) in 2013, compared to
NT$40 million in 2012

Profit for the Year Attributable to the Company . As a result of the foregoing, the profit for §year attributable to the Company was
NT$1,335 million (US$45 million) in 2013, comparedNT$630 million in 2012

Critical Accounting Policies

Commencing January 1, 2013, we prepare our comgetidinancial statements in conformity with th&&s. Under the IFRSs, we are
required to make certain estimates, judgments asdnaptions about matters that are highly uncedsihe time those estimates, judgments
assumptions are made, and our financial conditicesults of operations may be materially impadteee use different but nonetheless
reasonable estimates, judgments or assumptions ttwme matters for that particular period or if etenge our estimates, judgments or
assumptions from period to period.

Under the IFRSSs, the significant accounting poficiee set forth in Note 2 to our consolidated faianstatements contained in this
Annual Report on Form 20-F. The significant accougpolicies that require us to make estimatesamstimptions about the effect of matters
that are inherently uncertain are discussed below.
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Impairment of receivables

Receivables are assessed for indicators of impairatehe end of each reporting period, and arairad where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more eveatttturred after the initial recognition of theewables, the estimated future cash flows o
receivables have been impacted. For the custoraent have reason to believe may have an inabdlitgeet its financial obligations, we
conduct an individual examination based on thelalvls facts and circumstances to record a speeifierve. For the customers other than this
a general reserve is established based on a rdpgeoentages applied to aging categories. Thesep@ges are based on historical collectior
and write-off experience. If circumstances chaitige estimate of the recoverability of amounts @dues could be reduced by a material
amount. As of December 31, 2013, we provided NT8lfom (US$235 thousand) for the first type of raseand NT$171 thousand (US$6
thousand) for the second type of reserve. See “fteimformation on the Company—Customers”.

The allowance we set aside for doubtful receivabdas NT$57 thousand as of December 31, 2012 and Wiition (US$235 thousand)
as of December 31, 2013. The allowances as of Deeefl, 2012 and 2013 represented 0.0% and 0.2ectvely, of our accounts
receivable as of those dates. The reversal andatice in 2012 and 2013 reflected an enlargementeghettion of NT$2 million and NT$7
million (US$235 thousand), respectively, in acceweceivable that decreased and increased thessalenarketing expenses. If we were to
change our estimate of the allowance for doub#akivables either upward or downward 10%, our djpeyarofit would be affected by NT$
thousand (US$3 thousand) for 2013.

An increase in our allowance for doubtful receieablvould increase our sales and marketing expeasdsjecrease our current assets.

Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused$mes$ and tax credit to the extent that it is dvlebthat taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilized. Significaanagement judgement is required to determiateatmount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognized, based upon the likely timing andetel of future taxable profits together with fréuax planning strategies.

In 2012 and 2013, the Group has NT$1,523 milliod BiT$1,218 million (US$41 million) of tax losseséad forward, respectively.
These losses relate to subsidiaries that hava@hisf losses and may not be used to offset taxalgome elsewhere in the Group. The
subsidiaries neither have any taxable temporafgrdifice nor any tax planning opportunities avaéldhht could partly support the recognition
of these losses as deferred tax assets. On thg HasGroup has determined that it cannot re@egdeéferred tax assets on the tax losses ¢
forward. If the Group was able to recognize allaomgnized deferred tax assets, profit and equityldvbave increased by NT$305 million
(US$10 million).

As of December 31, 2012 and 2013, the ending bafafur deferred tax assets were NT$593 million dm@195 million (US$7 million),
respectively.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of areass cash generating unit exceeds its recoveahtaunt, which is the higher of its f
value less costs of disposal and its value in Tke.fair value less costs of disposal calculat®obased on available data from binding sales
transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for sin@ksets or observable market prices less incretinewsts for disposing of the asset. The valu
in use calculation is based on a discounted cash(fIDCF") model. The cash flows are derived frame budget for the next five years and do
not include restructuring activities that the Grasipot yet committed to or significant future istments that will enhance the asset’s
performance of the cash generating unit beingdedtee recoverable amount is sensitive to the distmte used for the DCF model as well as
the expected future cash-inflows and the growth vaed for the extrapolation purposes.

In determining whether any impairment charges weessary for the property, plant and equipmenbémel non-current assets for the
year ended December 31, 2013, we assumed thagitieanductor industry will continue its growth imetnext few years. Based upon
assumption of growth in the semiconductor induatyg our other assumptions in our internal budgetthfe purpose of determining whether
any impairment charges are necessary for the yeldeDecember 31, 2013, an impairment loss of NI$6@usand (US$22 thousand) and
NT$220 thousand (US$7 thousand) were recognizednegipect of property, plant and equipment andratbe-current assets, respectively.

While we believe that our estimates of future démlvs are reasonable, different assumptions reggrslich cash flows could materially
affect our evaluations.
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Defined Benefit Plans

The cost of the defined benefit pension plan arst-pmployment benefits and the present value opémsion obligation are determined
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuatiovolves making various assumptions that may diifem actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discours, fature salary increases, mortality rates angréupension increases. Due to the comple:
involved in the valuation and its long-term natwalefined benefit obligation is highly sensitieechanges in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting datéhdfudetails are disclosed in Note 22 to our cbdated financial statements contained in
this Annual Report on Form 20-F.

Share-Based Payments

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled acimsns with employees by reference to the faineaf the equity instruments at the
date at which they are granted. Estimating faiue@dbr share-based payments requires determinengtist appropriate valuation model for a
grant of equity instruments, which is dependenthenterms and conditions of the grant. This alspires determining the most appropriate
inputs to the valuation model including the expddiie of the option, volatility and dividend yielhd making assumptions about them. The
assumptions and models used for estimating fairevidr share-based payments are disclosed in Note ur consolidated financial
statements contained in this Annual Report on F20Af. In 2013, the share-based compensation expensented to NT$233 million (US$8
million), which was taken into account when detevimg our profit for the year and shareholders’ ggfor the year ended December 31, 2013

Senior Management’s Discussion with the Audit Conttae

Our management has discussed the critical accauptticies described above with the audit committeeur board of directors and the
audit committee has reviewed our disclosure rggdiinthe critical accounting policies in this senti

Impact of Foreign Currency Fluctuations and Governental or Political Factors

For a discussion of the impact of foreign currefiagtuations and governmental economics, fiscalpetary or political policies or
factors that may directly or indirect impact us Sgkem 3. Key Information—Risks Factors—Risks Riglg to Our Business—Fluctuations in
exchange rates could result in foreign exchangeeksand “Item 3. Key Information—Risks Factors—KRiRelating to Countries in Which
We Conduct Operations”.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Since our inception, we have funded our operatimsgrowth primarily through the issuance of equatynixture of short- and long-term
loans and cash flow from operations. As of Decen312013, our primary sources of liquidity wersltand cash equivalents of NT$13,373
million (US$448 million), short-term loans of NT®$21 million (US$101 million) available to us in waevn facilities, which have expired or
will expire from January 2014 to November 2014, komdj-term loans of NT$454 million (US$15 millioayailable to us in undrawn facilities,
which will expire in May 2015. To meet our liquigitcapital spending and other capital needs, we teaken certain steps discussed below.

In December 2010, ChipMOS Taiwan reached agreemigmiand received approval from its bank crediforsan extension of its
repayment schedule on its short-term loans. THeviihg related key extended repayment terms anditions apply to ChipMOS Taiwan’s
bank loans due between 2009 to 2013. For repayaferdn-revolving short-term loans, ChipMOS Taiwaneed to repay 20% of the
outstanding principal on December 31, 2010, toydpa balance outstanding in eight quarterly imstahts by the end of 2012, and to set asid
NT$50 million per month with Bank of Taiwan fromnisry 2011 until December 2012 to fund the schebeftimated principal repaymen
ChipMOS Taiwan may maintain its current revolvifgpg-term facilities but is required to increasedbllateral to secure up to 60% of the
outstanding principal amount by the end of 201%.rEpayment of long-term loans, ChipMOS Taiwan adr set aside with Bank of Taiwan
NT$300 million per month for 2011, NT$270 millioepmonth for 2012 and NT$150 million per month 26x.3 to meet the princip
repayment schedule. The bank creditors agreeCtipfMOS Taiwan may arrange additional bank loamgptochasing operating materials by
using its available assets as collateral. Thesksalso agreed not to unilaterally foreclose arizesany machinery, property or deposits of
ChipMOS Taiwan and agreed to waive any penaltiasrtiight have to be imposed on the Company in cBbeeach under the existing loan
agreements.

In July 2011, ChipMOS Taiwan obtained a syndicdtaah facility from banks in Taiwan in the amountNf$8,410 million separated
into two parts with its respective term of four yeand five years. This loan facility was useddiinance the existing bank debts and equip
leases in July and August 2011.
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Our bank creditors provided us with a waiver in fe@loy 2010 relating to any potential covenant bineaainder a syndicated loan facility
agreement with Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kbmgited as agent. The application by the Compamefuly repayment of the
outstanding loan in four installments was apprawedpril 2010 without penalty. The syndicated Idawility was fully repaid in January 2011.
See “Item 3. Key Information—Risk Factors—Risksaiglg to Our Business—Our significant amount ofelbédness and interest expense
will limit our cash flow and could adversely affemir operations” for additional information.

Liquidity
The following table sets forth our cash flows widispect to operating activities, investing actastifinancing activities and the effect of
exchange rate changes on cash for the periodsaiedic

Year ended December 31

2012 2013 2013
NTS$ NT$ US$
(in millions)

Net cash generated from (used
Operating activitie! $ 4,527.( $6,223.. $ 208.¢
Investing activities (2,599.9) (3,005.9) (100.%)
Financing activitie: (312.9) 1,305.; 43.7

Net increase in cash and cash equival $1,614.¢ $4,522.¢ $ 151.¢

Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities

Net cash generated from operating activities tdt&l&$6,223 million (US$209 million) in 2013, compdrto NT$4,527 million in 2012.
Net cash generated from operating activities waidtipely impacted by a profit before tax of NT$2¢bmillion (US$84 million) with
depreciation expenses of NT$3,292 million (US$11lion) in 2013 compared to a profit before taxNT$848 million with depreciation
expenses of NT$4,623 million in 2012. The increaseet cash generated from operating activities pvanarily due to a decrease of shtatm
deposits of NT$354 million (US$12 million) in 20&8mpared to an increase of short-term depositsTéf34 million in 2012, an increase of
accounts and notes receivable of NT$2 million (UBBfusand) in 2013 compared to an increase ofuats@nd notes receivable of NT$327
million in 2012 and an increase of accounts payabNT$67 million (US$2 million) in 2013 compareal & decrease of accounts payable of
NT$241 million in 2012

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities totaled NU$8, million (US$101 million) in 2013, compared td$2,600 million in 2012. The
increase in net cash used in investing activitias primarily resulted from the increase in captglenditures which was NT$3,251 million
(US$109 million) in 2013, compared to NT$2,749 moillin 2012. The increase in net cash used in timgsactivities also was partially offset
by the increase in proceeds from sales of proppkint and equipment which was NT$151 million (USilion) in 2013, compared to NT$!
million in 2012.

Net Cash (Used in) Generated from Financing Actieit

Net cash generated from financing activities tatad $1,305 million (US$44 million) in 2013, compdr net cash used in financing
activities totaled NT$312 million in 2012. The dease in net cash used in financing activities wesapily the result of the net payments of
long-term loans of NT$2,204 million (US$74 milliom) 2013, compared to NT$201 million in 2012, nedqeeds of short-term loans of
NT$420 million (US$14 million) in 2013, comparedret payments of shterm loans of NT$180 million in 2012 and the in@®#n proceec
from partial disposal of a subsidiary of NT$3,53iflion (US$119 million) in 2013.

Capital Resources

Capital expenditures in 2012 were funded by NT$4 &2lion in cash flows from operating activiti€Sapital expenditures in 2013 were
funded by NT$6,223 million (US$209 million) in caBlbws from operating activities.

Steps taken with respect to generating additiomeaking capital and to saving cash are further dised under “—Liquidity and Capital
Resources.”
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Loans

As of December 31, 2013, we had long-term loarsT#6,764 million (US$227 million) (including curreportions of such long-term
loans of NT$2,875 million (US$96 million)). As ofd@ember 31, 2013, unused credit value of our lengrioans was approximately NT$454
million (US$15 million). As of December 31, 2013T#$R,732 million (US$92 million) of our lonterm loans were collateralized by equipm
and NT$4,032 million (US$135 million) were collagéized by land and buildings and prepaid rents-laselright. Our long-term loans were
floating rate loans with a rate between 1.73% aa646% as of December 31, 2013, repayable quadedgmiannually until November 201
to March 2018.

We had entered into the following syndicated loacilities:

. On March 21, 2003, we obtained a syndicated loaifitiain the amount of NT$1,000 million. This lodacility is separated into
two parts with its respective term of seven yeacsfave years. This loan facility is secured by iLlirals facilities and the testing
equipment at Chupei. This loan facility was fulgpaid in May 2011

. On July 27, 2004, we obtained a syndicated loailitiam the amount of NT$1,000 million for a teraf five years. This loan
facility is secured by our facilities at the South&aiwan Science Park and our testing and asseagfljppment located within our
facilities at Chupei, the Hsinchu Science Park tiedSouthern Taiwan Science Park. This loan fgaiis fully repaid in August
2011.

. On June 7, 2005, we obtained a syndicated loalitfeici the amount of NT$1,000 million for a ternfifour years. This loan facilit
is secured by our facilities at the Hsinchu ScigRaek. This loan facility was fully repaid in Jup11.

. In January 2006, we obtained a syndicated loatitiafrom banks in Taiwan in the amount of NT$6,00dlion for a term of five
years. This loan facility is secured by our famhktat the Hsinchu Science Park and our testingaasembly equipment locat
within our facilities at Chupei, the Hsinchu ScierRark and the Southern Taiwan Science Park. darsfacility was fully repaid i
July 2011.

. In February 2006, we obtained a syndicated loaititiafrom banks in Taiwan in the amount of NT$3fillion for a term of six
years. This loan facility is secured by Tha's facilities at Chupei. The last withdraw date wagyust 2009, and the facility was
adjusted to NT$1,500 million. This loan facility svéully repaid in February 201

. In June 2007, we obtained a syndicated loan faéiiim banks in Taiwan in the amount of NT$6,000iom for a term of five
years. This loan facility is secured by our famhtat the Southern Taiwan Science Park and equiplmeated within our facilitie
at Chupei, the Hsinchu Science Park and the Sauifeiwan Science Park. In November 2009, the faadownward adjusted to
NT$2,100 million. This loan facility was fully rehin August 2011

. In July 2008, we obtained a syndicated loan facitibm banks in Taiwan in the amount of US$74.Sionil for a term of three
years. This loan facility is guaranteed by ChipMG@wan. This loan facility was fully repaid in Jary 2011,

. On July 14, 2011, we obtained a syndicated loatifitiafrom banks in Taiwan in the amount of NT$8M4illion separated into tw
parts with its respective term of four years ané fyears. This loan facility is secured by existiengd and buildings and equipment
owned by ChipMOS Taiwan. This loan facility waslyulrawn in 2011

. On March 7, 2012, we obtained a bank loan facitiyn a bank in Shanghai in the amount of US$9 onillior a term of three yea
This loan facility is secured by existing prepagtits-land use right, buildings and equipment owme@hipMOS Shanghai. This
loan facility was drawn of US$7 million and expired March 7, 2014

. On May 24, 2013, we obtained a bank loan facilignf a bank in Taiwan in the amount of NT$400 milli& S$13 million) for a
term of two years. This loan facility is unsecuceedit for ChipMOS Taiwan, drawn amount limitedN®$600 million in total
long-term loan and shc-term loan drawn

Certain of our loan agreements and indentures Toatewenants that, if violated, could result in ti#igations under these agreements
becoming due prior to the originally scheduled mgtuates. These covenants include financial caménthat require us to:

. maintain current assets to current liabilitiescatbove 1:1
. maintain total indebtedness to sharehol’ equity ratio below 1.4:1
. maintain the profit before interest, taxes, de@an and amortization to gross interest expentse ahove 2.5:1
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In December 2009, ThaiLin obtained waiver from ctiemxe with the earning to principal and interegta requirement for 2009.
ThaiLin was in compliance with the financial ratequirement for 2010 and 2011. In 2012, ThaiLin wasrequired to maintain any financial
ratio of which syndicated loans were repaid in 8efiter 2012. In November 2010, ChipMOS Taiwan rextbiiree separate waiver request
approvals from its creditors and was waived frotmpbiance with the financial ratio requirements 20r.0. ChipMOS Taiwan was in
compliance with the financial ratio requirement 20x11 and 2012. Pursuant to a bank creditors nggetind the approval notice from Standarc
Chartered Bank on February 9, 2010, ChipMOS Bermasi@orrower, and ChipMOS Taiwan, as guarantore wived from compliance wi
the financial ratio requirements as of December2B0D9. ChipMOS Shanghai was not required to mairdaay financial ratio during 2012 and
2013.

In December 2010, ChipMOS Taiwan further receivggraval for its request for repayment extensiomfimver 50% of the creditor
banks for its short-term loans and the amount dIN468 million has been extended on December 30.2ZThe key extension repayment
terms include agreement by ChipMOS Taiwan to reffa of the outstanding short-term loans on Decer@beR010 and to repay the balance
in eight installments by setting aside monthly atistents of NT$50 million with Bank of Taiwan, thergest bank creditor, commencing
January 2011 to December 2012.

In addition, a substantial portion of our shortiteand long-term borrowings may be subject to regaytrnpon a material deterioration of
our financial condition, results of operations ar ability to perform under the loan agreements.

Set forth below are the maturities of our long-tdramk loans outstanding as of December 31, 2013:

As of

December 31, 201.
NT$ Us$
(in millions)

During 2014 $2,87¢ $ 96
During 2015 1,843 62
During 2016 1,91 64
During 2017 10C 4
During 2018 and onwarc 25 1

$ 6,764 $227

As of December 31, 2013, certain of our propertgnpand equipment and prepaid rent (land useg)jghith an aggregate net book value
of NT$6,150 million (US$206 million) and NT$97 mdh (US$3 million), respectively, were pledged aliateral in connection with our long-
term borrowings. Approximately 48% of our propegtiant and equipment and prepaid rent in termsookhbvalue were pledged as collateral
for our long-term loans.

Our unused credit lines for short-term loans, a@efember 31, 2013, totaled NT$3,021 million (USBhtllion), which have expired or
will expire from January 2014 to November 2014.08®ecember 31, 2013, our unused long-term creditifies totaled NT$454 million
(US$15 million) which will expire in May 2015.

As of December 31, 2013, we had unsecured sharttezdit loans for importing raw materials in téat amount of NT$489 million
(US$16 million), which were due between Februar§£2and June 2014, and unsecured export loan itothleamount of NT$298 million
(US$10 million), which were due in March 2014.

We believe our current cash and cash equivaleas$, ftow from operations and available credit fies will be sufficient to meet our
capital spending and other capital needs througtetid of 2014. There can be no assurance regataing matters, however, considering
prevailing global economic conditions which contirto have a negative impact on our ability to aataly forecast our revenues, results of
operations and cash position. See “Item 3. Keyrinfdion—Risk Factors—Risks Relating to Our Busire&aur significant amount of
indebtedness and interest expense will limit oshdéow and could adversely affect our operations”.

Research and development, patents and licenses
See the discussion under “ltem 4. Information en@ompany—Research and Development”.

Trend Information

See the discussion under “ltem 4. Information en@ompany—Industry Background” and “Item 4. Infotima on the Company—
Competition”.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
As of December 31, 2013, we had no off-balancetsmeangements.

Taxation

ChipMOS Taiwan is entitled to tax incentives geitgravailable to Taiwan companies under the ROQustaof Upgrading Industries,
including tax credits of 30% for certain researnld development and employee training expenses ffathe, amount of expenditure exceeds
the average amount of expenditure for the precetingyears, 50% of the excess amount may be creddainst tax payable) and from 5% to
7% for certain investments in automated equipmedttachnology. These tax credits must be utilizétiwfive years from the date on which
they were earned. In addition, except for the yastr of the five-year period, the aggregate taxcédn from these tax credits for any year
cannot exceed 50% of that year’s income tax lighiln 2011, 2012 and 2013, tax credits resultexsavings for ChipMOS Taiwan of
approximately NT$164 million, NT$33 million and N&& million (US$2 million), respectively.

ThaiLin was granted a ROC income tax exemptiorafperiod of five years on income attributable t® éxpansion of its production
capacity as a result of purchases of new equipfmeded by capital increase in 2002, which expireadecember 31, 2009.

ThaiLin is also entitled to other tax incentivesigrlly available to Taiwan companies under the R8Dute of Upgrading Industries,
including tax credits of 5% to 7% for certain intreent in automated equipment and technology. Tteeseredits must be utilized within five
years from the date on which they were earnedddlitian, except for the last year of the i-year period, the aggregate tax reduction from
these tax credits for any year cannot exceed 508aaif year's income tax liability. In 2011, 201218013, tax credits resulted in tax savings
for ThaiLin of approximately NT$15 million, NT$21iliion and NT$18 million (US$1 million), respectilye

Profit for the year generated by ChipMOS Taiwan @hdiLin after January 1, 1998, which is not diited in the year following the
year the profit was generated, is subject to inctareat the rate of 10%. If that profit for the yé&asubsequently distributed, the income
previously paid on that income is credited againstamount of withholding tax payable by sharehaldeho are not individuals or entities of
the Republic of China (for taxation purposes),dnmection with the distribution.

The ROC government enacted the ROC Alternative fdlimh Tax Act (“AMT Act”) that became effective onniary 1, 2006. The
alternative minimum tax (“AMT") imposed under thé/X Act is a supplemental tax which is payable & thcome tax payable pursuant to the
ROC Income Tax Act is below the minimum amount pribged under the AMT Act. The taxable income foicaating the AMT includes mo
income that is exempted from income tax under wariegislations, such as tax holidays and investtaercredits. The AMT rate for business
entities is 12%. However, the AMT Act grandfathecedtain tax exemptions and tax credits granteat poi the enactment of the AMT. The
effects of the AMT on the tax expenses of ChipMGB~En and ThaiLin were reflected in 2013.

In accordance with the relevant tax rules and @@ns of the PRC, ChipMOS Shanghai is entitledrtancome tax exemption starting
from the first profit making year, with a full exgtion available for the first two years and a 5Qéraption available for three additional years
thereafter. As the first profit-making year for @RIOS Shanghai was 2004, the profits made in thesy2@04 and 2005 were fully exempt, anc
the profits made in the years 2006 through 200&wsabject to a 50% tax exemption. Commencing Jariy&009, ChipMOS Shanghai is
subject to a 25% tax on profits. Any tax lossesaaly be carried forward for five years.

Tabular Disclosure of Contractual Obligations and @mmercial Commitments
The following table summarizes our contractual gédgions and commitments as of December 31, 201tBegoeriods indicated:

Payments Due by Perioc

Less thar More than

Contractual Obligations Total 1 year 2-3 years 4-5 years 5 years

NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$
(in millions)

Long-term debt® $6,971 $2,99¢ $3,84¢ $ 127 $ —

Shor-term loans® 79C 79C — — —
Operating lease 384 12¢ 11C 33 112

Capital commitment 27¢ 27¢ — — —
Total contractual cash obligatio $8,42: $4,192 $3,95¢ $ 16C $ 11¢

67



Table of Contents

Notes:
(1) Includes interest payments. Assumes level of releivaerest rates remains at December 31, 2018| texoughout all relevant perioc

In addition to the commitments set forth in thetcactual obligations table above, we have certatstanding purchase orders relating to
the procurement of raw materials for which thererar definite delivery dates or deadlines.

Item 6. Directors, Senior Management and Employee
Directors and Senior Management

Our board of directors currently comprises of riirectors who were elected by our shareholders.rilimber of directors must not be
less than three nor greater than nine accordiogitdye-laws, is determined by our board of direstiut so long as a quorum of directors
remains in office, our board of directors shall @@ower at any time and from time to time to appairy individuals to be directors to fill
casual vacancies up to such maximum number oftdr®cThe quorum for a meeting of the directors m@yixed by our board and unless so
fixed at any other number, shall be two individudlse chairman of our board is appointed from amtwegmembers of our board.

There is no requirement under Bermuda law thatecttir be a shareholder.

The following table sets out the names of our dinecand executive officers, their positions withr ctompany and their ages as of
March 31, 2014. The business address for our direeind executive officers is No. 1, R&D Road lindsu Science Park, Hsinchu, Taiwan,
and Republic of China.

Name Age Position Term Expires
Shir-Jye Cheng 55 Chairman and Director/Chief Executive Offic 2014
Antonio R. Alvarez 57 Independent Directc 2014
Chin-Shyh Ou 56 Deputy Chairman and Independent Dire« 2014
Hsinc-Ti Tuan 69 Director 2015
Yeonc¢-Her Wang 57 Independent Directc 2015
Shot-Kang Cher 52 Chief Financial Officer and Directt 2015
John Yee Woon Se! 69 Independent Directc 2016
Chac-Jung Tsa 59 Director 2016
Rong HsL 63 Independent Directc 2016
Carl Lei 50 Acting President of ChipMOS Shangt —
Lafair Cho 51 Chairman and President of Thail —
Li-Chun Li 57 Chief Operating Office —
Steve Cheni 51 President of ChipMOS US —
Vincent Hsu 45 Vice President, LCDD Production Gro —
Michael Lee 48 Vice President, Wafer Bump Production Grc —
Ivan Hsu 48 Vice President, Memory Production Gra —
Jesse Huan 47 Vice President, Assembly Production Gr¢ —
David W. Wang 64 Vice President, Strategy and Investment Relat —
I-Fan Chianc 55 Vice President, .T.M. Centt —
Ahsan Kyu 62 Vice President of ChipMOS US —
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Shih-Jye Chenbas served as one of our directors and chief execaofficer since our inception. He became our chain in May 2004.
He is the sibling of President of ChipMOS USA, I8teve Cheng and was our deputy chairman from aption to May 2004. He has also
served as a director and president of ChipMOS Tiaisuiace 1997, the chairman of ChipMOS Taiwan sihage 2003, the chairman of ThaiLin
from 2002 to 2013. He was a director of SyntaxiBuil Corporation from November 2005 to June 2088,dhairman of ChipMOS Shanghai
from 2002 to June 2005, the chairman of CHANTEK EORRONIC CO., LTD. (“Chantek”) from 2002 to Novemi2005, the chairman of
ChipMOS Logic from January 2004 to November 2088,¢hairman of Advanced Micro Chip Technology Ctd, from 2003 to April 2004
and a director of Ultima Electronics Corp. from 230 June 2003. He was a division head of the leackoperation of Mosel from 1992 to
1997. Mr. Cheng has a master’s degree in busireamatration from Saginaw Valley State Universityr. Cheng was indicted by the Taipei
District Prosecutor’s Office for matters relatirgthe purchase by ChipMOS Taiwan and ThaiLin ofaierrepurchase notes in 2004.
Mr. Cheng was found not guilty by the Taipei DistitCourt on October 1, 2007 and by the High CoarSeptember 3, 2013. The Taiwan High
Court’s Prosecutor’s Office has filed a petitiom &ppeal against the High Court’s decision on Septr 18, 2013. For more information,
please see “Item 3. Key Information—Risk FactorsskRiRelating to Our Business—The ongoing crimimatpeding of and adverse
publicity associated with Mr. Shih-Jye Cheng, otiaitman and Chief Executive Officer, and Mr. HunlghtCHu, our former director, could
have a material adverse effect on our businesgaumse our stock price to decline”.

Antonio R. Alvarehas served as one of our directors from July 2B05Alvarez is the chief operating officer of Apéinmaging. Prior t
that he was the chief operating officer of Advanéalogic Technology from October 2011 until itgjaisition by Skyworks in January 2012
and president and chief executive officer of Ledaishnology Inc. from November 2005 to January 2B669was senior vice president and
general manager of the memory products divisioBygress Semiconductor Corporation from 1998 to 205, and senior vice president of
research and development from 1991 to 2001. Heshulikter's and bachelor’s degrees in electricahergng from Georgia Institute of
Technology, where he is a member of the advisoaydof the Electrical Engineering Department. Ha imember of the Institute for Electric
and Electronic Engineers. Mr. Alvarez also serveshe Board of Sun-Edison Corporation since 2012.

Chin-Shyh Ounas served as one of our directors since Augus®.286 has been the deputy chairman since Augu$t. 204 has served
a director of ChipMOS Taiwan since June 2007. Mr.j@ned the National Chengchi University as aroeisge professor in 1993 and a
professor in 1997. In 1998, he joined National Gh@meng University as a professor and the chairofigime Department of Accounting. He
led a project to establish the Graduate Institfi®kagounting and Information Technology at Natio@&ung Cheng University in 1999. Mr. (
earned a master degree in Public Policy and Managefrom Carnegie Mellon University, and a Ph.Dgrée in Business Administration
(Accounting) from the University of Minnesota. MPu holds several professional licenses and quatiios, including U.S. Certified Public
Accountant and Certified Internal Auditor.

Hsing-Ti Tuarhas served as one of our directors since Augu€).2@6 Tuan was the executive vice president oM®& Technologies
Inc. in charge of R&D from 2005 to 2010. Mr. Tuaasthe president of Mosel Vitelic Corp., USA fro®94 to 2009. Mr. Tuan was the acti
president of Mosel from November 2004 to Decemi@®52and previously served as the executive vicsigeat of their research and
development division. He was also the vice pregidéMosel from 1992 to 1996. Mr. Tuan holds a redstdegree in electrical engineering
from Utah State University and a bachelor’'s degmesdectrical engineering from National Cheng Kusigiversity in Taiwan.

Yeong-Her Wandas served as one of our directors since July 2884 member of the board of directors of ChipM@$van. He has
been a professor in the Department of Electricagiigering of National Cheng Kung University sin@92. He serves as the vice president of
National Applied Research Laboratories between 20@72012. He was also an associate dean of theg€af Engineering between 1999
2003, chairman of the Department of Electrical Begring between 1996 and 1999, associate direttbedepartment of Electrical
Engineering between 1993 and 1996 and directdreoElectrical Factory, College of Engineering otibilaal Cheng Kung University between
1995 and 1996. He has been the independent dirgcarfon Electronic Corp. and Giga Solution Téai since 2006 and 2007, respectively
Mr. Wang holds Ph.D., master’'s and bachelor's degfeom National Cheng Kung University in Taiwan.

Shou-Kang Chehas served as one of our directors since June P0Bas served as our chief financial officer, stee relations officer
and head of the finance division of ChipMOS Taivgarce 2002. He was the head of our strategy desslapdepartment from 2000 to 2001.
He was the department head of the quality lab @pK2®S Taiwan from 1998 to 2000. Mr. Chen holds eHgdor’s degree in mining and
petroleum engineering and a master of science degré a Ph.D. degree from the graduate schoolmifhgjimetallurgy and material science
National Cheng Kung University in Taiwa
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John Yee Woon Setas served as one of our directors since Augu€).28& was a member of ChipMOS’s Board of Direcfoosn
August 2000 to May 2004. Dr. Seto was a foundersamior vice president of operation and stratelzinning of Vitelic Corporation U.S.A. t
served as the executive vice president of the basigroup of Mosel Vitelic Inc. from 1995 to 206t was a director of Mosel Vitelic Inc.
from 1999 to 2008. He served on the board of dirsdn a number of companies, such as ProMOS Téaties Inc. and Advanced Analogic
Technologies Inc. He has been the president and @E@ernational Capture Tech Co LTD since 2006.hHeélds a Ph.D. in electrical
engineering from University of California at Ber&gl

Chao-Jung Tsdhas served as one of our directors since Noven@®t. Mr. Tsai was a director of ChipMOS Taiwan frdamuary 2001
to December 2005, as a representative of SilicoeRagcision, where he was a director from June 20@®cember 2009 and served as a
supervisor from June 2002 to June 2005. He wasaatspervisor of Phoenix Precision Technology @Qd. from June 2005 to December 2C
He was previously president of Grand Cathay Seearo., Ltd. and assistant vice president of Chiinest Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.
Mr. Tsai received his bachelor’s degree in stastiom National Cheng Kung University and mastdegree in management of technology
from National Chiao Tung University in Taiwan. Heldls Taiwan CPA and CFA licenses.

Rong Hsuvas appointed by our board of directors on Octdh@008 to fill the vacancy from Mr. Takaki Yamaslaésignation. He has
served as one of our directors from July 2005 tgust 2008. He has been the director of Device tatemn, QMT since February 2009. He |
been the vice president of Spatial Photonics limcesMay 2006. He was a founder of eLCOS Microdigplechnology Group where he was
the president from April 2001 to December 2005jaedirector of operations at Aurora Systems Confrl999 to March 2001, director of
manufacturing for micro-display systems and testin§-Vision Co. from 1996 to 1999, manager of nfiacturing at nCHIP Co. from 1991 to
1996, research engineer at Lawrence Livermore Nakibaboratory from 1988 to 1991 and senior engiaeéntel Corporation from 1982 to
1988. He has a doctorate degree in material engirgefrom the University of Maryland, a master’'sgydee in material science from Brown
University and a bachelor’'s degree in mechanicgireering from National Taiwan University. He isoanding member and senior advisor of
the Chinese American Semiconductor Professionabdason.

Carl Lei has served as the acting president and vice presifl@ssembly and testing operations of ChipMO&nghai since July 2010.
Mr. Lei was the deputy director of Backend Operratid ProMOS from 2004 to 2010 and product manafidtasel from 1998 to 2003. Mr. L
received his bachelor’s degree from Feng Chia Usityein Taiwan.

Lafair Chohas served as ThaiLi&chairman since June 17, 2013, the president Biacember 1, 2003 and a director since Decembt
2002. He was vice president of ThaiLin from Febyuhr2003 to November 30, 2003. He has also seasedce president of the memory
production group of ChipMOS Taiwan from July 2003Agust 2004 and as a director of ChipMOS TaiwamfOctober 2003 to June 2007.
He served as a deputy assistant vice presidehedfx testing division of ChipMOS Taiwan from Ap2000 to December 2001 and as an
assistant vice president of the IC testing divisibChipMOS Taiwan from January 2002 to January36: served as manager of production
material control of Mosel from 1993 to 1997. Hedwoh master’s degree in industrial management Kational Cheng Kung University in
Taiwan.

Li-Chun Lihas served as the Chief Operating Officer of Chi@vidiwan since January 2010. Prior to joining ChiB] he served as
vice president of the Product Engineering grouplosel-Vitelic (U.S.A.) and ProMOS Technologies Inc. fr@d03 to 2009, and vice presid
of product development in Mosel-Vitelic (U.S.A.)daMosel-Vitelic (Taiwan) from 1992 to 2003. Mr. téceived a bachelor’s degree in
electrical engineering from the University of Catifia, Berkeley.

Steve Cheng the sibling of our Director, Chairman and Chiadecutive Officer, Mr. Shih-Jye Cheng and has stas&the president of
ChipMOS U.S.A. since August 2008. Mr. Cheng hasexias the director of Finance and Administratm@hipMOS U.S.A. since July 2004.
He has been serving in ChipMOS U.S.A. since NoveriB89. He received a bachelor’'s degree in busibasking and insurance from Feng
Chia University in Taiwan.

Vincent Hsithas served as ChipMOS Taiwan'’s vice president ddD@roduction group since March 2012. He was aasistice
president of ChipMOS Taiwan from 2007 to 2012. Eeeived a master’s degree in Electrical Enginedrmg National Sun Yat-sen
University in Taiwan.

Michael Leehas served as ChipMOS Taiwan'’s vice president éémizump production group since November 2011 doel president
for wafer sort business group since June 2004. ateagsistant vice president of ChipMOS Taiwan fB@®3 to 2004. Mr. Lee received a
master’s degree from National Chiao Tung UniversitJaiwan.

Ivan Hsuhas served as ChipMOS Taiwan'’s vice president eharg production group since December 2004. He wapMOS
Taiwan’s assistant vice president from 2003 to 2804 deputy assistant vice president from 200D@82Mr. Hsu received a bachelor’s
degree from Feng Chia University in Taiwan.
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Jesse Huanpas served as ChipMOS Taiwan'’s vice president grably production group since April 2007. He wasdlksistant vice
president of assembly engineering division formetg received a bachelor’s degree in Physics froocBow University in Taiwan.

David W. Wandhas served as ChipMOS Taiwan'’s vice presidentrafeqfy and investor relations since May 2013. higejd ChipMOS
Taiwan as vice president of strategy and developwemter in 2007. Prior to joining ChipMOS, he wias vice president of Fibera, Inc. from
2001 to 2007. Mr. Wang served as Senior Directraat Research where his responsibilities includad product introduction, system
integration, field escalation and management obregj teams from 1996 to 2001. Mr. Wang also worla@dBM’s Microelectronics Division
where he as Senior Engineer/ Manager led advaragdiging materials, process development and magketganizations. Mr. Wang is a
member of IEEE and SEMI Taiwan Packaging and Testi@ittee and holds 45 US patents. He receivedii® Bnd M.S. from the Universi
of Michigan and Bachelor of Science degree frond&u University.

I-Fan Chianghas served as ChipMOS Taiwan'’s vice president bf Oenter since July 2010. Mr. Chiang was a vicesigient of
Websurf Technologies Taiwan from 2003 to June 280 Chiang also served as a vice president ofuiitmc. from 2000 to 2003.
Mr. Chiang holds a bachelor’'s degree in Electrdéhigineering from Tamkang University in Taiwan.

Ahsan Kythas served as Vice President of ChipMOS USA sil0€¥ 2or sales and engineering department. He hasdajged and
handled most of ChipMOS’ most strategic and valu&dbased customers. Mr. Kyu holds a Bachelor's Begn Chemistry and Master's
Degree in Electrical Engineering. He has over 3 yef experience in the semiconductor assemblineagng field, with past experiences
providing professional services to notable compasigch as Texas Instruments (formerly National Senductor), Integrated Device
Technology, United Test and Assembly Center Lttharitek, Integrated Silicon Solution Inc. and Siie@are Precision.

Board Practice and Terms of Directorship

Our board of directors consists of three classeBrettors. The first class, consisting of Shih-@Qfeng, Antonio R. Alvarez and Chin-
Shyh Ou, is up for re-election at the annual gdmeegeting in 2014 and then every third annual galn@eeting thereafter. The second class,
consisting of Hsing-Ti Tuan, Yeong-Her Wang and &Kang Chen, is up for re-election at the annuakgal meeting in 2015 and then every
third annual general meeting thereafter. The tbliads, consisting of John Yee Woon Seto, Chao-Jsagand Rong Hsu,is up for edection a
the annual general meeting in 2016 and then ey annual general meeting thereafter.

Any director vacates his or her office if he or:she

. is prohibited by law from being a director or ceagebe a director by virtue of the Bermuda Comeswict;

. resigns from his or her offici

. becomes bankrupt under the laws of any countrnpopounds with his or her credito

. becomes of unsound mind or a patient for the p@pdsny statute or applicable law relating to rakhealth and the board
resolves that his or her office is vacated

. is removed by a resolution passed by our sharetsiitea special general meeting called for thapgse.
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Share Ownership

The following table sets forth certain informatias of March 31, 2014 with respect to our commomeshawned by our directors and
executive officers.

Number of
Percentage
Number of of Shares Exercise Price
Common Issued and Options of Options Expiration Date of

Name Shares Helc  Outstanding Held @) (US$) Options
Shir-Jye Cheng 623,58« 2.1% 100,56: 2.55-11.143! 2014/8/3-2018/8/3.
Antonio R. Alvarez — — * * *
Chin-Shyh Ou — — * * *
Hsinc-Ti Tuan * * * * *
Yeonc-Her Wang * * * * *
Shot-Kang Cher * * * * *
John Yee Woon Se! & & & & &
Chac-Jung Tsa — — * * *
Rong HsL * * *
Carl Lei * * * * *
Lafair Cho — — * * *
Li-Chun Li — — * * *
Steve Cheny * * — — —
Vincent Hsu — — * * *
Michael Lee — — * * *
Ivan Hsu * * * * *
Jesse Huan * * * * *
David W. Wanc — — * * *
I-Fan Chian¢ — — * * *
Ahsan Kyu — — — — —
Notes:

* Indicate actual numbers held and/or including oygtiexercisable or vested within 60 days after M&%th2014, would beneficially own less than 1% of ordinary share
(1) Each option covers one of our common she

Compensation Committee

The aggregate compensation paid in 2013 to ouctdire and our executive officers, including castt aocrued pension payable upon
retirement, was approximately NT$125 million (US$#lion). In 2013, we granted options to purchag,260 of our common shares and
13,480 cash-settled share appreciation rights talioectors and executive officers as set fortthimtable below. These options share
appreciation rights will vest over a period of fgsars, with an equal proportion vesting on eachugfust 31, 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017,
except for certain options granted on August 31, 32hat vested on August 31, 2014.

Considerations paid for options

Number of common shares issuable upon exercise gitmns / share appreciation rights
Number of caslt-settled share appreciation rights Expiration date Exercise price (US$ granted
172,160 August 31, 201 14.0675 None
30,000 August 31, 202 14.0675 None
13,480 August 31, 201 14.0675 None

We do not provide our directors with any benefigomi termination of employment.

Our compensation committee currently consists afMitonio R. Alvarez, Dr. John Yee Woon Seto and®Rong Hsu, all of whom are
independent directors according to NASDAQ MarketplRules requirements. This committee reviews andmmends to our board of
directors the compensation of all our directors affiders on at least an annual basis.

72



Table of Contents

Audit Committee

Under our audit committee charter adopted on Fehr2@, 2001 and amended on May 14, 2004, Decenthe20D4, August 27,
2009, August 31, 2012 and May 24, 2013, our augtitroittee:

is directly responsible for the appointment, congagion, retention and oversight of the work of external auditors or any other
public accounting firm engaged for the purposereppring or issuing an audit report or to perfourdig review or attestation
services

oversees our accounting principles and policiesyftial reporting and internal control over finaheceporting, internal audit
controls and procedures, financial statements @aeliendent audit

meets with management, our external auditors &magpiropriate, the head of the auditing departnediscuss audited financial
statements, audit reports or other communicatioefjding, without limitation, any audit problemsdifficulties relating to our
financial statements, any major issues regardieguatting principles and the adequacy of our intlecoatrol over financial
reporting;

pre-approves, or adopts appropriate proceduresetagprove all audit and non-audit services, if,gmgvided to us by our external
auditors;

establishes our internal complaints procedureHferéceipt, retention and treatment of complaietgived by us regarding
accounting, internal accounting controls or auditinatters, and for the confidential, anonymous ssion thereof by our
employees

evaluates the independence of and discuss with geament the timing and process for implementing ti&tion of the audit
partners of the outside auditors; ¢

reviews and approves all our related party transas!

The audit committee currently consists of Dr. J¥lee Woon Seto, Dr. Chin-Shyh Ou and Dr. Yeong-Heang/ all of whom are
independent directors according to NASDAQ MarketplRules requirements. Dr. Chin-Shyh Ou servesfiagacial expert to the Audit
Committee.

Nominations Committee

Under our nominations committee charter adopteAuwgust 26, 2005, our nominations committee:

identifies individuals qualified to become membefshe board of directors, selects or recommendsimees to the board of
directors and, in the case of a vacancy of a direotcommends to the board of directors an indiido fill such vacancy

develops and recommends to the board of directanslards to be applied in making determinatiorn® dlse absence of material
relationships between us and a direc

identifies members of the board of directors qgigdito fill vacancies on any committee thereof esmbmmends the appointment
the identified member(s) to the respective commj

assists our management in the preparation of 8wdadiure in our annual proxy statement regardiegtberations of the
nominations committee; ar

performs any other duties or responsibilities eggisedelegated to the nominations committee byotard of directors from time to
time relating to the nomination of members of toadd of directors and any committee ther

Dr. Yeong-Her Wang, Dr. Rong Hsu and Dr. Chin-Syhare currently the members of our nominationsrodtee.

Special Committee

In connection with the indictment of Mr. Shih-Jybehg by the Taipei District ProsecumOffice, our board of directors formed a spe
committee to evaluate the circumstances surrounttiemgndictment. As of March 31, 2014, the specaahmittee was solely comprised of
Mr. Yeong-Her Wang, our Company’s independent dinecT he special committee has engaged K&L GateB (formerly Kirkpatrick &
Lockhart Preston Gates Ellis LLP) as its independ#arnational legal counsel and Baker & McKenrageits independent ROC legal counsel,
and Ernst & Young (formerly know as Diwan, Ernsty&ung) as its accounting advisor to assist inve@ation and provide recommendatic
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On June 28, 2006, the special committee issuedptsit, including its findings and recommendatiddased upon the results of its
investigation, it found that: (1) Mr. Cheng hasldeed himself not guilty of the charges describethe indictment; (2) Baker & McKenzie,
after reviewing the indictment and the prosecutexkibits, have found that the evidence producethbyprosecutor seems to be inadequate
and that there is a low probability of the chargethe indictment being founded; (3) the finanadlisor to the special committee have found
that we suffered no loss (not taking into accowehange rate factors) and that all monies (capitdlinterest) were remitted back to our
subsidiaries involved; (4) we have suffered no iifiaible harm to our reputation or our business] &) Mr. Cheng has not been impaired by
the indictment to perform as our chairman and obxefcutive officer. The special committee recomneehtthat our board maintains Mr. Cheng
as our chairman and chief executive officer with fesponsibilities and our board unanimously (wNh Cheng having recused himself)
resolved to accept and adopt the special commstiegommendation with regard to Mr. Cheng.

Our board of directors also resolved to contingertie of the special committee, for the duratibthe ongoing criminal proceeding
involving Mr. Cheng to actively monitor any devetnents of the criminal investigation and take ooremend any appropriate action in light
of such developments.

During its engagement by the special committeest&nYoung identified certain internal control weedsses that existed during the
relevant period of the special committee’s investign within ChipMOS Taiwan, ThaiLin and ChipMOSdio (which was merged into
ThaiLin on December 1, 2005). These weaknessesiwareas related to segregation of duties anegfarate governance on investment
authorizations, insufficiency of training for fingial personnel in respect of derivative transaati@nd non-compliance with the applicable
ROC regulations. These identified internal contvebknesses have either been addressed previousiyeibeen remedied by our company
and our subsidiaries.

In light of the identification of these internalrtool weaknesses, the special committee recommethdethe audit committee of the
board of directors lead a special task force apdnteo the board of the directors as to the eiffecess of the implementation of internal cor
over financial reporting, with an aim to enhance campany’s financial personnel’s knowledge of dative transactions. The board of
directors unanimously resolved to accept and at@pspecial committee’s recommendation in this nega

In August 2006, we engaged Ernst & Young to desgain employee training sessions regarding diévivéransactions and the
applicable accounting treatment for these transasti

See “Item 3. Key Information—Risk Factors—Risksa&iglg to Our BusinessFhe ongoing criminal proceeding of and adverseipitp
associated with Mr. Shih-Jye Cheng, our ChairmahGinief Executive Officer, and Mr. Hung-Chiu Hu rdarmer director, could have a
material adverse effect on our business and cawsstack price to decline”.

Employees
The following table sets forth, as of the datesdatkd, the number of our full-time employees sagin the functions indicated:

As of
As of December 31 March 31,

Function 2011 2012 2013 2014
General operatior 3,19¢ 3,06¢ 3,43¢ 3,27¢
Quality control 384 40C 40€ 38¢
Engineering 1,377 1,34t 1,36 1,28¢
Research and developmt 27¢€ 313 33C 353
Sales, administration and finan 22¢ 17€ 17¢ 16¢
Others 33E 383 37E 372
Total 5,79¢ 5,68¢ 6,08¢ 5,84t

74



Table of Contents

The following table sets forth, as of the datesdatéd, a breakdown of the number of our full-tiemeployees by geographic location:

As of
As of December 31 March 31,

Location 2011 2012 2013 2014
ThaiLin 59¢€ 544 52C 47¢
ChipMOS Taiwan Hsinchu Production Gro 1,664 1,56/ 1,68( 1,63:
ChipMOS Taiwan Southern Taiwan Production Gr 2,997 2,96z 3,28: 3,131
Shangha 531 60¢ 60C 597
Japan and the United Sta 6 7 6 6
Total 5,79¢ 5,68¢ 6,08¢ 5,84t

Our employees are not covered by any collectivgdiamg agreements. We have not experienced aikgstor work stoppages by our
employees and believe that our relationship withesaployees is good.

Share Option Plan and Share Appreciation Rights Pla

We adopted a broad-based share option plan in 2@tith was amended at a special general meetindasoh 19, 2004 to increase the
number of shares available for issuance underttheeoption plan from 1,450,000 to 2,250,000. Iiyést 2006, we adopted a second broad-
based share option plan, which has 1,750,000 shaedsble for issuance. In September 2011, we tadog third broad-based share option
plan, which has 1,000,000 shares available foaisse. Each share option plan provides that ouctiirg, officers, employees and those of our
affiliates may, at the discretion of our board wédtors or a committee, be granted options tolmase our shares at an exercise price of no le:
than the par value of our common shares. The bmrattte committee has completed discretion to ddatexmwhich eligible individuals are to
receive option grants, the number of shares sutjesdch grant, the exercise price of all optior@ted, the vesting schedule to be in effect fo
each option grant and the maximum term for whiathegranted option is to remain outstanding, up teeaimum term of ten years. Shares
available for issuance under these plans are rispleth by shares that were subject to forfeitedeaqpired share options.

In 2011, we granted 692,624 share options, witBxarcise price, at the time of grant, ranging fld8%$4.59 to US$6.222 per share. In
2011, 148,403 share options were forfeited, nitsloptions were expired and 96,103 share optiome @eercised. In 2012, we granted
204,316 share options, with an exercise pricehatitne of grant, ranging from US$11.1095 to US$435 per share. In 2012, 103,426 share
options were forfeited, 289,268 share options vesgred and 668,246 share options were exerciae2D13, we granted 688,996 share
options, with an exercise price, at the time ohgreanging from US$9.2225 to US$14.0675 per sHar2013, 75,944 share options were
forfeited, 253,194 share options were expired @33 share options were exercised. As of DeceBihe2013, we had 1,565,023 share
options outstanding, with an exercise price ran@iiom US$2.3796 to US$21.488.

In September 2006 and August 2008, we adoptedra gipareciation rights (“SARs”) plan pursuant taethwe may issue up to
500,000 and 750,000 cash-settled SARs to our dirgobfficers, employees and those of our affiiaténder the share appreciation rights plar
each holder of SARs, issued thereunder will betledtto receive, on the applicable exercise datsh in an amount equal to the excess of the
market value of our common shares on such datetheerxercise price of such rights. Our board téators or a relevant committee thereof
has completed discretion over the administratiothefshare appreciation rights plan, including oheiieing the recipients of the share
appreciation right awards, the number of rightsraed, the exercise date, the exercise price arat othevant terms. Unless earlier terminated
by our board of directors or the relevant board wittee, the plan will remain effective until Septeean 2016 and August 2018.

In 2011, 525,885 SARs were granted, with an exengige, at the time of grant, ranging from US$2.1&bUS$6.222. In 2011,
70,621 SARs were forfeited, nil SARs were expirad 82,832 SARS were exercised. In 2012, 43,660 S#éte granted, with an exercise
price, at the time of grant, ranging from US$11369US$11.1435. In 2012, 67,375 SARs were forfeilb4,106 SARs were expired and
231,270 SARs were exercised. In 2013, 521,020 S#dte granted, with an exercise price, at the tifrgrant, ranging from US$9.2225 to
US$14.0675. In 2013, 46,501 SARs were forfeited3B3 SARS were expired and 249,563 SARs were esaziciAs of December 31, 2013,
we had 812,429 SARs outstanding, with an exergise jpat the time of grant, ranging from US$2.448)5$14.0675.

Where applicable, the share numbers and exerdise @frour share option plan and share appreciaiigns plan disclosed in the
foregoing paragraph are adjusted to reflect thecefif the Company’s 1-for-every-4 reverse stodit sffective on January 21, 2011.
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Item 7. Major Shareholders and Related Party Transactions
Major Shareholders

The following table and information set out certaiformation as of March 31, 2014 regarding the emhip of our common shares by
(1) each person known to us to be the owner of riiwe five percent of our common shares and (2)ate amount owned by our directors
and executive officers as a group.

Percentagt
Number of
Identity of person or group shares owne Owned
Baupost Group LLC/MAD 3,283,23! 11.0
He & Fang 2005 Revocable Living Tr®@ 2,583,63 8.7
Siliconware Precision Industries Co., L® 2,243,74 7.5

Directors and executive officers, as a gr4 696,69¢ 2.3

Notes:

(1) According to the Schedule 13G filed by Baupost @rbuC/MA with the SEC on February 13, 20:

(2) According to the Schedule 13G/A filed by He Zhengiith the SEC on January 8, 20:

(3) Siliconware Precision completed a share purchadeainscription transaction with ChipMOS Taiwan ascn March 27, 2007, pursuant to which we and i Taiwan purchase
all of Siliconware Precision’s equity interest ihigMOS Taiwan, and Siliconware Precision subscritee®,043,749 of our common shares through a fgipacement. See “ltem 4.
Information on the Company—Our Structure and Histe€hipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC.Tn November 2012, Siliconware Precision sold 800,8i8ares pursuant to the Secont
Offering.

(4) Excludes exercisable/vested options of our comshares and Mosel’'s beneficial ownership of ammon shares which may be considered to be bealéfibield by some of our
directors or officers. Includes shares held byaierfamily members of certain directo

The share numbers disclosed in the foregoing natesadjusted to reflect the effect of the Companyfor-every-4 reverse stock split effective onuky 21, 2011.

As of March 31, 2014, approximately 88% of our coomnshares were held of record by shareholdersdddatthe United States. All
holders of our common shares have the same vaghtsrwith respect to their shares.

Related Party Transactions
ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC.

On April 16, 2013, as part of ChipMOS Taiwan’sikigt plan on the TWSE, we completed the sale ofiilbon outstanding ChipMOS
Taiwan shares or 0.8% of the total number of Chi@Maiwan’s outstanding shares, at the price of NI per share to ChipMOS Taiwan’s
underwriters for the TWSE listing plan, Yuanta S#t@s Company Limited and Capital Securities Coand to certain others, including non-
US employees of ChipMOS Taiwan. Also, from Septen#)013 to October 3, 2013, we completed anataker of 180 million outstanding
ChipMOS Taiwan shares or 21.4% of the total nunab€hipMOS Taiwan'’s outstanding shares, at thegpoitNT$20.0 per share to investors
and certain non-US employees of ChipMOS TaiwanAQril 9, 2014, ChipMOS Bermuda sold approximatel§ fnillion ChipMOS Taiwan
shares as “green shoe” option to market inveskg®f the date of this Annual Report on Form 2QvE,continue to own approximately
522 million ChipMOS Taiwan shares representing 8of ChipMOS Taiwan'’s outstanding shares. See “l8eidey Information—Risk
Factors—ChipMOS Taiwan’s ability to maintain itsting and trading status on the Taiwan Stock Exgbeas dependent on factors outside of
the Company or ChipMOS Taiwan’s control and satisfa of stock exchange requirements. ChipMOS Taiway not be able to overcome
such factors that disrupt its trading status omtlaén board of Taiwan Stock Exchange or satisfgo#ligibility requirements that may be
required of it in the future” for additional infoation on ChipMOS Taiwan'’s listing plan.
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Siliconware Precision Industries Co., Ltd.

As of March 31, 2014, Siliconware Precistmmed 7.5% of our outstanding common shares ar8%46f ChipMOS Taiwan’s
outstanding shares. On March 27, 2007, we compketdthre purchase and subscription transaction@hithpMOS Taiwan and Siliconware
Precision, under which we and ChipMOS Taiwan pusehaall of Siliconware Precision’s equity inter@sChipMOS Taiwan, and Siliconware
Precision subscribed to 3,043,749 (adjusted tecethe effect of 1-for-every-4 reverse stock sgffiective on January 21, 2011) of our newly
issued common shares through a private placemaigMDS Taiwan became our wholly-owned subsidianseptember 14, 2007. In
February 2010, we agreed to sell 15.8% of ChipM@Bvan's outstanding shares to Siliconware Precisitve share purchase transaction wa:
completed in January 2011. In April 2014, as pa€lipMOS Taiwans listing, Siliconware Precision sold 225 thousantstanding ChipMO
Taiwan shares as “green shoe” options. As of the adfathis Annual Report on Form 20-F, we own 60&8d Siliconware Precision owned
15.4% of ChipMOS Taiwan'’s outstanding shares. &iligare Precision is an independent provider of sentiuctor testing and packaging
services. Siliconware Precision currently has, iarekpected to continue to have from time to timéhie future, contractual and other business
relationships with us. No revenue was derived f&ilitonware Precision in 2011. From April 2011 omds Siliconware Precision is not our
related party as it owned less than 10% of ourtanténg common shares.

Mosel Vitelic Inc.

As of March 31, 2014, Mosel indirectly owned 1.3%oar outstanding common shares. Mosel designsrarifactures semiconductor
products, including DRAM, SRAM, flash memory, LCRdother flat-panel display driver semiconductard power-related semiconductors.
Mosel and its affiliates currently have, and arpested to continue to have from time to time inftitare, contractual and other business
relationships with us. Commencing April 1, 2011,9dband its direct and indirect subsidiaries aréonger related parties to the Company.

Registration Rights Agreements with Siliconwareciien, Giant Haven, ProMOS and Powertech Technplag.

In March 2007, we issued 3,043,749 common shanesipat to a share purchase and subscription agréevith ChipMOS Taiwan and
Siliconware Precision, and we entered into a reggisi rights agreement, dated March 27, 2007, @iliconware Precision, pursuant to which
Siliconware Precision agreed not to sell or othseewransfer any of our common shares it acquirdddarshare purchase and acquisition for a
period of nine months after March 27, 2007, andyveanted to Siliconware Precision certain rights|uding demand registration, “piggyback”
registration and Form F-3 registration rights,dquire us to register its common shares for sadethe Securities Act. In addition, we entere
into a registration rights agreement, dated Augu&007, with Giant Haven, ProMOS and Powertecthiielogy Inc., pursuant to which we
granted to Mosel, ProMOS and Powertech Technologydertain registration rights, including custoyndemand and “piggybackégistratior
rights, to register its common shares for the safsur common shares under the Securities Act. &mdil 2009, ThaiLin acquired
1,015,158 common shares from ProMOS pursuant gnftsrcement of the collateral under a Stock Pleligreement entered into between
ThaiLin and ProMOS dated December 3, 2008.

The share numbers disclosed in the foregoing paphgare adjusted to reflect the effect of the Camjsal-for-every-4 reverse stock
split effective on January 21, 2011.

ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Shanghai) LTD.

Since 2002, we have managed our PRC operationgMO®% Shanghai, through Modern Mind, our controBetsidiary. Whilst we did
not own any equity interest in Modern Mind, we tadtrolled Modern Mind through our ownership of M&T Notes. Under the MMT
Assignment Agreement signed on April 22, 2011, G/Q$s Bermuda has agreed to sell the MMT Notes tdlihdor a purchase price of
approximately US$40 million subject to certain éhgsconditions. The Assignment Agreement transaatimmpleted in October 2011 and
ThaiLin immediately converted the MMT Notes intammon shares of Modern Mind and purchased all oféhgaining common shares of
Modern Mind from Jesper, with ChipMOS Shanghai meicg a wholly-owned subsidiary of ThaiLin.

Under a technology transfer agreement dated Augud02 which expired on August 1, 2012, we licensertain technologies and
systems, and agreed to provide certain techniggd@tiand consulting services to ChipMOS Shangtlating to those technologies and
systems, and ChipMOS Shanghai paid an aggreg&t&$25 million to us in 2002 for the technology aeavices we provide under this
agreement. Under another technology transfer agreedated October 3, 2011 which became effectivawgjust 1, 2012, we licensed certain
technologies and systems, and agreed to providaircéechnical support and consulting serviceshipRlOS Shanghai relating to those
technologies and systems, and ChipMOS Shanghapayilan aggregate of RMB27 million to us by forigtallments on the last day of each
quarter during the term of this agreement.

77



Table of Contents

On July 1, 2010, ChipMOS Bermuda and ChipMOS Shangitered into an exclusive services agreemensppat to which ChipMOS
Shanghai will provide its services exclusively ti@MOS Bermuda or customers designated by ChipM@&®nBda. Under the exclusive
services agreement, ChipMOS Bermuda agrees to rgresome of the equipment and consign such equipfoense by ChipMOS Shanghai.
The exclusive services agreement has a term ofeters and will automatically be renewed for periofiten years, unless terminated by either
party at least 30 days prior to the expirationuafisten-year term. In addition, ChipMOS Bermuda rreagninate the exclusive services
agreement at any time by giving 30 days’ prior cati

ThaiLin Semiconductor Corp.

On March 4, 2008, ChipMOS Taiwan made a loan iarmount of NT$145 million that bears interest aat@ of 4.69% per annum to
Kolin, a major shareholder of ThaiLin. The loan veaginally secured by a pledge by Kolin of 11 meil common shares of ThaiLin. On
August 22, 2008, Kolin repaid NT$15 million of tlean. On December 23, 2008, ChipMOS Taiwan notietin to proceed with the transfer
of the collateral’s ownership, the payment of udgdaan and interest accrued in the amount of NT$tB@n, and the payment of interest
incurred due to loan repayment default under tha.l®n January 20, 2009, Kolin informed ChipMOS theould not fulfill request made by
ChipMOS, including the transfer of shares sinds firohibited to do so under an interim restrictvder of disposition. Subsequently, Kolin
was granted on March 27, 2009, pursuant to a rafifpiwan District Court on (Civil Ruling No.7 aridb.9 of 2009), the approval for its
reorganization and declaration of creditor’s riglygglication. Therefore, such shares shall stilibemed as the creditor’s collateral. ChipMOS
made the creditor’s rights application on April 2009. On January 31, 2011, a final ruling of Taivtigh Court (Civil Ruling No.186 of
2010) confirmed its approval of the reorganizaftem of Kolin. On March 15, 2012, ChipMOS Taiwarered into an agreement with Kolin
whereby Kolin agreed to dispose of the common shaf@hailLin that were pledged to ChipMOS Taiwad ase the proceeds to settle the
outstanding debt to ChipMOS Taiwan. The loan hazhlfelly repaid and the subject pledge has be@aseld accordingly in 2013.

As of March 31, 2014, ThaiLin did not hold any efr@utstanding shares. ThaiLin’s previous holdimgjudes 1,015,158 shares acquired
pursuant to ThaiLin’s enforcement of the collatgnalvided by ProMOS under the Stock Pledge Agre¢miated December 3, 2008, entered
into between ThaiLin and ProMOS, 506,364 sharearaatated from the Rule 10b5-1/10b-18 securitiesipase program launched in
December 2008, and 467,059 shares acquired pursutirg interest shares payment and 4,485,630shargiired pursuant to the conversion
of 2009 Notes in March 2011. In November 2012, Timasold 2,000,000 shares under the Secondary i@ffein May 2013, ThaiLin sold
380,506 shares to Tokyo Seimitsu. In November 20iBJanuary 2014, ThaiLin sold 2,000,000 share2d188,705 shares, respectively, to
ChipMOS Bermuda and the shares were then retirddamncelled.

The share numbers disclosed in the foregoing paphgare adjusted to reflect the effect of the Camjsal-for-every-4 reverse stock
split effective on January 21, 2011.
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ProMOS Technologies Inc.
As of March 31, 2014, Mosel directly and indireathyned 12.0% of ProMOS.

On July 1, 2003, ChipMOS Taiwan entered into a {targn agreement with ProMOS, under which ChipMO$vaa reserves a specified
amount of capacity for DRAM testing and assemblyises to ProMOS and under which ProMOS guararttegtace orders in the amount of
the reserved capacity. This agreement was supasedely 2007 when ChipMOS Taiwan and ProMOS enténto a new long-term
agreement with similar terms and conditions, extlegt under the new agreement, ProMOS will givep®IDS six month rolling forecast on
testing and assembly service orders to be placad,tand ProMOS guarantees that such orders ikksent no less than certain percentage c
ProMOS’ total production volume of these produetsc{uding OEM products). The price for the serviocE€hipMOS Taiwan under this
agreement will be agreed upon quarterly, subjecettain price adjustments. If ChipMOS Taiwan iglie to test and assemble the agreed
number of DRAM, ProMOS may use a third party toemthe shortfall and ChipMOS Taiwan may be lialole 8mong other damages, any
operation loss of ProMOS caused by such delay padditional costs in using a third party to cothe shortfall. If ProMOS fails to place
orders in the amount of the reserved capacity, KGi§ Taiwan is entitled to damages calculated basetthe difference between the value of
the reserved capacity and the value of the acted gapacity, provided that the value of the capagi ChipMOS Taiwan that has been used
for other customers shall be deducted. In Marc82800MOS failed to place orders in the amounhefreserved capacity. In November 2(
we entered into a revised subcontracting contrétt RroMOS by requiring ProMOS to provide wafershna value of 80% of the
subcontracting fee as collateral. In May 2009, réhkr revised subcontracting contract was entertedly and between us and ProMOS under
which ProMOS provided us with wafer as pledge aratRAIn-Process, or WIP and existing finished goasldien material. Part of ProMOS’
receivables will be recovered through sales oplkdged wafer and lien material back to ProMOS wittiscount to market price, and the
remaining outstanding accounts receivables wiéeured by equipment mortgage under the same coatrangement. Effective March 20
we started to request prepayment from ProMOS. ABeaiember 31, 2009, other receivables from ProM@&8uamted to NT$409 million and
100% allowance was made by ChipMOS Taiwan. NT$Tonilwas received by April 2010. Under the amensigldcontracting contract,
ProMOS paid ChipMOS Taiwan NT$200 million in May1ZD The remaining NT$202 million was paid in ninenthly installments with final
installment payment ending on March 15, 2011. ABetember 31, 2010, ChipMOS Taiwan received NT$88kon and the related
allowance of NT$409 million was reversed to othen+operating income. All payments have been receivéarch 2011. In May 2010, the
collection term provided to ProMOS was revised@addys upon delivery and this was further reviged3 days upon delivery in October
2010. Since June 2011, we request ProMOS to pashiance prior to delivery.

As of December 31, 2009, other receivables fronM@¥8 amounted to NT$55 million and 100% allowance weade by ThaiLin. In
June 2010, ThaiLin agreed a settlement with ProNtOte amount of NT$24 million and it was collectating the same year. The allowance
of NT$24 million was reversed to other non-opemiimcome. Commencing in June 2010, the collec&omtwas revised to 30 days upon
delivery. In January 2011, the collection term wegsed to 45 days after delivery. Since June 20&lrequest ProMOS to pay in advance
prior to delivery.

Commencing April 1, 2011, since Mosel is no longeelated party to us, ProMOS is also not consitlets related party.

Item 8. Financial Information
Consolidated Financial Statements and Other Finanal Information
Please see “Iltem 18. Financial Statements” andspigethrough F-60.
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Legal Proceedings

In February 2006, ChipMOS Taiwan and ChipMOS USéeieed notice of a lawsuit filed by Tessera Techgds, Inc., or Tessera. The
complaint was initially filed in United States Dist Court for the Northern District of Californ{&ivil Action No. C05-04063CW), or the
California court. In an amended complaint, Tesselded ChipMOS Taiwan and ChipMOS USA, among sewehar semiconductor
companies, as co-defendants. The amended comalkEges that ChipMOS Taiwan, ChipMOS USA and theeoto-defendants infringed
certain patents owned by Tessera and that ChipM&\8anh is in breach of a license agreement with d@s®r the Tessera license agreement
Tessera also sought unspecified damages and injemetief. ChipMOS Taiwan and ChipMOS USA havep@sded to the lawsuit by denying
Tessera’s claims of patent infringement and bredadontract. ChipMOS USA and ChipMOS Taiwan hawmahised various counterclaims
for declaratory judgment and related affirmativéetises that the Tessera patents are invalid antfangeable. In May 2007, the California
court, with the concurrence of ChipMOS Taiwan atip®OS USA, stayed all litigation in the Californtaurt as a result of a related
investigation by the International Trade CommissimmiTC, initiated by Tessera against certain ptdwedefendants. In addition, a defendar
in the Tessera lawsuit requested the United SRdént and Trademark Office to reexamine the palbdity of each of Tessera’'s patents that
are at issue in the case in the California coure flequests were granted and, in February 200).thePatent and Trademark Office conclL
that certain claims of the patents were invalidtenbasis of prior art. In April 2008, ChipMOS Barda, ChipMOS USA and ChipMOS
Taiwan received notice that Tessera requestedifBdd initiate another investigation alleging tkta¢ sale for and after importation into the
United States as well as importation into the UWhBtates of certain small format non-tape based B&aiconductor packages by ChipMOS
Bermuda, ChipMOS Taiwan and ChipMOS USA infringesthof the five Tessera patents at issue in the pasding in the California court.
Tessera sought, among other things, an investigaiiadhe ITC and general exclusion orders to pribkhle infringing products from entry into
the United States. The ITC initiated the invesimain May 2008. On March 13, 2009, after the clokdiscovery, Tessera submitted a reques
to terminate the proceedings at the ITC, whichjuldge granted on July 17, 2009. No petitions fotew were filed. The ITC issued an orde
terminate the investigation on August 7, 2009. Ruthe completion of a companion investigation agaother companies by ITC, the stayed
litigations in the Northern District of Californi@sumed in January 2012. On July 19, 2012, Te$iéedaa stipulation with the California court
dismissing its breach of contract claim againstabm@panies. Accordingly, this litigation was thénited to only Tessera’s patent infringement
allegations against the companies. A court-ordarediation was held on December 13, 2012 but wasasessful. On November 8, 2013, we
entered into a settlement agreement with Tessétingahe subject matter. As part of the Settlem®greement, ChipMOS Taiwan agreed to
pay a one-time payment of US$1,375 thousand, imdu#0% Taiwan tax withholding, to Tessera in exd®for Tessera releasing,
discharging and agreeing to never sue ChipMOS Bean@hipMOS Taiwan and ChipMOS USA relating toltbense agreement. On
November 9, 2013, the parties filed a stipulatiatihwthe Court to dismiss the pending litigatis

In April 1999, Motorola, Inc. (“Motorola”) and ChigOS Taiwan entered into an immunity agreement ‘(fggeement”) whereby each
party covenanted not to sue each other for the@isertain Ball Grid Array (“BGA”) patents. In Degder 2004, Motorola spun off its
semiconductor division, and thereby formed Frees8aimiconductor, Inc. (“Freescale”), who then agsiiMotorola’s rights and obligations
under the Agreement. On October 16, 2006, Freescdlterally terminated the Agreement, allegingtt@hipMOS Taiwan breached the
Agreement. ChipMOS Taiwan argued that Freescalglateral termination of the Agreement has no lexjdct, and continues to accrue
royalty payments for products it believes are ceddry the Agreement. The payments previously retliby Freescale and accrued by
ChipMOS Taiwan have been deposited in a separateveaccount. On July 13, 2009, Freescale allelgadChipMOS Taiwan breached the
Agreement by failing to pay royalties on certainB@ackages assembled by ChipMOS Taiwan. ChipMO®dmifiled an answer to deny all
allegations, and also filed counterclaims agaimsescale alleging that Freescale engaged in patisnse by seeking to obtain royalties on
certain of ChipMOS Taiwan’s BGA products that wace covered by any Freescale patent included uhdefAgreement, and for declaratory
judgment of patent n-infringement and invalidity. On December 11, 20B&escale filed a motion to dismiss the declaygtmtgment
counterclaims filed by ChipMOS Taiwan and to sthyther patent related claims and issues untiitsach of contract claims could be
decided. On July 29, 2010, the Court found thattgeeement constituted a “Total Sales Royalty” agnent, however, Freescale’s motion wa:
partly denied for patent misuse issue. A mediatvas held between the parties on October 28, 200.&/&4s unsuccessful. The fact discovery
and expert discovery process regarding patent miisgsie closed in middle June 2011. An Order grgrifreescale’s motion for partial
summary judgment and denying ChipMOS’ cross-mofisrpartial judgment was given on September 8, 2&h1Order granting in part and
denying in part ChipMOS’ Motion for Reconsiderati@as given on March 30, 2012. The Court reinst&teippMOS’ claims for patent misuse
and its affirmative defenses for patent exhaustedual mistake and license. Freescale refiled @tians to strike ChipMOS’ jury demand and
for summary judgment on ChipMOS’ affirmative defea®f exhaustion, mutual mistake and license. Thatthas granted those motions on
January 24, 2013 and later denied ChipMOS Taiwantian for reconsideration of those rulings in Af@113. On June 20, 2013, ChipMOS
Taiwan entered into a settlement agreement withdeae to resolve pending lawsuit between thegzaii a judicial settlement conference
conducted in the Court. As part of the settlemgnéement, ChipMOS Taiwan agreed to pay Freesca$8Wsllion to settle the claims in
exchange the parties entering into a new Licensedxgent for the use of Freescale’s BGA packagidignelogy from 2011 to 2015 and filing
a Joint Stipulation for the Dismissal of all claipsnding between them. The Joint Stipulation faniissal was filed on July 26, 2013 and the
case was closed by the Court.
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Other than the matters described above, we wermwalved in any material litigation in 2013 anckarot currently involved in any
material litigation.

For certain information regarding legal proceedirgjating to certain of our current and former dices, see “ltem 3.—Key
Information—Risk Factors—Risks Related to Our Bess—The ongoing criminal proceeding of and adveuddicity associated with
Mr. Shih-Jye Cheng, our Chairman and Chief Exeeu@¥ficer, and Mr. Hung-Chiu Hu, our former diregtoould have a material adverse
effect on our business and cause our stock pridec¢bne”.

Dividend Policy

Company paid a cash dividend of US$0.14 per comshane for a total cash cost of US$4.1 million onaDer 30, 2013 to all common
shareholders of record on relevant record date pBlyenent of future dividends is subject to the Bitscontinuing determination that the
payment of dividends are in the best interestt®@Q@ompany’s shareholders and are in compliandeallitaws and agreements of the
Company applicable to the declaration and distidiout

Item 9. The Offer and Listing
Listing

Since March 17, 2010, the NASDAQ Capital Market basn the principal trading market for our commibarss, which are not listed or
qguoted on any other markets in or outside the drfiiates. Our common shares were formerly quotadeNASDAQ Global Market
(formerly the NASDAQ National Market) under the dyoh“IMOS” since June 19, 2001, and our common efavere formerly quoted on the
NASDAQ Global Select Market since July 1, 2006. THgSIP number for our common share“G2110R114". Our Shareholders approved a
reverse stock split of ChipMOS’s common stock inuky 2011 with a ratio of 1-for-every-4 shareefifve on January 21, 2011. As a result,
the number of outstanding shares of ChipMOS comstock is reduced to 27,725,782 shares, from 11(838Q8hares prior to the reverse
stock split becoming effective. As of March 31, 20there were 29,773,557 common shares issuedusthanding. The table below sets forth
for the periods indicated, historical prices fog thigh, low and average closing prices on the NA&Mational Market, the NASDAQ Global
Select Market or the NASDAQ Capital Market for aammon shares.

NASDAQ Price per share(l)

(US$)
High Low Average
2009 3.97 0.8C 2.4t
2010 7.6¢ 2.4C 4.8(
2011 9.81 4.4¢ 6.94
2012 19.0¢ 547 11.9]
2013 20.6C 10.3z 15.8¢
2012
First Quarte 19.0¢ 5.47 10.9:
Second Quarte 18.4¢ 9.61 12.6¢
Third Quartel 15.8¢ 8.7¢ 12.41
Fourth Quarte 16.0: 9.74 11.5¢
2013
First Quarte 13.32 10.3z 11.2¢
Second Quarte 19.3t 12.3¢ 16.4Z
Third Quartel 20.6( 15.0¢ 17.1¢
Fourth Quarte 20.6( 15.8¢ 18.1¢
2013
Novembel 20.4¢ 15.8¢ 17.6¢
Decembe 20.6C 19.0: 19.71
2014
January 19.57 18.1: 18.8¢
February 22.9¢ 1841 20.7¢
March 23.1€ 21.4( 22.5¢
First Quarte 23.1¢ 18.1: 20.7¢
April (through April 23, 2014 23.3t  21.0: 22.1¢
Note:

(1) The figures in the table contain historical priceecting the effect of our reverse stock spliiethwas approved by our Shareholders on Januarg@1,.
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Item 10. Additional Information
Description of Share Capital

Our authorized share capital is US$3,250,000 ctnsfs62,500,000 common shares of par value US$e@4hare, and 18,750,000
preferred shares of par value US$0.04 per share.

Common Shares

Each shareholder is entitled to one vote for eachncon share held on all matters submitted to a @bshareholders. Cumulative voting
for the election of directors is not provided fordur byelaws, which means that the holders of a majoritthefshares voted can elect all of
directors then standing for election.

Preferred Shares

Currently there are no specific rights attachethéopreferred shares. The specific rights of tleégored shares could include rights,
preferences or privileges in priority to our comnstrares and the establishment of such rights aiehegyation to the board of directors to
establish such rights will need to be approveddnyshareholders. As of March 31, 2014, no prefesteates have been issued by our compan

Bermuda Law

We are an exempted company organized under theuBker@ompanies Act. The rights of our shareholdergaverned by Bermuda law
and our memorandum of association and bye-laws BEmmuda Companies Act differs in some materigheets from laws generally
applicable to United States corporations and tteareholders.

Dividends

Under Bermuda law, a company may not declare odpagiends from time to time by its board of dire if there are reasonable
grounds for believing that the company is, or waafler the payment be, unable to pay its liabaites they become due or that the realizable
value of its assets would thereby be less thdialtdities. ( However, in order to avoid the possibility of arauthorised reduction of capital,
the Company complies with former requirement otisec54(1)(b) of the Bermuda Companies Act, i.attivthenever the board of directors is
making determination based on the latter benchmtr& realizable value of its assets, it shouldsater whether the realizable value of its
assets would thereby be less than the aggregate ladbilities, issued share capital and share pigm account$, rather than “liabilities”
alone.). The holders of common shares are entitledceive dividends out of assets legally avaddbt such purposes at times and in amount
as our board of directors may from time to timesd®ine. Any dividend unclaimed for a period of gears from its date of declaration will be
forfeited and will revert to our company.

Voting Rights

Under Bermuda law, except as otherwise providadierBermuda Companies Act or our bye-laws, questimaught before a general
meeting of shareholders are decided by a majodtg of shareholders present at the meeting. Outdwe provide that, subject to the
provisions of the Bermuda Companies Act, and exfethe resolutions for approving the extraordynansaction, any question properly
proposed for the consideration of the shareholdéld¥e decided by a simple majority of the votast either on a show of hands or on a poll,
with each shareholder present (and each persombgddoxies for any shareholder) entitled to ontevan a show of hands, or on a poll, one
vote for each fully paidip common share held by the shareholder. In the @&an equality of votes cast, the chairman ofntleeting shall hay
a second or casting vote. Any resolution for antheffollowing extraordinary transactions will réguthe approval of shareholders holding at
least 70.0% of the total voting rights of all theaeeholders having the right to vote at such mgetin

. a resolution for the merger, amalgamation or ahgmotonsolidation of us with any other company, niekier incorporatec
. a resolution for the sale, lease, exchange, transfether disposition of all or substantially aflour consolidated assets;
. a resolution for the adoption of any plan or pr@der the liquidation of our compan

Rights in Liquidation

Under Bermuda law, in the event of liquidation daneing-up of a company, after satisfaction in fafilall claims of creditors and subject
to the preferential rights accorded to any serfggeferred shares, the proceeds of the liquidatiowinding-up are distributed pro rata in
species or in kind among the holders of our comsfares in accordance with our bye-laws.
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Meetings of Shareholders

Under Bermuda law, a company is required to conatieast one general shareholders’ meeting asrmumégeneral meeting each
calendar year, unless according to the provisidiseoBermuda Companies Act, shareholders eledisfpense with the holding of annual
general meetings. Bermuda law provides that a apgeneral meeting may be called by the boardretttirs and must be called upon the
request of shareholders holding not less than 10&tegpaid-up capital of the company carrying tightto vote. Bermuda law also requires
that shareholders be given at least five days’ ackwaotice of a general meeting but the accidem@gsion to give notice to any person does
not invalidate the proceedings at a meeting. Undebye-laws, we must give each shareholder writtitice at least five days prior to the
annual general meeting, unless otherwise agreed bliareholders having the right to vote at thmaiuel general meeting, and written notice a
least five days prior to any special general meetimless otherwise agreed by a majority of shddehns having a right to vote at that special
general meeting, and together holding at least 868#te paid-up capital of the company carryingrilgét to vote at that meeting.

Under Bermuda law, the number of shareholders itatisy a quorum at any general meeting of shaadrslis determined by the bye-
laws of the company. Our bye-laws provide thatast two shareholders present in person or by progyholding shares representing at least
50% of the total voting rights of all shareholdkeawving the right to vote at the meeting constitutpiorum. Our bye-laws further provide that,
in respect of a general meeting adjourned for Gfaguorum, at least two shareholders present isgueor by proxy holding shares representin
33 1/3% of the total voting rights of all shareherisl having the right to vote at the meeting comtia quorum.

Access to Books and Records and Dissemination offéemmation

Under Bermuda law, members of the general puble tlae right to inspect the public documents obmpany available at the office of
the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda. These dontsieclude a company’s certificate of incorporafiils memorandum of association
(including its objects and powers), and any alterato its memorandum of association and docunretdsing to an increase or reduction of
authorized share capital. The shareholders havadti¢ional right to inspect the byaws of the company, minutes of general meetingd,the
company’s audited financial statements, which, ssmbkgreed by all shareholders and directors, naukstith before the annual general meeting.
The register of shareholders of a company is gh&mao inspection by shareholders and by membetseajeneral public for not less than two
hours each day without charge. Any member of thdipumay require a copy of the register, or of gayt thereof, on the payment of a fee. A
company is required to maintain its share regist®&ermuda but may, subject to the provisions afnBela law, establish a branch register
outside Bermuda. We maintain a share register milian, Bermuda and a branch register in New Jeld&A. A company is required to keep
at its registered office a register of its direstand officers which is open for inspection for lesis than two hours each day by members of th
public without charge. Bermuda law does not, howepmvide a general right for shareholders to ét$r obtain copies of any other
corporate records.

Election or Removal of Directors

Under Bermuda law and our bye-laws, directors breted or appointed at an annual general meetidgarve until re-elected or re-
appointed or until their successors are electeappointed, unless they are earlier removed foreeausesign or otherwise cease to be director
under Bermuda law or our bye-laws.

A director may be removed for cause at a speciaigd meeting of shareholders specifically calledtiiat purpose, provided that the
director is served with at least 14 days’ notidee Tirector has a right to be heard at that meefing vacancy created by the removal of a
director at a special general meeting may be fiéiethat meeting by the election of another direittdnis or her place or, in the absence of any
election by the shareholders, by the board of thrsc

Board Actions

Our bye-laws provide that the quorum necessaryh®transaction of business is two individual dioeg of the board, and that questions
arising at a properly convened meeting of the bo&nirectors must be approved by a majority ofihtes present and entitled to be cast. In
the case of an equality of votes, the chairmaheihteeting is entitled to a second or casting vote.

The board of directors may appoint any of our dvecto act as our managing director or other seiecutive, on such terms and
conditions as it may determine, including with @spto remuneration.
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Amendment of Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws

Bermuda law provides that the memorandum of assogiaf a company may, with the consent of the Bligi of Finance of Bermuda (if
required), be amended by a resolution passed etergl meeting of shareholders of which due ndtasebeen given. Our bye-laws, other than
the bye-law separating our board of directors thtee classes, may be amended by the board otatiseEthe amendment is approved by a
majority of votes cast by our directors and by shereholders by a resolution passed by a majdritgptes cast at a general meeting. Any
amendment to our bye-law separating a board o€fdire into three classes must be approved by candbaf directors and by shareholders
holding shares representing at least 60% of tla votting rights of all our shareholders having tigit to vote at such general meeting.

Under Bermuda law, the holders of an aggregat®déss than 20% in par value of a comparigsued share capital or any class of is
share capital have the right to apply to the Beran@durt for an annulment of any amendment of thearandum of association adopted by
shareholders at any general meeting. Where ancagipl is made, the amendment becomes effectiyetorthe extent that it is confirmed by
the Bermuda Court. An application for the annulmefran amendment of the memorandum of associatigst be made within 21 days after
the date on which the resolution altering the camgfsamemorandum of association is passed and mayade on behalf of the person entitled
to make the application by one or more of their hamas they may appoint in writing for the purpdse.application may be made by persons
voting in favor of the amendment.

Appraisal Rights and Shareholder Suits

Under Bermuda law, in the event of an amalgamaiios merger of two Bermuda companies, a sharehwaierdid not vote in favour of
the amalgamation or the merger and who is notfeatithat fair value has been paid for such shddsns shares may apply to the Bermuda
Court to appraise the fair value of those sharhs.Bermuda Companies Act provides that, subjettteéderms of a company’s bye-laws, the
amalgamation or merger of a Bermuda company wittthean company requires the amalgamation or megyereanent to be approved by the
board of directors and, except where the amalgamati merger is between a holding company and ongooe of its wholly-owned
subsidiaries or between two or more wholly-ownelosgdiaries, by meetings of the holders of sharemach company and of each class of suc
shares at a meeting of the shareholders by seVigntpercent of the members present and entitladte at that meeting in respect of which
the quorum shall be two persons holding or reptésgat least one-third of the issued shares dfieampany or class, as the case may be.
Under our bye-laws, any resolution proposed foisaeration at any general meeting to approve thgengamalgamation or any other
consolidation of our company with any other compamyerever incorporated shall require the appro¥alur shareholders holding shares
representing at least 70% of the total voting sgbftall our shareholders, and the quorum to bbesst 2 shareholders present in person or by
proxy holdings shares representing at least 50#beofotal voting rights of all our shareholders.

Class actions and derivative actions are genenaliyavailable to shareholders under Bermuda law. Bérmuda Court, however, would
ordinarily be expected to permit a shareholdemimmence an action in the name of a company to rgmedong done to the company where
the act complained of is alleged to be beyond thiparate power of the company or is illegal or veébrdsult in the violation of the company’s
memorandum of association or bye-laws. Furtheridenstion would be given by the Bermuda Court tts #tat are alleged to constitute a
fraud against the minority shareholders or, fotanse, where an act requires the approval of agrparcentage of the compasghareholde|
than that which actually approved it.

When the affairs of a company are being conductedmanner oppressive or prejudicial to the intereBsome part of the shareholders,
one or more shareholders may apply to the Bermwdat@or an order regulating the company’s cona@ffairs in the future or compelling
the purchase of the shares by any shareholdetthiey shareholders or by the company.

Exchange Controls
The following discussion is based on the advicAmfleby, our Bermuda counsel.
The BMA, has designated us as rresident for exchange control purposes. The BMAgnaated its consent under the Exchange Co

Act 1972 and regulations promulgated thereundettfeiissue or transfer to non-residents of Bernfadaxchange control purposes of our
common shares, subject to the common shares remgajooted on the NASDAQ Capital Market.

Share Issuance and Transfers by Non-Bermuda anchi#a Residents

Under Bermuda law, there are no limitations onrigbts of non-Bermuda residents to hold or votértbleares of Bermuda companies.
Because we have been designated as a non-resid&erimuda exchange control purposes, there arestactions on our ability to transfer
funds in and out of Bermuda or to pay dividend&hited States residents who are holders of our comshares other than in respect of local
Bermuda currency.
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Under Bermuda law, we are an exempted companyxa&mpted company is exempt from the provisions ohBela law, which stipula
that at least 60% of the equity must be beneficialined by Bermuda persons. Persons regardedidsm=ssof Bermuda for exchange control
purposes require specific consent under the Exeh@uaaptrol Act 1972 to acquire securities issuedifyThe Exchange Control Act 1972
permits companies to adopt bye-law provisions irgdab the transfer of securities. None of Bermlade, our memorandum of association or
our bye-laws imposes limitations on the right akign nationals or non-residents of Bermuda to leoidshares or vote such shares.

As an exempted company, we may not participateitam business transactions, including, amongrstlf#) the acquisition or holding
of land in Bermuda, except (i) land acquired ferliusiness by way of lease or tenancy agreemeanttiym not exceeding fifty years, or
(i) with the consent of the Minister of Financeagted in his discretion, land by way of lease aatey agreement for a term not exceeding
twenty-one years in order to provide accommodatiorecreational facilities for its officers and dimyees; (2) the taking of mortgages on lanc
in Bermuda to secure an amount in excess of US88@@&hout the consent of the Bermuda Minister iofaRce; (3) the acquisition of any
bonds, or debentures secured on any land in Berexmpt bonds or debentures issued by the Govetromarpublic authority; or (4) the
carrying on of business of any kind in Bermudaegtcamong others, to carry business with persatsde Bermuda, in furtherance of our
business carried on outside Bermuda or under adegranted by the Bermuda Minister of Finance.

The Bermuda government actively encourages fori@igestment in exempted entities like us that asedan Bermuda but do not opel
in competition with local business. In additionhi@ving no restrictions on the degree of foreign emship, we are subject neither to taxes ot
income or dividends nor to any foreign exchangdrotsmin Bermuda. In addition, there is no capifains tax in Bermuda, and profits can be
accumulated by us without limitation.

Director’s Interests

Under our bye-laws, our director may, notwithstagdhis office be a party to, or otherwise interdste any transaction or arrangement
with our company or in which our company is othesvinterested. He or she may also be a directoifioer of, or employed by, or a party to
any transaction or arrangement with, or otherwiserested in, any corporate body promoted by ompamy or in which our company is
interested. Therefore, where it is necessary, 80 & our director declares the nature of his pirtterest at the first opportunity at a meetin
the board or by writing to the directors as reqiiing the Bermuda Companies Act, that director siatllby reason of his or her office be
accountable to our company for any benefit he erddrives from any office or employment to which bye-laws allow him or her to be
appointed or from any transaction or arrangementhich our bye-laws allow him or her to be inteegstand no such transaction or
arrangement shall be liable to be avoided on thargt of any such interest or benefit. A generaicedio our directors by a director or officer
declaring that he or she is a director or officehas an interest in a person and is to be regasl@uterested in any transaction or arrangemen
made with that person shall be sufficient declaratf interest in relation to any transaction saagement so made.

Share Issuance and Transfer

We have been designated as a non-resident for egelwntrol purposes by the BMA, whose permissioritfe issuance and transfer of
common shares has been obtained subject to the eorsinares being quoted on the NASDAQ Capital Market

The transfer of common shares between personsdegjas non-resident in Bermuda for exchange coptngloses and the issuance of
shares after the completion of the currently coplated offering of our common shares to those persoay be effected without specific
consent under the Exchange Control Act 1972 of Belarand regulations thereunder subject to the canshares remaining quoted on the
NASDAQ Capital Market. Issuance and transfer ofsbdo any person regarded as resident in Bernardax€hange control purposes reqt
specific prior approval under the Exchange Conwil 1972.

There are no limitations on the rights of pers@garded as non-residents of Bermuda for foreighaxge control purposes who own
common shares to hold or vote their common sh&iase we have been designated as a non-resideBeforuda exchange control purposes,
there are no restrictions on our ability to tran$éeds in and out of Bermuda or to pay divideral§/hited States residents or other non-
residents of Bermuda who are holders of commoreshather than in respect of local Bermuda curreRaythermore, it is not our intent to
maintain Bermuda dollar deposits and, accordinglif,not pay dividends on the common shares in Betancurrency.
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Share certificates are issued only in the namesgforations or individuals, being the registerettibrs of shares as represented by sucl
share certificates. Where an applicant for comniares acts in a special capacity, such as an examutrustee, certificates may, at the req
of that applicant, record the capacity in which éipplicant is acting. Our recording of any specaacity, however, shall not be construed as
obliging us either to investigate, or to incur aagponsibility or liability in respect of, the prapadministration of any trust or estate. Except a
ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction orexguired by law, regardless of whether or not weehzad notice of a trust, no notice shall be
taken of any trust, equitable, contingent, futur@artial interest in any share or any interestny fractional part of a share or any other right i
respect of any common shares except an absoliitietoighe entirety thereof in the registered halder

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Appleby Management (Bermuda) Ltd. serves as oucjpal registrar and transfer agent in Bermudalfercommon shares.
Computershare Shareowner Services, LLC servesrddroted States transfer agent and registrar fercttmmon shares.

Material Contracts

We have entered into the following contracts witthia two years preceding the date of this AnnugdReon Form 20-F that are or may
be material:

. On February 26, 2010, the Company entered int@eegturchase agreement (the “Share Purchase Agn€¢méh Siliconware
Precision to sell to Siliconware Precision our lraddof 133 million common shares of ChipMOS Taiweith a consideration of
approximately NT$1,630 million. The purchase shaegsesent 15.8% of the total number of ChipMOSwEai's outstanding
shares. Under the terms and conditions of the Sharehase Agreement, Siliconware Precision paigbtiiehase price in four
installments to ChipMOS Bermuda, with the finaltaibnent scheduled to be paid on or before Margh2811. The share purchase
transaction was completed in January 2(

. On February 26, 2010, ChipMOS Taiwan entered intequipment purchase agreement (the “EquipmenthBaecAgreement”)
with Siliconware Precision to purchase its DRAMi¢es and LCD driver assembly and test equipmetit avjppurchase price of
approximately NT$1,630 million. Under the terms aodditions of the Equipment Purchase AgreemenpM®S Taiwan will pay
the purchase price in four installments to SilicanevPrecision, with the final installment paid arbefore March 31, 2011. All of
the purchased equipment will be shipped to andliest at ChipMOS’ plant no later than July 31, 20tQJanuary 2011, the
Company has paid the final installment to SilicorsvBrecision and completed the Equipment Purchgseefnent transactio

. On April 22, 2011, the Company entered MMT Assigntnggreement with ThailLin to sell the MMT NotesTbailLin for a
purchase price of approximately US$40 million sabje certain closing conditions. The MMT Assignrh&greement was
completed in October 2011. Post completion of tidTVAssignment Agreement transaction, ThaiLin imnagely converted the
MMT Notes into common shares of Modern Mind andcpased all of the remaining common shares of Moléna from Jesper,
with ChipMOS Shanghai becoming a wh-owned subsidiary of ThailLir

. On July 14, 2011, ChipMOS Taiwan obtained a syrditéoan facility from banks in Taiwan in the ambohNT$8,410 million
separated into two parts with its respective teffioor years and five years. This loan facility wesed to refinance the existing
bank debts and equipment leases in July and Aafist. As of December 31, 2011, this loan faciligsviully drawn

. On October 26, 2012, the Company entered Undengrifigreement with ThaiLin, Siliconware Precisiomvizn and Company,
LLC and Crai-Hallum Capital Group LLC for the Secondary Offerimigup to 2.8 million Compar's Common Share

. On May 20, 2013, ThaiLin entered Share Purchasedgent with Tokyo Seimitsu for the sale of 380,8@8npany’s Common
Shares for a purchase price of approximately USi#itom

. On November 21, 2013, the Company entered Shash&e Agreement with ThaiLin for the purchase 693,705 Company’s
Common Share:

. On September 5, 2013, the Company entered Shacbdaer Agreement with ADATA Technology Co., LTdy, fioe purchase of
8 million ChipMOS Taiwan’'s Common Shares at a pat&lT$20 per share and for a total consideratioNT$160 million (US$5
million).

. On September 5, 2013, the Company entered Shacbdaer Agreement with GIC Private Limited for theghase of

33,646 thousand ChipMOS Taiwan’'s Common Shareeta of NT$20 per share and for a total considlenaf approximately
NT$673 million (US$23 million)
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. On September 5, 2013, the Company entered Shacbddar Agreement with Soaring Elite Limited. for puechase of 15 million
ChipMOS Taiwa’'s Common Shares at a price of NT$20 per sharearaltbtal consideration of NT$300 million (US$1@limn)

. On September 5, 2013, the Company entered Shacbdaer Agreement with TLC Capital Co., Ltd for theghase of
9,750 thousand ChipMOS Taiwan’'s Common Sharegata of NT$20 per share and for a total considenadf NT$195 million
(US$7 million).

. On September 5, 2013, the Company entered Shacbdaer Agreement with Yi-Feng Chen for the purclodde million
ChipMOS Taiwa’s Common Shares at a price of NT$20 per sharearaltbtal consideration of NT$260 million (US$9lioh).

Please see also “Item 7. Major Shareholders anat&kParty Transactions” for further summary infation regarding the contracts
listed under “Item 10. Additional Information — Maital Contracts” that are with certain of our rethparties.

Bermuda Taxation

This summary is based on laws, regulations, trpatdyisions and interpretations now in effect andilable as of the date of this Annual
Report on Form 20-F. The laws, regulations, trgabyisions and interpretations, however, may chatgay time, and any change could be
retroactive to the date of issuance of our comnihames. These laws, regulations and treaty pro\ésioe also subject to various interpretati
and the relevant tax authorities or the courtsattatler disagree with the explanations or conchsiget out below.

At the date hereof, there is no Bermuda incomegamation or profits tax, withholding tax, capitaligs tax, capital transfer tax, estate
duty or inheritance tax payable by us or our shaldehrs other than shareholders ordinarily residleBermuda. We are not subject to stamp or
other similar duty on the issuance, transfer oenggtion of our common shares.

We have obtained an assurance from the Ministéirance of Bermuda under the Exempted UndertaKilagsProtection Act 1966 that,
in the event there is enacted in Bermuda any ksl imposing tax computed on profits or incomeamputed on any capital assets, gain or
appreciation, or any tax in the nature of estatg duinheritance tax, such tax shall not be apiie to us or to our operations, or to the
common shares, debentures or our other obligatintisMarch 28, 2016, except insofar as such tgliap to persons ordinarily resident in
Bermuda and holding such common shares, deberdums other obligations or any real property @skehold interests in Bermuda owned by
us. No reciprocal income tax treaty affecting ustxbetween Bermuda and the United States.

As an exempted company, we are liable to pay immBela an annual government fee calculated on anglgtale basis by reference to
assessable capital, which is the aggregate ofudthpazed common share capital and the premiumuorissued common shares currently at a
rate not exceeding US$31,120 per annum.

United States Federal Income Tax Consequences

The discussion below is for general informationycand is not, and should not be interpreted tddeadvice to any holder of our
common shares. Each holder or a prospective hofdaur common shares is urged to consult his, hés@wn tax advisor.
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General

This section is a general summary of the matenatdd States federal income tax consequences toHél8ers, as defined below, of the
ownership and disposition of our common shared #seadate of this report. This summary is basetherprovisions of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended, or the Code, the apldidabasury regulations promulgated and proposecetinder, judicial decisions and cur
administrative rulings and practice, all of whiake aubject to change, possibly on a retroactivesbdbe summary applies to you only if you
hold our common shares as a capital asset witkimianing of Section 1221 of the Code. The UnitateS Internal Revenue Service, or the
IRS, may challenge the tax consequences descridded band we have not requested, nor will we reguesiling from the IRS or an opinion
of counsel with respect to the United States fddacame tax consequences of acquiring, holdindisposing of our common shares. This
summary does not purport to be a comprehensiveaigésn of all the tax considerations that may bkevant to the ownership of our common
shares. In particular, the discussion below doéganer tax consequences that depend upon youcyarttax circumstances nor does it cover
any state, local or foreign law, or the possiblpli@ation of the United States federal estate firtgk. You are urged to consult your own tax
advisors regarding the application of the Uniteat&t federal income tax laws to your particularation as well as any state, local, foreign an
United States federal estate and gift tax consempseaf the ownership and disposition of the comstmares. In addition, this summary does
not take into account any special United Statesriddncome tax rules that apply to a particulg®.Lar Non-U.S. Holder of our common
shares, including, without limitation, the follovgn

. a dealer in securities or currenci

. a trader in securities that elects to use a m-to-market method of accounting for its securities hagjd,;

. a financial institution or a ban

. an insurance compan

. a ta>-exempt organizatior

. a person that holds our common shares in a hedigingaction or as part of a straddle or a convernsansaction
. a person whose functional currency for United Stételeral income tax purposes is not the U.S. g

. a person liable for alternative minimum t;

. a person that owns, or is treated as owning, 10#bave, by voting power or value, of our common ebs

. certain former U.S. citizens and residents who lexmatriated; o

. a person that receives our shares pursuant todreige of employee stock options or otherwisecsspensation

U.S. Holders
For purposes of the discussion below, you are &.“Holder” if you are a beneficial owner of our aoon shares who or that is:

. an individual United States citizen or residen¢mlof the United States (as specifically definedfoited States federal income tax
purposes)

. a corporation, or other entity treated as a cotpmrdor United States federal income tax purposesated or organized in or under
the laws of the United States, any State or th&iDi®f Columbia;

. an estate whose income is subject to United Statkesal income tax regardless of its source

. a trust (x) if a United States court can exerciseary supervision over the trust’'s administrateord one or more United States
persons are authorized to control all substangalsiions of the trust or (y) if it was in existerme August 20, 1996, was treated «
United States person prior to that date and hadid &lection in effect under applicable Treaswagulations to be treated as a
United States perso

If a partnership holds our common shares, thertatrent of a partner will generally depend upandiatus of the partner and upon the
activities of the partnership. If you are a partoka partnership holding our common shares, youlshconsult your tax advisor.
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Distributions

Subject to the “passive foreign investment compghyFIC”) rules discussed below, for cash dividerttie gross amount of any such
distribution (other than in liquidation) that yoeceive with respect to our common shares genesdllype taxed to you as dividend income to
the extent such distribution does not exceed ouentior accumulated earnings and profits (“E&RY,calculated for U.S. federal income tax
purposes. Such income will be includable in yoursgrincome as ordinary income on the date of redeipidends received by individuals and
certain other non-corporate taxpayers from “quadifioreign corporations” are taxed at the ratetbee 0 percent, 15 percent or 20 percent,
depending upon the particular taxpayer’s U.S. fa@idacome tax bracket; provided that the recipsmreholder has held his or her shares as
beneficial owner for more than 60 days during tB&-tlay period beginning on the date which is 6Gsdagfore the shares’ ex-dividend date. A
foreign corporation is a “qualified foreign corptoa” if the stock with respect to which it paysidiends is traded on an established securitie:
market in the United States, provided that thei§preorporation is not a PFIC. Our stock is tradadan established securities market in the
United States, although we cannot guarantee thattook will be so traded in the future. We beli¢givat we should not be treated as a PFIC fc
U.S. federal income tax purposes. No assurancéegiven, however, that the IRS may not disagrelesark to treat us as a PFIC. If we were
a PFIC with respect to a particular U.S. Holdevjdénds received from us will be taxed at regulairaary income tax rates and certain other
rules will apply. See “Passive Foreign Investmeotn@any (PFIC),” below. Holders of our shares shaaldsult their own tax advisers
regarding the availability of the reduced dividaéax rate in light of their own particular circumstas.

Certain U.S. Holders that are individuals, estatesusts will be required to pay an additional BeBcent Medicare contribution tax on
investment income, including interest, dividends] aapital gain. U.S. Holders should consult tkeeiradvisors as to the application of this
additional tax.

To the extent any distribution exceeds our E&P dis&ribution will first be treated as a tax-fresturn of capital to the extent of your
adjusted tax basis in our common shares and waldpdied against and reduce such basis on a doltatellar basis (thereby increasing the
amount of gain and decreasing the amount of lassrézed on a subsequent disposition of such shareshe extent that such distribution
exceeds your adjusted tax basis, the distributitio® taxed as gain recognized on a sale or exghanour common shares. See “Sale,
Exchange or Other Disposition of Our Common Shatedpw. Because we are not a U.S. corporatiordimalendsreceived deduction will b
allowed to corporations with respect to dividendgby us.

For United States foreign tax credit limitation poses, dividends received on our common sharebwiiteated as foreign source incc
and will generally be “passive category income”jrothe case of certain holders, “general categmgme.” You may be eligible, subject to a
number of complex limitations, to claim a foreigx credit in respect of foreign withholding taxésny, imposed on dividends paid on our
common shares. The rules governing United Stateggfo tax credits are complex, and we recommenidytha consult your tax advisor
regarding the applicability of such rules to you.

Sale, Exchange or Other Disposition of Our Commonl&res

Subject to the PFIC rules discussed below, geneiialiconnection with the sale, exchange or othgalble disposition of our common
shares:

. you will recognize capital gain or loss equal te tifference (if any) betwee
. the amount realized on such sale, exchange or tathable disposition ar

. your adjusted tax basis in such common shares @djusted tax basis in the shares you hold gegesélllequal your U.S
dollar cost of such share:

. such gain or loss will be long-term capital gairass if your holding period for our common shagemore than one year at the
time of such sale or other dispositic

. such gain or loss will generally be treated as éthBtates source for United States foreign taxitgpedposes; an

. your ability to deduct capital losses is subjedirtatations.

Long-term capital gains recognized by individualsl @ertain other non-corporate taxpayers, are takée rate of 0, 15 or 20 percent,
depending upon the particular taxpayer’s U.S. fa@idacome tax bracket. Certain U.S. Holders thatiadividuals, estates or trusts will be

required to pay an additional 3.8 percent Medicargribution tax on net investment income, inclgpinterest, dividends, and capital gain.
U.S. Holders should consult their tax advisorsoaié application of this additional tax.
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Passive Foreign Investment Company (PFIC)

We believe that our common shares should not lagetieas stock of a PFIC for United States federe tax purposes, but this
conclusion is a legal and factual determination ilhanade annually and thus may be subject to ahdhgie were treated as a PFIC, unless a
U.S. Holder elects to be taxed annually on a maskdrket basis with respect to the shares, gainzeshlin the sale or other disposition of
common shares would in general not be treated@tatgain. Instead, you would be treated as if ad realized such gain ratably over your
holding period for the common shares. The amoutdsaded to the taxable year of the sale or otligaskition and to any year before we
became a PFIC would be taxed as ordinary income .ahtount allocated to each other taxable year weilsubject to tax at the highest rat
effect for such year, together with an interestrghan respect of the tax attributable to each s@ar. With certain exceptions, your common
shares will be treated as stock in a PFIC if weewseePFIC at any time during your holding periogd@ur common shares. Dividends that you
receive from us will not be eligible for the spédé&x rates applicable to qualified dividend incoiinee are treated as a PFIC with respect to
you either in the taxable year of the distribut@srithe preceding taxable year, but instead willax@ble at rates applicable to ordinary inco
Further, any distribution in respect of our comnsbiares in excess of 125 percent of the averageahdistributions on our common shares
received by you during the preceding three yeas®ar holding period, whichever is shorter, woutddllocated ratably over your holding
period for the common shares and subject to taxatsodescribed for sales or other dispositions @bov

Non-U.S. Holders
If you are not a U.S. Holder, you are a “Non-U.®ld¢r.”

Distributions on Our Common Shares

You generally will not be subject to U.S. federatame tax, including withholding tax, on distritarts made on our common shares
unless:

. you conduct a trade or business in the United State

. the distributions are effectively connected with ttonduct of that trade or business (and, if atiGgige income tax treaty so
requires as a condition for you to be subject t6.federal income tax on a profit for the year dasirespect of income from our
common shares, such distributions are attributabéepermanent establishment that you maintaiheériinited States

If you meet the two tests above, you generally béllsubject to tax in respect of such dividendthénsame manner as a U.S. Holder, as
described above. In addition, any effectively canied dividends received by a hon-U.S. corporatiay aiso, under certain circumstances, be
subject to an additional “branch profits tax” &8@percent rate or such lower rate as may be $padiff an applicable income tax treaty.

Sale, Exchange or Other Disposition of Our Commonli&res

Generally, you will not be subject to U.S. feddnmlome tax, including withholding tax, in respetgain recognized on a sale or other
disposition of our common shares unless:

. your gain is effectively connected with a tradéosiness that you conduct in the United States, had applicable income te
treaty so requires as a condition for you to bgemitio U.S. federal income tax on a profit for tfear basis in respect of gain from
the sale or other disposition of our common shaesh gain is attributable to a permanent estabkistt maintained by you in the
United States), ¢

. you are an individual N¢-U.S. Holder and are present in the United Staieatfleast 183 days in the taxable year of the sal
other disposition, and certain other conditionse

You will be subject to tax in respect of any gaffeetively connected with your conduct of a tradasiness in the United States
generally in the same manner as a U.S. Holderessrithed above. Effectively connected gains redlizea non-U.S. corporation may also,
under certain circumstances, be subject to aniaddit‘branch profits tax” at a rate of 30 percensuch lower rate as may be specified by an
applicable income tax treaty.
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Backup Withholding and Information Reporting

Payments, including dividends and proceeds of salesspect of our common shares that are matteeitunited States or by a United
States related financial intermediary will be sebje United States information reporting rulesatifdition, such payments may be subject to
United States federal backup withholding tax. Ydll mot be subject to backup withholding providéxt

. you are a corporation or other exempt recipien

. you provide your correct United States federal éagp identification number and certify, under p&ralof perjury, that you are n
subject to backup withholdin

Amounts withheld under the backup withholding rutesy be credited against your United States fedecaime tax, and you may obtain
a refund of any excess amounts withheld under glo&up withholding rules by filing the appropriataim for refund with the IRS in a timely
manner.

Documents on Display

We are subject to the information requirementhef$ecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendeatdardance with
these requirements, we file reports and other inétion with the Securities and Exchange CommisSibiese materials may be inspected and
copied at the Commission’s Public Reference RoofdatF Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Thaipumay obtain information on the
operation of the Commission’s Public Reference Rbgmalling the Commission in the United State$-800-SEC-0330. The Commission
also maintains a web site at http://www.sec.gov thatains reports, proxy statements and otherimdtion regarding registrants that file
electronically with the Commission.

ltem 11. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Marke Risk
Market Risks

Our exposure to financial market risks relates prity to changes in interest rates and foreign argdle rates. To mitigate these risks, we
utilize derivative financial instruments, the applion of which is primarily for hedging, and not Speculative, purposes.

Interest Rate Risks

As of December 31, 2013, we had aggregate debstamaling of NT$7,551 million (US$253 million), whievas incurred for capital
expenditure and general operating expenses. Qfudstanding debts as of December 31, 2013, 100%itteaest at variable rates. The inte
rate for the majority of our variable rate debtsesmbased on a fixed percentage spread over itine pate established by our lenders. Our
variable rate debts had an annual weighted avénégrest rate of 2.346% as of December 31, 2018orAtingly, we have cash flows and
earnings exposure due to market interest rate esafiog our variable rate debts. An increase irr@sterates of 1% would increase our annual
interest charge by NT$76 million (US$3 million) ledson our outstanding floating rate indebtedness Becember 31, 2013.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2013, we had no irteats swap agreements outstanding.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risks

Our foreign currency exposure gives rise to marisits associated with exchange rate movements stghmNT dollar, is the Japanese
yen and the US dollar. As of December 31, 2013%2of our financial assets and 19.5% of our finahighbilities are denominated in the |
dollar and Japanese yen, respectively. To minifuzeign currency exchange risk, from time to time wtilize forward exchange contracts anc
foreign currency options to hedge our exchangerisiteon foreign currency assets or liabilitiesifioss. These hedging transactions help to
reduce, but do not eliminate, the impact of foraigmrency exchange rate movements. An average @ppom of the NT dollar against all ott
relevant foreign currencies of 5% would decreasesguhange gain by NT$364 million (US$12 milliorggded on our outstanding assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies aPetember 31, 2013. As of December 31, 2012 an8,204 had no outstanding forward
exchange or foreign currency option contracts.

See Note 30 of our audited consolidated finant¢&ksents for additional information on financiskrmanagement.
Item 12. Description of Securities Other Than Equiy Securities
Not applicable.
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PART Il
Item 13. Defaults, Dividend Arrearages and Delinquencie
None.
Item 14. Material Modifications to the Rights of Security Hdders and Use of Proceed

Not applicable.

Iltem 15. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedure®n evaluation was carried out under the supervisioth with the participation of our management,
including our chief executive officer and chiefdincial officer, of the effectiveness of our discigscontrols and procedures (as defined in
13a-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 19B4sed upon that evaluation, the chief executivie@ffand chief financial officer concluded
that these disclosure controls and procedures @féxetive as of December 31, 2012.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control OWarancial ReportingManagement's Report on Internal Control Over Fimgnc
Reporting is set forth below.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

April 25, 2014

Management of ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTDgéther with its consolidated subsidiaries, therf(pany”)is responsibl
for establishing and maintaining adequate intecoatrol over financial reporting (as defined in 8df3a-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934). The Company'’s internal control over fiimhreporting is a process designed under thersigien of the Company’s chief executive
officer and chief financial officer to provide reemble assurance regarding the reliability of feiahreporting and the preparation of the
Company’s financial statements for external repgrpurposes in accordance with International Firsfeporting Standards (“IFRSs”) as
issued by the International Accounting Standardar&o

As of December 31, 2013, the Company’s manageméthithe participation of the Comparsythief executive officer and chief financ
officer, conducted an assessment of the effectsenéthe Companyg’internal control over financial reporting usirrgeria set forth in Intern:
Control — Integrated Framework (1992) issued byGbenmittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the TweadCommission (COSO). Based on
this assessment, the Company’s management hasideddhat the Company’s internal control over firiahreporting as of December 31,
2013 was effective.

Moore Stephens, an independent registered puldimuating firm, has audited our consolidated finahstatements included in the
Annual Report of the Company on Form 20-F for tearyended December 31, 2013 and has issued atatdteseport on the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of Betber 31, 2013. The attestation report is set farthtem 18. Financial Statements”.

/s/ Shih-Jye Cheng /s/ Shou-Kang Chen
Name ShiF-Jye Chen¢ Name Shot-Kang Cher
Title: Chairman and Chief Executive Offic Title: Chief Financial Office

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Repogiiuring 2013, no change to our internal control dirgaincial reporting occurred
that has materially affected, or is reasonablylyike materially affect, our internal control oviamancial reporting.

Item 16A. Audit Committee Financial Expert

Our Board of Directors have determined that Chinyh Ou, one of our independent directors, qudlifie audit committee financial exy
and meets the independence requirement as defirezi 16A to Form 20-F.

Iltem 16B. Code of Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct andsEthhich applies to our directors, officers angkayees. A copy of our Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics is filed as Exhibif. 1@.this Annual Report on Form 20-F.
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Item 16C. Principal Accountant Fees and Service

The table below summarizes the aggregate feesvehaaid or accrued for services provided by ModepBens for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2013.

2012 2013
NT$ NTS$
(In thousands)
Audit Fees $ 9,151 $ 9,247
Audit Related Fee — —
Tax Fees — —
All Other Fees 2,38: 1,28:
Total $11,53:¢ $10,53(

Audit Fees This category includes the audit of our annuadrficial statements and services that are normadligeed by the independent
auditors in connection with statutory and regukafiimgs or engagements for those fiscal years. 2812 and 2013, this category primarily
include the audit of our financial statements andinternal control over financial reporting com@d in this Annual Report on Form 20-F.

Audit-Related FeesThis category includes fees reasonably relateédagerformance of the audit or review of our ficial statements
and not included in the category of Audit Fees ¢dbed above).

Tax FeesThis category includes aggregate fees for respegtars for services relating to tax complianc&jcadand planning.

All Other FeesThis category includes aggregate fees for respegears for services other than the services ieclud the above. For
2012, this category primarily include the feesdervices received relating to Company’s transactibh respect to the Registration Statement
on Form F-3 declared effective in September 2002 2B13, the fees incurred under this categoryesrearily the fees for services received
relating to Company’s transaction with respectim application of ChipMOS Taiwan listing on the TRIS

All non-audit services are pre-approved by our A@immittee on a case-by-case basis. Accordingtyhave not established any pre-
approval policies and procedures.

All audit services that Moore Stephens was engagedrry out after May 6, 2003, the effective dafteevised Rule 2-01(c)(7) of
Regulation S-X entitled “Audit Committee Adminidtian of the Engagement” on strengthening requirdmeggarding auditor independence,
were pre-approved by the Audit Committee.

Item 16D. Exemptions from the Listing Standards for Audit Conmittees
Not applicable.

Item 16E. Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Afiated Purchasers

Repurchase Program&n August 26, 2011, our Board of Directors approaed subsequently implemented a Rule 10b5-1 andl&0b
share repurchase program in accordance with theri8es Exchange Act 1934, as amended, on Novertibe2011 to purchase through a
broker our common shares, with a maximum purchassuat of US$10 million (Repurchase Program I). Repase Program | was terminated
on August 20, 2012.

On August 10, 2012, our Board of Directors approared subsequently implemented a Rule 10b5-1 andl&Gihare repurchase program
in accordance with the Securities Exchange Act 1884mended, on August 20, 2012 to purchase thratgoker our common shares, with a
maximum purchase amount of US$10 million (Repurel&®gram Il). Repurchase Program Il was complete@ctober 16, 2012.

On March 14, 2013, our Board of Directors approard subsequently implemented a Rule 10b5-1 andL8Gare repurchase program
in accordance with the Securities Exchange Act 1884mended, on May 24, 2013 to purchase throbgbker our common shares, with a
maximum purchase amount of US$7.5 million (RepuseHarogram Il1). This repurchase program was teatathon November 21, 2013.
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Other repurchase$On November 21, 2013, our Board of Directors apedothe repurchase of 4,093,705 of our common slfiemes
ThailLin to be consummated at two closings (“ThaiR@purchase”). The first closing of 2,000,000 comrabares occurred on November 26,
2013 and the second closing of 2,093,705 commorestoecurred on January 16, 2014,

On November 29, 2013, Mr. S. J. Cheng, our Chairof@oard of Directors and Chief Executive Offickas entered into a 10b5-1 sales
plan for the sale of up to 250,000 shares of Chi@wommon shares between May 20, 2014 and Jun®28, Zhe plan was entered into for
personal tax planning and diversification purposkson completion of the plan, Mr. Cheng expectstiibown or hold over 370,000 common
shares of ChipMOS.

The table sets forth certain information aboutghechase of our common shares by the Issuepurchase programs for the year end
of December 31, 2013.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer

Maximum Dollar
Value of Shares

Total Number of that May Yet Be
Shares Purchasec Purchased Unde

Total Number Average Price as Part of the Plans or

of Shares Paid Per Publicly Announcec Programs

Period Purchased Share (US$ Plans or Programs (USS$ Million)
January — February, 2012 (Repurchase Program I) 47,10( 7.6¢ 47,10( None
Septembe- October, 2012 (Repurchase Progran 653,61( 15.3( 653,61( None
June- November, 2013 (Repurchase Program® 87,10( 15.41 87,10( None

Total 787,81( 787,81(

Note:
(1) Does not include repurchases of November 21, 20E8LTh Repurchase

Item 16F. Change in Registran’s Certifying Accountant
Not applicable.

ltem 16G. Corporate Governance

Our corporate governance practices are governeghplcable Bermuda law, specifically, the Bermuaanpanies Act, and our
memorandum of association and bye-laws. Also, lmaur securities are listed on the NASDAQ, wesalgect to corporate governance
requirements applicable to NASDAQ-listed foreigivate issuers under NASDAQ listing rules.

Under NASDAQ Rule 5615(a)(3), NASDAQ:-listed foreigrivate issuers may, in general, follow their hozoantry corporate
governance practices instead of most NASDAQ cotpayavernance requirements. However, all NASDA@tisforeign private issuers must
comply with NASDAQ Rules 5605(c)(2)(A)(ii), 5605(8), 5625 and 5640.
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Item 16G requires a foreign private issuer to pievn its annual report filed with the Securitiesl&xchange Commission a brief,
general summary of any significant ways its corpgbvernance practices differ from those follolsgdNASDAQ-isted domestic companie
The table below provides this summary informatismeqjuired by Item 16G and by NASDAQ Rule 56158)) (

Corporate Governance Practice To B¢
NASDAQ Listing Rule Followed by Domestic Companie Our Corporate Governance Practice

5605(b) Requires a majority independent  We follow the same NASDAQ listing rule governancagtice as followed by
board and an independent director domestic companies.
executive sessiol

5605(c)(1) Audit committee charter We follow the same NASDAQ listing rule governancaqgice as followed by
requirements domestic companie

5605(c)(2)(A)(ii))  Audit committee composition and We follow the same NASDAQ listing rule governancegtice as followed by
independence requiremer domestic companie

5605(c)(2)(A)(i),  Audit committee financial We follow governance practices under Bermuda lagrni2ida Companies Act

(iii), (iv) sophistication requirement does not have such requireme

5605(c)(3) Audit committee responsibilities andVe follow the same NASDAQ listing rule governancagtice as followed by
authority requirement: domestic companie

5605(d), (e) Requires independent director We follow governance practices under Bermuda lagrmi2ida Companies Act
oversight of executive officer does not have such requirement. All compensatiomuittee members are
compensation and director independent directors. All directors who approveaive officer compensation
nominations and director nominations are independent direc

5610 Requires a code of conduct for We follow the same NASDAQ listing rule governancegtice as followed by

directors, officers and employes domestic companie

5620 Annual shareholder meeting We follow governance practices under Bermuda law.

requirements. The Bermuda Companies Act and our lgws provide for certain requirements

the annual shareholder meeting, including the ¥alg:

(a) an annual general meeting at least once iryeadendar year unless according
to the provisions of Bermuda Companies Act, shddshe elect to dispense with
the holding of annual general meetin

(b) the Bermuda Companies Act does not have expresssions requiring proxy
solicitation; anc

(c) under bye-law 49, the quorum for any annuakgairmeeting shall be at least
two shareholders present in person or by proxyremding shares representing at
least fifty percent (50%) of the total voting righdf all the shareholders having the
right to vote at such meeting and entitled to v

5625 Requires an issuer to notify We follow the same NASDAQ listing rule governancaqgice as followed by
NASDAQ of any materia domestic companies.
noncompliance with the Rule 5600
series.

5630 Requires oversight of related party We follow the same NASDAQ listing rule governancagtice as followed by
transactions domestic companie
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Corporate Governance Practice To Bt
NASDAQ Listing Rule Followed by Domestic Companie

Our Corporate Governance Practice

5635 Circumstances that require
shareholder approval.

5640 Shareholder voting rights
requirements

Item 17. Financial Statements

We follow governance practices under Bermuda lave Bermuda Companies Act
and our bye-laws provide for certain circumstangbgh require shareholders’
approval, including but not limited to the follovgn

(a) under bye-law 5, subject to the Bermuda CongsaAct, all or any of the
special rights for the time being attached to dagscof shares for the time being
issued may from time to time be altered or abrabatiéh the consent in writing of
the holders of not less than 75% of the issuedeshairthat class or with the
sanction of a resolution of our shareholders paasaedseparate general meeting of
the holders of such shares voting in person orrbyyp

(b) under bye-law 129, subject to the Bermuda CangsaAct and our bye-laws,
any resolution proposed for consideration at amegg meeting to approve (i) the
merger, amalgamation or any other consolidationsoivith any other company,
wherever incorporated; (ii) any sale, lease, exgbatransfer or other disposition
all or substantially all of our consolidated assatsl (iii) the adoption for any plan
or proposal for our liquidation, shall require #qgproval of our shareholders
holding shares representing at least 70% of tla voting rights of all the
shareholders having the right to vote at such mggtind

(c) under the Bermuda Companies Act, there areigions setting out the
requirements as well as specified shareholders’aapapfor a scheme of
arrangement, compulsory acquisition, amalgamatianerger.

We follow the same NASDAQ listing rule governancegtice as followed by
domestic companie

PART IlI

The Company has elected to provide the financiéstents and related information specified in Ii6hin lieu of Item 17.

Iltem 18. Financial Statements

The financial statements and related informatiothefCompany are located at pages F-1 to F-60.

Item 19. Exhibits
Exhibits Description
1.1 Memorandum of Association of ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIE®(muda) LTD.®
1.2 Bye-laws of ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LT
2.1 Certificate of Incorporation of ChipMOS TECHNOLOG@HKEBermuda) LTD., dated August 15, 20®
4.1 Joint Venture Agreement, dated July 14, 1997, betmMosel Vitelic Inc. and Siliconware Precision uistties
Co., Ltd.®
4.2 Asset Sales Agreement, dated June 14, 1999, betieeochip Technology Taiwan and ChipMOS TECHNOLQSI INC.®)
4.3 Tessera Compliant Chip License Agreement, dated 2@y 1999, between Tessera Inc. and ChipMOS TEOHNGIES INC.(
4.4 License Agreement, dated April 1, 1999, betweeiit$tu)td. and ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES IN@
4.5 Sales Agreement, dated February 10, 2000, betweamp £orp. and ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES IN®
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Exhibits Description

4.6 Bl)aw Materials Processing Agreement, dated Augus?@@0, between Mosel Vitelic Inc. and ChipMOS TEGBLOGIES INC.

4.7 Raw Materials Processing Agreement, dated Jany&9Qil, between Siliconware Precision Co. Ltd. @&h¢pMOS
TECHNOLOGIES INC®

4.8 Integrated Circuit Processing Agreement, datedagnl, 2001, between Siliconware Precision Co. atdl ChipMOS
TECHNOLOGIES INC®

4.9 Integrated Circuit Processing and Warehousing Mamamt Agreement, dated August 10, 2000, betweereMbtelic Inc. and
ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INCW

4.10 Land Lease Agreement, dated November 26, 1997 deehBcience Based Industrial Park Administratiach@hipMOS
TECHNOLOGIES INC®

411 Land Lease Agreement, dated November 26, 1997 deet\Bcience Based Industrial Park Administratiath @hipMOS
TECHNOLOGIES INC®

412 Land Lease Agreement, dated September 1, 1997¢bat&cience Based Industrial Park Administratiah@hipMOS
TECHNOLOGIES INC®

4.13 Purchase Agreement, dated July 31, 1997, betweggMTt TECHNOLOGIES INC. and Mosel Vitelic In®

414 Form of Share Exchange Covenant Letter from the fizom to the Shareholde®

4.15 Amendment to the Integrated Circuit Processing\&iadehousing Management Agreement, dated Augu2Q, between Mos
Vitelic Inc. and ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC, datedggamber 1, 2001

4.16 Purchase Agreement, dated October 15, 2003, bet@epMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. and DenMOS Technology. (2

4.17 Sale and Purchase Agreement, dated April 25, 2088een ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. and Ron How Irikent Corp.
(English Translation®

4.18 Sale and Purchase Agreement, dated April 25, 208t8een ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. and Yuan Sharestment Corp.
(English Translation®

4.19 Sale and Purchase Agreement, dated April 25, 2088;een ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. and Mosel Vitdhic. (English
Translation)®

4.20 Laser Stamping Machine Lease Agreement, dated Nogefn 2002, between ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. @HANTEK
ELECTRONIC CO., LTD. (English Translatio®

4.21 Automatic Stamping Machine Lease Agreement, dateckhber 1, 2002, between ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES lat@El
CHANTEK ELECTRONIC CO., LTD. (English Translatio®

4.22 Raw Materials Processing Agreement, dated Jany&9QB, between ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. and CHAXT
ELECTRONIC CO., LTD. (English Translatio®

4.23 Integrated Circuit Processing Agreement, datedagnl, 2003, between ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. &htIANTEK
ELECTRONIC CO., LTD. (English Translatio®

4.24 Technology Transfer Agreement, dated December @2 2etween ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. and ThaiLin
Semiconductor Corp. (English Translatic®

4.25 Tester Equipment Lease Agreement, dated Novemhe&tQD2, between ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. and TiraiL
Semiconductor Corp. (English Translatic®

4.26 Tester Equipment Lease Agreement, dated Deceml2802, between ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. and ThaiLi
Semiconductor Corp. (English Translatic®

4.27 Joint Engagement Letter, undated, by and amonglglectronics Corp., ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. &uh-Fund
Securities Ltd. (English Translatio®)

4.28 Lease Agreement, dated June 1, 2002, between CHHMELHNOLOGIES INC. and SyncMOS Technologies, (English

Translation)®
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Exhibits Description

4.29 Technology Transfer Agreement, dated August 1, 2B88veen ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. adp®MOS
TECHNOLOGIES (Shanghai) LTL®

4.30 Promissory Note from Modern Mind Technology LimitedJesper Limited, dated November 4, 2(®

4.31 Deed of Variation, dated December 2, 2002, betvidedern Mind Technology Limited and Jesper Limit®

4.32 Deed of Assignment, dated December 27, 2002, betdesper Limited and ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda)
LTD. ®

4.33 Deed of Assignment, dated June 25, 2003, betwesgredé&imited and ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES IN®)

4.34 Agreement, dated May 3, 2003, between Jesper Ldnaitel Modern Mind Technology Limite®

4.35 Master loan agreement, dated July 12, 2004, am&igMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD., Modern Mind Teology
Limited and Jesper Limite®

4.36 Cooperation Agreement, dated March 27, 2002, betwmnghai Qingpu Industrial Zone Development (@ydompany and
ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. (English Traatghn)®)

4.37 Deed of assignment, dated December 17, 2003, bet@kipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. and ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIE
(Bermuda) LTD®

4.38 Supplemental deed of assignment, dated May 14, Béeen ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. and ChipMOS
TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTC®

4.39 Second supplemental deed of assignment, dated €ctdh2004, between ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermudd). and
ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC®

4.40 Assignment agreement, dated April 7, 2004, betwal@pMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. and ChipMOS
TECHNOLOGIES INC®

4.41 Supplemental assignment agreement, dated May 04, detween ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. @dpMOS
TECHNOLOGIES INC®

4.42 Second supplemental assignment agreement, datedéddtl, 2004, between ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bera)ud D. and
ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC®

4.43 Patent license agreement, dated April 7, 2004, &atmChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. and ChipMOS
TECHNOLOGIES INC®

4.44 Supplemental patent license agreement dated J2§8L, between ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) L&Bd ChipMOS
TECHNOLOGIES INC®

4.45 Second supplemental patent license agreement Gatetber 11, 2004, between ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES if3eta) LTD.
and ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES IN(®)

4.46 Third supplemental patent license agreement daes@iber 30, 2004, between ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIESHBeia) LTD.
and ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES IN(®

4.47 Assembly and Testing Service Agreement, dated Nbeer7, 2005, between ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. Spdnsion
LLC.®

4.48 Share Purchase and Subscription Agreement, dateddrg 13, 2007, among ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (BergjudrD.,
ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. and Siliconware Precislodustries Co., Ltc®

4.49 Registration Rights Agreement, dated March 27, 206@%&veen ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. aflgc@ware
Precision Industries Co., Lt®

4.50 Share Exchange Agreement, dated as of April 127 20&ween ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. &idpMOS
TECHNOLOGIES INC®

451 Assignment Agreement, dated April 12, 2007, betw@kipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. and ChipMOS
TECHNOLOGIES INC®

4.52 Form of Change In Control Severance Agreen®)
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Exhibits Description

4.53 Southern Taiwan Science Park Administration LanddeeAgreement, dated June 1, 2007, between Southavan Science Park
Administration and ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. (ErgliTranslation(®)

454 Second Amendment to Assembly and Test Service Awgag dated July 16, 2007, by and between SpahsiGrand ChipMOS
TECHNOLOGIES INC®

4.55 Service Agreement for Integrated Circuit Produdtged July 17, 2007, by and between ProMOS Techiesddnc. and ChipMOS
TECHNOLOGIES INC. (English Translatio(®)

4.56 Registration Rights Agreement, dated August 8, 2@@¥ong ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD., Giblatven
Investment Limited, ProMOS Technologies Inc. andv@®tech Technology Ind®)

4.57 Third Amendment to Assembly and Test Services Agesd, dated November 30, 2007, by and between &pahkC and
ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC®

4.58 Science Park Administration Land Lease AgreemeaateadiDecember 1, 2007, between Science Park Adraitigs and
ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. (English Translatic®

4.59 Lease Agreement, dated April 2, 2008, between CRIBMECHNOLOGIES INC. and ThaiLin Semiconductor Cdfnglish
Translation)®

4.60 Master Lease Agreement and Addendums to the Mastee Agreement, dated November 9, 2009, betwegrMTS
TECHNOLOGIES INC. and GE Money Taiwan Limite(1)

4.61 Transfer of Claim Agreement, dated January 25, 2b&fween ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. and Citigroupdancial
Products Incd

4.62 Share Purchase Agreement, dated February 26, Béideen ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. andcSitware
Precision Industries Co., Lt

4.63 Equipment Purchase Agreement, dated February 26, 2@tween ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. and SiliconsvBrecision
Industries Co., Ltddb

4.64 Assignment and Assumption Agreement, effective pnil®2, 2011 between ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (BermudaD. and
ThaiLin Semiconductor Cor|(2

4.65 Syndicated Loan Agreement, dated July 14, 201 ydrt ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. and Taiwan CoopgmBank,
Bank of Taiwan and Land Bank of Taiwan as the lkadngers 3

4.66 Underwriting Agreement, dated October 26, 2012ywbeh the Company, ThaiLin, Siliconware Precisioow€n and Company,
LLC and Crair-Hallum Capital Group LLC4

4.67 Share Purchase Agreement, dated November 21, B6fi@een ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. andiTima
Semiconductor Corj

8.1 List of principal subsidiaries of ChipMOS TECHNOLTES (Bermuda) LTD

111 Code of Business Conduct and Eth®)

12.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer requireg¢ Rule 13-14(a) under the Exchange A

12.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer required IiRule 13i-14(a) under the Exchange A

13.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer requireg¢ Rule 13-14(b) under the Exchange A

13.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer required IRule 13-14(b) under the Exchange A

15.1 Consent of independent registered public accouffiting

(1) Incorporated by reference to our Registration &tate on Form -1 (File No. 33-13218), filed on February 28, 20(

(2) Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report omF2(-F (File No. (-31106), filed on June 17, 20C

(3) Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report omF2(-F (File No. (-31106), filed on June 30, 20C

(4) Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report omF2(-F (File No. (-31106), filed on June 17, 20C

(5) Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report omF2(-F (File No. (-31106), filed on June 29, 20C

(6) Incorporated by reference to our Registration &tate on Form -3 (File No. 33-130230), filed on December 9, 20(

(7) Incorporated by reference to Schedule 13D filedhwhie United States Securities and Exchange Coriomiby Siliconware Precision Industries Co., Ltd.April 4, 2007.
(8) Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report om+2(-F (File No. (-31106), filed on June 8 200

(9) Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report omF2(-F (File No. (-31106), filed on June 6, 20C

(10) Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report omF2(-F (File No. (-31106), filed on June 4, 20C
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(11) Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report omF2(-F (File No. (-31106), filed on June 4, 201
(12) Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report omF2(-F (File No. (-31106), filed on June 3, 201
(13) Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report om+2(-F (File No. (-31106), filed on April 26, 201:
(14) Incorporated by reference to our Interim ReporFormm ¢€-K (File No. (-31106), filed on October 26, 201

We have not included as exhibits certain instrumerith respect to our debt, the amount of debt@izbd under each of which does not
exceed 10% of our total assets, and we agreerngsfua copy of any such instrument to the Commissjmon request.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 12 of #mufities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrantifaestthat it meets all the

requirements for filing on Form 20-F and it hasydedwused this Annual Report on Form 20-F to beesigi its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized, in Taipei, Taiwan, Rdjpuif China, on April 25, 2014.

ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTI

By: /sl Shih-Jye Cheng

Name: Shih-Jye Cheng
Title: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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MOORE STEPHENS

CERTIFIED PUBLIC AUCCOUNTANTS

905 Silvercord, Tower 2 t%
30 Canton Road AhN

Teimshatsui
Kowloon w

Hong Kong %

Tel : (B52) 2375 3180 ¥*
Fax : (852) 2375 3828

E-mail : mams.com.hk L

www.ms.com.hk Py

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm to the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD.
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednséats of financial position of ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIfermuda) LTD. and
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) as of Janul, 2012, December 31, 2012 and 2013, and tadeconsolidated income statements,
statements of comprehensive income, changes ityequid cash flows for each of the two years ingbgod ended December 31, 2013, all
expressed in New Taiwan dollars. We have also eddite Group’s internal control over financial repm as of December 31, 2013, based or
criteria established in Internal Control — IntegchFramework (1992) issued by the Committee of Spiang Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). The Group’s management is ressplenfor these financial statements, for maintagreffective internal control over
financial reporting, and for its assessment ofeffiectiveness of internal control over financigbogting, included in the accompanying
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over FimariReporting. Our responsibility is to expressogmion on these consolidated financial
statements and an opinion on the Group’s interoiadrol over financial reporting based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with starsdafrthe Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@dited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbtaasonable assurance about whether the consadlitiaincial statements are free of mat
misstatement and whether effective internal cordvelr financial reporting was maintained in all exal respects. Our audits of the financial
statements included examining, on a test basideaee supporting the amounts and disclosures iaahsolidated financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and &igntfestimates made by management, and evaluagngverall financial statement
presentation. Our audit of internal control oveaficial reporting included obtaining an understagdif internal control over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weskexists, and testing and evaluating the desidmoperating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. Our audits also irtjueléorming such other procedures as we consideredssary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable lasisur opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statet:iéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ftajmeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetsafdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@anith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioazations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely detectfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm to the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD.
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (C ontinued)

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegeferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the consolidated financial position
of the Group as of January 1, 2012, December 312 20d 2013, and the results of their operatiodstla@ir cash flows for each of the two
years in the period ended December 31, 2013, ifoomity with International Financial Reporting Stinds as issued by the Internatic
Accounting Standards Board. Also, in our opinidie Group maintained, in all material respects,atiffe internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2013, based on aitsiablished in Internal Control — Integrated Feamork (1992) issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway CommisgZdSO).

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

March 11, 2014
F-3
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ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIE S

Revenue

Cost of revenu

Gross profit

Other operating incom

Research and development exper
Sales and marketing expen:
Administrative and general expen:
Other operating expens

Operating profit

Finance cost
Other nor-operating income (expense), |

Profit before tax
Income tax

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Compat
Non-controlling interest:

Earnings per shar
Basic
Diluted

Consolidated Income Statements
For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2013

Note 2012 2013 2013

NT$000 NT$000 US$000
4 19,220,56°  19,361,93 649,07
(16,767,94) (15,922,39) (533,77)
2,452,61! 3,439,53 115,30
6 127,94¢ 442,41 14,83:
(505,42 (564,47¢ (18,929
(79,93¢) (107,65:) (3,609)
(637,56¢) (699,120 (23,43
(48,74%) (100,84 (3,389
1,308,89:; 2,409,84. 80,78¢
7 (228,561 (183,00%) (6,135)
8 (232,55!) 289,25 9,691
847,77. 2,516,09! 84,34¢
9 (178,11 (827,09)  (27,72)
669,65 1,689,00. 56,62
629,78 1,335,34 44,76t
39,87¢ 353,65: 11,85¢
669,65t 1,689,00. 56,62

10

22.9: 45 5¢ 1.52
22.2¢ 44.27 1.4¢
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ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIE S

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2013

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income (loss'

Other comprehensive income (loss) to be reclasgisi@igorofit or loss in subsequent perio
Exchange differences on translation of foreign apiens

Net other comprehensive income (loss) to be reclé#sd to profit or loss in the subsequent period:

Other comprehensive income (loss) not to be reifiedgo profit or loss in subsequent perio
Net actuarial losse

Income tax effec

Net other comprehensive loss not to be reclassifiéd profit or loss in the subsequent period:

Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year, nef tax
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Compai
Non-controlling interest:

F-5

2012 2013 2013
NT$000 NT$000 US$000
669,65( 1,689,00. 56,62
(20,19) 27,43t 92(
(20,19) 27,43t 92(
(75,079 (30,579 (1,025

12,76: 5,19¢ 174
(62,31 (25376  (85])
(82,509 2,067 69
587,14( 1,691,06. 56,69(
553,52, 1,325,321 44,42

33,62 365,73 12,26
587,14( 1,691,06. 56,69(
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Assets
Non-current assel

Available-for-sale financial asse
Property, plant and equipme
Deferred tax asse

Refundable deposi

Prepaid ren— nor-current portior
Other noi-current asset

Current assel

Inventories

Accounts and notes receival
Other receivable

Shor-term deposit:

Other current asse

Cash and cash equivalel

Total assets

Note

12
13

14

15
16

17

17

ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIE S
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
January 1, 2012, December 31, 2012 and 2013

January December December December
1, 2012 31, 2012 31, 2013 31, 2013
NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 US$000
39,12: 11,63¢ 8,59¢ 28¢
14,364,19 12,475,28 12,811,95 429,49¢
716,99: 593,06: 194,92¢ 6,53¢
21,41¢ 21,07( 20,46( 68¢€
98,02: 91,87: 94,65 3,17:
22,53% 20,15« 20,32t 681
15,262,28 13,213,07 13,150,91 440,86:
1,533,86! 1,687,88! 1,519,40: 50,93¢
3,790,84  4,120,11' 4,114,62 137,93¢
107,44t 179,47: 164,23: 5,50¢
396,97 629,89 181,93: 6,09¢
68,75¢ 105,28t 104,43 3,501
7,246,051 8,863,611 13,372,77 448,29¢
13,143,95 15,586,27 19,457,40 652,27t
28,406,23 28,799,34 32,608,331 1,093,13!
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ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIE S

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position (Coirtued)

January 1, 2012, December 31, 2012 and 2013

Equity and liabilities
Capital and reserve

Issued capite

Reserve:

Other component of equi
Treasury stocl

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Compary

Non-controlling interest:
Total equity

Non-current liabilities

Bank loans nor-current portior
Long term deferred reveni
Accrued pension co:
Guarantee depos

Current liabilities

Accounts payabl

Payables to contractors and equipment supg
Other payable

Current tax payabl

Receipts in advanc

Deferred revenu

Other current liabilitie:

Bank loans current portior

Shor-term bank loan

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Note

18
19
19
20

21

22

21
23

January December December December

1, 2012 31, 2012 31, 2013 31, 2013

NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 US$000
39,04 39,01 37,16¢ 1,24¢
11,211,86 11,773,44 13,386,42 448,75
433,90: 416,89¢ 438,65! 14,70¢
(924,78)  (635,74) (297,58 (9,976)
10,760,02 11,593,61 13,564,66 454,73
3,974,84. 3,995,691 7,024,96: 235,50(
14,734,87 15,589,30 20,589,62 690,23:
8,484,301 6,739,92 3,888,97. 130,37:
95,30¢ 89,35( 92,08« 3,081
259,19: 474,33t 490,48 16,44:
1,94( 2,47¢ 2,197 73
8,840,73! 7,306,09: 4,473,73 149,97-
1,130,73 890,07 956, 79! 32,07t
415,39: 484,65¢ 858,23¢ 28,77
1,667,35 1,669,201 1,541,40! 51,67
20,28: 34,30¢ 320,68 10,75
185,46¢ 26,115 30,57¢ 1,02¢
2,38 2,291 2,42: 81
178,07¢ 203,01¢ 173,38( 5,81:
684,02t 2,227,801 2,874,75 96,37:
546,91 366,48: 786,68( 26,37
4,830,63. 5,903,95! 7,544,95. 252,93:
13,671,336 13,210,04 12,018,68 402,90¢
28,406,23 28,799,34 32,608,31 1,093,13
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January 1, 2012

Profit for the yea

Other comprehensive incol

Total comprehensive incon

Share-based paymen

Repurchase / Cancellation
shares

Disposal of shares held by
subsidiary

Capital surplus used to cov
accumulated deficit

Cash dividend (Note 1:

Other movemer

December 31, 201:

Profit for the yea

Other comprehensive incol

Total comprehensive incon

Sharebased paymen

Repurchase / Cancellation
shares

Disposal of shares held by
subsidiary

Partial disposal of a
subsidiary

Cash dividend (Note 1:

Changes in non-controlling
interests

Other movemer

December 31, 201:

ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIE S

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2013

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Other
componen
Reserves of equity
Foreign
currency  Treasury Non-
Capital translation controlling
Share surplus Retained stock Total
capital (Note 19) earnings reserve (Note 20 Total interests equity
NT$00C NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 NT$000
39,04 15,123,991  (3,912,04) 433,90: (924,78) 10,760,02 3,974,84. 14,734,87
— — 629,78: — — 629,78: 39,87t 669,65t
— — (59,259 (17,00¢) — (76,259 (6,249 (82,509
— — 570,52t (17,00¢) — 553,52. 33,62¢ 587,14t
792 187,87 — — — 188,66¢ — 188,66:¢
(820 (234,27)) (70,74 — — (305,83Y) — (305,83Y)
— 244,18t — — 284,10t 528,29t — 528,29t
— (3,787,43) 3,787,43. — — — — —

— — (117,52) — — (117,52) — (117,52)
— (27,81 9,337 — 4,93: (13,54 (12,779 (26,32)
39,01 11,506,45 266,98! 416,89t  (635,74) 11,593,61 3,995,691 15,589,30
— — 1,335,34! — — 1,335,34! 353,65: 1,689,00.
— — (31,779 21,75¢ — (10,027) 12,08¢ 2,06
— — 1,303,57 21,75¢ — 1,325,32 365,73 1,691,06:
59: 187,50: — — — 188,09: — 188,09:
(102) (28,429 (11,679 — — (40,209 — (40,209
(2,339 (190,901) — — 338,16: 144,92: — 144,92:
— 399,62t (9,755 — — 389,87: 3,146,901 3,5636,77
— — (122,49) — — (122,49) — (122,49)
— — — — — — (483,37() (483,37()
— 71,55¢ 13,98: — — 85,53t — 85,53t
37,165  11,945,81 1,440,61! 438,65: (297,58() 13,564,66 7,024,96.  20,589,62
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ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIE S
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2013

2012 2013 2013
NT$000 NT$000 US$000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tay 847,77. 2,516,09! 84,34¢
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net ash flows:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipm 4,623,03 3,292,14. 110,36:-
Amortization of asset 8,77t 2,80¢ 94
(Reversal) / allowance for impairment of accoumts aotes receivab (2,410 7,41 24¢
Reversal of impairment of other receivat — (64,779 (2,172)
Interest expens 227,76! 180,42t 6,04¢
Interest incom (31,829 (42,727) (1,437
Impairment of availab-for-sale financial asse 27,48t 3,041 101
Impairment of property, plant and equipm 6,84: 671 22
Impairment of other nc-current asset 1,54( 22C 7
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and popgnt, ne 14,01 (121,217 (4,067)
Shar+-based paymen 181,76: 232,59( 7,797
Deferred incom (2,329 (2,375 (80)
Accrued pension co: 167,01: (22,79) (764)
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts and notes receivab (326,85 (1,92¢) (64)
Other receivable (68,90%) 81,40: 2,72¢
Inventories (154,02) 168,48t 5,64¢
Other current asse (35,979 (1,209 (37)
Shor-term deposit: (343,56() 354,00t 11,86°
Accounts payabl (240,65 66,72: 2,231
Other payable 2,57¢ (127,699 (4,28
Receipts in advanc (159,35)) 4,46¢ 15C
Other current liabilitie 24,94( (29,63¢) (999
4,767,64! 6,496,23! 217,77!
Interest receive 28,65¢ 41,34 1,38¢
Interest paic (228,48¢) (180,52Y (6,057)
Income tax paic (40,809 (133,88) (4,489
Net cash generated from operating activities 4,527,00! 6,223,17. 208,62:
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equip 37,84¢ 151,09: 5,06¢
Acquisition of property, plant and equipm:e (2,748,62) (3,251,28) (108,99
Decrease in refundable depo: 34E 61C 2C
Decrease in financial ass: 110,64 93,95¢ 3,15(
Net cash used in investing activities (2,599,78) (3,005,62) (100,759
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ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIE S

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)
For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2013

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from sh-term bank loan

Proceeds from lor-term bank loan

Payments on sh«term bank loan

Payments on lor-term bank loan

Increase (decrease) in guarantee dep

Cash received (paid) in respect of s-based paymen
Payments on repurchase of she¢

Proceeds from disposal of shares held by a sulbgi
Proceeds from partial disposal of a subsid

Cash dividenc

Changes in nc-controlling interest:

Net cash (used in) generated from financing activids

Net increase in cash and cash equival
Effect of foreign exchange rate chani
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents at end of yei
Partial cash paid for investing activities

Cash paid for acquisition of property, plant and eqipment :

Total acquisition:

Decrease in payable to contractors and equipmenmiisus

2012 2013 2013
NT$000 ~ NT$000 ~ US$00C
— 420,19¢  14,08;
595,92" 23,80: 79¢

(180,431 — —
(796,52 (2,227,80) (74,68
53¢ (28€) (10)
6,901 (44,490  (1,497)
(305,83) (40,20  (1,34¢)
528,29 144,92  4,85¢
—  3536,77 118,56
(117,52)  (122,49) (4,106
(43,680 _ (385,19) (12,919
(312,34) 1,30522 _ 43,75¢
1,614,87  4,522,77. 151,61
2,68: (13,620  (457)
7,246,05 8,863,611 297,13
8,863,611 13,372,77 448,29
2,817,89'  3,624,86. 121,51
(69,266 _ (373,58) (12,52
274862  3,251,28 108,99
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ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIE S
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2013

1. Corporate and group informatiot

ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. (the “Compamy”“ChipMOS Bermuda”’was incorporated under the laws of Bermud
August 1, 2000, and its common shares have bededran the NASDAQ Global Select Market since Jud@12In February 2010,
ChipMOS Bermuda submitted an application to the RA® Stock Market to transfer its listing to the NBAQ Capital Market from th
NASDAQ Global Select Market. The NASDAQ Stock Markas determined that the Company meets the NASDAgital Market
initial listing criteria set forth in Listing Rul8505. Its common shares have been traded on thdXNASCapital Market since March 17,
2010.

On January 21, 2011, the Company'’s shareholder®agg a one-fofeur share combination of its common stock whicbame effectiv
on January 21, 2011. As a result of this reversekstplit, every four shares of the Company’s comrsiock that were issued and
outstanding as of January 21, 2011 were automiticainbined into one issued and outstanding sh#tepar value change from
US$0.01 to US$0.04 per share, and the number bbemed but unissued shares of the Company’s constamk was proportionally
reduced. A proportionate adjustment was also madleet Company’s outstanding stock options and atitke notes. No fractional
shares were issued in connection with this revetieek split, but rather shareholders who were ledtib fractional shares received cash
in aggregate of NT$239 thousand in lieu of recej\iractional shares.

As of December 31, 2013, the consolidated finarstilements of the Company include:

ChipMOS Bermuda

52.09%

ChipMOS Taiwan

47.54% 100%
ThaiLin ChipMOS USA
100%
Modern Mind
100%
ChipMOS Shanghai
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ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIE S
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Ctnued)
December 31, 2012 and 2013

1. Corporate and group information (continuec

ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. (“ChipMOS Taiwan”) wasciorporated in Taiwan on July 28, 1997 as a joimtwe company
between Mosel Vitelic Inc. (“MVI”") and Siliconwarrecision Industries Co. Ltd. (“SPIL"). Its operats consist of testing and assembly
of semiconductors. In connection with a corporatructuring on January 12, 2001, the holders afggregate of 583,419 thousand
common shares of ChipMOS Taiwan executed a Pur@as&ubscription Agreement whereby they transdethieir shares of ChipMOS
Taiwan to ChipMOS Bermuda in exchange for 14,5&m#and common shares in ChipMOS Bermuda. The gedhareholders, who
previously held an aggregate of 70.25% of the emtirtstanding common shares of ChipMOS Taiwan, leeame the holder of the
entire outstanding common shares of ChipMOS BermBdeause 100% of the outstanding common shar€kipMOS Bermuda were
owned by former shareholders of ChipMOS Taiwan ekehange of shares has been accounted for aggemaarif ChipMOS Bermuda
was the acquirer. Equity and operations attribetadlChipMOS Taiwan shareholders not participaitintpe exchange offer were
reflected as noncontrolling interests in the histdrfinancial statements. In March 2007, ChipMO&rBuda, ChipMOS Taiwan and S
completed a share purchase and subscription tiémsachereby ChipMOS Bermuda purchased 100% of SRiguity interest in
ChipMOS Taiwan at US$0.75 per share. SPIL alsocsilied to 3,043,749 newly issued common shareshgdMOS Bermuda through a
private placement of US$6.28 per share. After taegaction, ChipMOS Taiwan became a 99.14% sulbgidieaChipMOS Bermuda and
SPIL owned 14.7% of ChipMOS Bermuda. In SeptemiB@72another share exchange transaction was cadpidtiereby ChipMOS
Bermuda offered to exchange one share of ChipMQO#Baa for 8.4 shares of ChipMOS Taiwan shares.eKehange was completed
September 2007 and ChipMOS Taiwan became a whulhyed subsidiary of ChipMOS Bermuda. In February®@@hipMOS Bermuda
entered into a Share Purchase Agreement with SP3klt to SPIL the holding of 133,000 thousand camrshares of ChipMOS Taiwan
for a consideration of NT$1,630,580 thousand. huday 2011, the transaction was completed. AsqiaChipMOS Taiwan'’s listing plan
on the Taiwan Stock Exchange (“TWSES)) April 16, 2013, ChipMOS Bermuda completed tHe s&6.5 million outstanding ChipMC
Taiwan shares, at the price of NT$15.0 per sha@hipMOS Taiwan’s underwriters of the TWSE listiplgn and to certain others,
including non-US employees of ChipMOS Taiwan (N&1§. Also, on October 3, 2013, ChipMOS Bermuda detegd another sale of
180.0 million outstanding ChipMOS Taiwan shareghatprice of NT$20.0 per shares to investors amthn non-US employees of
ChipMOS Taiwan (Note 27). As of December 31, 2@RBipMOS Bermuda owned 62.09% (2012:84.22%) of Cly@Taiwan’s
outstanding shares.

ThaiLin Semiconductor Corp. (“ThaiLin”) was incomaded on May 15, 1996 and is listed on the Gre'Baugties Market in Taiwan.
ThailLin is engaged in wafer and semiconductor rigsservices. On December 31, 2002, ChipMOS Taiwgnised an equity interest of
41.8% in ThaiLin. On December 1, 2003, ChipMOS Taaivebtained controlling influence over ThaiLin’scgi#ons on its operations,
personnel and financial policies. Therefore, Thaihas been consolidated into these financial setéfrom December 1, 2003 in spite
of the fact that ChipMOS Taiwan holds an equitgiast of less than 50% in ThaiLin. As of Decemter2913, ChipMOS Taiwan helc
47.54% (2012: 42.87%) equity interest in ThaiLin.

ChipMOS U.S.A,, Inc. (“ChipMOS USA") was incorpoeatin the United States of America in October 1988ngages in sales and
customer services and all the expenses incurred inese activities are charged to current inconmpl@OS USA began generating
revenue in 2001. As of December 31, 2013, ChipM@Bvan owned 100% (2012: 100%) of the outstandirmgeshof ChipMOS USA.
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ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIE S
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Ctnued)
December 31, 2012 and 2013

1. Corporate and group information (continuec

MODERN MIND TECHNOLOGY LIMITED (“Modern Mind”) wasincorporated in the British Virgin Islands on Jaryu29, 2002.
Modern Mind conducts its operations through ChipMIEECHNOLOGIES (Shanghai) LTD. (“ChipMOS ShanghaiChipMOS
Shanghai a wholly-owned subsidiary of Modern Minasvestablished in the People’s Republic of ChiR&RC”) on June 7, 2002.
ChipMOS Shanghai is engaged in wafer testing, semdigctor assembly and testing, and module and stdraymanufacturing.
ChipMOS Shanghai commenced commercial producti@di8. ChipMOS Bermuda acquired a 100% equity éstiein Modern Mind on
December 12, 2002, and then transferred it to Jéspéted (“Jesper”) on December 31, 2002. In Deben2002 and 2003, ChipMOS
Bermuda acquired from Jesper and ChipMOS Taiwapeetively, convertible notes issued by Modern MiMT Notes”) that are
convertible into a controlling equity interest irolern Mind if the repayment is not made when dusddd an Assignment and
Assumption Agreement signed on April 22, 2011, G/ Bermuda agreed to sell the MMT Notes to Thalfbina purchase price
US$39,950 thousand. On October 3, 2011, the tréinsagas completed. On October 3, 2011, ThaiLinvested the MMT Notes into
common shares of Modern Mind and purchased al@fémaining common shares of Modern Mind from deddodern Mind and its
wholly-owned subsidiary, ChipMOS Shanghai, becam#énally-owned subsidiaries of ThaiLin. ChipMOS Barda's interest in
ChipMOS Shanghai was reduced to 36.11% then. Rri@ctober 3, 2011, ChipMOS Bermuda consolidatediéio Mind and its wholly-
owned subsidiary, ChipMOS Shanghai in reliancergerhational Accounting Standard 27 (Revised) “@tidated and Separate
Financial Statements”. ChipMOS Bermuda had a pasebsidiary relationship with Modern Mind by meantiser than record ownership
of voting stock. This relationship was based onp®/®S Bermuda’s power to direct or cause the dioectif the management and
policies of Modern Mind and ChipMOS Shanghai. ADefcember 31, 2013, ThaiLin owned 100% (2012: 106#the outstanding
shares of Modern Mind and Modern Mind owned 100942 100%) of the outstanding shares of ChipMOSh§hai.

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements andipcipal accounting policies
a) Basis of preparatior

The consolidated financial statements have begraped in accordance with International Financigidtgng Standards (“IFRSs”)
as issued by the International Accounting StandBadsd (“IASB”).

The consolidated financial statements have begraped under the historical cost convention angegsented in New Taiwan
dollars (“NT$"), which is the Company’s functionzalrrency.

First time adoption of IFRSs

The consolidated financial statements of the Comaul its subsidiaries (collectively referred tatas “Group”) were previously
prepared in accordance with accounting principkrsegally accepted in the Republic of China (“ROCARA), which differ from
IFRSs in some significant areas. To prepare thedal@ated financial statements, management hasfieddiertain of its accountir
policies that were previously applied under ROC GXA order to comply with the IFRSs.
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ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIE S
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Ctnued)
December 31, 2012 and 2013

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements andipeipal accounting policies (continuec

a)

Basis of preparation (continuec

Comparative figures and figures as of the transitiate (January 1, 2012) have been modified teeefluch adjustments. Note 34
includes a reconciliation between equity figuresaifsolidated financial statements prepared inrdecwe with the ROC GAAP ¢
the transition date (January 1, 2012) and on tlptamh date (December 31, 2012) and the profittatel comprehensive income
figures for the year ended December 31, 2012 apsktbresented in accordance with the IFRSs in tt@ssolidated financial
statements, as well as the effects of the adjussriercash flows.

The format of the primary financial statements urR®C GAAP is governed by Financial Supervisory @uasion. International
Accounting Standard (“IAS”) 1 “Presentation of Ficéal Statements” requires certain disclosuresstmade on the face of the
primary statements and other required disclosusime made in the notes or on the face of the fiahstatements, unless another
standard specifies otherwise. The transition toS&Ras resulted in the Group changing the formis @icome statements,
statements of financial position and statementsash flows, as well as the disclosure of certaia iiems not prescribed by ROC
GAAP.

As a general rule, the Group is required to esthhits IFRSs accounting policies for the year eridedember 31, 2013 and apply
these retrospectively. However, advantage has tagen of certain exemptions granted by IFRS 1 tRirse adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards” (“IFR$ as further described below:

1) The Group elected not to apply IFRS 3 “Busin@sembinations”, retrospectively to business comlamest which occurred
before January 1, 201

2) The Group elected to take the optional exemgtiom applying IFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, rgteasively for the
shar-based payment transactions granted and vestecehkfnoary 1, 201.

3) The Group elected not to apply IAS 19 “EmploBamefits”, retrospectively to employee benefits aaxbgnize all
cumulative actuarial gains and losses in retairsediegs as of January 1, 20:

4) The Group elected to take the optional exemgtiom applying IAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Pretsion”,
retrospectively from the transactions occurred efanuary 1, 201

5) The Group elected not to apply IAS 39 “Finantistruments: Recognition and Measurement” (“1AS) 3&trospectively
for the transactions occurred before January 122

6) The Group elected not to apply IAS 23 “Borrowidgsts”, retrospectively for the transactions ocetiibefore January 1,
2012.
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ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIE S
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Ctnued)
December 31, 2012 and 2013

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements andipeipal accounting policies (continuec

b) Basis of consolidatior

The consolidated financial statements include tu®ants of ChipMOS Bermuda and all entities coigtbby ChipMOS Bermuda.
Control is achieved where the Company has power thxeeinvestees, that expose or give rights toabdeireturns from its
involvement with the investees, and the Comparaple to use its power to affect the amount of retdrom the investees.
Generally control is achieved with a shareholdifighore than one half of the voting rights over takevant activities of the
investee. The existence and effect of potentiahgatights that are exercisable or convertibleanesidered when assessing whe
the Company controls another entity.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the fadatatements of subsidiaries to bring their actiagrpolicies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group trangans, balances, income and expenses are elindiivafell on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are pnéseé separately from the Group’s equity therein.

The Company’s consolidated financial statementshiferyears ended December 31, 2012 and 2013 inthed@ancial results of
ChipMOS Taiwan and its subsidiaries, ThaiLin, ChipBIUSA, and Modern Mind and its wholly-owned sulzsig ChipMOS
Shanghai.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in slidrsés that do not result in the Group losing combver the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrgmgunts of the Group’s interests and the non-ctimtganterests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interesthansubsidiaries. Any difference between the ambynwhich the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of tmsiceration paid or received is recognized direictlgquity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, toditpor loss on disposal is calculated as theedéfce between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received #redfair value of any retained interest and (ig previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of thebsidiary and any non-controlling interests. Véhegrtain assets of the subsidiary
are measured at fair values and the related cuiveligain or loss has been recognized in other cehgrsive income and
accumulated in equity, the amounts previously racagl in other comprehensive income and accumulateduity are accounted
for as if the Company had directly disposed ofriflated assets (i.e. reclassified to the cons@ilatcome statements or transfel
directly to retained earnings). The fair value 0§ énvestment retained in the former subsidiarthatdate when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognitiongubsequent accounting under IAS 39 or, wheniagipk, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate airgly controlled entity.
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ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIE S
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Ctnued)
December 31, 2012 and 2013

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements andipeipal accounting policies (continuec

c)

Significant judgements and estimat

The preparation of consolidated financial statemeaquires management to make estimates and judgethat affect the recorded
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and exgeosthe Group. The Group continually evaluateséhestimates, including those
related to share-based payments, impairment ofvadales, impairment of non-financial assets, dafibenefit plans and deferred
tax assets. The Group bases its estimates onib@texperience and other assumptions, which ielee$ to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results may differ from theséimates under different assumptions and comditio

The key assumptions concerning the future and diesources of estimation uncertainty at the dntiereporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material afjusnt to the carrying amounts of assets and ltasliwithin the next financial year
are discussed below.

Management has considered the development, selemti disclosure of the Group’s critical accountiajjcies and estimates.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accountialicfes, management have made the following judgesehich have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized indbesolidated financial statements:

Entities in which the Group holds less than 50%hefvoting rights

ChipMOS Bermuda consolidated ThaiLin in reliancdBRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” whiefuires a company to
consolidate an entity, notwithstanding the lacknafjority ownership, if such consolidation is ne@eggo present fairly its financial
position and results of operations because of tigtence of a parent-subsidiary relationship by mseather than record ownership
and by means other than record ownership of vatingk. This relationship is based on ChipMOS Bera'sigower to direct or
cause the direction of the management and polafigfail.in.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and diesources of estimation uncertainty at the dntiereporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material afjuesnt to the carrying amounts of assets and ltasliwithin the next financial year
are discussed below.

Share-based payments

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled adimns with employees by reference to the faineaf the equity instruments at
the date at which they are granted. Estimatingviaie for share-based payments requires detergithenmost appropriate
valuation model for a grant of equity instrumentbjch is dependent on the terms and conditione@fjrant. This also requires
determining the most appropriate inputs to the atidtm model including the expected life of the optivolatility and dividend yield
and making assumptions about them.

The assumptions and models used for estimatingdie for share-based payments are disclosed i@ 3lo
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ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIE S
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Ctnued)
December 31, 2012 and 2013

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements andipeipal accounting policies (continuec

c)

Significant judgements and estimates (continue

Estimates and assumptions (continued)

Impairment of receivables

Receivables are assessed for indicators of impairatehe end of each reporting period, and arairad where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more eveatsttcurred after the initial recognition of thee®ables, the estimated future cash
flows of the receivables have been impacted. Foctistomer that we have reason to believe may draweability to meet its
financial obligations, we conduct an individual e¥aation based on the available facts and circumeststo record a specific
reserve. For the customers other than this, a gereserve is established based on a range ofrgages applied to aging
categories. These percentages are based on hastmilection and writesff experience. If circumstances change, the estimfthe
recoverability of amounts due to us could be redumea material amount.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of areass cash generating unit exceeds its recovemhtaunt, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its vatuese. The fair value less costs of disposalutation is based on available data
from binding sales transactions, conducted at alemgth, for similar assets or observable markieegrless incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. The value in use calculasitbased on a discounted cash flow (“DCF”) modkk cash flows are derived
from the budget for the next five years and doinciude restructuring activities that the Groumd yet committed to or significa
future investments that will enhance the asset'fopmance of the cash generating unit being te§thd.recoverable amount is
sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCFehad well as the expected future cash-inflowsthedyrowth rate used for the
extrapolation purposes.

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit pension plan arsd-pmployment benefits and the present value opémsion obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuargdliation involves making various assumptions thay differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the detetion of the discount rate, future salary insesa mortality rates and future
pension increases. Due to the complexities involagtie valuation and its long-term nature, a dedibenefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. AllnagBans are reviewed at each reporting date. Fudégils are disclosed in Note
22.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused$ses$ and tax credit to the extent that it is frlebthat taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utiliséghificant management judgement is required terd@ne that amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognized, basedthe likely timing and the level of future tal@bprofits together with future tax
planning strategies.

The Group has NT$1,218,080 thousand (US$40,834#mal) (2012: NT$1,522,756 thousand) of tax losaesed forward. These
losses relate to subsidiaries that have a histolgsees and may not be used to offset taxablariecelsewhere in the Group. The
subsidiaries neither have any taxable temporafgreifice nor any tax planning opportunities avaédbht could partly support the
recognition of these losses as deferred tax ag3atthis basis, the Group has determined thahihagrecognize deferred tax assets
on the tax losses carried forward. If the Group alale to recognize all unrecognized deferred tartas profit and equity would
have increased by NT$304,520 thousand (US$10,208#nd).

Further details on deferred taxes are discloséébie 9.
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ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIE S
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Ctnued)
December 31, 2012 and 2013

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements andipeipal accounting policies (continuec

d)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciati

Property, plant and equipment are stated at aesgt,grovisions for depreciation and impairmentdesg any. Details are set out in
Note 13.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipntemprises its purchase price and any directhjbatiable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location forifteended use. Expenditure incurred after the il@sbeen put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance and overhaul costsrizatly charged to the consolidated income stateésnarthe year in which it is
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly dastrated that the expenditure has resulted ineease in future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the useeoitéim, the expenditure is capitalized as an aafditicost of the item. When an
item of property, plant and equipment is sold¢itst and accumulated depreciation are removed therfinancial statements and
any gain or loss resulting from the disposal, beirgdifference between the net disposal proceedistee carrying amount of the
asset, is included in consolidated income statesnent

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line methoased on the estimated economic useful lifa@individual assets, as follows:

Buildings and auxiliary equipme 1to 54 yeai
Machinery and equipme 1to 6 year
Tools 1to 3 year
Other equipmer 1to 7 year

Impairment of nor-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or whenigdical impairment testing for an asset is regplifother than inventories,
deferred tax assets and financial assets), theeeaiole amount of the asset is estimated. An asmmtbverable amount is the hig

of the value in use of the asset or cash-generatiitgo which it belongs and its fair value lessts to sell, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not geneaah inflows that are largely independent oféHosm other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amountésrdited for the cash-generating unit to which theeaibelongs.

An impairment loss is recognized only if the cangyamount of an asset exceeds its recoverable d@mowssessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discountetiém present value using a pre-tax discount raer#éflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the sigécific to the asset. An impairment loss is gbdrto the consolidated income
statements in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reppetiad as to whether there is any indication tmavipusly recognized
impairment losses may no longer exist or may hageahsed. If such indication exists, the recoverabiount is estimated. A
previously recognized impairment loss of an assetversed only if there has been a change instireates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to aruabttgher than the carrying amount that would hasen determined (net of any
depreciation), had no impairment loss been receghiiar the asset in prior years. A reversal of sogbairment loss is credited to
the consolidated income statements in the periechich it arises.

F-18



Table of Contents

ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIE S
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Ctnued)
December 31, 2012 and 2013

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements andipeipal accounting policies (continuec

)

9)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost andesdizable value. Cost is determined on a weightestage cost basis and includes
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion, andratbsts incurred in bringing the inventories teitipresent location and condition.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling piricéne ordinary course of business less the egtitheosts of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amounho$é inventories is recognized as an expense ipettied in which the related
revenue is recognized. The amount of any write-dofsinventories to net realizable value and als&sof inventories are
recognized as an expense in the period the writedw loss occurs. The amount of any reversal gfvatite-down of inventories i
recognized as a reduction in the amount of invéggamecognized as an expense in the period in vthigheversal occurs.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are grired when a group entity becomes a party to ¢inéractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities are initially rgn@zed at fair values. Transaction costs that asetlly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial lialeitit(other than financial assets and financiallligds at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair vafuitbe financial assets or financial liabilities, @ppropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified inemiand receivables and available-for-sale finhasisets. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are pureloasales of financial assets that require defieémassets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the raplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of caliing the amortized cost of a debt instrument drallocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest iathe rate that exactly discounts estimatearéutash receipts (including all fees
on points paid or received that form an integrat pathe effective interest rate, transaction s@std other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrumentwhere appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognized on an effective interest bfasidebt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative finarasakts with fixed or determinable payments thahatejuoted in an active
market. At the end of each reporting period, subsatjto initial recognition, loans and receival{lesluding accounts and notes
receivables, other receivables, short-term depasitscash and cash equivalents) are carried atiaercost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairmenséss
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2. Basis of preparation of financial statements andipeipal accounting policies (continuec

9)

Financial instruments (continued

Availablefor-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-deisatinancial assets that are not classified in @hnthe other categories.

The Group’s available-for-sale equity investmerdsidt have a quoted market price in an active niakd their fair value cannot
be reliably measured. They are measured at castifgsidentified impairment losses at the end oheaporting period subsequent
to initial recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair valeautfh profit or loss, are evaluated for indicatmff§mpairment at the end of each
reporting period. Financial assets are considardetimpaired when there is objective evidence tsh result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognitbdithe financial asset, the estimated future chshsf of the investment have been
affected.

For financial assets carried at amortized cost) siscaccounts receivables, assets that are asseddede impaired individually
are, in addition, assessed for impairment on actille basis. The Group assesses the collectabflityceivables by performing the
account aging analysis and examining current tramttse credit quality of its customers.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amouthiie@fmpairment loss is measured as the differbeteeen the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimateddwash flows discounted at the current marketatteturn for similar financial
assets, such impairment loss will not be revemsenibsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is redugy the impairment loss either directly or throtige use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of thenalfewe account are recognized in the consolidatsainie statements. When an
account receivable is considered uncollectiblis, written off either directly or against the allamce account. Subsequent recove
of amounts previously written off are creditedhe tonsolidated income statements.

Derecognition of financial assets

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when ithiets to receive cash flows from the financial ésspire or are transferred and
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ovehgy have been transferred.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities include bank loans, accoupdyable and other monetary liabilities. All finaaidiabilities are initially
recognized at the fair value of the consideratexeived less directly attributable transactionso&fter initial recognition, they are
subsequently measured at amortized cost usingfénetiee interest method. Financial liabilities aterecognized when they
extinguished, i.e. when the obligation is dischdrgecancelled, or expires.
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2. Basis of preparation of financial statements andipeipal accounting policies (continuec

h)

K)

Dividends

Dividends are simultaneously proposed and declémchuse the Company’s Bye Laws grant the direttterauthority to declare
dividends. Consequently, dividends are recogniredeadiately as a liability when they are proposedi declared.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held undeatoyy leases, payments made under the leasebanged to the consolidated
income statements in equal installments over tewatting periods covered by the lease term, exsbpte an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefitsstddrived from the leased assets. Lease incemteed/ed are recognized in the
consolidated income statements as an integrabpéine aggregate net lease payments made. Contirgggals, if any, are charged
to the consolidated income statements in the adomuperiod in which they are incurred.

Treasury stock

Treasury stock is stated at cost and shown aswctled in equity. When the Company retires treastiogk, the treasury stock
account is reduced and the share capital as wtleasapital surplus — share premium are reverseapo rata basis. When the
book value of the treasury stock exceeds the supaw¥alue and share premium, the difference isgethto capital surplus and to
retained earnings for any remaining amount. The @omg’'s stock held by its subsidiary is treatedreasury stock.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when a present obligaflegal or constructive) has arisen as a resudt pdist event and it is probable 1
a future outflow of resources will be required &dtke the obligation, provided that a reliable rastie can be made of the amount of
the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amtaecognized for a provision is the present valigne end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to heired to settle the obligation. The increase sndiscounted present value amc
arising from the passage of time is included imfice costs in the consolidated income statements.

Foreign currency translatior

The consolidated financial statements are preséntdéw Taiwan dollars, which is the Compasfunctional currency. Each ent

in the Group determines its own functional curreaoy items included in the financial statementsaath entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transe are initially recorded using the functionafremcy rates ruling at the date of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilitersodhinated in foreign currencies are retranslatéldeafunctional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting peridddifferences are taken to profit or loss. Nommetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currencyg &ranslated using the exchange rates at the dhtes initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreigmency are translated using the exchange ratbeg afate when the fair value
was determined.
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1)

m)

Foreign currency translation (continued

The functional currencies of certain overseas slidnsés are currencies other than the New Taiwdlardo As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities ofthentities are translated into the presentatioreicay of the Company at the
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reportergpd, and their income and expense items arelataasinto New Taiwan dollars
the weighted average exchange rates for the ybarrdsulting exchange differences are recordether gomprehensive income
and the cumulative balance is included in exchaeagerve in the consolidated statements of chamgeguiity. On disposal of a
foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount ggiped in exchange reserve relating to that pdaidoreign operation is
recognized in the consolidated income statements.

For the purpose of the consolidated statementasif lows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaredranslated into New Taiwan
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the ddtdseacash flows. Frequently recurring cash flowswerseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Naiwan dollars at the weighted average exchangs fatg¢he year.

Revenue recognitiol

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is @iotdbthat the economic benefits arising in the sewf business will flow to the
Group and the revenue can be reliably measuredrdksgs of when the payment is being made. Revisrmeasured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivableing into account contractually defined termgayment and excluding taxes or
duty.

Rendering of services

The Group recognized revenue upon completion ¢fhtgand assembly services. Other criteria thaGhmup uses to determine
when to recognize revenue are: (1) existence @&uasive evidence of the services provided, (2)oousts’ fixed commitment to
use our service, (3) the selling price is fixedleterminable and (4) collectability is reasonabbasured.

The Group does not take ownership of: (1) bare cemagiuctor wafers received from customers that sserabled into finished
semiconductors, and (2) assembled semiconductoes/eal from the customers that it tests. The &itld risk of loss remains with
the customer for those bare semiconductors andsanabled semiconductors. Accordingly, the custosnpplied semiconductor
materials are not included in the consolidatedrfaia statements.

The Group does not provide warranties to customerept in cases of defects in the assembly serpimesded and deficiencies in
testing services provided. An appropriate salesmalhce is recognized in the period during whichdéle is recognized, and is
estimated based on historical experience.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on an accrual basigyuhe effective interest method by applyingrdte that discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected lifdeffinancial instrument to the net carrying amaafrthe financial asset.
Government gran

A government grant is recognized at its fair vedue credited to the consolidated income statem&htsgrant relates to land use
rights in the People’s Republic of China. The failue of the land use rights is credited to a detemcome account and is
recognized as income in the consolidated inconterstnts over the period of the rights.
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0)

p)

a)

Research and development co

Research and development costs are expensed adhas the expenses do not fulfill the criteriadapitalization under IAS 38
“Intangible Assets”.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acdios, construction or production of qualifying ass, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time taegdy for their intended use or sale, are addele cost of those assets, until s
time as the assets are substantially ready for itniginded use or sale. All other borrowing cosésaharged to the consolidated
income statements in the period in which they acerired.

Pension and other po-employment benefit

The Group operates defined contribution and defbetefit plans in the Republic of China. For defimentribution retirement
benefit plans, payments to the benefit plan aregeized as an expense when the employees haveedrslvice entitling them to
the contribution. For defined benefit retiremerard, the cost of providing benefit is recognizesiolbon actuarial calculations.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, thst of providing benefits is determined using thejéted Unit Credit Method,
with actuarial valuations being carried out atykar end. Actuarial gains and losses are recogizether comprehensive income
in the period which they incur. Past service castsrecognized in the consolidated income statesra@mthe earlier of the date of
the plan amendment or curtailment, and the datetieaGroup recognizes restructuring-related co$ts.interest is calculated by
applying the discount rate to the net defined kiefiability or asset. The Group recognises thenges in the net defined benefit
obligation, including i) service costs comprisingrent service costs, past service costs, gaingossds on curtailments and non-
routine settlements, and ii) net interest expemsaamme, under cost of revenue, research and dgwant expenses, sales and
marketing expenses and administrative and gengpainses in the consolidated income statements.

The employees of the subsidiary within the Groupcivloperates in the PRC are required to particiatee central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal governmigrg.PRC subsidiary is required to contribute a gatage of its payroll costs to
the central pension scheme as specified by thé hegaicipal government.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recogniden they accrue to employees. An accrual is fadbe estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services rendeyezhiployees up to the end of the reporting period.
Share-based payments

Employees of the Group receive remuneration irfah@ of share-based payments, whereby employeeereervices as
consideration for equity instruments (equity-setti@nsactions) or share appreciation rights, whiehsettled in cash (cash-settled
transactions).
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n

s)

Share-based payments (continue

Equity-settled transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions is deteechiny the fair value at the date when the gramtade using an appropriate
valuation model.

That cost is recognized, together with a correspmnihcrease in capital surplus in equity, overleeiod in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employmnefits expense. The cumulative expense recadjfdzesquity-settled
transactions at each reporting date until the ngstate reflects the extent to which the vestimipgehas expired and the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instrumemas will ultimately vest.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are nextlithe minimum expense recognised is the expimagdad the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award met. An additional expense is recognized forraogification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payment traisacoor is otherwise beneficial to the employeeremasured at the date of
modification.

Cashsettled transactions

The cost of cash-settled transactions is measuoitaly at fair value at the grant date using @pm@priate valuation model. This
fair value is expensed over the period until thetimg date with recognition of a correspondingiligb The liability is re-measured
to fair value at each reporting date up to, antuging the settlement date, with changes in faln@aecognized in employee
benefits expense.

Income tax

Income tax represents the sum of the tax currgmatjyable and deferred tax. The tax currently payshibased on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from net profitr@ported in the consolidated income statementausecit excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in otbars, and it further excludes items that are neseble or deductible.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payableavverable on differences between the carrying atnmiuassets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the correspondindpdaes used in the computation of taxable profd,iamccounted for using the
liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are geally recognized for all taxable temporary diffecer, and deferred tax assets are
recognized to the extent that it is probable thaable profits will be available against which detible temporary differences can
utilized. Such assets and liabilities are not reced if the temporary difference arises from thigal recognition of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neitthe tax profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxat@mporary differences arising on investments bsgliaries, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the terappdifferences and it is probable that the tempodéference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is vesdeat the end of each reporting period and redtaéte extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit viaé available to allow all or part of the asselhéarecovered.
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s) Income tax (continued

Deferred tax is calculated, without discountingthat tax rates that are expected to apply in thieghevhen the liability is settled or
the asset realized. Deferred tax is charged oiiteckth the consolidated income statements, exwbph it relates to items charged
or credited directly to other comprehensive incoimeayhich case the deferred tax is also dealt witbther comprehensive income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset wihery relate to income taxes levied by the samatiax authority and the Group
intends to settle its current tax assets and liedslon a net basis.
t)  Cash and cash equivalen
For the purpose of the consolidated statementasif tows, cash and cash equivalents represertttghor, highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into kmaamounts of cash and which were within three mooftmaturity when
acquired.
u) Related partie:
(@) A person, or a close member of that pe’'s family, is related to the Group if that pers
(i) has control or joint control over the Grot
(i)  has significant influence over the Group;
(iii) is a member of key management personnel of thepgssothe Grou’'s parent
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of theléeling conditions applies
(i) The entity and the Group are members of the samepc

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venturehe other entity (or an associate or joint ventifra member of a group of
which the other entity is a membe

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same tpady.
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity &he other entity is an associate of the thirdter

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plantfee benefit of employees of either the Grouproeatity related to the
Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled byparson identified in (a

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant inflnce over the entity or is a member of the key mameent personnel
the entity (or of a parent of the entit

3. Translation into U.S. dollar amount:

The Company maintains its accounts and expressesrisolidated financial statements in New Taiwallads. For convenience purpos
U.S. dollar amounts presented in the accompanyingalidated financial statements have been tratsfadbm New Taiwan dollars to
U.S. dollars at the noon buying rate in the City\Nefv York for cable transfers as certified for cuss purposes by the Federal Reserve
Bank of New York as of December 31, 2013, which Wa$29.83 to US$1.00. These convenience transksbould not be construed
representations that the New Taiwan dollar amobat® been, or could in the future be, converteal thS. dollars at this or any other
rate of exchange.
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4.  Segment Informatior

The Group engages mainly in the research and dewelont, manufacturing, assembly and testing of semdigctors. In accordance with
IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”, the Group’s chief afing decision maker has been identified as thef@Eecutive Officer/Chairman,
who reviews these segment results by Testing, Alslseesting and Assembly for Liquid Crystal DispldLCD”) and other Flat-Panel
Display Driver Semiconductors and Bumping when mgldecisions about allocating resources and asseitw performance of the
Group. Financial segment information is as below:

The Group uses operating profit (loss) as the nreasent for segment profit (loss) and the basiseofggmance assessment. There we
material inconsistency between the accounting jgaliof the operating segment and the accountingipsidescribed in Note 2.

2012

Testing Assembly LCD Bumping Others Elimination Total

NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 NT$000
Revenue
External customet 5,563,23 6,380,61. 4,356,27 2,920,43! — — 19,220,56
Inter-segmen 14,07( 42,40 — — 45,26: (101,741) —
Total revenue 5,577,30: 6,423,01 4,356,27 2,920,43! 45,26 (101,740  19,220,56
Gross profit 561,24 401,56¢ 1,270,19 221,24 45,26 (46,90%) 2,452,61
Operating profit 163,57¢ 52,08: 1,019,53 102,62: (70,47 41,55¢ 1,308,89
Depreciation and amortization (2,449,19) (788,43)  (1,087,27) (372,65) (54,29Y) 120,04t (4,631,81)
Interest income — — — — 31,82¢ — 31,82¢
Interest expense — — — — (227,76 — (227,76))
Impairment loss recognized during the yeal — — — — (35,869 — (35,869
Expenditure for segment asset 528,84t 418,01« 980,71t 917,71 38 (27,43)) 2,817,89
Property, plant and equipment 4,192,17 2,465,37. 3,5627,32 2,429,60: 547 (139,74) 12,475,228
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4.  Segment Information (continued

2013
Testing Assembly LCD Bumping Others Elimination Total Total
NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 US$000
Revenue
External customer 4,596,11 6,273,67. 4,781,22 3,710,92! — — 19,361,93 649,07¢
Inter-segmen 4,92% 130,63« — — 44,21 (179,769 — —
Total revenue 4,601,04( 6,404,30! 4,781,22 3,710,921 44,21 (179,769 19,361,93 649,07t
Gross profit 720,01! 768,26 1,352,511 529,29( 44,21 25,24 3,439,53 115,30!
Operating profit 336,95! 374,42 1,057,37. 332,36« 165,13( 143,59¢ 2,409,84. 80,78t
Depreciation and amortization (1,314,98) (590,899 (1,008,201 (390,96) (53,969 64,07( (8,294,94)  (110,45))
Interest income — — — — 43,98 (1,267) 42,72. 1,432
Interest expense — — — — (180,421) — (180,42() (6,049
Impairment recognized during the year — — — — (3,939 — (3,939 (230)
Expenditure for segment asset 350,08: 770,21¢ 2,053,700 455,36 74 (4,587) 3,624,86: 121,51
Property, plant and equipment 3,239,58! 2,672,01! 4,564,71. 2,470,01 37¢ (134,76 12,811,95 429,49¢
Geographic information:
2012 2013 2013
NT$000 NT$000 US$000
Area
ROC 13,631,58 13,955,38 467,83
uU.S. 1,400,70 830,91: 27,85¢
Singapore 2,779,341 2,838,97! 95,17-
Korea 310,41¢ 611,35 20,49¢
Japar 491,09: 516,99! 17,33:
Others 607,41: 608,30( 20,39:
19,220,56 19,361,93 649,07¢
Net revenue from customers representing at le@étdftthe total revenue:
2012 2013 2013
Amount % Amount % Amount
NT$000 NT$000 US$000
Customers
Novatek Microelectronics Corp“Novatel”) 3,941,100 21 3,838,43r 2C 128,67
Micron Technology, Inc. Grou“Micron”) 2,713,78 14 2,896,51. 1t 97,10:
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5. Operating costs and expens

Included in cost of revenu
Employee benefit co:
Salaries
Labor and health insuran
Pensior
Other personnel expens
Share-based paymen
Depreciatior
Amortization
Operating lease
Costs of inventories recognized as an exp

Included in research and development exper
Employee benefit co:
Salaries
Labor and health insuran
Pensior
Other personnel expens
Shar+-based paymen
Depreciatior
Operating lease

Included in sales and marketing expen
Employee benefit co:
Salaries
Labor and health insuran
Pensior
Other personnel expens
Shar-based paymen
Depreciatior
Amortization
Operating lease

Allowance for impairment of accounts and notes iredgde

Included in administrative and general expen
Employee benefit co:
Salaries
Labor and health insuran
Pensior
Other personnel expens
Sharebased paymen
Depreciatior
Amortization
Operating lease

Included in other operating expens

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipn

Impairment of property, plant and equipm
Impairment of other nc-current assei
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2012 2013 2013

NT$000 NT$000 US$000
3,046,721  3,389,33 113,62
240,82° 273,12: 9,15¢
274,76( 180,01 6,03t
227,60: 208,54t 6,991
91,46¢ 103,84( 3,481
4,575,02.  3,242,40' 108,69t
1,01¢ 95¢ 32
90,61¢ 205,49: 6,88¢
4,805,97¢ 4,521,84. 151,58
293,93! 351,99: 11,80(
22,21 27,06: 907
33,95/ 16,26! 54¢
10,47: 10,19: 342
33,01¢ 38,93 1,30¢
19,57 18,39: 617
1,10C 887 30
44,43 51,75 1,73¢
2,19¢ 2,657 89
6,821 5,24¢ 17¢
2,70¢ 2,23¢ 75
2,78 6,87¢ 23C
857 77€ 26

8 15 1

13¢€ 12 4

— 7,41¢% 24¢
270,03( 278,51: 9,33
16,04¢ 17,24 57¢
25,08: 9,241 31C
12,44( 7,57(C 254
54,49; 82,93¢ 2,78(
27,58¢ 30,561 1,02t
7,74t 1,83( 61
6,01¢ 6,971 234
37,32} 85 3
6,84: 671 22
1,54(C 22( 7
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6. Other operating income

2012 2013 2013
NT$000 NT$000 US$000
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipn 23,31« 121,29 4,06¢
Deferred incom 2,32¢ 2,37¢ 80
Gain on disposal of pate 8,97¢ — —
Reversal of allowance for impairment of accounts aotes receivabl 2,41( — —
Reversal of allowance for impairment of other reable — 64,77¢ 2,172
Gain on disposal of scrapped mate 54,70( 38,32: 1,28t
Reversal of accrued royalty fees (Note 2 — 140,43! 4,70¢
Others 36,22: 75,201 2,52(

127,94¢ 442,41. 14,83

7. Finance costs

2012 2013 2013

NT$000 NT$000 US$00(

Interest on bank loar 253,36 204,71( 6,86:
Less: amounts capitalized in qualifying as: (25,599 (24,289 (819
227,76! 180,42¢ 6,04¢

Finance expenst 80C 2,57¢ 8€

228,56} 183,00:! 6,13¢

8.  Other non-operating income (expenses), net

2012 2013 2013
NT$000 NT$000 US$00(
Interest incom: 31,82: 42,72 1,43
Foreign exchange gains (losses), (248,28  233,99( 7,84¢
Impairment of availab-for-sale investment (27,48¢) (3,047 (207
Others 11,39¢ 15,58t 522

(232,55Y)  289,25( 9,69
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9. Income tax
The Company is an exempted company incorporat&gimuda, a tax-free country.

Income tax expense arising in other jurisdicticnedlculated at the rates prevailing in the releywaisdictions, based on existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respieereof.

The statutory tax rates for the years ended DeceB1he€2012 and 2013 for ChipMOS Taiwan, ThaiLin &dpMOS Shanghai were
17%, 17% and 25%, respectively.

The major components of income tax expense foy#laes ended December 31, 2012 and 2013 are:

2012 2013 2013
NT$000 NT$000 US$000
Current income tax
Current income tax charg 41,42. 402,11¢ 13,48
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of/jmes yeal 1 21,64: 72t
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporaiffedences 136,69 403,33 13,52:
Income tax expense reported in the consolidatezhiiecstatement 178,11¢ 827,09  27,72%
Deferred tax charged to other comprehensive income:
2012 2013 2013
NT$000 NT$00C USS$00(
Net actuarial losse 12,76 5,19¢ 174
Reconciliation of income tax expense and the adiogiprofit before income tax:
2012 2013 2013
NT$000 NT$000 US$000
Profit before ta 847,77. 2,516,09! 84,34¢
Income tax at 179 144,12: 427,73t 14,33¢
Income tax effect of different tax rat 85,22¢ 232,65: 7,79¢
Permanent difference (56,285 (38,48YH (1,290
Deferred tax assets not recogni: 55,40: 45,17: 1,51¢
Temporary differences not recogniz (109,39) 8,26: 27¢
10% income tax on unappropriated earni 59,04 151,75¢ 5,081
Income tax expense reported in the consolidatezhiiecstatement 178,11t 827,09: 27,72
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9. Income tax (continued
The details of deferred tax assets (liabilitie®) @ follows:

Other
comprehensivt
Profit and

January 1, loss income December 31 December 31
NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 US$000
Year of 2017
Unrealized exchange gains (loss 2,08t (2,189 — (103)
Accounts receivabl 31,18( 73z — 31,91:
Inventories 16,62( (8,899 — 7,722
Property, plant and equipme 27,66¢ 6,48¢ — 34,15¢
Deferred incomq 88,62: (9,55)) — 79,07¢
Share-based paymen — 362 — 362
Losses carried forwait 469,58( (120,909 — 348,67t
Tax credit 41,15! 27,93t — 69,08¢
10% income tax on unappropriated earni (3,259 (53,617 — (56,877)
Accrued pension cos 43,34 22,94: 12,76 79,04¢
716,99: (136,699 12,76: 593,06
Year of 201¢
Unrealized exchange gains (loss (103) (6,789 — (6,887 (231)
Accounts receivabl 31,91 (20,04) — 11,87: 39¢
Inventories 7,722 5,867 — 13,58¢ 45¢
Property, plant and equipme 34,15¢ (21,479 — 12,671 42~
Deferred incom 79,07¢ (9,55)) — 69,52t 2,331
Shar+-based paymen 362 28C — 642 21
Losses carried forwait 348,67¢ (348,676 — — —
Tax credit 69,08¢ (69,08¢) — — —
10% income tax on unappropriated earni (56,877) 56,87: — — —
Provision — 7,03¢ — 7,03¢ 23¢€
Financing charge — 4,312 — 4,312 14t
Accrued pension cos 79,04¢ (2,716 5,19¢ 81,52¢ 2,73:
Other — 631 — 631 21
593,06: (403,339 5,19¢ 194,92¢ 6,53t

At December 31, 2013, the Group has tax lossemguiiis the PRC of approximately NT$1,218,080 thaws@JS$40,834 thousand)
(2012: NT$1,522,756 thousand) that are availablefisetting against future taxable profits of tBeoup companies in which the losses
arose and will expire after five years if not fulltilized by the Group. Deferred tax assets hatéreen recognized in respect of these
losses as it is not considered probable that taxadalfits will be available against which these ltzsses can be utilized.
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10. Earnings per share“EPS")
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing tétdor the year attributable to equity holderstiof Company by the weighted aver
number of ordinary shares outstanding during ttae.ye

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividinggtadit attributable to equity holders of the Compday the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding during the year filasveighted average number of ordinary shard@satbald be issued on conversion of
all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ioaty shares.

The following reflects the income and share datalus the basic and diluted EPS computations:

2012 2013 2013
NT$000 NT$000 US$000

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Compéar basic

earnings 629,78: 1,335,34 44,76
Weighted average number of ordinary shares forcHaB5 (ir

thousands) 27,47 29,31¢ 29,31¢
Earnings per shar« basic NT$ 22.97 NT$  45.5¢ Uss$ 1.5¢
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Comypdor dilutec

earnings 629,78: 1,335,34 44,76
Weighted average number of ordinary shares forctaBiS (ir

thousands): 27,47 29,31¢ 29,31¢
Effect of dilution:

Share options (in thousanc 82¢ 843 84:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares fotetil EPS

(in thousands)’ 28,30¢ 30,16: 30,16:
Earnings per share diluted NT$ 22.2¢ NT$  44.27 Uss 1.4¢

* The weighted average number of shares takesagtount the weighted average effect of changegastiry share transaction
during the yeatr

11. Dividend
2012 2013 2013
NT$000 NT$000 US$00(
Dividend declared and paid of US$0.14 (2012: US$PDpkr ordinary shat 117,52: 122,49: 4,10¢
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12. Available-for-sale financial asset

Unlisted equity investments, at c«
Less: Allowance for impairment loss

13. Property, plant and equipmer

Cost

January 1, 201
Additions

Disposals
Reclassificatior
Exchange adjustmen
December 31, 201
Additions

Disposals
Reclassificatior
Exchange adjustmen

December 31, 201

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

January 1, 201

Depreciation charge for the
year

Impairment

Disposals

Reclassificatior

Exchange adjustmen

December 31, 201

Depreciation charge for the
year

Impairment

Disposals

Reclassificatior

Exchange adjustmen

December 31, 201

Net book value
January 1, 2012
December 31, 201.
December 31, 201:

December 31

December 31 December 31

January 1,
2012 2012 2013 2013
NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 US$000
247,21t 48,55( 28,59 95¢
(208,09) (36,915 (20,000) (670)
39,12! 11,63t 8,59/ 28¢
Buildings
Machinery and
and auxiliary Other
Land equipment equipment Tools equipment Total Total
NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 US$000
452,73t 9,550,05: 38,704,37 3,056,05: 4,077,42. 55,840,64
— 71,40( 653,18. 238,39! 1,854,91! 2,817,89!
— (249,49 (607,27) (37,009 (212,240  (1,106,01)
— 439,37( 1,097,09 62,80¢ (1,599,279 —
— (49,03¢) (50,48¢) (11,63%) (36,669 (147,83)
452,73t 9,762,29I 39,796,89 3,308,61! 4,084,15! 57,404,68
— 166,24: 883,93 139,42( 2,435,26:! 3,624,86.
— (164,82  (1,073,90) (25,079 (128,11  (1,391,92)
— 180,09 2,433,07! 22,36.  (2,635,53) —
— 71,34: 72,85¢ 19,10( 54,47 217,76¢
452,73¢  10,015,14 42,112,85 3,464,41 3,810,25! 59,855,39 2,006,55!
— 4,086,12. 31,542,23 2,672,94. 3,175,15.  41,476,44
— 554,69( 3,626,40. 238,74 203,19¢ 4,623,03!
— — 21¢ — 6,62¢ 6,84:
- (219,53() (588,23) (36,539  (209,85) (1,054,15)
— — 134,58 — (134,58 —
- (33,476 (45,027) (8,699 (35,570 (122,76)
— 4,387,801 34,670,18 2,866,45! 3,004,961  44,929,40
— 573,80! 2,287,54. 241,54: 189,25: 3,292,14.
— — — — 671 671
— (164,82  (1,038,66) (30,31) (128,249  (1,362,04)
— (661) 12,64¢ (2,159 (9,826) —
— 49,86¢ 66,84 13,99¢ 52,55, 183,26!
— 4,845,98  35,998,55  3,089,52  3,109,37  47,043,44 1,577,05
452,73t 5,463,93 7,162,141 383,11( 902,27( 14,364,19
452,73 5,374,49 5,126,71. 442 ,15:; 1,079,19: 12,475,28
452,73t 5,169,15. 6,114,29: 374,89: 700,87: 12,811,95 429,49¢

As of December 31, 2013, certain of the above ptgpplant and equipment were pledged as collaterdbng-term and short-term bank

loans (Notes 21, 23 and 28).
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14. Prepaid rent

Decembe Decembe
Decembe
January
1, 2012 31, 2012 31, 2013 31, 2013
NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 US$000
Prepaid rer-current 2,47¢ 2,381 2,51¢ 84
Prepaid rer-nor-current 98,02: 91,87: 94,657 3,17:
100,49¢ 94,25¢ 97,17¢ 3,25

Prepaid rent represents grant of land use rights.land use rights were pledged as collateral frarking facility. (Note 28) The current
portion is included in other current assets.

15. Inventories

Decembe
January December December

1, 2012 31,2012 31, 2012 31, 2013

NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 US$000

Raw material 1,328,44. 1,473,97: 1,302,65: 43,66¢
Work in proces: 218,87( 196,36( 220,04 7,371
Finished good 107,13¢ 75,41 84,39 2,82¢
1,654,44! 1,745,74 1,607,091 53,87¢
Less: Allowance for impairment loss (120,58 (57,860 (87,687 (2,940

1,533,861 1,687,88 1,519,40: 50,93¢

During 2013, NT$22,628 thousand (US$759 thousarad) mcognized as an expense for inventories catirdt realizable value. This is
recognized in cost of revenue.
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16. Accounts and notes receivab

Accounts receivabl
Notes receivabl
Less: Allowance for impairment loss

December 31, 2012 and 2013

January December December Decembel
1, 2012 31, 2012 31, 2013 31, 2013
NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 US$000
3,787,65! 4,115,21. 4,119,89: 138,11
5,71( 4,95¢ 2,201 74
(2,517 (57) (7,477 (250)
3,790,84 4,120,11! 4,114,62 137,93t

The movements in allowance for impairment of ac¢®amd notes receivable during the year are asWell

January 1, 2012
Impairment losses revers
Amount written off
Exchange adjustmen

December 31, 2012
Impairment losses recogniz

December 31, 201.
December 31, 2013 (US$00

Ageing of accounts receivable which are past daebuimpaired is as follows:

<1 month
1-2 months
2 — 3 months
3 -4 months
> 4 months

Individually impaired

NT$000

2,51z
(2,410)
(49
S )

57

7,41%

7,472

25C

Decembe Decembe

January Decembel

1, 2012 31, 2012 31, 2013 31, 2013
NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 US$000
287,07¢ 144,62¢ 84,47¢ 2,83:
1,33( 1,20: 7,28¢ 244
70% 37z 732 25
61 6,45¢ 531 18

97¢ 73€E 2 —
290,15! 153,39 93,03( 3,11¢
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17. Cash and cash equivalents and sh-term deposits

January December December Decembel
1, 2012 31, 2012 31, 2013 31, 2013
NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 US$000
Shor-term deposit: 899,10 5,214,41! 5,029,10! 168,59:
Cash 563 53C 534 18
Cash at bank 6,743,36! 4,278,56: 8,525,06: 285,78t
7,643,03! 9,493,50! 13,554,70 454,39¢
Less:
Short-term deposits with a maturity date of mom=mntthree
months (111,846 (455,40 (101,400 (3,399
Restricted sho-term deposits (Note 2! (285,13 (174,48 (80,53) (2,700
(396,979 (629,89 (181,93) (6,099
Cash and cash equivale 7,246,05! 8,863,61! 13,372,77 448,29¢

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rated@seéaily bank deposit rates. Short-term depasigsnade for varying periods of
between 24 days and 1 year, depending on the inaieeckish requirements of the Group, and earn Bitat¢he respective short-term
deposit rates.

As of December 31, 2013, the above restricted gbam deposits were pledged as collateral for Itarg: bank loans (Note 28).

18. Issued capita

Decembe Decembe
January
1, 2012 31, 2012 31, 2013
thousand: thousand: thousand:
Authorized share
Ordinary share 62,50( 62,50( 62,50(
Preferred share 18,75( 18,75( 18,75(
Decembe Decembe
January
1, 2012 31, 2012 31, 2012
Ordinary shares issued and fully p.
Thousand share 33,39¢ 33,36¢ 31,77¢
Share capital (NT$00( 39,04: 39,01 37,16¢
Share capital (US$00! — — 1,24¢
The par value of ordinary shares issued was US$ie04hare.
The movement of ordinary shares issued is setelotb
2012 2013
thousands thousand:
January 1 33,39¢ 33,36¢
Share optiot 66¢ 49¢
Treasury stocl (700 (2,087%)
December 3: 33,36¢ 31,77¢
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19. Reserves and other component of eqt

The reconciliation between the opening and clobalgnces of each component of the Group’s condelidequity is set out in the
consolidated statements of changes in equity.

Details of the Group’s capital surplus are sethmiow:

December 31

January December December
1, 2012 31,2012 31,2013 2013
NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 US$000
Share premiun 11,336,98 7,388,38. 6,932,63 232,40!
Shar-based paymer 849,19( 995,61( 1,080,10: 36,20¢
Treasury stocl 460,29: 548,45 808,15¢ 27,09:
Convertible note 2,477,44. 2,574,00 2,627,12i 88,07(
Others — — 497,79. 16,68’
15,123,91 11,506,45 11,945,81 400,46.
20. Treasury stock
The movement of treasury stock is set out below:
2012 2013
thousanc NT$000 thousanc NT$000 US$000
January ! 6,47¢ 924,78: 4,47¢ 635,74 21,31
Disposal by a subsidia (2,000 (284,109 (2,38])) (338,16) (11,336
Other — (4,937) — — —
December 3. 4,474 635,74 2,09: 297,58( 9,97¢

The Company’s stock held by its subsidiary is gdats treasury stock. As of December 31, 2013Ctmpany’s subsidiary, ThaiLin,
held 2,093 thousand (2012: 4,474 thousand) sh&tege €ompany’s ordinary shares.
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December 31, 2012 and 2013

Long-term bank loans

Syndicated bank loans collateralized by equipmepiayable
quarterly from May 2007 to February 2012, inteadtoating
rate (2.315% as of January 1, 20

Banks loan collateralized by buildings, repayahlarterly from
April 2011 to January 2015, interest at floatintgrél.92% as of
January 1, 201z

Syndicated bank loans collateralized by equipmepiayable semi
annually from January 2012 to July 2015, interéfibating rate
(3.0421% and 2.7789% and 2.5158% as of Januaiy1P, and
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2013, resplygt

Syndicated bank loans collateralized by land anililimgs,
repayable seminnually from January 2014 to July 2016, inte
at floating rate (3.0421% and 2.7789% and 2.5158%f a
January 1, 2012 and December 31, 2012 and Dece3tb2013
respectively’

Bank loans collateralized by buildings, repayahlarterly from
July 2013 to March 2018, interest at floating 1@t®2% as of
January 1, 2012 and December 31, 2012 and Dece3tih2013’

Bank loans collateralized by buildings, repayahlarterly from
February to November 2014, interest at floating §4t73% as c
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2!

Bank loans collateralized by buildings and land niglet, repayable
quarterly from June 2014 to March 2015, intereg$loating rate
(3.91% and 3.1645% as of December 31, 2012 andrifee31
2013, respectively

Bank loans collateralized by equipment, repayabkerigrly from
July 2014 to April 2015, interest at floating r#891% and
3.1645% as of December 31, 2012 and December 38, 20
respectively’

Less: current portio

Unused credit lines of long-term bank loans arfobews:

NT$000
US$000

* Combined limit with sho-term loan is NT$600,000 thousat

December 31

December 31

December 31

January 1,
2012 2012 2013 2013
NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 US$000
95,82¢ — — —
162,50( — — —
5,382,00! 4,843,80! 2,691,00! 90,21:
3,028,001 3,028,001 3,028,001 101,50¢
500,00( 500,00( 425,00( 14,24,
— 400,00( 400,00( 13,41(
— 174,24 178,77( 5,99:
— 21,68¢ 40,95¢ 1,37:
9,168,32! 8,967,722 6,763,72! 226,74.
(684,02  (2,227,80)  (2,874,75) (96,377)
8,484,30! 6,739,922 3,888,97. 130,37:
January 1, December 31 December 31
2012 2012 2013
— — 400,00(*
— 2,45¢ 1,82t

The Group’s bank loans are mortgaged by certaith #ard buildings and machinery and land use rightso#ateral (Note 28).
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Long-term bank loans (continued

Details of the repayment schedule in respect ob#re loans are as follows:

<1lyear
2 to 5 year:
> 5 years

December 31 December 31 December 31
January 1,
2012 2012 2013 2013
NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 US$000
684,02 2,227,80! 2,874,75! 96,37:
8,359,301 6,714,92 3,888,97. 130,37:
125,00( 25,00( — —
9,168,32 8,967,72 6,763,72! 226,74

Under syndicated bank loans facility agreement& KBS Taiwan is required to maintain certain finahcatios. As of December 31,
2012 and 2013, ChipMOS Taiwan was in compliancé tie financial ratio requirements. ThaiLin is pefuired to maintain any
financial ratio as of December 2012 and 2013 asyhédicated loans were repaid during 2012.

Accrued pension cos

a) Defined benefit plan

1)

2)

3)

ChipMOS Taiwan and ThaiLin have defined bengfins that provide benefits based on an employergh of service and
average monthly salary for the six-month periodptd retirement. The aforementioned companiesritrte an amount
equal to 2% of salaries paid each month to thejpeetive pension funds (“Funds”), which are adnbémed by the Labor
Pension Fund Supervisory Committ“ Committed’) and deposited in the Commit’s name in Bank of Taiwa

The amounts arising from the defined benefitgattion of the Group under the consolidated statamef financial position

were as follows

December 31

December 31 December 31
January 1,
2012 2012 2013 2013
NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 US$000

Present value of funded defined benel

obligation (631,00 (787,86 (808,62) (27,109
Fair value of plan asse 371,80¢ 313,53: 318,13: 10,66¢
Accrued pension cos (259,19) (474,33)) (490,489 (16,447

Changes in present value of funded defined beaklfigation:

2012 2013 2013

NT$000 NT$000 US$000
Benefit obligation at beginning of ye 631,00: 787,86¢ 26,41:
Service cos 155,73t 63€ 21
Interest cos 13,00¢ 11,74 394
Actuarial losse: 72,37¢ 29,84¢ 1,001
Benefit paid from plan asse (84,255 (21,477) (720)
Benefit obligation at end of ye 787,86¢ 808,62: 27,10¢
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22. Accrued pension cost (continue

a)

Defined benefit plans (continue

4)

5)

6)

7

Changes in plan asse

2012 2013 2013

NT$000 NT$000 US$000

Fair value of assets at beginning of y 371,80¢ 313,53: 10,51:
Expected return on plan ass 5,96: 4,80z 16C
Actuarial losse: (2,709 (72¢) (24)
Employer contribution 22,71, 22,00( 73¢
Benefits paid from plan asse¢ (84,255 (21,477 (720)
Fair value of assets at end of y 313,53: 318,13. 10,66"

The amounts recognized in the consolidated incdateraents, consist ¢

2012 2013 2013

NT$000 NT$000 USS$00(

Service cos 83¢ 63¢ 21
Interest cos 13,00¢ 11,74 394

Expected return on plan ass (5,967) (4,802) (161)
Plan amendmen 154,89¢ — —
Net periodic benefit cot 162,78 7,571 254

The pension costs in 2012 and 2013 were as foll

2012 2013 2013

NT$000 NT$00C US$00(

Cost of revenu 123,02° 5,74¢ 19¢

Research and development exper 20,43¢ 713 24

Sales and marketing expen: 2,39 74 2

Administrative and general expen: 16,92¢ 1,04z 35

162,78: 7,57 254

Amounts recognized in other comprehensive incomssds) in 2012 and 2013 were as follo

2012 2013 2013

NT$000 NT$000 US$000
Current yea (75,079 (30,579 (1,025
Accumulatec (75,079  (105,65)  (3,547)
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22. Accrued pension cost (continue

a) Defined benefit plans (continue

8)

9)

10)

Bank of Taiwan was commissioned to manage timel lefi ChipMOS Taiwan and ThailLin's defined benggnsion plan in
accordance with the Fund’s annual investment aitidaiton plan and the “Regulations for Revenuesy&nditures,
Safeguard and Utilization of the Labor Retirememd®. With regard to the utilization of the Funts minimum earnings in
the annual distributions on the final financiatstaents shall be no less than the earnings atfaifraon the amounts
accrued from twarear time deposits with the interest rates offdngdbcal banks. The constitution of fair value tdrpasset
as of January 1, 2012, December 31, 2012 and 20di8én in the Annual Labor Retirement Fund Uttiiea Report
published by the governmei

The overall expected rate of return on plantassas based on the historical return trends, atglgredictions of the market
over the life of related obligation, referencetie performance of the Funds operated by the Coewrdthd the considerati
of the effect that the minimum return should notdss than the average interest rate on a twotireardeposit published by
the local banks

The major assumptions of the actuarial valuatioreves follows

2011 2012 2013
Discount rate used in determining present values 1.75% 1.50% 1.50%~2.159
Future salary increase r¢ 3.00~4.009 2.00~3.009 3.00%~5.009

The representative rates of mortality based on @ai®tandard Ordinary Mortality Table of 2011 areveh below:

Age Males Females

25 0.0821Y 0.0356%
30 0.1061Y 0.0401Y
35 0.1532% 0.0559Y
40 0.2254Y 0.0822%
45 0.3418Y% 0.1231%
50 0.5136% 0.1992Y
55 0.7189% 0.3022Y
60 1.09439 0.4984Y
65 1.6404Y 0.7993Y

For employees eligible for early retirement befage 65, assumed annual retirement rate is 5%lfengdloyees.
Disability is 10% of mortality.

F-41



Table of Contents

ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIE S
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Ctnued)
December 31, 2012 and 2013

22. Accrued pension cost (continue

a) Defined benefit plans (continue

10)

11)

The major assumptions of the actuarial valuatioreves follows: (continuec

The turnover rates derived from turnover experignme November 2008 to November 2011 are shownvizelo

Sample Age Rate

20 and beloy 15%~30%
25 15%~24%
30 10%~22%
35 6%~20%
40 5%~10%
45 3%~7%
50 2%~5%

55 and abov 0%

The historical information of experience adjustnsantas follows

2012 2013 2013
NT$000 NT$000 US$000
Present value of defined benefit obligat (787,869  (808,62) (27,109
Fair value of plan asse 313,53: 318,13. 10,66¢
Present value of unfunded defined benefit oblige (474,33  (490,48Y) (16,447
Experience adjustments on plan liabilit (72,376) (29,84¢6) (1,000
Experience adjustments on plan as (2,709 (72¢) (24)

The Group expects to make contributions of NT$22 B@usand (US$764 thousand) during 2014.

b) Defined contribution plan

The pension mechanism under the Labor Pension“Act’] is deemed a defined contribution plan efieetJuly 1, 2005.
Pursuant to the plan, ChipMOS Taiwan and ThaiLiwehmade monthly contributions equal to 6% of eanpleyee’s
monthly salary to employees’ pension accounts.Runisto the aforementioned Act and local regulatidhe Group
recognized expenses of NT$162,849 thousand (US$5hkisand) and NT$148,503 thousand in the coretelidincome
statements in 2013 and 2012, respectively.

ChipMOS Shanghai is required to participate indbetral pension scheme operated by the local npaligovernment and
to contribute a percentage of its payroll costocentral pension scheme as specified by thé hogaicipal government.
ChipMOS Shanghai recognized expenses of NT$40/88and (US$1,353 thousand) and NT$29,330 thousahe
consolidated income statements in 2013 and 20%@eotively.
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23. Short-term bank loans

December 31

January 1, December 31 December 31
2012 2012 2013 2013
NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 US$000
Secured bank loar 115,31¢ 70& — —
Unsecured bank loai 431,59 365,77t 786,68( 26,37:
546,91t 366,48: 786,68( 26,37:

Annual interest rat

1.50%- 2.2611%

Unused credit lines of short-term bank loans arf®k®ws:

0.9514%- 3.91%

0.8621%- 1.6913%

January 1, December 31 December 31
2012 2012 2013
NT$000 532,80 1,465,61! 2,275,411
US$000 — — 25,00(
CNYO000 70,00( — —

The Group’s bank loans are secured by certainsaasetollateral (Note 28).

24. Significant commitments and contingenci
Operating leases commitments

ChipMOS Taiwan entered into several operating leasgracts for land. These renewable operatingekeasll expire in 2017 and 2032,
respectively.

ChipMOS USA entered in several operating leaseraot# for office space. These renewable operagiagds will expire in 2015 and
2016, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under those leasessdpllows:

January 1, December 31 December 31 December 31
2012 2012 2013 2013
NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 US$000
<1 year 26,197 30,35¢ 127,49 4.27¢
2 to 5 year: 101,37¢ 115,36( 143,54( 4,81z
> 5 years 76,43¢ 113,58! 113,09! 3,791
204,01 259,30 384,13:. 12,87
Capital commitments
Capital expenditures that are contracted for, ltippnovided for are as follows:
January 1, December 31 December 31
2012 2012 2013
Property, plant and equipme
NT$000 649,53¢ 862,81( 265,27:
US$000 — 874 —
CNYO000 7,151 6,551 2,51¢
EURO000 76 — —
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24. Significant commitments and contingencies (contiruje

Contingencies arising from a legal claim

a.

On April 1, 1999, Motorola, Inc. (“Motorola”) drChipMOS Taiwan entered into an immunity agreenfém “Agreement”), that
each party covenanted not to sue each other farghef certain Ball Grid Array (“BGA”) patents puiant to the Agreement. In
December 2004, Motorola spun off its semicondudbaision and thereby formed Freescale Semicondubtor (“Freescale”).
Subsequently, Freescale assumed Motorola’s rigitohligations under the Agreement. On OctobeR066, Freescale
unilaterally terminated the Agreement, alleging@hDS Taiwan breach of the Agreement. Under the d&guent, ChipMOS
Taiwan agreed to pay running royalties for its nfaoturing of certain BGA packages covered by Mad@oow Freescale) patents
pursuant to the Agreement. As such, ChipMOS Taiargned Freescale’s unilateral termination of thee&gient has no legal
effect. ChipMOS Taiwan has continued to accrue ltgyaayments for products it believes are covengthle Agreement. The
payments previously returned by Freescale and addry ChipMOS Taiwan have been deposited in a agpascrow account. On
July 13, 2009, Freescale alleged that ChipMOS Tailreached the Agreement by failing to pay roysltie certain BGA packages
assembled by ChipMOS Taiwan. Freescale claimsstiat packages are covered by one or more Fregstalats identified in the
Agreement while ChipMOS Taiwan contends that sumtkages are not covered by any of Freescale’stgadtethe Agreement.
ChipMOS Taiwan filed an answer to deny all allegasi and also filed counterclaims against Freesdkdging Freescale engage(
patent misuse by seeking to obtain royalties otageof ChipMOS Taiwan’'s BGA products that were novered by any Freescale
patent included under the Agreement, and for detday judgement of patent non-infringement and liotg. In response, on
December 11, 2009, Freescale filed a motion to idsthe declaratory judgment counterclaims fileddmjpMOS Taiwan and to
stay all other patent related claims and issuesitsmbreach of contract claims could be decidedummary Judgment granting in
part and denying in part the motions of both Fraksand ChipMOS Taiwan was given by court on J8ly2010. The above order
finds that the Agreement constituted a “Total S&egalty” agreement, however, Freescale’s motios partly denied for patent
misuse. A mediation was held by both parties orolbet 28, 2010, but was unsuccessful. The fact d&ggrocess regarding
patent misuse issue closed in late April 2011. &tpert discovery process regarding patent missse islosed in the middle of
June 2011. An Order granting Freescale’s motiompéstial summary judgment and denying ChipMOS Talw&ross-motion for
partial judgment was given on September 8, 20110Ader granting in part and denying in part ChipMCT#wan’s Motion for
Reconsideration was given on March 30, 2012. TheriQeinstated ChipMOS Taiwan'’s claims for pateiguse and its affirmative
defenses for patent exhausted, mutual mistakeiegse. Freescale refiled its motions to strikep®t®S Taiwan’s jury demand
and for summary judgment on ChipMOS Taiwan'’s affitive defenses of exhaustion, mutual mistake amhdie. The Court has
granted those motions on January 24, 2013 anddateéed ChipMOS Taiwan’s motion for reconsideratdithose rulings in April
2013. On June 20, 2013 both parties reached arpettt agreement to settle the pending litigatiom judicial settlement conferer
conducted in Court. As part of the settlement age#, ChipMOS Taiwan agreed to pay US$ 8,000 thuig T$238,640
thousand) to settle the claims in exchange fop#rées entering into a new License AgreementHeruse of Freescale’'s BGA
packaging technology from 2011 to 2015 by a roytdgyof US$1,000 thousand (NT$29,830 thousandygar and filing a Joint
Stipulation for the Dismissal of all claims pendingtween them. The Joint Stipulation for Dismisgas filed on July 26, 2013 and
the case was closed by the Court. ChipMOS Taiwewipusly accrued royalty of NT$457,888 thousanBreescale. After
settlement, ChipMOS Taiwan reversed the -accrued royalty of NT$140,435 thousand (Note G)tter operating incom
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24. Significant commitments and contingencies (contiruje

Contingencies arising from a legal claim (continued

b.

On April 20, 1999, ChipMOS Taiwan entered inteeaniconductor packaging technology license agraemi¢h Tessera
Technologies, Inc. (Tessera). In February 2006pRIQS Taiwan and ChipMOS USA received notice of epiinfringement
lawsuit brought by Tessera, alleging infringemdrgaveral Tessera patents and breach of an exigt@gngge agreement with
ChipMOS Taiwan. The fact discovery has been stayegcordance with a Northern District of Calif@r€Court order issued on
May 24, 2007. On April 21, 2008, Tessera requestatithe International Trade Commission (ITC) inigege ChipMOS
Bermuda, ChipMOS Taiwan and ChipMOS USA (colledtiveferred to as the Companies) on the basislefed violations of
Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930. In its reguiéor investigation (“ITC-649 Investigation”), Tesra alleged that the
Companies infringed certain patents among whichtaee that were the subject of the stayed litayatn the Northern District «
California. Tessera also requested that the IT@eiss exclusion order to enjoin the importatiomatused products into the
United States. On September 30, 2008, Judge ohBiortDistrict of California Court (“Judge”) grantadnotion to extend the
hearing date from March 16 to March 24, 2009 angetedate from August 28 to November 2, 2009. Cor&ary 10, 2009, the
Judge ordered the procedural schedule in the ITZh®destigation be stayed until the ITC issue§-ital Determination in the
ITC-605 Investigation. The target date of Initial Deteration was also extended from December 7, 200%®byuary 8, 2010. C
March 13, 2009, after the close of discovery, Tessabmitted a request to terminate the ITC-64@dtigation. On July 17,
2009, the Judge issued an order granting the retpe=rminate the ITC-649 Investigation. No petiss for review were filed.
The ITC had determined not to review the Initiak&eination and issued an order to terminate thestigation on August 7,
2009. The ITC’s Final Determination for the ITC-6fvestigation issued in May 2009 was appealetiéaCourt of Appeals for
the Federal Circuit (“CAFC"). CAFC confirmed ITCfding in May 2011. CAFC’s above decision was &ipd to the United
States Supreme Court. The United States Suprems emied the above petition for review of the &@gestigation in
December 2011. Due to the denial of the petitionrdeiew of the 605 Investigation by the Unitedt€saSupreme Court, the
stayed litigation in the Northern District of Calihia Court resumed. On July 19, 2012, Tesserd élstipulation with the court
dismissing its breach of contract claim againstGoenpanies. Accordingly, this litigation was thénited to only Tessera’s
patent infringement allegations against the CongzarA court-ordered mediation was held on DecerhiBe012 but was
unsuccessful. On November 8, 2013, the partiehesha settlement agreement to settle the pendiggtion. As part of the
settlement agreement, ChipMOS Taiwan agreed t@ame-time payment of US$1,375 thousand (NT$40tda8sand),
including 20% Taiwan tax withholding, to Tesseraithange for Tessera releasing, discharging arekizg to never sue
ChipMOS Bermuda, ChipMOS Taiwan and ChipMOS USAtief to the license agreement. On November 9, 20&3parties
filed a stipulation with the Court to dismiss thengling litigation.
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25. Material partly-owned subsidiarie
Financial information of subsidiaries that have enial non-controlling interests is provided below:

Proportion of equity interest held by non-contradlinterests:

Country of incorporation and operation 2012 2013
ChipMOS Taiwan Republic of Chine 15.78% 37.91%
ThailLin Republic of Chin¢ 63.89¥% 70.48%
ChipMOS Shanghe Peopl’s Republic of Chini 63.89¥% 70.48%

2012 2013
NT$000 NT$000

Accumulated balances of material no-controlling interests:
ChipMOS Taiwar 1,524,541 4,500,68
ThailLin 1,778,86: 1,756,41.
ChipMOS Shanghe 697,08: 770,64
Profit (loss) allocated to material nol-controlling interests:
ChipMOS Taiwar 129,70: 312,24(
ThailLin (28,93)) 80,68:
ChipMOS Shanghe (61,29¢) (39,319
The summarized financial information of these sdilasies is provided below. This information is béi&® amounts before intesmpany
eliminations.

Summarized statement of comprehensive income for 20Q:

ChipMOS

ChipMOS Taiwan ThaiLin Shanghai

NT$000 NT$000 NT$000
Revenue 16,995,00 1,371,311 910,71
Cost of revenu (14,747,40) (1,196,67) (981,79)
Operating expenst (851,909 (175,829 (27,737)
Finance cost (213,099 (12,589 (2,88))
Other nor-operating income (expenses), (39,507 196,53¢ 7,84¢
Profit (loss) before tax 1,143,09. 182,76 (93,84

Income tax (124,767 (46,389 —
Profit (loss) for the year 1,018,33 136,37: (93,847)
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the yet 1,207,53 693,98: (93,847)
Attributable to no-controlling interest: 129,70: (28,937 (61,29¢)

Dividends paid to nc-controlling interest: —
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25. Material partly-owned subsidiaries (continuec

Summarized statement of comprehensive income for 28:

ChipMOS ChipMOS
Taiwan ThaiLin Shanghai
NT$000 NT$000 NT$000
Revenue 17,255,08 1,257,03. 985,36t
Cost of revenu (14,094,98) (1,025,211 (1,003,12)
Operating expenst (737,76 (81,079 (34,989
Finance cost (160,04 (16,244 (7,975
Other nor-operating income (expenses), 550,51! 729,71. 621
Profit (loss) before tax 2,812,80: 864,21: (60,099
Income tax (534,559 (207,879 —
Profit (loss) for the year 2,278,24! 656,33¢ (60,099
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the yet 2,275,20. 775,10¢ (60,099
Attributable to no-controlling interest: 312,24( 80,68: (39,31
Dividends paid to nc-controlling interest: 69,75( 55,81t —
Summarized statement of financial position as of iember 31, 2012:
ChipMOS ChipMOS
Taiwan ThaiLin Shanghai
NT$000 NT$000 NT$000
Current assetl 12,354,63 1,597,01. 834,25
Non-current assets 4,040,533
12,832,40 721,93:
Current liabilities 5,409,24! 274,87 176,75"
Non-current liabilities 6,596,81! 904,64 286,35¢
Total equity 13,180,98 4,458,03. 1,093,07
Summarized statement of financial position as of Diember 31, 2013:
ChipMOS ChipMOS
Taiwan ThaiLin Shanghai
NT$000 NT$000 NT$000
Current assel 12,552,422 3,465,35! 920,25t¢
Non-current asset 13,397,29 2,582,92 701,34¢
Current liabilities 6,279,51! 814,49¢ 368,82°
Non-current liabilities 4,401,75: 499,47t 157,91:
Total equity 15,268,44 4,734,30! 1,094,86
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25. Material partly-owned subsidiaries (continuec

Summarized cash flow information for year ended Dezmber 31, 2012:

ChipMOS ChipMOS
Taiwan ThaiLin Shanghai
NT$000 NT$000 NT$000
Operating 4,593,22 420,09: (171,60:)
Investing (2,267,411 337,60 (141,49,
Financing (419,72) (158,329 194,61«
Effect of foreign exchange rate chani — — (17,709
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivate 1,906,009 599,37 (136,18Y)
Summarized cash flow information for year ended Deember 31, 2013
ChipMOS ChipMOS
Taiwan ThaiLin Shanghai
NT$000 NT$000 NT$000
Operating 5,552,31 315,91 170,93(
Investing (2,847,66) 978,19 (77,357
Financing (2,153,17) (577,249 11,03t
Effect of foreign exchange rate chani — — 18,13
Net increase in cash and cash equivalen 551,47¢ 716,86( 122,74

26. Changes in ownership interest in subsidiari

During the year, ChipMOS Bermuda disposed of appmately 22% of its interest in ChipMOS Taiwan whichturn becomes a 62.09%
owned subsidiary of the Company. The consideraifddT$3,536,777 thousand was received in cash.rAoumt of NT$3,146,906
thousand, being the proportionate share of thg/icaramount of the net assets of ChipMOS Taiwaheatate of partial disposal, has
been transferred to non-controlling interests. @ifference of NT$399,626 thousand and NT$9,755 shad between the amount of
additional non-controlling interests recognised Hrelconsideration received was credited to capitgdlus and debited to retained
earnings, respectively.

27. Related party transaction

During the year, as part of ChipMOS Taiwan'’s ligtplan on the TWSE, ChipMOS Bermuda disposed dt@8thousand ChipMOS
Taiwan shares to certain key management persondeheair close family members with a total considien of NT$463,395 thousand.

No other significant transactions with related parted to be disclosed for the relevant years.
Key management personnel compensation

2012 2013 2013

NT$000 NT$000 US$00(
Shor-term employee benefi 139,99: 155,96 5,22¢
Pos-employment pensio 1,91¢ 1,82¢ 61
Shar+-based paymen 27,82¢ 49,04 1,64¢

169,73t 206,83t 6,93¢
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28. Pledged or mortgaged ass¢

The Group provided certain assets as collaterablyjnér long-term bank loans (Note 21), short -tdrank loans (Note 23) and customs
duty guarantee, which were as follows:

December 31 December 31 December 31
January 1,
2012 2012 2013 2013
NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 US$000
Property, plant and equipme 11,076,02 7,689,90 6,149,76 206,16
Restricted sho-term deposit: 285,13: 174,48t 80,53: 2,70C
Prepaid rent 100,49¢ 94,25¢ 97,17¢ 3,251
11,461,65 7,958,64 6,327,47. 212,11¢
29. Financial instruments by categor
December 31
January 1, December 31 December 31
2012 2012 2013 2013
NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 US$000
Financial assel
Available-for-sale financial asse 39,12: 11,63¢ 8,59¢ 28€
Loans and receivable 11,541,33 13,793,09 17,833,56 597,84(
11,580,45 13,804,73 17,842,15 598,12¢
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortized cc 12,928,71 12,378,15 10,906,85 365,63¢

30. Financial risk management and fair values of finamal instruments
a) Financial risk manageme

The Group’s risk management objective is to marthgenarket risk, credit risk and liquidity risk agdd to its operating activities.
The Group identifies measures and manages thenaéotéoned risks based on policy and risk appetite.

The Group has established appropriate policiegguhares and internal controls for financial risknagement. Before entering into
significant financial transactions, due approvalgass by the Board of Directors must be carriecbased on related protocols and
internal control procedures. The Group compliesnitg financial risk management policies at allgsn
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30. Financial risk management and fair values of finamal instruments (continued

a)

Financial risk management (continue

1)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or frtgwcash flows of a financial instrument will fluetie because of changes in
market prices. Market risks comprise foreign cuekensk, interest rate risk, and other price riskdh as equity price risk).

i) Foreign currency ris

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fairuabr future cash flows of a financial instrumeiit fluctuate due to
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’ssexpdo the risk of changes in foreign exchange nelates
primarily to the Group’s operating activities (whevenue or expense is denominated in a diffeneméncy from the
Group'’s functional currency) and the Group’s neestments in foreign subsidiaries. The currencieingj rise to this
risk are primarily United States dollars (“US$")cahapanese Yen (“JPY”). The Group does not holdsare any
derivative for trading purposes or to hedge agdiastuations in foreign exchange rates. The Gnmifigates this risk
by conducting sales and purchases transactiom® igame currency, whenever possible. Furthermsnegta
investments in foreign subsidiaries are for stiatpgrpose, they are not hedged by the Group.

The following table details the Group’s exposur¢hatend of the reporting period to currency rigkiag from
recognized monetary assets or liabilities denomethat a currency other than the functional curresicthe entity to
which they relate.

January 1, 2012

Change ir Effect on profit Effect on
exchange before tax equity
rate (NT$000) (NT$000,
Financial assel
US$000 5% 286,60¢ —
JPYO000 5% 11,44¢ —
Financial liabilities
US$000 5% 23,91¢ —
JPYO000 5% 31,75¢ —
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30. Financial risk management and fair values of finamal instruments (continued
a) Financial risk management (continue
1) Market risk (continued
i) Foreign currency risk (continue

December 31, 201,

Effect on Effect on
profit before
Change in equity
exchange rat tax (NT$000! (NT$000,
Financial assel
US$000 5% 359,67 —
JPY000 5% 42,98 —
Financial liabilities
US$000 5% 29,45: —
JPYO000 5% 25,40¢ —
December 31, 201
Effect on Effect on
profit before
Change in equity
exchange rat tax (NT$000! (NT$000,
Financial assel
US$000 5% 431,09¢ —
JPYO000 5% 39,55¢ —
Financial liabilities
US$000 5% 73,20¢ —
JPY000 5% 33,07: —

i) Interest rate ris

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair vatwduture cash flows of a financial instrument Vlilictuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Gregpgposure to the risk of changes in market inteegss relates primarily
the Group’s bank loans with floating interest rates

The Group manages its interest rate risk by haaibglanced portfolio of fixed and variable ratelblans.

At December 31, 2013, it is estimated that a gémeceease or decrease of 100 basis points (1%témest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would decreaseanease the Group’s profit by approximately N3%04 thousand
(2012: NT$93,342 thousand).

F-51



Table of Contents

ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIE S
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Ctnued)
December 31, 2012 and 2013

30. Financial risk management and fair values of finamal instruments (continued

a) Financial risk management (continue

1)

2)

Market risk (continued

iii)  Equity price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price risk throughrivestments in listed equity securities clasdifas financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss. The Group @@es this exposure by maintaining a portfolio @estments with

different risk and return profiles. At the repogidate, no aforesaid equity security was held ansemsitivity analysis
was disclosed.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty willtmoeet its obligations under a financial instrumentustomer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposecrédit risk from its operating activities (prinfgraccounts and other
receivables) and from its financing activities (parily deposits with banks and financial instrunsgnt

Each business unit performs ongoing credit evadnatif the debtors’ financial condition accordinghie Groups establishe
policy, procedures and control relating to custontedit risk management. The Group maintains anwtdor allowance
for doubtful receivables based upon the availadtesfand circumstances, historical collection ariteveff experiences of
all trade and other receivables which consequenitymizes the Group’s exposure to bad debts.

The Group has three customers that had balancaetegthan ten percent of total notes and accoentsvable as of
January 1, 2012, December 31, 2012 and Decemb@033, respectively, as detailed in the below tabie credit
concentration risk of other accounts and notesivabke is insignificant.

January 1, December 31 December 31
Customers 2012 2012 2013
Micron 18% 7% 13%
Novatek 13% 18% 17%
Winbond Electronics Corporatic 6% 11% 7%

Credit risk from balances with banks and finaniiatitutions is managed by the Group’s finance iméccordance with the
Group’s policy. Bank balances are held with finahaistitutions of good standing. The Group's expeso credit risk
arising from the default of counter-parties is tieai to the carrying amount of these instruments.
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30. Financial risk management and fair values of finamal instruments (continued
a) Financial risk management (continue

3) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will engoter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitnmgmssociated with
financial instruments. The Group monitors and neitg adequate cash and banking facilities to fiadghe Group’s
operations. See Notes and 21 and 23 about the dicusdit lines of the Group.

The maturity profile of the Group’s non-derivatifieancial liabilities as of January 1, 2012, DecemBl1, 2012 and 2013
based on the contracted undiscounted payments figlaws:

January 1, 2012

<1year 2 to 5 years > 5 years Total
NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 NT$000
Long-term bank loans (including current
portion) 942,05: 8,804,23I 127,99( 9,874,27.
Accounts payable and payables to contractors
and equipment supplie 1,546,12: — — 1,546,12.
Other payable 1,667,35: — — 1,667,35
Shor-term bank loan 549,43t — — 549,43t

4,704,96! 8,804,233 127,99( 13,637,18

December 31, 201,
<1 year 2 to 5 years > 5 years Total
NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 NT$000
Long-term bank loans (including current portic ~ 2,430,46! 6,949,43 25,35¢ 9,405,25:
Accounts payable and payables to contractor:

equipment suppliet 1,374,73 — — 1,374,73
Other payable 1,669,20! — — 1,669,201
Shor-term bank loan 367,72 — — 367,72

5,842,13, 6,949,43 25,35¢ 12,816,92

December 31, 201
<1 year 2 to 5 years > 5 year: Total Total
NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 US$000

Long-term bank loans (including

current portion 2,995,86! 3,974,91 — 6,970,78: 233,68
Accounts payable and payables to

contractors and equipment

suppliers 1,815,03: — — 1,815,03i 60,84¢
Other payable 1,541,40! — — 1,541,40! 51,67:
Shor-term bank loan 790,43¢ — — 790,43t 26,49¢
7,142,75. 3,974,91! — 11,117,66 372,70:
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30. Financial risk management and fair values of finamal instruments (continued

b) Fair values of financial instrumer

i) The Grouy's financial assets and financial liabilities measumt amortized cost approximate their fair val
ii) The fair values of financial assets and finandélilities are determined as follow

. The fair values of financial assets and finangabilities with standard terms and conditions aradl¢d in active
markets are determined with reference to quotedkebarices

. Derivative financial instruments are measured wafierence to quoted market prices. If no quotedketasrice exists,
the non-optional derivative financial instruments mmeasured at the present value of future casls festimated and
discounted based on the applicable yield curveisettfrom quoted interest rates. The optional deie financial
instruments are measured using option pricing Ns0

. The fair values of other financial assets and foi@Hriabilities are determined in accordance vg#nerally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow aisl

31. Share-based payments
Stock option plan

The Group adopted three option plans in 2001, 20@52011 which have 2,250,000, 1,750,000 and 1Q00Ghares available for
issuance, respectively. The stock option plansigeothat the directors, officers, employees anduatiants of ChipMOS Bermuda and its
affiliates may be granted options to purchase amgishares of ChipMOS Bermuda at specified exeqises.

During the year, the Group recognized NT$101,928¢and (2012: NT$65,991 thousand) compensatiomsegdn respect of option

plans.
The following table illustrates the number and vnégl average exercise prices (“WAEBT) and movements in, share options during
year:
2012 2012 2013 2013
Number of WAEP Number of WAEP
options Uss$ options Uss$

Outstanding at January 2,562,17. 9.47 1,705,54 9.02
Granted during the ye: 204,31¢ 11.1¢ 688,99¢ 13.8¢
Forfeited during the ye: (103,42 10.2% (75,94¢) 11.72
Exercised during the ye (668,241) 6.21 (500,38 5.81
Expired during the yes (289,269) 20.5¢ (253,199 21.6¢
Outstanding at December 1,705,54 9.0z 1,565,02. 10.01
Exercisable at December 901,34« 11.51 462,03. 7.3¢

The weighted average share price at the date ofisreof these options exercised in 2013 was US81(2012: US$13.18).

The weighted average remaining contractual lifetfiershare options outstanding as of December@®I3 %/as 4.61 years (2012: 3.7
years).

The weighted average fair value of options graiigtihg 2013 was US$13.69 (2012: US$12.24).
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31. Share-based payments (continue
Stock option plan (continued)

The range of exercise prices for options outstapdirthe end of 2013 was US$2.3796~21.488 (2013$0U48~25.908).

The following tables list the inputs to the Blackh®les Option Pricing Model used for the optiomgléor the years ended December 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively.

2012 2013
Dividend yield 0~1.33% 0~1.33%
Expected volatility 70.88~239.76¢ 70.88~239.76¢
Risk-free interest rat 0.3725~3.41¢ 0.3725~3.04¢
Expected life 3.25~7 yeal 3.5~7 yeat

Share appreciation rightsSARS)

The Group adopted three SARs plans in 2006, 206&amh3 which have 500,000, 750,000 and 1,000,@fQgiavailable for issuance,
respectively. The SARs plans provide that the diinesg officers and employees of ChipMOS Bermudaitndffiliates may be granted
cash-settled share appreciation rights.

During the year, the Group recognized NT$130,6@2¢and (2012: NT$115,772 thousand) compensatioensgs in respect of SARs
plans.

The following table illustrates the number and WA&Pand movements in, SARs during the year:

2012 2012 2013 2013

Number of WAEP Number of WAEP

rights USs$ rights Uss$

Outstanding at January 1,049,93 8.32 640,84¢ 6.8
Granted during the ye: 43,66( 11.1¢4 521,02( 13.9¢
Forfeited during the ye: (67,375 8.5t (46,509 7.2¢€
Exercised during the ye (231,27() 4.7¢ (249,567 5.01
Expired during the yes (154,100 20.5¢ (53,379 22.8¢
Outstanding at December 640,84¢ 6.8< 812,42¢ 10.87
Exercisable at December 198,71. 10.1zZ 67,32¢ 4.7:

The weighted average share price at the date ofisreof these SARs exercised in 2013 was US$1208: US$13.44).

The weighted average remaining contractual lifetfier SARs outstanding as of December 31, 2013 véssy2ars (2012: 3.87 years).
The weighted average fair value of SARs granteihdu2013 was US$15.00 (2012: US$9.94).

The range of exercise prices for SARs outstandirigeaend of 2013 was US$2.448~14.0675 (2012: US$06-25.908).
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Share-based payments (continue

Share appreciation right$§ARS') (continued)

The following tables list the inputs to the Blackh®les Option Pricing Model used for the SARs plmmghe years ended December 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively.

2012 2013
Dividend yield 1.33% 0.85%
Expected volatility 30.99~188.49¢ 15.9~144.56¢
Risk-free interest rat 0.05~0.675¢ 0.07~1.62875¢
Expected life 0.25~4.75 yea 0.25~4.75 yea

Capital managemen

The Group manages its capital to ensure that esiiti the Group will be able to continue as a gaimgcern while maximizing the return
to shareholders through the optimization of thebe¢ between debt and equity.

The capital structure of the Group consists of dehtch includes bank loans of NT$7,550,408 thoddalisclosed in Notes 21 and 23),
less cash and cash equivalents of NT$13,372,71&#ml (disclosed in Note 17) and equity attrib@ablequity holders of the
Company, comprising share capital of NT$37,165 slamd and all other equity reserves attributabtéaequity holders of the Company
of NT$13,527,498 thousand disclosed in the conat#id statements of changes in equity.

The Group reviews the capital structure on an amgybasis. As part of this review, the directorssider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. The Grolibadance its overall capital structure through gayment of dividends, new share
issues and the issue of new debt or the repaynfiexisiing debt.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged 204P.
The Group monitors capital using the net debt-toitgqatio, the percentages of which as of Janda2012 and December 31, 2012 and
2013 were as follows:

December 31

January 1, December 31 December 31
Note 2012 2012 2013 2013
NT$000 NT$000 NT$000 US$000

Bank loans 21, 2¢ 9,715,24. 9,334,20: 7,550,40: 253,11!
Less: Cash and cash equivale 17 (7,246,051 (8,863,611 (13,372,77) (448,299
Net debi 2,469,18! 470,59. (5,822,36) (195,18)
Equity attributable to the equity holders of the

Company 10,760,02 11,593,61 13,564,66 454,73
Net debi-to-equity ratio 22.95% 4.06% -42.92% -42.92%
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Events after the reporting perio

a)

b)

c)

On January 16, 2014, ChipMOS Bermuda repurchi&s@gD94 thousand common shares held by Thaihéhthe shares were then
retired and cancelle

On June 17, 2013, the proposal to invest in Modéind an aggregate amount of US$10 million anddktm Mind then to reinvest
the proceeds of US$10 million in ChipMOS Shanghaswpproved by ThaiLin's shareholders. On Augus2P23, the US$10
million investment was approved by the Investmenin@ission, Ministry of Economic Affairs. On Janu&y, 2014, ThaiLin wire
US$10 million to Modern Mind to increase its invesint amount in Modern Mind to US$49,951 thousanchftJS$39,951
thousand. On January 22, 2014, Modern Mind injettiedsame to ChipMOS Shangt

On March 10, 2014, ChipMOS Taiwan’s Board ofdators approved to issue 21,764 thousand commaasshapar value of
NT$10 per share to increase its capital for listngTWSE. The issuance price is not yet confirn

Reconciliation between ROC GAAP and IFR!

IFRS 1 requires an entity to reconcile equity, coghpnsive income and cash flow for comparativeogistiln preparing these
consolidated financial statements, the Group hastetl amounts reported previously in financialesteents prepared in accordance with
ROC GAAP. An explanation of how the transition fref@C GAAP to IFRSs has affected the Group’s statésnef financial position,

net profit, comprehensive income and cash flowsdsided below:

a)

Reconciliation of assets, liabilities and eqt

The below table provides a summary of the IFRSsstdjents to the Group’s statements of financiaitiposas of January 1, 2012
and December 31, 2012:

January 1, December 31
Note 2012 2012
NT$000 NT$000
Total assets under ROC GAAF 28,281,06 28,749,39
Adjustment for accrued pension ¢ 1) 9,79¢ (16,110
Adjustment for income tax on unappropriated ears 2) (3,257%) (56,877)
Reclassification of allowance for sales returns disdounts 3) 118,63( 122,93
Total assets under IFRS: 28,406,23 28,799,344
January 1, December 31
Note 2012 2012
NT$000 NT$000
Total liabilities under ROC GAAP 13,297,79 12,780,31
Adjustment for accrued pension ¢ 1) 254,94, 301,36¢
Adjustment for income tax on unappropriated ears 2) — 5,42
Reclassification of allowance for sales returns disdounts 3) 118,63( 122,93
Total liabilities under IFRSs 13,671,36 13,210,04
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34. Reconciliation between ROC GAAP and IFRSs (contiral):
a) Reconciliation of assets, liabilities and equitgr{tinued)

January 1, December 31
Note 2012 2012
NT$000 NT$000
Total equity under ROC GAAP 14,983,27 15,969,07
Adjustment for pension co 1) (245,14 (317,479
Adjustment for tax on unappropriated earni 2) (3,257%) (62,299
Total equity under IFRSs 14,734,87 15,589,30

b) Reconciliation of net profi

The below table provides a summary of the IFRSsstdjents to net profit for the year ended Decer83thep012:

Note

Net profit for the year under ROC GAAP
Adjustment for accrued pension ¢ 1)
Adjustment for income tax on unappropriated ears 2)

Net profit for the year under IFRSs

Net profit attributable to equity holders of ther@oany
Net profit attributable to nc¢-controlling interest:

Net profit for the year under IFRSs

¢) Reconciliation of comprehensive incol

The below table provides a summary of the IFRSgstdjents to comprehensive income for the year ebgegmber 31, 2012:

Comprehensive income for the year under ROC GAAP

IFRS adjustments to net profit (see table ab:

Adjustment for exchange difference on translatibforeign operation:

Adjustment for net actuarial loss

Non-controlling interest share of exchange differencéranslation of foreign operatio
Nonr-controlling interest share of net actuarial los

Comprehensive income for the year under IFRS

Comprehensive income attributable to equity holdéithe Compan'
Comprehensive income attributable to -controlling interest:

Total comprehensive income for the year under IFRS
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2012
NT$000
789,34¢
(60,657)
(59,04)
669,65

629,78:
39,87t
669,65(

2012
NT$000
789,34

(119,69))
(17,000
(59,25)

(3,186)

(3,069
587,14¢

553,52:
33,62¢
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34. Reconciliation between ROC GAAP and IFRSs (contiral):

The items noted above in the reconciliations ofstaements of financial position, net profit amtnprehensive income from ROC
GAAP to IFRSs are described below:

1)

2)

3)

4)

Adjustment for accrued pension cc

The Group arranged an actuarial valuation in aamwed with IAS 19. As of January 1, 2012, accruatsjma cost was adjusted for
an increase of NT$254,942 thousand, prepaid pemsisiwas adjusted for a decrease of NT$33,541stiral) deferred income tax
assets were adjusted for an increase of NT$43(8ABand, retained earnings were adjusted for adserof NT$199,309 thousand
and non-controlling interests were adjusted foeeréase of NT$45,834 thousand. For the year endedrbber 31, 2012, pension
cost recognized in cost of revenue was adjustedrfoncrease of NT$49,357 thousand, pension cosgrézed in operating
expense was adjusted for an increase of NT$23hthéand, income tax expense was adjusted for aaeof NT$12,422
thousand, and non-controlling interests was adjuftea decrease of NT$16,535 thousand. As of Déeerdl, 2012, prepaid
pension cost was adjusted for a decrease of NT$84lfbusand, accrued pension cost was adjustethfmcrease of NT$301,369
thousand, deferred income tax assets was adjusteah increase of NT$68,526 thousand, retainedreggnvere adjusted for a
decrease of NT$291,560 thousand, unrealized pensgtnvas adjusted for a decrease of NT$42,64X#dmbiand non-controlling
interests was adjusted for a decrease of NT$68xfisand.

Adjustment for income tay

Under ROC income tax rules, a 10% extra incomeniéhbe charged on the unappropriated earningfefirevious year and an
income tax expense will be recognized. Under IFR®®mMe tax expense should be accrued in the fieagdrnings arise. The
difference between actual and accrued income tperese will be adjusted and recognized in the fahgwear. As of January 1,
2012, deferred tax asset was adjusted for a deco#ddT$3,257 thousand, retained earnings was tdjuder a decrease of
NT$2,748 thousand and non-controlling interests adjasted for a decrease of NT$509 thousand. FEoydhar ended December 31,
2012, income tax expense increased by NT$59,04is#ra. As of December 31, 2012, deferred tax aszetdjusted for a
decrease of NT$56,871 thousand, income tax payedseadjusted for an increase of NT$5,427 thousatained earnings were
adjusted for a decrease of NT$50,689 thousand andtontrolling interests was adjusted for a de@edNT$11,609 thousand.

Reclassification of allowance for sales returns disdounts

Under ROC GAAP, the allowance for sales returnsdisdounts was presented as an allowance for aogkaccounts receivable.
Under IFRSs, it was classified as a provision angcorded in current liabilities. As of Januar2Q12 and December 31, 2012,
notes and accounts receivable was adjusted faraaease and other current liabilities was adjukiedn increase of NT$118,630
thousand and NT$122,937 thousand, respectively.

Other reclassificatior

As of January 1, 2012, land use rights of NT$108 ##@usand was reclassified to prepaid expenseted current assets of
NT$2,476 thousand and other assets of NT$98,025%58mal. Deferred income tax-current of NT$76,55%¢land was reclassified
to deferred income tax-noncurrent. Deferred chaog@$T$130,157 thousand was reclassified to prepafense and other current
asset of NT$8,267 thousand, property, plant anébetgnt of NT$108,352 thousand, and other assdtT6f.3,538 thousand.
Employee dormitory buildings of NT$248,429 thousand idle assets of NT$111,365 thousand were fibsto property, plant
and equipment. Capital surplus of long-term investta of NT$77,440 thousand was reclassified tarmetbearnings.
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34. Reconciliation between ROC GAAP and IFRSs (contiral):

35.

36.

4)

5)

Other reclassification: (continue

For the year ended December 31, 2012, since thesediication of other assets to property, plamt aguipment, the depreciation
recognized in non-operating expense of NT$82,486gthnd was reclassified to cost of revenue of NJoDthousand and
operating expense of NT$2,417 thousand.

As of December 31, 2012, land use rights of NT$94 thousand was reclassified to prepaid expenseted current assets of
NT$2,381 thousand and other assets of NT$91,878#mal. Deferred income tax-current of NT$77,82higland was reclassified
to deferred income tax-noncurrent. Deferred chaof@$T$96,919 thousand was reclassified to prepajgense and other current
asset of NT$736 thousand and property, plant angpetent of NT$96,183 thousand. Employee dormitarjdings of NT$221,11
thousand and idle assets of NT$50,008 thousand neelassified to property, plant and equipment.i@apurplus of long-term
investments of NT$77,440 thousand was reclasdifiedtained earnings.

The adoption of IFRSs decreased cash and cashaéants as at January 1, 2012 and December 32, RNT$111,846 thousand
and NT$455,406 thousand, respectively as ROC GAwRided bank deposits maturing over three montltasis and cash
equivalents

Standards issued but not yet effecti

The standards and interpretations that are isfugadhot yet effective for the year ended Decemiei2813 and which have not been e
adopted by the Group are disclosed below:

Effective for annual
reporting periods
beginning on or aft

IAS 32 Amendmen Presentatior Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liakekt January 1, 201

IAS 36 Amendments Recoverable Amount Disclosures for I-Financial Asset January 1, 201

IAS 39 Amendment Novation of Derivative and Continuation of Hedgecaanting January 1, 201

IFRS 7 Amendmer Mandatory Effective Date and Transition Disclost January 1, 201

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments Not yet establishe
by the IASB

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and  Investment Entities January 1, 2014

IAS 27 Amendmen

IFRIC 21 Levies January 1, 201

The Group has already commenced an assessmeset i@ldted impact of adopting the above new starsdand interpretation and
amendments to standards in the period of initipliagtion. So far, it has concluded that the adoptf them is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the consolidated financiattstments of the Group.

Approval of the financial statement
The financial statements were approved and augmbfiar issue by the board of directors on March2D1.,4.
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SHARE PURCHASE AGREEMENT

THIS SHARE PURCHASE AGREEMENT (this_* Agreeméhts made as of November 21, 2013, by and betwéweilLin Semiconductor
Corp., a company organized under the laws of TaiRapublic of China, with its principle addressofiness at 4, Ren Der Rd, Hsinchu
Industrial Park, Hsinchu County, Taiwan, R.O.Ce(ttSeller”) and ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD., a BemaLcompany, with
its principle address of business at No. 1 R&D RdHsinchu Science Park, Hsinchu, Taiwan, R. tte “ Buyer”) (the Seller and the Buyer
hereinafter collectively referred to as the “ Resti or individually referred to as the_* Party.

WHEREAS, the Seller is the beneficial owner of ®isaof the Buyer; and

WHEREAS, the Seller desires to sell the Shareba¢duyer, and the Buyer desires to repurchasetltaeeS from the Seller.
NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties hereto hereby agréellass.

ARTICLE |
DEFINITIONS
As used in this Agreement, the following terms khale the following meanings:

“ Affiliate " shall mean, with respect to any person, any opleeson directly or indirectly controlling or coolled by or under direct or
indirect common control with such specified pergeéor. the purposes of this definition, “control,” ehused with respect to any person, mean
the power to direct the management and policiesioh person, directly or indirectly, whether thrbulie ownership of voting securities, by
contract or otherwise; and the terms “affiliatetdntrolling” and “controlled” have meanings coiaéle to the foregoing.

“ Agreement’ shall have the meaning set forth in the Preamble.

“ Applicable Law” shall mean, with respect to any person, any ktetute, rule, regulation, order, writ, injunctiguggment or decree of
any Governmental Authority to which such persommy of its subsidiaries is bound or to which anyh&iir respective properties is subject.

“ Buyer” shall mean ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTDBarmuda holding company, as set forth in the Pldam
“ Closings” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.2.

“ Common Stocl” shall mean the common shares, par value US$0.0ghpee, of the Buye



“ Eirst Closing” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.2.

“ Eirst Closing Daté shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.2.

“ Governmental Authority shall mean any ROC, United States, Bermuda aheratlated foreign, federal, state or local court
governmental or regulatory authority.

“ Lien " shall mean any mortgage, claim, pledge, secimirest, lien, charge, encumbrances, options,igsppurchase rights, voting
trusts or agreements and other restrictions anitaliions of any kind.

“ Notices” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7.4.

“ person” shall mean any individual, partnership, corparatilimited liability company, joint venture, asgatton, joint-stock company,
trust, unincorporated organization, governmentganay or political subdivision thereof, or othetign

“ Released Partigsshall have the meaning set forth in Section 7.3.
“ Second Closing shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.2.

“ Second Closing Datéshall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.2.

“ Shares’ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2febf.

“ Share Purchase Pri¢eshall have the meaning set forth in Section Zdebf.

“ Securities Act’ shall mean the Securities Act of 1933, as amended the rules and regulations thereunder.

“ Taxes” shall mean all foreign, federal, state and locats$aincluding any interest, penalties or addititmtax that may become paya
in respect thereof, imposed by any Governmentahéity, which taxes shall include, without limitinlge generality of the foregoing, all
income taxes, payroll and employee withholding saxmemployment insurance, social security, salduae taxes, excise taxes, franchise
taxes, gross receipts taxes, occupation taxesangigbersonal property taxes, stamp taxes, tratesfes, workmen’s compensation taxes and
other obligations of the same or a similar natwigether arising before, on or after the Closing.

“ Transaction’ shall mean sale and repurchase of the Sharesndsroplated under this Agreement.
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ARTICLE Il
TRANSACTION

Section 2.1, The Transactio®n the date hereof, and upon the terms and dubjéite conditions set forth in this Agreemeng Buyer
agrees to repurchase from the Seller, and therZejtees to sell to the Buyer, a total of 4,093 3&res of Common Stock (the “ Shdbeat
two Closings as set forth in Section 2.2. The pasehprice of the Shares at each of the Closindstahdetermined by the arithmetic mean of
the closing prices of the Common Stock at NASDAQwenty (20) consequent trading days prior to tteeeding fifth day of each of the First
Closing Date and the Second Closing Date times peirtt ninety-three (0.93) for seven percent (7%gaunt (collectively the “ Share
Purchase Pric8, provided,however, that any of the Closings shall not take pladbéf Share Purchase Price is higher than ninetdéah po
ninety-two U.S. Dollars (US$19.92) per Share ordothan thirteen U.S. Dollars (US$13.00) per Shaméess otherwise agreed upon by the
Parties.

Section 2.2. Closings

(a) The sale and repurchase of the Shares shafifsummated at two closings (the “ Closifigat the offices of the Buyer at No. 1 Ré
Rd. 1, Hsinchu Science Park, Hsinchu, Taiwan, RCQhe first closing of the repurchase and saf2,@00,000 Shares (the “ First Closifg
shall take place within five (5) business daysréafte execution of the Agreement, to be specificopbefore November 26, 2013 (the “ First
Closing Date"); the second closing of the purchase and sa®0%3,705 Shares (the “ Second Closinghall take place on or before
January 31, 2014 (the_* Second Closing Date

(b) At each of the Closings, (i) the Buyer shalpdsit into one or more bank accounts designatetidseller, by wire transfer of
immediately available funds, an amount equal tocShare Purchase Price being repurchased by the Boye the Seller for the part of each of
the Closings pursuant to Sections 2.1 and 2.2 igriti€ Seller shall deliver to the Buyer, a staektificate or stock certificates representing th
Shares being repurchased from the Seller by theBiay the part of each of the Closings pursuar@dotions 2.1 and 2.2, free and clear of an
Liens.

ARTICLE Il
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE SELLER
The Seller represents and warrants to the Buyeaétt of the Closings as follows:

Section 3.1. Organization and Standing; AuthortmatEnforceability.

(a) The Seller is duly organized, validly existizgd in good standing as a domestic corporationnuhédaws of Taiwan, Republic of
China and has all requisite corporate power anidoaity to own its properties and assets and toyaamrits business as it is now being
conducted.

(b) The Seller has the corporate power to execigieser and perform its obligations under this Agrent and has taken all necessary
action to authorize the execution, delivery andgrerance by it of this Agreement and to consumnttaeT ransaction contemplated hereby
other corporate proceedings on the part of sudeiSsle necessary therefor.
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(c) The Seller has duly executed and deliveredAgigement. This Agreement constitutes, assumimgedecution by the other Parties
hereto, the legal, valid and binding obligatiorsa€h Seller enforceable against it in accordante g terms, except as enforceability may be
limited by applicable bankruptcy or similar lawseatting the enforcement of creditors’ rights gefigrand by general principles of equity
(regardless of whether enforcement is sought iroegeding in equity or at law).

Section 3.2. No Violation; Consents

(a) The execution, delivery and performance by3aker of this Agreement and the consummation effttansaction contemplated
hereby does not and will not contravene or viotate Applicable Law and will not (x) conflict withng of the terms, conditions or provision
the organizational documents of the Seller, (y)at® result in a breach of or constitute (with do¢ice or lapse of time or both) a default ui
any contract, lease, loan agreement, mortgagetiseagreement or other agreement or instrumenthich such Seller is a party or by which
either it or its properties or assets is subjeczpresult in the creation or imposition of anyhiupon any of the properties or assets of such
Seller.

(b) No consent, waiver, authorization, approvabater of, or filing or registration with, any Gowenental Authority, Buyer or other
person is required to be obtained or made by tHerSer the execution, delivery and performancehi$ Agreement, or the consummation of
any of the Transaction contemplated hereby.

Section 3.3. Title; Ownership of Shareall of the Shares being sold by Seller are dultharized and validly issued, fully-paid and
non-assessable, with no personal liability attaghithe ownership thereof and free and clear gftakes and Liens. The Seller is the sole
record and beneficial owner of such Shares andjbad and valid title to such Shares. Upon delilmrseller of the certificates representing
the Shares being sold by Seller and payment thelbogfthe Buyer as provided in Section 2.2 herdd,Buyer will acquire valid and marketa
title to such Shares free and clear of any Liersept for restrictions on transfer imposed by theuities Act and state securities laws. The
Seller has not granted any options, warrants titsigf first refusal with respect to the Shares.

ARTICLE IV
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE BUYER
The Buyer hereby represents and warrants to ther@eleach of the Closings as follows:

Section 4.1. Organization and Standing; AuthorirgtEnforceability.

(a) It is duly organized, validly existing and ina standing as a Bermuda company under the laBsrmofiuda and has all requisite
corporate power and authority to own its properdied assets and to carry on its business asdtwsoeing conducted.
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(b) It has the corporate power to execute, dekwel perform its obligations under this Agreemert bas taken all necessary action to
authorize the execution, delivery and performanci bf this Agreement and to consummate the Tretima contemplated hereby. No other
corporate proceedings on the part of the Buyenacessary therefor.

(c) It has duly executed and delivered this AgremimEhis Agreement constitutes a legal, valid aimdling obligation of the Buyer,
enforceable against it in accordance with its teemsept as enforceability may be limited by apgitle bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganizati
moratorium or similar laws affecting the enforcemeicreditors’ rights generally and by generahpiples of equity (regardless of whether
enforcement is sought in a proceeding in equitgtdaw).

Section 4.2. No Violation; Consents

(a) The execution, delivery and performance byBhger of this Agreement and the consummation offitamsaction contemplated
hereby does not and will not contravene or viotate Applicable Law and will not (x) conflict withng of the terms, conditions or provision:
the organizational documents of the Buyer, (y)at®)] result in a breach of or constitute (with dagéce or lapse of time or both) a default
under any contract, lease, loan agreement, mortgagarity agreement or other agreement or instntiteewhich the Buyer is a party or by
which either it or its properties or assets is sabpr (z) result in the creation or impositioraofy Lien upon any of the properties or assets of
the Buyer.

(b) No consent, authorization or order of, or filiar registration with, any Governmental Authoiyother person is required to be
obtained or made by the Buyer for the executioliyely and performance of this Agreement, or thestonmation of any of the Transaction
contemplated hereby.

ARTICLE V

COVENANTS OF THE SELLER

Section 5.1, Agreement to Take Necessary and Dsifections. The Seller shall execute and deliver such otbeunhents, certificates,
agreements and other writings and take such otttiena as may be necessary, desirable or reasoreplgsted by the Buyer in order to
consummate or implement as expeditiously as pigdtcthe Transaction contemplated hereby.

Section 5.2, Other Consents and Approvalke Seller shall (a) use commercially reasonafftats to obtain all necessary consents,
waivers, authorizations and approvals of all Gowental Authorities and of Buyer, all other persdirtes or corporations required in
connection with the execution, delivery and perfance by them of this Agreement or the Transactomeamplated hereby, and (b) assist and
cooperate with the Buyer in preparing and filingdaicuments required to be submitted by the Buyemty Governmental Authority in
connection with such Transaction and in obtaining governmental consents, waivers, authorizatioregpprovals which may be required to
obtained by the Buyer in connection with such Taatisn (which assistance and cooperation shalides|without limitation, timely furnishin
to the Buyer all information concerning the Setleat counsel to the Buyer reasonably determinesgigired to be included in such documents
or would be helpful in obtaining any such requicethsent, waiver, authorization or approval).
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Section 5.3. Compliance with Conditions; CommelgiRleasonable EffortsThe Seller shall use commercially reasonabler&fto
cause all of the obligations imposed upon it iis thgreement to be duly complied with. Upon the &and subject to the conditions of this
Agreement, the Seller shall use commercially realstenefforts to take, or cause to be taken, albacand to do, or cause to be done, all thing
necessary, proper or advisable consistent with idaple Law to consummate and make effective imtlost expeditious manner practicable
Transaction contemplated hereby.

ARTICLE VI
COVENANTS OF THE BUYER

Section 6.1. Agreement to Take Necessary and Dsifections. The Buyer shall execute and deliver such otheud@nts, certificates,
agreements and other writings and take such otitiena as may be necessary, desirable or reasorehlgsted by the Seller in order to
consummate or implement as expeditiously as putcthe Transaction contemplated hereby.

Section 6.2. Compliance with Conditions; CommelgiRleasonable EffortsThe Buyer shall use commercially reasonable &ffiar
cause all of the obligations imposed upon it iis thgreement to be duly complied with. Upon the ®and subject to the conditions of this
Agreement, the Buyer shall use commercially redsienefforts to take, or cause to be taken, alba¢tand to do, or cause to be done, all thing
necessary, proper or advisable consistent with idaple Law to consummate and make effective imtlost expeditious manner practicable
Transaction contemplated hereby.

ARTICLE VII
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 7.1. Conditions to Obligations of the Buged the Seller The obligations of the Buyer to repurchase andfpathe Shares and
of the Seller to sell the Shares are subject te#tisfaction at or prior to the Closing of thddaling conditions precedent: the representations
and warranties of the Seller contained in Sectiter@of and of the Buyer contained in Section 4dfeshall be true and correct as of the
Closing in all respects with the same effect asigiiosuch representations and warranties had bege assof the Closing. The obligations of
the Buyer shall be irrevocable.

Section 7.2 Survival of Representations and Waieani he representations, warranties, covenants nséates and agreements of the
Seller and the Buyer contained in this Agreemetitsurvive respective Closing for a period of tw®) years. No claim may be commenced
under this Section 7.2 (or otherwise) following apon of the applicable period of survival, argba such expiration the indemnifying Party
shall be released from all liability with respegtciaims under each such section not theretofoderbg the indemnifying Party.
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Section 7.3 Releasdé=ach of the Buyer and the Seller hereby expresthases and discharges the other Party and itders, partners,
officers, directors, employees, agents, affiliategal representatives, agents successors andhagsalectively, the “ Released Partig$rom
any and all actions, causes of action, suits, daliabilities, charges, demands, damages anddagsany type whatsoever, including attorreey’
fees, whether known or unknown, choate or inchatkw, in equity, by contract or otherwise, argsfrom the failure to disclose any or all of
the confidential information in connection with tlransfer of Shares, and each Party agrees to mmkkim against the other Party of its
Released Parties relating to any failure to discklsor any part of the confidential informatiandonnection with such sale. In any litigation
arising from or related to an alleged breach of thlease, this release may be pleaded as a detenseerclaim or cross-claim, and shall be
admissible into evidence without any foundatioritesny whatsoever. Each Party expressly covenardsagrees that this release shall be
binding in all respects upon their respective sssoes, assigns and transferees, and shall betimtite benefit of the successors and assigns ¢
the Released Parties.

Section 7.4. NoticesAll notices, demands, requests, consents, aplgrovather communications (collectively, “ Noticg@sequired or
permitted to be given hereunder or which are givigh respect to this Agreement shall be in writargd shall be personally served, delivered
by a reputable air courier service with trackingalaility, with charges prepaid, or transmitted lay& delivery or facsimile, addressed as set
forth below, or to such other address as such RBhgl} have specified most recently by written c®tiNotice shall be deemed given on the
of service or transmission if personally servettansmitted by facsimile, provided the sender nezeevidence of complete transmission
without error. Notice otherwise sent as providerkhmeshall be deemed given on the next busines$allaying delivery of such naotice to the
address as set forth hereunder by a reputableairec service.

If to the Seller, as follows:

ThaiLin Semiconductor Corp.
Telecopy: +886-3-597-2042
Attention: Lafair Cho

If to the Buyer, as follows:

ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD.
Telecopy: +886-3-566-8981
Attention: Shou-Kang Chen

Section 7.5. Governing LawThis Agreement and the rights and obligationthefParties hereunder shall be governed by, anstrueml
in accordance with, the laws of Taiwan, Republi€bfna, and each Party hereto submits to the nolugixe jurisdiction of the Hsinchu
District Court, Taiwan, Republic of China.



Section 7.6. Entire Agreementhis Agreement (including all agreements enténealpursuant hereto and all certificates and umgnts
delivered pursuant hereto and thereto) constithieentire agreement of the Parties hereto withe&tsto the subject matter hereof and
supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreememtesentations, understandings, negotiationslemedssions between the Parties or thei
Affiliates, whether oral or written, with respectthe subject matter hereof.

Section 7.7. Maodifications and Amendmentéo amendment, modification or termination of tAgreement shall be binding upon either
Party unless executed in writing by the Partiegtweintending to be bound thereby.

Section 7.8. Waivers and Extensiori&ither Party may waive any right, breach or diéfahich such Party has the right to waive,
provided that such waiver will not be effective imgathe waiving Party unless it is in writing,signed by such Party, and specifically refers tc
this Agreement. Waivers may be made in advancétenr the right waived has arisen or the breachefault waived has occurred. Any waiver
may be conditional. No waiver of any breach of agyeement or provision herein contained shall leergel a waiver of any preceding or
succeeding breach thereof nor of any other agreeangarovision herein contained. No waiver or esien of time for performance of any
obligations or acts shall be deemed a waiver @resion of the time for performance of any othefigatilons or acts.

Section 7.9. Titles and HeadingSitles and headings of sections of this Agreenaeatfor convenience only and shall not affect the
construction of any provision of this Agreement.

Section 7.10. Exhibits and Scheduldsach of the annexes, exhibits and schedulesreelfén herein and attached hereto is an integral pz
of this Agreement and is incorporated herein bgnezice.

Section 7.11. Expenses; Brokeisach Party shall pay its own costs and expemsesrinection with the negotiation and executiothcf
Agreement and the Transaction contemplated henetiyding without limitation, fees and disbursengeat counsel, financial advisors and
accountants.

Section 7.12. Public CommunicatioAny public communication relating to the Transattcontemplated by this Agreement shall be
made only if mutually agreed upon by the Seller tn@dBuyer, except to the extent that such discosy in the opinion of counsel, required
law or by stock exchange regulation; provided #mgt such required disclosure shall only be madthaextent consistent with law, after
consultation with the Buyer.

Section 7.13. Assignment; No Third Party Benefieigr This Agreement and the rights, duties and olibgathereunder may not be
assigned or delegated by either the Seller or theBwithout the prior written consent of the otRarty hereto. Except as provided in the
preceding sentence, any assignment or delegatioghd$, duties or obligations hereunder made withibe prior written consent of the other
Party hereto shall be void and of no effect. Thigeement and the provisions hereof shall be bindpan and shall inure to the benefit of eact
of the Parties and their respective successorpamditted assigns. This Agreement is not otherimitsnded to confer any rights or benefits on
any persons that are not a Party.




Section 7. 14. SeverabilityThis Agreement shall be deemed severable, anidthédity or unenforceability of any term or piision
hereof shall not affect the validity or enforce#bibf this Agreement or of any other term or piwh hereof. Furthermore, in lieu of any such
invalid or unenforceable term or provision, thetRarhereto intend that there shall be added astapthis Agreement a provision as simila
terms to such invalid or unenforceable provisiomay be possible and be valid and enforceable.

Section 7.15. Counterparts; Facsimilehis Agreement may be executed in multiple coyraes, each of which shall be deemed an
original, and all of which taken together shall stitute one and the same instrument. All documentksclosing deliveries for the Transaction
contemplated by this Agreement may be delivered Barty at the Closings via facsimile; provideatthhe originally executed signature
pages and original documents are delivered toppeopriate Parties within two (2) business dayfaing the Closing.

Section 7.16. Further Assurance&3ne Party hereto, upon the request of the othdy Rereto, shall do all such further acts anccetes
acknowledge and deliver all such further instruraemtd documents as may be necessary or desiratderyoout the Transaction contemplated
by this Agreement, including, in the case of thBeBesuch acts, instruments and documents as magbessary or desirable to convey and
transfer to the Buyer the Shares to be repurchagéchereunder.

* * *
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have exectitis Agreement as of the date first above written
ThaiLin Semiconductor Cor|

By:

Name:
Title:

ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTI

By:

Name:
Title:



Name

List of Principal Subsidiaries

Place of Incorporation

Exhibit 8.1

ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC

ThaiLin Semiconductor Cor|

MODERN MIND TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Shanghai) LTI

Republic of Chin
Republic of Chin

British Virgin Islands
Peopl¢s Republic of Chini



Exhibit 12.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Shih-Jye Cheng, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 2f-EhipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notadorany untrue statement of a material fact or endttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsunder which such statements were made, niatadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the company as of, andtffierperiods presented in this report;

4. The company'’s other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the company and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the company, including its consolidatebsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg toeriod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financigloiting, or caused such internal control over fiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the compamlysclosure controls and procedures and presantad report our conclusions abi
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adgatures, as of the end of the period coveredibydport based on such evaluation; ant

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the camgfsainternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the period
covered by the annual report that has materiaflsctgd, or is reasonably likely to materially atfebe company’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

5. The company’s other certifying officer(s) anlgalve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the company’s auditors and the acmlitmittee of company’s board of directors (or pessperforming the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the camyfmability to record, process, summarize and refaancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invadweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the company’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 25, 2014

/sl Shih-Jye Cheng
Name: Shih-Jye Cheng
Title: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 12.2
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Shou-Kang Chen, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 2f-EhipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notadorny untrue statement of a material fact or dnfttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the company as of, andffierperiods presented in this report;

4. The company’s other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the company and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the company, including its consolidatebsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financigloiting, or caused such internal control over fiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the compamsclosure controls and procedures and preséntlds report our conclusions abi
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluation; an

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the camgfsainternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the period
covered by the annual report that has materiafscédd, or is reasonably likely to materially affebe company’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

5. The company’s other certifying officer(s) anlgalve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the company’s auditors and the acmlitmittee of company’s board of directors (or pessperforming the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the comyfmability to record, process, summarize and refaancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invadweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the company’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 25, 2014

/s/ Shou-Kang Chen
Name: Shoit-Kang Chen
Title:  Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 13.1

ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD.
CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 81350, the undersigned, $fehcheng, Chairman and Chief Executive Office€ClbipMOS TECHNOLOGIES
(Bermuda) LTD. (the “Company”), hereby certifies His knowledge, that the Company’s Annual ReporEorm 20-F for the year ended
December 31, 2013 (the “Report”) fully compliesiwihe requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), gdieable, of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, and that the information contained inReport fairly presents, in all material respedis, financial condition and results of operations
of the Company, as of, and for, the periods preskim the Report.

The foregoing certification is being furnished puast to 18 U.S.C. §1350 solely for purposes of dgimg with the provisions of
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002pisimended to be used or relied upon for any gthepose and is not being filed as part of
the Report or as a separate disclosure document.

Date: April 25, 2014

/s Shih-Jye Cheng
Name: Shih-Jye Cheng
Title: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 13.2

ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD.
CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, the undersigned, 8lamg Chen, Chief Financial Officer of ChipMOS TECBNOGIES (Bermuda)
LTD. (the “Company”), hereby certifies, to his knedge, that the Company’s Annual Report on Forni26r the year ended December 31,
2013 (the “Report”) fully complies with the requinents of Section13(a) or 15(d), as applicablehef3ecurities Exchange Act of 1934, and
that the information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finarealdition and results of operations of the
Company, as of, and for, the periods presenteldrReport.

The foregoing certification is being furnished puast to 18 U.S.C. §1350 solely for purposes of dgimg with the provisions of
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002pisimended to be used or relied upon for any gthepose and is not being filed as part of
the Report or as a separate disclosure document.

Date: April 25, 2014

/s/ Shou-Kang Chen
Name: ShoiL-Kang Chen
Title:  Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 15.1

MOORE STEPHENS

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

905 Silvercord, Tower 2 [}5
30 Canton Road .

Taimshstsui

Kowloon

Hong Kong

Tel : (B52) 2375 3180
Fax : (852) 2375 3818
E-mail © mu@ms.com. hk
www ms com.hk

-

s2o RS

April 25, 2014

The Board of Directors

ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD.
No. 1, R & D Road :

Hsinchu Science Park

Hsinchu City, 30076

Republic of China

Attention: Mr. S.J. Cheng
Dear Sirs,
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM'S CON SENT

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniReggion Statement No. 333-130230 on Form F-3Registration Statements Nos. 333-
176935, 333-137838, 333-116670 and 333-85290 om a8 of our report dated March 11, 2014, relatmthe consolidated financial
statements of ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTihe(“*Company”), and the effectiveness of the Cornygfsaimternal control over
financial reporting, appearing in this Annual Repmr Form 20-F of the Company for the year endecelder 31, 2013 (the “Annual
Report”). We also consent to the inclusion of apart in the Annual Report.

Yours faithfully,

/sl Moore Stepher
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong



